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Corporate Information (Continued)

Securities Affair Representative
Han Bin

Section A, 197, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone
Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichai.com

Authorised Representatives

Xu Xinyu
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Kwong Kwan Tong (appointed on 23 March 2013)
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of the Company
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Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China
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Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069
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Place of Business in Hong Kong
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Landmark
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Central, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information
Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2013:

1,999,309,639 Shares
(1,513,549,639 A Shares,
and 485,760,000 H Shares)

Board lot (H Shares)
(A Shares)

1,000 H Shares
100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes

A Shares: Weichai Power (#42%)77) 000338

H Shares: Weichai Power (#££8) /1) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings

A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Investors and Media Relations

The Company: Securities Department
Tel: (86) 536-819 7069
Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichai.com

Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd
Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Public Relations Consultant:

Website: www.hillandknowlton.com
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Financial Summary B 5 WE 2

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB30,922 million, increased by &2 WAL A ARKE30,922B88 7T LAY
approximately 14.3%. 14.3% -

BREARBREAFFIENAEARK2,085H
I EFA#I9.9% ©

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to

O

approximately RMB2,085 million, increased by approximately 9.9%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB1.04, increased by EARGRIKFLEARE1.047T  FFH49.5% o
approximately 9.5%.

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In (B ZEIR/R @ NEE D B AP )& o s
case of inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.) NEEMER  BUPXAEE-)



Chairman’s Statement

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

ESViE S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2013 (the “Period”).

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2013, amidst the complex and changing domestic and
overseas economic conditions, the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China and the State Council adhered to the main theme of
making steady work progress and the pivotal aim of enhancing the quality
of economic growth and efficiency and continued to implement its pro-
active fiscal policies and robust monetary policies. The national economy
was steady in general, with economic development being fuelled by
adjusting and fine-tuning policies which were in turn in tandem with the
government’s reform initiatives. In short, economic development of the
nation was steady, structural adjustment and fine-tuning attained steady
progress, and economic transformation had quality enhancement while
remaining steady. In the first half of the year, gross domestic product
reached RMB24.8 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.6%.
In particular, it grew by 7.7% in the first quarter and 7.5% in the second
quarter of the year, demonstrating a trend of slowdown in the pace of
growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

During the Period, the heavy-duty truck industry reported aggregate
sales of 402,700 units, representing a year-on-year growth of 8.4%. The
recovery of the heavy-duty truck market was primarily attributable to
three factors: Firstly, the first half of the year witnessed recovery of fixed-
asset investments which drove the demand for new purchases of heavy-
duty trucks from ultimate users in the heavy-duty truck market. Secondly,
it was attributable to the growth driven by the anticipated implementation
of the China IV Emission Standards, which drove early utilization. Thirdly,
the Period saw the beginning of a cycle of whole-truck replacement
which was derived from the trucks sold in 2010 and 2011, resulting
in new demand for replacement of trucks. During the Period, thanks
to the growth of heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, the Company’s
aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted to 155,100 units,
representing a year-on-year increase of 22.7%. The Company’s share in
the auxiliary market for heavy-duty trucks with a gross weight of above
14 tonnes reached 38.5%), maintaining the Company’s absolute leading
position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited
(PR EARFEBR A A), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, was
ranked the 5th among its heavy-duty truck peers in China, reporting an
aggregate sales of 47,000 units of heavy-duty trucks for the first half of
the year, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.5%. Shaanxi Fast Gear
Co. Ltd. BRPE AL EIwmARE LA 7)), a controlling subsidiary of the
Company, maintained its stable leading position in the industry, reporting
an aggregate sales of 320,400 units of gear boxes, representing a year-

on-year increase of 23.1%.

2013 represents a year of intensified reform for China’s industry
of construction machinery. In the first half of the year, fixed-asset
investments of China reached RMB18.13 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 20.1%, a drop of 0.3 percentage points year-on-
year. The total planned investments for newly-commenced construction
projects reached RMB17.3 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth
of 15.1%. Investments in property development reached RMB3.68
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 20.3%. The rebound of
the property projects and infrastructure projects was nevertheless weak.
Amidst such backdrop, the construction machinery industry pressed ahead
amidst substantial adversity but had yet to come out from a trough during
the first half of the year. During the Period, the construction machinery
market of China reported a total sales of 401,200 units, representing a

year-on-year drop of 1.3%. In particular, for the market of wheel loaders

WMEHA  BERITEHREEL0278H -
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) T ()

with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, the sale volume was 62,500 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.7%. Leveraging on its product
advantage, the Company sold 41,900 units of engines for wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year growth of
5.9% and the Company’s market share in the market of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes reached 67%, signifying the Company'’s

leading position in this market is maintained.

During the Period, China’s passenger vehicle market achieved growth
while maintaining stability. Benefiting from favorable factors including
the development of municipal transportation, China’s passenger vehicle
market reported an aggregate sales figure of 267,500 units, representing
a year-on-year growth of 12.7%. School-buses, gas-fuelled passenger
vehicles and those passenger vehicles using new energy modes reported
excellent performance. Under favorable market conditions, our engines
for use in passenger vehicles reported a sales figure of 9,076 units for the
Period, representing a year-on-year growth of 3.8%. It represented steady
growth for the three consecutive years, and a 11.6% market share in the

market of medium-sized and large-sized passenger vehicles.

During the Period, with our technology innovation, the Company
continued to lead the technology development trend in the equipment
manufacturing industry. For the Period, the Company reported a sales
figure of 210,700 units of 10L, 12L and 13L engines, maintaining the
stable leading position of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-duty
truck market and the market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of
5 tonnes (and above). Meanwhile, the Company further explored the
markets of excavating machinery and passenger vehicles in respect of its
self-researched and self-developed “Landking” WP5 and WP7 engines,
to which it owns intellectual property rights, and generated a total sales
of 4,205 units in the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year
growth of 55.3%. In particular, 3,542 units were used in passenger
vehicles, representing a year-on-year growth of 48.7%. This demonstrated
more prominent competitive advantages of our integrated engine product
and the wider prospects of the development of the Company. During the
Period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRFEERL/FE A
FE/A&]) and Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd. (BrP kAR EEAT),
both controlling subsidiaries of the Company, successfully launched their
double-fuel-driven vehicle {£8M3000X4, which is diesel-/methanol —
driven, and new gearbox product with 20-level fully-aluminum-alloy shells,

which was an important step in their adjustment of product mix.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

During the Period, the Company remained committed to reforms and
innovations and adhered to the scientific approach of “Grow organically
and driven by innovation” for its development, by continuously enhancing
its level of management through adjustment of its model and structure,
and boosting its steady and healthy development. Firstly, the Company
was persistently uplifting its capability in scientific research and innovation.
The Company was granted a National Grade Il Award for Technological
Advancement in respect of its “Landking” WP10/WP12 projects. It also
succeeded in its self-research and self-development of a model of vehicle
utilizing new energy sources, and its “S-gearbox”, and successfully passed
the on-site inspection conducted by the National Engineering Research
Centre, which further boosted the research and development capability
of the Company. Secondly, the Company commenced its intensified
“Implementation of Betterment Initiatives” campaign. Revolving around
the main theme of “smoothing processes, enhancing systems, uplifting
management and sustaining improvement”, the Company fine-tuned its
management mechanism, and mobilized full-force participation from all of
its staff members. The first half of the year reported completion of more
than 18,000 items of improvement, with a gain of RMB88 million. Thirdly,
it pushed ahead projects of innovation being arranged by its technology
centres. By introducing cutting-edge human resources management
concepts, the Company established a Key Performance Indicator
assessment system covering all posts, and also a scientific mechanism for
promoting, incentivizing and dismissing staff members, which essentially
motivated research staff members in their work. Fourthly, the Company
successfully conducted a trial-run for the mechanism of “Production
Volume by Teams and Wages by Day” in the respective professional
teams, and fully reformed the approach to production arrangement and
workers’ remuneration system, which would in turn contribute to the
more scientific management of factories, more orderly linkage between
production, supply and sale, and more closely-aligned interests between
individuals and the team. Fifthly, the Company increased its shareholding
in KION Group AG (“KION") to 30% and supported KION's successful
listing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany. It also successfully
sponsored Ferrari’s Formula One races, organized a campaign and product
fair on the theme of “Serving Indonesia for 30 Years by Weichai” in
Jakarta in Indonesia. All these contributed to the positive brand image
of the Company and vastly raised the Company’s worldwide influence,

which in turn expedited the international development of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

I1I1.

During the Period, the Company’s revenue increased by 14.3% over the
same period of 2012 to approximately RMB30,922 million. The net profit
attributable to shareholders of the Parent was approximately RMB2,085
million, representing an increase of approximately 9.9% over the same
period of 2012. The basic earnings per share was RMB1.04, representing

an increase of approximately 9.5% over the same period in 2012.

Dividends and Transfer of Capital Reserve

On 24 June 2013, the 2012 profit distribution scheme was reviewed and
approved at the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the total share capital of the
Company, all shareholders were entitled to cash dividend of RMB2.30 (incl.

tax) for every 10 shares held.

On 29 August 2013, pursuant to the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board reviewed and approved the
distribution of cash dividend of RMB1.00 (incl. tax) for every 10 shares
held, based on the total number of shares of 1,999,309,639 shares,
without any transfer of capital reserve to capital. For details on the closure
of registers of members in determining the shareholders who are eligible
for the 2013 interim dividend, please refer to the further announcement

to be issued by the Company.

Acquisition and Consolidation

In June 2013, the Company supported the successful listing of KION on
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in Germany. By exercising a call option to
subscribe for new shares in KION (the “KION Call Option”), the Company
acquired additional shares in KION so that its shareholding increased
to 30% of KION’s total issued share capital. The enhanced control in
KION represents the Company’s important step in the progress of its

international development.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

IV. Outlook and Prospects DY ~ ] R 5% B B

At present, in view of the complex domestic and overseas economic
conditions, it is anticipated that China’s economic growth will enter an
important period which is characterized by the gradual transformation
from a stage of rapid pace to one of medium pace and the pursuit of a
new balance on a global basis. Economic development will focus more
on quality and uplifting of efficiency, as opposed to the previous stress
on pace. In the second half of the year, “structural adjustment” will be
the main theme in China’s economic policies. The possibility of launching
policies to stimulate economic growth on a large scale will be remote,
and GDP growth is expected to be around 7.5% on a full year basis.
Having said that, urbanization of rural areas, modernization of cities,
railway construction and infrastructure construction in Western China will
still be the drivers of investment and consumption, presenting enormous
opportunities for enterprises. On a global basis, economic outlook is
mingled with both positive and negative ingredients. The United States’
economy is starting to recover albeit with risks. Eurozone states are
expected to remain a recessive landscape. Japan is expected to experience
short-term rebound in its economy, but the possibility of a substantial
recovery is remote. Emerging markets will experience slowdown in their
pace of economic growth. Generally speaking, the global economy will
experience a period of weak recovery, with lots of uncertainties and

complexities. Annual GDP growth is estimated at around 3%.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of
its related industries. In the second half of 2013, supply and demand
conditions will further improve in China’s heavy-duty truck market
with year-on-year growth in the sales volume of heavy-duty trucks for
the following major reasons: Firstly, details of urbanization proposals
are expected to be rolled out during the year, which will bring forth
investment returns and add to the demand for heavy-duty trucks.
Secondly, development of municipal rail transports, affordable housings
and the expedition of redevelopment of shack-dwellers areas will
stimulate the utilization of heavy-duty trucks. Thirdly, policies fuelling
domestic demand are being formulated on an ongoing basis, leading to
stronger flow of goods and thus rising demand for heavy-duty trucks for

logistics purposes.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

With regard to the construction machinery market, in the second half of
the year, recovery is expected to be driven by the steady investment in
infrastructure and properties, the robust demand for housing for self-use
purposes, urbanization construction and the commencement of municipal
construction projects on transportation as well as hydraulic projects.
According to the latest data released by the Ministry of Railways of China,
in 2013, the planned investment in fixed assets in the railway sector is
RMB650 billion, among which only 33.22% were completed in the first
half of the year. The second half of the year is therefore expected to
weigh more in railway investment, which will further gain pace and deliver
sustainable momentum for the growth of the construction machinery
industry. In general, the construction machinery market is expected to

perform better in the second half of the year.

Implementation of China IV Emission Standards, which had been
scheduled on 1 July 2013 as required under the laws and regulations
in relation to emission, was once again deferred. In 20 regions and
cities in China, however, registration of heavy-duty trucks had been
officially required to meet China IV Emission Standards. Leveraging
on our advanced technology, large-scale and high quality production,
synergy presented by the availability of global resources and a strong
loyal customer base, we are now ready to meet China IV Emission
Standards and will maintain our leading position in the market of high-
power engines, high-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty vehicles.
The Directors have full confidence in the development prospect of the

Company.

In 2013, the Company identified the ambitious target of realizing its
“Weichai Dream”, by becoming a pillar to support the revitalization
of the Chinese nation, a driver for technological advancement, a
cornerstone upon which employees’ values lie, and a compass directing
the Company’s new round of reforms and innovative development. In the
second half of 2013, the Company will see product strategy as the core
strategy of the Company. The main theme will be on delivering products
with top-notch competitiveness in terms of cost, core technological
sophistication and product quality. Efforts will be made in preparing
for production and marketing of products in compliance with China
IV Emission Standards, and will continue on technological innovation,
service enhancement, uplifting of product performance, with a view
to fully equipping the Company with everything needed for this new
stage of emission requirements. We will keep fostering cost saving and

efficiency enhancement, for boosting profitability through cutting down
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

expenses and tightening control over operational efficiency by adopting
measures for scaling down administrative expenses, raising inventory
turnover rate and strengthening technological processes that favour cost
reduction. With the promotion of our “Vehicles' Link with Me" project,
the establishment of the catalogue for after-sales electronic components
(SBOM) program, and innovation of supply chain arrangements, we will
achieve new breakthroughs in marketing. For the segment of heavy-
duty vehicles, research of the new generation of heavy-duty trucks will
be expedited to enhance the technological contents of such products
and get prepared for subsequent growth. On the back of the successful
formulation of the “S-gearbox”, companies producing gear boxes
will continue to intensify their efforts in research and development of
strategic products with a view to achieving new breakthroughs. For the
components segment, we will intensify our research and innovation,
enhance core competence of our products, and take full advantage of the
synergies interplay between the component business segment and the

engine business segment.

At the same time, under the principle of “unified strategy, independent
operation, resources sharing”, we will continue to coordinate the needs
for expanding the domestic and international markets and international
business development, accelerate the coordinated development of our
business in complete vehicles, power chains, hydraulics controlling parts
and other automobile components, in order to fully utilize the synergetic
advantage of the brands, technology, resources and management of the
domestic and overseas companies, enhance international brand image,
and boost the overall capability to manage risks. Identifying our century-
spanning “Weichai Dream”, and aiming at fostering the new round of
reforms and innovative development, we will make every effort to win the
battle in this second building-up process, and ultimately rank ourselves

among the top global 500 enterprises.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere appreciation to all our shareholders, the general public and our
customers for their care and support, as well as all of our staff for their

hard work and dedication in the last six months!

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 August 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of BEEMRAREAEBNAPHELEEEEE
BN - FIBENT
I. Industry Analysis —. TSN

RARABBEARIN RS R M FE DR R
AREEBZ - BHHNEKTIS5RER
Al EARTENRDE FRERER

engines, gear boxes and axles. e -

the results of operations of the Group for the Period as follows:

The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of high-speed heavy-
duty diesel engines in the PRC and a leading company in the power chains

market. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain of

Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry

The first half of the year witnessed steady development in the
national economy. Gross domestic product reached RMB24.8
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.6%, or a growth
of 7.7% for the first quarter and 7.5% for the second quarter,
illustrating a downward trend of growth from the first to the

second quarter.

The recovery of fixed asset investment in the PRC, together with
the early utilization in anticipation of implementation of China IV
Emissions Standard, and the favourable factors such as the heavy-
duty truck complete vehicle market gradually entering into the
replacement cycle, and the stock clearance processes of the industry
during the last two years having been completed, the heavy-duty
truck industry in China has started to recover. During the Period, the
aggregate sales of heavy-duty trucks in the PRC were approximately

402,700 units, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.4%.

Construction Machinery

During the Period, the total fixed asset investment in the PRC
amounted to RMB18.13 trillion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 20.1% but the rate of increase showed a decrease of
0.3 percentage points from the corresponding period last year.
Investment in real estate developments amounted to RMB3.68
trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 20.3%. The industry
of construction machinery is bottoming-out and thus still facing
challenges in the market. During the Period, the aggregate sales
in the PRC’s construction machinery market were approximately
401,200 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.3%. In
particular, 62,500 units of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5

tonnes were sold, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II. The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group's business segments is set out in Note 2 to
the reviewed consolidated financial statements. The following are the
highlights of the operations conditions of the major products of the

Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

With the growth of the heavy-duty truck market, the Company’s
aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted to
approximately 155,100 units during the Period, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 22.7%. The Company'’s
market share in the heavy-duty truck with a gross weight of above
14 tonnes reached 38.5%, maintaining the Company’s absolute

leading position in the industry.

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes (and above) in the PRC. During
the Period, the Group's sales of engines for wheel loader with a
load capacity of 5 tonnes (and above) were approximately 41,900
units, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.9%.
According to the information published on the website of China
Construction Machinery Network (4 B T2 ## 18 2.49), the
Company’s market share in the market of wheel loader with a load
capacity of 5 tonnes (and above) reached up to 67%, maintaining

the Company’s leading position in the market.

2. Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks
The Group reported an aggregate sales of approximately 47,000
units of heavy-duty trucks for the Period. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, was
ranked No. 5 among the heavy-duty truck enterprises in China.
Before elimination of intra-group sales, the heavy-duty trucks
business contributed sales revenue of approximately RMB13,119

million to the Group during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 320,400 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing an increase of approximately
23.1% compared to approximately 260,200 units sold in the
corresponding period of 2012, and maintaining its leading position
in the industry. Before elimination of intra-group sales, the
gear boxes business contributed sales revenue of approximately
RMB4,478 million to the Group during the Period.

Sale of Parts and Components of Engines and
Heavy-duty Trucks

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. Through the
Company’s acquisition of shares in KION and 70% majority stake
in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, the Company was brought
into the globally leading field of high-end hydraulics sector.
Before elimination of intra-group sales, the business of parts and
components of engines and trucks contributed sales revenue of
approximately RMB2,091 million for the Period, representing an
increase of 95.8% from approximately RMB1,068 million for the

corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
1. The Group’s Results of Operations

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by 14.3% from approximately
RMB27,060 million in the corresponding period of 2012
to approximately RMB30,922 million for the Period. In
particular, the revenue from principal operations increased
by approximately 15.9%, from approximately RMB25,727
million in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
RMB29,813 million for the Period, which was mainly
attributable to the recovery of the heavy-duty truck industry
in China and the sales contribution from the hydraulics
controlling parts. During the Period, the Group’s sales of
heavy-duty truck engines and gear boxes were 155,100 units
and 320,400 units, representing a year-on-year increase of
22.7% and 23.1%, respectively. Other revenue decreased
by approximately 16.8%, from approximately RMB1,333
million in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
RMB1,108 million for the Period, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in revenue generated from the

sales of raw materials.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated gross profit
from principal operations in the amount of approximately
RMB6,191 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB1,102 million or 21.7% as compared to approximately
RMB5,089 million recorded in the corresponding period
of 2012. Gross profit margin of principal operations was
approximately 20.8%, increased by approximately 1
percentage point as compared to approximately 19.8%
recorded in the corresponding period of 2012, which was
mainly attributable to the optimization of product mix sales
that highlighted the competitive advantages of the product
mix, as well as the increase of gross profit margin of non-

automobile engines and other components.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

c.  Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
19.5% to approximately RMB1,535 million in the Period
from approximately RMB1,284 million in the corresponding
period of 2012, mainly attributable to the increase of
market development expenses and cost of sales staff as
the Group stepped up its effort in marketing promotions.
As a percentage of revenue, distribution and selling
expenses slightly increased from approximately 4.7% in the

corresponding period of 2012 to approximately 5.0% during

the Period.

d.  General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 25.4% from approximately RMB1,395 million
in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
RMB1,749 million in the Period, which was mainly due to the
increase in staff costs and the increase of external support

and travel expenses in relation to the internationalization of

the Group.

e.  Total Profit before Finance and Income Tax Expenses

During the Period, the Group's total profit before finance and
income tax expenses increased by approximately RMB308
million or approximately 12.3% to approximately RMB2,817
million in the Period from approximately RMB2,509 million in
the corresponding period of the last year. During the Period,
the Group’s operating margin was approximately 9.1%,

which was slightly lower than the corresponding period of

2012 of approximately 9.3%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses substantially increased to approximately
RMB64 million in the Period from approximately RMBO.5
million in the corresponding period of 2012. The substantial
increase was mainly attributable to the special borrowings
of EUR738 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6,144
million) by the Group at the end of December 2012, which
was used for the investment in KION Group AG (formerly
known as KION Holding 1 GmbH) and Linde Hydraulics
GmbH & Co. KG.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s corporate income tax expenses increased
by 10.7% from approximately RMB419 million in the
corresponding period of 2012 to approximately RMB464
million in the Period. During the Period, the Group’s average
effective tax rate increased to approximately 16.9%, as
compared to approximately 16.7% in the corresponding

period of last year.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period increased by
approximately 9.6% from approximately RMB2,089 million
in the corresponding period of 2012 to approximately
RMB2,289 million in the Period. Net profit margin for
the Period was approximately 7.4%, a decrease from

approximately 7.7% in the corresponding period of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB735 million and net financing
cash flows of approximately RMB1,701 million. A portion of
such proceeds was applied in the long-term equity investment
and acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the
expansion of the Group's business. As at 30 June 2013, the
gearing ratio of the Group was 57.4% (as at 31 December
2012: N/A). As at 31 December 2012, the Group's cash and
cash equivalents, net of interest-bearing debts, amounted
to a net cash position, therefore, the gearing ratio is not

applicable.

Financial Position

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
December 2010, Mainland-incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong shall be allowed to prepare their financial statements
using Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. As such,
on the annual general meeting 2010 of the Company held on
18 May 2011, it was resolved that with effect from 2011, the
Company would only adopt Mainland accounting standards
in its preparation of financial statements and would no longer
use Hong Kong accounting standards at the same time in

preparing financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB77,881 million, of which approximately
RMB48,172 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2013,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB14,818 million (as at 31 December 2012: RMB16,727
million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB44,717 million, of which
approximately RMB30,581 million were current liabilities.
The current ratio was approximately 1.58 (as at 31 December
2012: 1.64).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB33,164 million, of which approximately
RMB26,428 million was attributable to equity holders of
the Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2013 amounted to approximately RMB13,823 million,
including debenture of approximately RMB3,493 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB10,330 million. The
bank borrowings included approximately RMB1,191 million
of fixed interest rate bank borrowings and approximately
RMB9,139 million of floating interest rate bank borrowings.
The Group’s borrowings maturing within one year from 30
June 2013 amounted to approximately RMB1,712 million and
borrowings maturing in more than one year from 30 June
2013 amounted to approximately RMB12,111 million. Other
than approximately RMB8,601 million and RMB43 million
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

which are Euro-denominated and US dollar-denominated
borrowings, other borrowings are RMB-denominated. The
revenue of the Group is mainly RMB-denominated and the
Euro-denominated borrowings are mainly for financing of
overseas equity investment. The Group does not consider
its foreign exchange risk significant. As a policy, the Group
manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debts
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2013, bank deposits and notes receivables of
approximately RMB3,963 million (as at 31 December 2012:
RMB2,922 million) were pledged to banks to secure the
Group's notes payables and notes receivables issued by banks.
The pledged bank deposits carry prevailing bank interest
rates. The pledge will be released upon the settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits
at the balance sheet date approximates the carrying amount.
Certain other assets were also pledged by the Group to
secure the Group's borrowings. Details are set out in Note V.
22 to the financial statements of the Company’s 2013 Interim

Report.

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

BrmBL —FHABELY
BAREI21IMEBET - BA
REHF48601EET - AR
K438 B Bl BEUTE
AR ETE TN - H A EFRS
BARBEBR - KEEBBHIKRA
FERARBRA - MBTE
REZRBEIIRERERE 2
F - FTIAZR SR B R 7 B AN &
BAWTAEKN REBOEER
EREEANBRIEEER
BEMPFELE  RRERE(L
BERESLAIABRREREES
K@i& ° ZJ&‘E@*& S 2RI H 5

BEEH

E@:a fi/\ﬂ +E| ZJS
SEBHARKE3GIEETL

<m T——HF+ZA=+—

:AEMLmzﬁéﬁ)%
RITHERRERZERER TR
T EAREBEMBERITED
EH PR R R R e KR

o B IRIRITF RURIRITIR
ﬂﬂ¢ﬁéoaﬁﬁ#%%m
%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁb%u%ﬁ
RNEEH TR A FE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁaoﬁ%%ﬁa
ERETFEMEE  EARLTE

EERZER - FBEHNEAR
F2013F P AR E B SR M
R 220

23



24 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B I RHBRAF

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

e. Contingencies

As at 30 June 2013, the Group provided to certain
distributors and agents bank guarantee amounting to
approximately RMB1,893 million (as at 31 December 2012:
approximately RMB785 million) to secure their obtaining
and use of banking facilities. As at 30 June 2013, the Group
provided guarantee for joint liabilities in respect of failure of
the leasee under finance lease to settle instalment payments
plus interest. Risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee
for joint liabilities amounted to approximately RMB966 million

(as at 31 December 2012: approximately RMB586 million).

Details are set out in Note VII to the financial statements of

the Company’s 2013 Interim Report.

f. Commitments

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had approximately
RMB1,963 million capital commitments (as at 31 December
2012: approximately RMB1,668 million), all of which are
contracted capital commitments and principally for the capital

expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and

equipment.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no investment
commitments (as at 31 December 2012: nil). Details are set

out in Note VIII to the financial statement of the Company's

2013 Interim Report.

All the above commitments are expected to be funded from

the Group's internal resources.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3. Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 30 June 2013, the Company had approximately 40
thousand employees. During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB2,176 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

Major Investment

During the Period, Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding
S.a r.l., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
exercised the KION Call Option in full and subscribed for
13,682,500 new KION shares at a total consideration of
EUR328,380,000 on the basis of EUR24 per KION share.

Major Acquisition and Disposal
The Group did not make any major acquisition or disposal

during the Period.

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE
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26 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B I RHBRAF
Auditors’ Review Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= Kk
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2013) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B07

To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Weichai Power
Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30 June 2013, the consolidated and company income statements, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January-June 2013 and notes
to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is
responsible for the preparation of these financial statements. Our responsibility is

to issue our review report on these financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the Financial Statement is free from material misstatement. A review
is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing analytical
procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an audit. We
have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the Financial Statements are not prepared in accordance with
the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise and that the
consolidated and company financial position, results of operations and cash flow

of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. are not fairly reflected.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (Special General Partnership)
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhang Fei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Liu Qian

29 August 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

FHEERMEE

Note V 30 June 2013
L= 201356 H30H
(Unaudited)
ASSETS BE (RBER)
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents E¥ES 1 14,818,038,689.14
Financial assets held for trading RGMEHEE 2 267,379,520.00
Notes receivable A 3 17,359,033,633.37
Accounts receivable FE W BR R 4 6,132,041,642.75
Prepayments FET IR 5 428,201,252.80
Dividends receivable 7 Uk A% | 6 10,615,000.00
Interests receivable FE UL F B, 761,994.52
Other receivables H {th B UG R 7 459,323,787.03
Inventories =g 8 8,087,758,275.29
Other current assets HEi e EE 608,676,362.09
Total current assets BB EASE 48,171,830,156.99
Non-current assets EMEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESRMEE 10 204,000,000.00
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 11,12 7,672,873,460.54
Investment property WEEEHE 13 322,041,380.08
Fixed assets BElE & E 14 12,292,946,884.79
Construction in progress EEIR 15 4,237,927,245.21
Materials used in construction TITEME 16 1,800.00
Disposal of fixed assets BT ESE 2,550,019.27
Intangible assets m A E 17 2,275,457,062.19
Development expenditure S H 17 425,681,605.40
Goodwill S 18 1,392,104,692.50
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 19 156,755,289.77
Deferred tax assets BEFRGREE 20 726,929,048.07
Other non-current assets HindEns & E 23,602.70
Total non-current assets FRBEESF 29,709,292,090.52
Total assets BERE 77,881,122,247.51
The financial statements have been signed by: MEHEAUNTALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
FEH

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHIEBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Ling Yun

Nl
/XX

=

N

201346 A308 (A E¥T)

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H
(Audited)
(&EZ)

16,726,970,096.00
137,050,693.51
9,242,232,142.39
4,168,525,397.14
365,397,070.50
70,540,000.00
7,418,831.76
444,105,891.14
7,509,902,216.33
487,991,597.21

39,160,133,935.98

269,200,000.00
4,951,543,932.62
329,994,770.86
11,526,489,430.20
5,175,099,417.99
3,493,436.95
2,160,257,108.86
431,692,444.28
1,443,114,787.31
169,123,071.48
700,119,807.88
100,706.28

27,160,228,914.71

66,320,362,850.69

Head of accounting department:

BEEBREA
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28  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B DR HBRA A

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) GO EEABR ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 HA30H (AR%T)
Note V 30 June 2013
MR 2013%6H30H
(Unaudited)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEERBRRER (RBER)
Current liabilities mEN A&
Short-term loans EHRME 22 1,450,500,846.69
Notes payable ANET 23 6,219,348,005.75
Accounts payable FE IR X 24 15,312,081,937.48
Advances from customers TEWRIA 25 1,209,496,523.23
Payroll payable JiE A< B T 57 B 26 970,634,704.11
Taxes payable ERXE 27 282,963,271.03
Interests payable FE B 28 164,126,977.88
Dividends payable JE {5 R A 29 466,015,345.66
Other payables H fth, A< 5K 30 3,279,995,944.77
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEHNIERBAR 31 261,073,360.00
Other current liabilities Hirghamk 32 965,055,770.01
Total current liabilities mEBaEAE 30,581,292,686.61
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Long-term borrowings RAEMER 33 8,618,563,439.99
Bonds payable EE S 34 3,492,692,501.06
Long-term payables RERFERTAR 35 5,500,000.00
Special payables EIEEMNR 36 53,000,000.00
Deferred tax liabilities BEMSHAE 20 188,799,495.73
Other non-current liabilities Hi3Ensa®E 37 1,776,997,931.71
Total non-current liabilities FERDEESS 14,135,553,368.49
Total liabilities BEEE 44,716,846,055.10
The financial statements have been signed by: MBmEBATALTES

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
EEH

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEETIEBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong

IR =

Ling Yun

N eE=a
IXZX

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(gER)

2,742,091,634.05
5,244,310,106.70
9,962,420,973.54
872,835,717.97
1,026,722,757.02
239,380,723.63
61,680,626.43
33,103,222.12
2,535,764,374.58
352,604,906.92
852,860,219.00

23,923,775,261.96

6,344,249,958.75
2,691,489,273.21
5,500,000.00
43,000,000.00
168,154,335.44
1,744,958,243.83

10,997,351,811.23

34,921,127,073.19

Head of accounting department:

SRTRBREA



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

e EEAEE (H)

201346 A308 (A E¥T)

Note V 30 June 2013
M st R 2013468308

(Unaudited)
(REER)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued) BERKRRER(E)
Shareholders’ equity R A 2

Share capital &2

Capital reserve BARRNIE

Special reserve HIB#ME

Surplus reserve BARNTE

Retained earnings 7 5 BL )

Exchange differences on foreign currency GNEESRRITE =58

translation

38 1,999,309,639.00
39 807,196,057.20
40 31,940,029.52
41 2,300,128,466.82
42 21,362,745,738.87

(73,440,309.61)

Total equity attributable to the shareholders

of the parent

BEANEAARIERAH

26,427,879,621.80
6,736,396,570.61

Minority interests DHAR R =
Total shareholders’ equity MR =& 5T

33,164,276,192.41

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMBRRERSR

ok

+

77,881,122,247.51

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:
TEEHIHEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

MBMEREAUNTALES

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(&EZ)

1,999,309,639.00
842,375,982.05
23,089,542.52
2,300,128,466.82
19,737,619,540.81

(33,171,947.25)

24,869,351,223.95
6,529,884,553.55

31,399,235,777.50

66,320,362,850.69

Head of accounting department:

ERERBREA

Ling Yun

S =3
/XX
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30  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. LB R HERA T

i A PF AR =
Consolidated Income Statement = IBES
January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F1-6 A (AE¥T)
January to June January to June
Note V 2013 2012
L 2013%1-6 A 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (REZ)
Revenue EERA 43 ENEPANICHEEKLIN 27,059,675,619.87
Less: Cost of sales W BERAK 43 PZARERE YAV 21,870,178,160.78
Taxes and surcharges EEB S KM 44 141,314,886.82 113,704,474.09
Distribution and selling expenses HEE A 45 1,535,460,534.86 1,284,413,946.81
General and administrative expenses EEER 46 1,749,371,137.22 1,394,743,831.63
Finance expenses M%ER 47 63,849,988.00 471,591.80
Impairment loss of assets BEERMEEE 48 225,290,766.47 71,855,297.93
Add: Gain on fair value changes m: ALBEEHKZE 49 132,974,506.91 -
Investment income & W= 50 11,820,004.38 75,086,612.90
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and jointly ~ Hf : EWE & P24 &
controlled enterprises DENKE WS 5,694,427.50 25,027,666.32
Operating profit (DS 2,711,139,162.57 2,399,394,929.73
Add: Non-operating income me o EmEINRA 51 57,517,399.66 125,940,533.41
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEINITH 52 15,148,512.80 17,236,368.59
Incl:  Loss on disposal of Hep ERBEE
non-current assets BEEBK 7,038,956.17 9,101,848.85
Total profit T 42 %8 2,753,508,049.43 2,508,099,094.55
Less:  Income tax expenses B FTISHER 53 464,046,511.72 419,256,443.44
Net profit FAE 2,289,461,537.71 2,088,842,651.11
Net profit attributable to the shareholders 5B RQ B R A FFE
of the parent 2,084,967,415.03 1,897,252,608.20
Minority interests LERRIER 204,494,122.68 191,590,042.91
Earnings per share B M=
Basic earnings per share EXRgRIKE 54 1.04 0.95
Diluted earnings per share wEERI S 54 N/A TE A N/A TiE
Other comprehensive income H bR & U 55 (72,157,503.72) (1,752,990.83)
Total comprehensive income el RiazE 2,217,304,033.99 2,087,089,660.28
Incl: Heh o
Total comprehensive income attributable FENEARRRD
to the shareholders of the parent IREW BT 2,002,770,768.89 1,895,493,462.48
Total comprehensive income attributable BEEN B R
to minority owners REWEEBE 214,533,265.10 191,596,197.80

Details of dividends payable and recommended for the period are disclosed in  ZNH & 1~ K2 2 35 R (< IR B 2 5216 O B 78 SRR B 5

Note V.42 and Note IX to the financial statements. fo 2RMFENEE -

The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA TERIEREA: BAHHBREA

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun

BB BIRE B
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Consolidated Statement of /@\ B B o ME 25
Changes in Equity B3R

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F1-6 H(ARET)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent (Unaudited)

BRRSLARRES (REFH)
Exchange
differences
on foreign
Share Capital Special Surplus Retained currency Minority Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve earnings translation Subtotal interests equity
MER RREH
HiE k& B50R HERE BRIE RARAE fE2E Mt JERREE At
I, Atbeginning of period = 199930963900 84237598205 2308954252 2300,128466.82 19,737,61954081  (33,171,947.25) 24,869,351,22395 6,529,884,55355 31,399,235,777.50
Il Movements in current period
) Net profit (=) - - - - 20849741503 - 208496741503 20449412268  2,289461537.71
(1) Other comprehensie income (2) EtsAkE 5% - (19828378) - - - (026836236 [B219664614 1003914242 (72,15750372)
Total comprehensive income GAlGeE - (4192828378) - - 208496741503 (40,26836236) 2,002,77076889  214533265.10  2,217304,033.99
(1) Injection and reduction (Z) BREANELES
1. Acquistion of minority nterests 1. WESERFER - 6748389 - - - - 6783 (6748389 -
(V) Profit appropriation and distrbution (m) HAAE
1. Distiuton to owners 1LOHRROAE To@ - - - - (459,8412169)) - (984121697) (68498506  (465526,202.03)
(V) Special reserve (1) 35BEE
1. Appropriaton during the period [ A4 - - 3B - - S N3BAMDT 13SMBIET 3589837194
2. Used during the period 1 THER 140 - - (13542.95307) N - - (13542.95307) (9,092835.92)  (22,635,788.99)
Il Atend of period = FHEREE 199930963900 80719605720  31,940,02952 230012846682 2136274573887  (71344030961) 2642787962180 6,736,396,570.61 33,164,276,192.41
The financial statements have been signed by: MBEHmEBUATALTESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EFERRA TEEAIFEEEA: BAHBREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun

P BIRE A=



32 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity (Continued)

B I RHBRAF

January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

o OF IR HE 4

2012F1-6 A (ARE¥T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent (Audited)

BERRLRRRER (E80)
Exchange
differences
on foreign
Share Capital Surplus Retained currengy Minority Total
Note capital reserve reserve earnings translation Subtotal interests equity
AR RRER
LiF:: k& BR0E BHLE AIRHAE HEER gt SERRER At
I At beginning of period - KHENRE 1,666,091,366.00  1520,83640454  1935774543.04  17,813,666,654.13 (32,925707.62) 2290344326009  5999,319,552.01  28,902,762,812.10
I Movementsin currentperiod =+ AHEFHEHLE
() Netprofit (=) FHE - - - 1,897,252,608.20 - 1,897,252,608.20 191,590,042.91  2,088,842,651.11
) Other comprehensieincome (=) EditrAl 55 - 419862397 - - (BOIT8969) (17591457 615489 (1,752,99083)
Total comprehensive income GElEEE - 4,198,623.97 - 1,897,252,608.20 (5,957,769.69)  1,895,493,462.48 191,59,197.80  2,087,089,660.28
(1) Injection and reduction (Z) RERARRD &R
1. Injection 1. BERAEK - - - - - - 7986363058 7986363958
2. Disposal of subsidiaries 2. REFRA - (5,577,530.56) - - - (5,57753056)  (124,768,991.80)  (130,346,522.36)
3. Others 3. B - (42,459,996.86) - - - 42,459,996.86) (210,830.28) (42,670827.14)
(V) Profit appropriation and (m) MEAR
distribution
1. Distrbution to owners 1 HRROZE 14 - - - (166,609,136.60) - (16,609,136.60) - (166,609,136.60)
Il Atend of period = KHERRE 1,666,091,366.00  1476,997501.09  1,935774543.04  19,544,310,125.73 (38,883,477.31)  24,584290,05855  6,145,799,567.31  30,730,089,625.86
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBATALERSE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

IEEHIFEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Ling Yun

=
/X ZX

Head of accounting department:

BRMEBEAREA



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

& OF B 4B i B AR

2013 1-6 (A R¥T)

January to June

January to June
2012
2012%1-6 4
(Audited)
(BEZ)

17,395,542,288.57
137,101,402.10

494,065,041.22

18,026,708,731.89

12,879,568,380.20

1,568,485,027.99
3,245,250,979.50

1,438,071,073.19

19,131,375,460.88

(1,104,666,728.99)

100,000,000.00
46,333,870.00

343,442,430.74

4,327,649.83
2,829,775.59

496,933,726.16

1,316,879,497.68
366,322,492.11

1,683,201,989.79

(1,186,268,263.63)

Note V 2013
L 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - KREEHEENRD
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sales of goods or HERM M RESK
rendering of services WEIEIR & 16,384,197,071.20
Refunds of taxes W BB B g 172,093,821.35
Other cash received relating to operating Uy B H b B 4 2 E B)
activities ERANE S 56 459,063,957.77
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating IR ESEENIR A
activities NS 17,015,354,850.32
Cash paid for goods and services BEMD  BEXSH
ATEVER & 10,796,783,200.94
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TEBIUARA
BIZAHRE 2,162,775,076.40
Cash paid for all types of taxes XATE R IER B 1,821,072,202.44
Other cash paid relating to operating AT E b B TR
activities FENRE 56 1,500,034,548.86
Subtotal of cash outflows from LEEEIRSIME
operating activities /NEt 16,280,665,028.64
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHELENIRS
mEFE 57 734,689,821.68
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING — . REBRDELENERS
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sale of investments I el & W E & IR 166,878,940.00
Cash received from return on investments UG 1% & Yoas R 7Y
Re 6,400,000.00
Net cash received from disposal of BEFRAIREM
subsidiaries and other business units eEENINEIRN
ReFRE 57
Net cash received from disposal of fixed REBETEE
assets, intangible assets and other mIABENMEAM
long-term assets REIEEWKEH
N4 H5E 1,167,462.64
Other cash received relating to investing W B H b BT B E )
activities E@NE S 56 117,778,117.07
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing BEEHEETA
activities NG 292,224,519.71
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE 8
intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREE
assets EXMHRE 808,121,858.82
Cash paid for acquisition of investments BREZNNRS 3,164,875,778.00
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries S F R REAM
and other business units EELAVEANED
REweE
Other cash paid relating to investing TR EEE RS
activities BEMRS
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing BEEHES AL
activities N 3,972,997,636.82
Net cash flows from investing activities REETHELENRS
mEF (3,680,773,117.11)
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA EERTIIEAEAN FEHEAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun
N BB IR = E=
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B &R ER (H)
2013F1-6 A (AE¥T)

Note V
gzl

. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

9

g

January to June
2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

JILEE
Cash received from capital contributions U % & W B3R €
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries HEep - Foakilik
from capital contributions DB R
of minority owners wEUE
EoEhena =
Cash received from borrowings RS ERKEMRE 3,318,202,923.00
Cash received from issuance of bonds BTEFRENR S 797,600,000.00
Other cash received relating to financing WEIH 4 B EEED)
activities BEENIRS 56 459,500.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing EB8FEHES
activities mANET 4,116,262,423.00
Cash repayments of borrowings EEEHEINHIRS 2,160,193,489.31
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or AEARF] ~ FEE
profits and for interest expenses MR EZHHE S 254,970,229.04
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners Hep : FREIZ 4%
for distribution of dividends DERR R
or profits by subsidiaries Re &)~ F)E 140,378,502.98
Other cash paid relating to financing YN EMEEEEE
activities AENRE 56 =
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EB8FEHES
activities N ET 2,415,163,718.35
Net cash flows from financing activities E8EHELED
REREFHR 1,701,098,704.65
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE 7 - [EXR& B HIN S
ON CASH 2= (29,177,945.04)
V. NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH I ReRkBReEEY
EQUIVALENTS FOR D EE (1,274,162,535.82)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m:HoEe kB
at beginning of period EEBYHE 14,099,151,353.22
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N HIREeRBESEE
AT END OF PERIOD YeReE 57 12,824,988,817.40
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBEATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang

b IR E

Principal in charge of accounting:

FTEEFIEEBREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

Ling Yun

e
IR ZX

January to June
2012
2012%F1-6 A
(Audited)
(BEZ)

27,722,945.00

27,722,945.00
677,891,596.75

19,507,377.78

725,121,919.53

1,254,521,436.26
200,214,705.84

124,912,413.10

2,919,746.36

1,457,655,888.46

(732,533,968.93)

(5,731,768.53)

(3,029,200,730.08)
13,317,360,195.54

10,288,159,465.46

Head of accounting department:

SRHBEAREA



Company Balance Sheet

Interim Report 2013 #iiRs 35

NE B ERMEE

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 H30H (AR T)
Note XI 30 June 2013 31 December 2012
i+ — EPIREEINZEDIEI 2012F12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS BE (RBER) (EER)
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents E¥ES CECEIEYACPAEI 11,172,638,035.07
Notes receivable L E S PEEEN SR 7,093,096,681.29
Accounts receivable FEUBR X 1 1,344,872,248.86 375,556,978.89
Prepayments Ta < FRIE 141,118,276.42 105,117,029.08
Dividends receivable & AT s ) 11,497,978.72 99,126,103.69
Interests receivable R F) B 572,000.00 7,331,318.68
Other receivables E A i U 3R 2 1,588,773,254.23 1,156,166,626.23
Inventories T8 1,547,102,759.53 1,445,500,066.07
Other current assets Himeh& & 56,989,489.88 20,000,000.00
Total current assets MEEEASGT A kORI 21,474,532,839.00
Non-current assets EMENEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 204,000,000.00 269,200,000.00
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 3,4 6,966,789,037.95 6,628,516,401.12
Investment property KA R E 677,427,372.65 697,478,506.43
Fixed assets Ehakey:3 GEENPATEI RS 2,223,533,258.74
Construction in progress HEIR 2,442,108,260.48 2,772,786,478.08
Disposal of fixed assets BT ESE 330,515.35 230,232.94
Intangible assets mEE 372,786,556.97 376,157,548.24
Goodwill SRS 579,145,043.76 579,145,043.76
Deferred tax assets BEFRGHMEE 214,866,213.17 238,352,408.49
Other non-current assets HindEms & & 1,036,815,188.00 -
Total non-current assets FRBEESF (S EEFEEIOEER R 13,785,399,877.80
Total assets BEBT AP REIETPEREN I 35,259,932,716.80

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Tan Xuguang
FEH

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHIEBRA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

HBMREUNTALESE

Head of accounting department:

ERTEBREA

Ling Yun

N E=3
/XX
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Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 8 HIRPER A T

Company Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

KR EEAER ()
201346 A30A (A E#T)

30 June 2013
2013 6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

4,349,330,541.38
5,648,839,341.07
48,355,140.64
460,328,703.92
60,885,250.14
126,133,333.41
459,841,216.97
2,465,928,006.53
529,600,000.00

14,149,241,534.06

2,694,934,255.89
30,000,000.00
17,833,800.60
182,742,154.86

2,925,510,211.35

17,074,751,745.41

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BERRRER
Current liabilities mEN A&
Notes payable 2%
Accounts payable JE TR 3R
Advances from customers TEUW FRIE
Payroll payable JE A<F 38 T 35 B
Taxes payable ER T B
Interests payable FERTFIE
Dividends payable JE - AR
Other payables H M fE 3R
Other current liabilities HimgEhaE
Total current liabilities mEAEEE
Non-current liabilities FERFEE
Bonds payable ERES
Special payables HIBRERRK
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRGHRAE
Other non-current liabilities HindEns a &
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEEE
Total liabilities BEEE
Shareholders’ equity R R fE
Share capital & 2
Capital reserve (AN
Special reserve BIRGFE
Surplus reserve P YN

Retained earnings

R BB

1,999,309,639.00
1,020,081,590.61
17,833,038.99
2,300,128,466.82
19,010,368,810.33

Total shareholders’ equity

BEBEAH

24,347,721,545.75

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BENMBCRESA

41,422,473,291.16

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
b

Principal in charge of accounting:

FTEEHIEERA:

Kwong Kwan Tong
BIRE

MEHmEREATALES

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

3,485,391,961.16
2,970,489,343.45
56,179,991.78
495,341,647.41
55,958,879.84
54,408,333.39
1,793,244,973.97
454,290,000.00

9,365,305,131.00

2,691,489,273.21
20,000,000.00
27,613,800.60
161,510,133.16

2,900,613,206.97

12,265,918,337.97

1,999,309,639.00
1,081,878,661.17
13,776,537.65
2,300,128,466.82
17,598,921,074.19

22,994,014,378.83

35,259,932,716.80

Head of accounting department:

SRRBEAREA

Ling Yun

e
IR ZX



Company Income Statement

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

NCIRIIN-FS

2013 1-6 (A R¥T)

January to June

January to June

Note XI 2013 2012
B EE+— 2013%1-6 8 2012%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& EZ)
Revenue BEIA 5 12,382,248,674.39 9,824,852,285.35
Less: Cost of sales o BERCK 5 8,841,827,374.89 6,820,786,185.66
Taxes and surcharges EEB© KM 90,097,198.78 69,710,431.21
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 595,878,844.45 476,232,783.46
General and administrative expenses EEERH 788,481,230.47 677,760,199.10
Finance expenses s E A (47,614,084.46) (37,235,875.59)
Impairment loss of assets BERMEEX 83,717,025.87 23,116,341.33
Add: Investment income e EE KR 6 130,656,862.79 465,967,597.03
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and He - SEE S ERM
jointly controlled enterprises BETERN
HE W 7,910,723.39 40,496,514.43
Operating profit ZEFHE 2,160,517,947.18 2,260,449,817.21
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 9,687,459.72 40,032,013.41
Less: Non-operating expenses o BEINT 2,386,143.59 3,650,162.33
Incl:  Loss on disposal of non-current b ERBEE
assets BEEX 593,774.24 501,406.03
Total profit T 258 2,167,819,263.31 2,296,831,668.29
Less: Income tax expenses o TSR E B 296,530,310.20 282,391,209.98
Net profit bl B! 1,871,288,953.11 2,014,440,458.31
Other comprehensive income Hipmals (61,797,070.56) 3,549,614.16
Total comprehensive income e EE 1,809,491,882.55 2,017,990,072.47
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBEATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKRA FESHIEEEA: SREEEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun
RSB e =



38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. LB HRH AR A T

Company Statement of Changes in Equity 2~ 7 & 5 HE 4 5 B %

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F1-6 A (AE¥T)
Note Share capital Capital reserve Special reserve  Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
i Rx BRLR BERE BHLR AARAE REERAS
.~ Atbeginning of period - FESNSE 1,999,309,639.00  1,081,878,661.17 13,776,537.65  2,300,128,466.82  17,598,921,074.19  22,994,014,378.83
I Movements in current period o KEEREDEE
() Netprofit (=) BHB 1,871,288953.11  1,871,288,953.11
Iy Other comprehensive income () Etblpals (61,797,070.56) - (61,797,070.56)
Total comprehensive income BAlneE (61,797,070.56) 1,871,288,953.11  1,809,491,882.55
() Profit appropriation and distribution (Z) FEIE
1. Distribution to owners 1 HREOAE VA
finy’} (459,841,216.97)  (459,841,216.97)
(V) Special reserve (m) 5BEE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. KERW 6,533,957.16 6,533,957.16
2. Used during the period 2. THER (2,477455.80) (2,477,455.80)
Il Atend of period (Unaudited) = FEERSE
(REEH) 1,999,309,639.00  1,020,081,590.61 17,833,03899  2,300,128,466.82  19,010,368,810.33  24,347,721,545.75
January to June 2012 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2012F1-6 5 (AR#T)
Note Share capital Capital reserve Surplus reserve Retained earnings Total equity
ik e YN BHAE RARHE RRERAF
. Atbeginning of period - REHVGE 1,666,091,366.00 1,091,158,251.28 1,935,774,543.04 15,019,494,133.71 19,712,518,294.03
I Movementsin current period - AHEREHLE
() Net profit (=) ##B - - - 2,014,440,458 31 2,014,440,458 31
Iy Other comprehensive income (Z) Ehizalka - 3549,614.16 - - 3549,614.16
Total comprehensive income GENENE - 3,549,614.16 - 2,014,440,458 31 2,017,990,072.47
() Profit appropriation and (Z) #EIE
distribution
1. Distribution to owners 1 HRROSE v
iRy} - - - (166,609,136.60) (166,609,136.60)
. Atend of period (Audited) = REHREE
(B£) 1,606,091,366.00 1,094,707,865.44 1,935,774,543.04 16,867,325,455.42 21,563,899,229.90
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBHATALES
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREZA FEGHIFEEEA: BItREATA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun

B WIEE EES



Company Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

o~ F) B4R i AR

2013 1-6 (A R¥T)

January to June

Note XI 2013
e+ — 2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING — REEHELENRSD
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sales of goods HEM M RESK
or rendering of services WEIE IR & 7,637,421,831.06
Other cash received relating to operating U I EL th Bl 4R 8 &
activities BHNERE 376,863,297.92
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating KEEHEETA
activities N 8,014,285,128.98
Cash paid for goods and services HEEmm BEXSH%
RS 5,012,454,106.54
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRBBIURE
BIXNHRE 539,742,338.46
Cash paid for all types of taxes YN EEHRE 1,102,931,624.76
Other cash paid relating to operating AR EL th BB 4K 2R E)
activities BEANRS 839,278,091.13
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating R ESEENIR 2
activities /et 7,494,406,160.89
Net cash flows from operating activities KEETHELNES
MEFRE 7 519,878,968.09
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING —Z REBREENES
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sale of investments U B8 & W B 8 I8 & 114,067,880.00
Cash received from disposal of subsidiary JEE%’A AIYEIE
He =
Cash received from return on investments ISR E W= KB H
Re 47,432,039.82
Net cash received from disposal of RERETEE B
fixed assets, intangible assets and BEMHEMEEHE
other long-term assets EWERIRSFE 95,578.07
Other cash received relating to investing U B E i 8248 5 E &)
activities BEMNRE =
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing KEEHRESARA
activities NEt 161,595,497.89
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BEETEE « B
intangible assets and other long-term BEMEMREE
assets EXNHRE 235,951,442.27
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KBS RES 1,518,353,572.00
Other cash paid relating to investing AT E An B S B E &)
activities BRI E -
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing WEEESHE SR
activities /NEt 1,754,305,014.27
Net cash flows from investing activities KEETHELENRS
MEFRR (1,592,709,516.38)
The financial statements have been signed by: HBMEBATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang

E B BIRE

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEEMIFEREAN:

Kwong Kwan Tong

Ling Yun

et
=

January to June
2012
2012%1-6 8
(Audited)
(g&ER)

8,384,700,257.23
469,373,624.81

8,854,073,882.04

6,630,372,247.38

488,784,713.51
2,614,122,179.00

572,896,679.74

10,306,175,819.63

(1,452,101,937.59)

423,419,500.00
135,218,185.60

274,598.00

558,912,283.60

549,836,379.17
269,457,000.00

819,293,379.17

(260,381,095.57)

Head of accounting department:

BREBEAREA
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40 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 H RO AR D T

Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued) AFBERER ()
January to June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F1-6 A (AE¥T)
January to June January to June
Note XI 2013 2012
B+ — 2013%1-6 8 2012%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZX) (& Ez)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING = BEFRPEANED
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash paid for distribution of dividends SBCHRH] Rk
or profits and for interest expenses 1B F) B S T HY
R _
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing FEFPHASRN
activities NEF -
Net cash flows from financing activities BEBEHELENRS
MEFE _
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE M. EXRFESHHFEH
RATE ON CASH wa (14,891.85) (323,065.88)

V.  NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND F - R4 RIRSZEY%

CASH EQUIVALENTS a0 Cri 4> ) &8 CRpie i (1,712,806,099.04)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents e BHyBRe Rk
at beginning of period REEED
#RER PP 8,933,829,472.86

VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N HARIRERIBEEE

AT END OF PERIOD MerER 8 IR PEPIPAE 7,221,023,373.82
The financial statements have been signed by: WBMEBEATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EFERRA FEEFIEERA BEEAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Ling Yun

b BIE=E =



Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) is a joint stock limited company
jointly established by Weifang Diesel Engine Factory (4375 mimR), as
the primary promoter, together with other promoters, upon approval by
People’s Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Zheng
Gu Zi No. [2002] 64 Shandong Province Joint Stock Limited Company
Approval Certificate (BBA%F[2002]645%% 11 5 & D B IR A Bl b EE).
It obtained its legal business licence numbered 3700001807810 from the
Administration for Industry and Commerce of Shandong Province on 23

December 2002, with an original registered capital of RMB215 million.

In October 2007, Weifang Diesel Engine Factory was converted into
Weichai Group Holdings Limited (4= B AR A R]) (hereinafter
referred to as “Weichai Group Holdings”) upon approval by State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the People’s
Government of Shandong Province with document Lu Guo Zi Qi Gai Han
No. [2007] 45 (& BI & 124 (K[2007]455%) titled “ Approval Concerning the

Conversion of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory into Weichai Group Holdings
the Administration for Industry and Commerce of Weifang City.

In March 2004, the Company conducted a public offer in Hong Kong of
overseas listed foreign shares (H Shares) of ordinary shares of RMB1.00
each to global investors, totaling 126.5 million shares among which
11.5 million shares were state-owned shares, pursuant to the approval
document Zheng Jian Guo He Zi (B El4 F) No. [2003]44 issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission. Such shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
on 31 March 2004. In April 2004, the registered capital of the Company
increased by RMB115 million pursuant to the public offer of shares to
global investors and consequently the accumulated paid-in registered
capital amounted to RMB330 million. The aforesaid registered capital has
been verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (11158
ERFM{EAR S & 5HHIE AT with asset verification reports numbered
Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B E{55) No. (2002) 3209 and Lu Zheng Xin Yan
Zi (B IE{=5% ) No. (2004) 3077.

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

S 265 e 3R B

201346 A30H (A B¥T)

AR E ARG L

HWEBHIBRDERAR (LU TEBI AR
Al AR ) RELRE ARBNE EAR
F[2002]645% 1L R E R D B R A B & E
EHE - BAETEREERE A T R AR
AHEMBEELALRBRBIEIHORNHERA
A M2002F 12423 BB ILEETLH
THEEREZRA(AEEIAEERR)
FE9EH543700001807810 » [RFEME A
AR#215,000,0007T °

2007108  KILREARBINBIBEE
EEEBELZESBEME MK K[2007])455%
CRER A SR B TR EE AR
ARHHEI ARSI T IETRERBR&
B BB E RS EIEREERS
RAE - AR EREE ] -

200453 - ARAKBEPEESEEE
BLEESHRENFLERS FT(2003]445 8
B REEMRRREE ARBITE
SNEMINERASEREEARE1.007TH
LA (HAL) » BT822 12,6508 & (H A
EAEFERM1,15088) + WHK200443
A318 EEBBMERSMERAR(SE
BHRAT]) ETR 5 2004648 AR
A ERMERIEEEAFBEITE SN
HfMEAREF AR 115,000,000 + &
BrMWBFEMEABERSERARE
330,000,000 ° it 7 it & A48 L R I
BRNEEREACTMEBMDRUELE
Z5% F(2002) 32095F R B IE{E5 F(2004)
3077 BEMEE TURE -
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42  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%E HIRBER D T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate background (Continued)

On 30 March 2007, China Securities Regulatory Commission issued
Zheng Jian Fa Hang Zi (% 25%77F) No. [2007] 64 “Notice Concerning
the Approval of the Public Offer of A Shares by Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
and Its Absorption of TAGC by way of Share Swap” to approve the initial
public offering of shares by the Company and its absorption of Torch
Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Cii KBS EEBE MDA R A 7)) (abbreviated
as “TAGC"), pursuant to which 190,653,552 new shares were made
available under the public offer to raise funds for absorption of TAGC by
way of share swap. On 23 April 2007, the Company issued 190,653,552
ordinary shares denominated in RMB (A Shares) of RMB1 each by way
of share swap, which shares were admitted for listing and trading on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 30 April 2007. Total capital upon the
aforesaid capital increase by way of share swap amounted to 520,653,552
shares with a total registered capital of RMB520,653,552, which has been
verified by Shandong Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LL/E 1F)&
MEBREEEETEMELFT) with asset verification reports numbered Lu
Zheng Xin Yan Zi (£ E{=8 <) No. (2007) 3008. Upon completion of the
absorption of TAGC by way of share swap, the shares of TAGC and its

capacity as a legal person were both cancelled.

In accordance with the resolution of the second extraordinary general
meeting in 2008 and the amended Articles, on 16 December 2008, the
Company transferred 312,392,131 shares representing RMB312,392,131
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total
capital was 833,045,683 shares and total registered capital was
RMB833,045,683. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LI 5 IE)R A=A R EEEHAIEFN) in
its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (8 1E{£527F) No. (2008) 3046.

In accordance with the resolution of the first extraordinary general
meeting in 2010 and the amended Articles, on 6 December 2010, the
Company transferred 833,045,683 shares representing RMB833,045,683
from the capital reserve to registered capital, upon which the total capital
was 1,666,091,366 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong
Zheng Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (IR IERF{EERETSHAIE
F&F) in its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (8 1E{z52°F) No. (2011)
3006.

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

A E A DL ()

200743 HA30R ' HFEBEHFEBERZE
SHATHEEEITTF2007]645CER1Z
EHREDHIRODERAAARBEITARE
BBRRKEFRANEAERERG R A
BIRBA) HAERDA B RAREITR
SERBRRKEFANEAEEERSD
RAR(MBIMAE])  ARABEITHR
190,653,552 1% + AR RIS 4 N
/B > 200748238 0 ARARKET
190,653,552 EREEARBITHAR
hEBAR (ARR) - WR2007F4H308 -
BEERINEFRGHMETRS - il
[i% 18 & 1% B IR X /520,653,552 1% &+
&A% A AR#520,653,55270 + 4
IWRIERFEERETSTMEBUR
F{E5%F(2007) 300858 EHREE T UR
T o MR A FEMAIETAE - RNE
B& 1 R N JEE N BIE TS o

2008512 H16H + AR ARIE2008F %
ZTRERBRRERGRENMENEERN
BE BERARABEEBEEIMERARKE
312,392,13170 AR A 312,392,131
& « %% 1% 428 833,045,683 /% - st
BEAREE A AR 833,045,68370 £t
EIEARG LR ERMNEEREESEAD
EHMABEERT(2008) 3046585 & W
HEETURE -

2010512 A6 8 » ARAIHRE2010F %
—RERRRERGRENMENEERN
BE BHERAABEEBEEIMERARKE
833,045,683 7T * % hn % 4 833,045,683
& - & F 1% 8% A1,666,091,366[% °
MmEEE AL NRERMEERETSH
I EEETAB IEE5F(2011)5 30065 5
BREETUURE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate background (Continued)

In accordance with the resolution of the annual general meeting 2011
and the amended Articles, on 29 June 2012, the Company transferred
333,218,273 shares representing RMB333,218,273 from the retained
earnings to registered capital, upon which the total capital was
1,999,309,639 shares. The transfer has been verified by Shandong Zheng
Yuan Hexin Accountants Limited (LI B IEJR A=A R E T RIS HFN) in
its verification report Lu Zheng Xin Yan Zi (B 1E{25 =) No. (2012) 1013.

The RMB ordinary A shares and oversea listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. As of 30 June 2013, the
registered capital of the Company was RMB1,999,309,639. Please refer to

Note V.38 for the share capital structure.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

The registered address of the Company’s headquarter is 197, Section
A, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industry Development
Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province. The Company operates in the
transportation equipment manufacturing industry. The approved scope
of operations of the Company covers: Design, development, production,
sale, repair, import and export of diesel engines and auxiliary products;
automobile (except sedans), automobile axle and components, gear boxes
and components and other automobile components, hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and gear transmission devices,
ancillary casting and casting products of hydraulic components; technical
consultation and technical services (should hold operating permit(s) for

operations requiring administrative permission).

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the

Company on 29 August 2013.

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

— o~ AR E FEAE VL (4)

2012F 6 A29H + AR AR KE2011F
BREEBFASAZNEREEROR
- HBAAIREANBEEIMERARE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates

1.

Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard
and 38 specific accounting standards issued in February 2006, and
the implementation guidance, interpretations and other relevant
provisions issued subsequently by MOF (collectively referred to as

" Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).
The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

In preparing these financial statements, all the assets (other than
certain financial instruments) are carried at historical cost. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for impairment shall

be made according to relevant provisions.

Statement of compliance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements present, fairly and fully, the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2013 and the
results of operations and the cash flows for six months ended 2013

in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. The accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional

currencies shall be translated into RMB.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

5.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business Combinations Involving Entities Under Common
Control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in a
business combination shall be measured at their carrying amounts
at the combination date as recorded by the party being absorbed.
The difference between the carrying amount of the net assets
obtained and the carrying amount of the consideration paid for
the combination (or the aggregate face value of shares issued as
consideration) by the absorbing party shall be adjusted to share
premium under capital reserve. If the capital reserve is not sufficient
to absorb the difference, any excess shall be adjusted against
retained earnings.

Business Combinations Not Involving Entities Under
Common Control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the
acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their
fair values on the acquisition date.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

5.

Business combination (Continued)

Business Combinations Not Involving Entities Under
Common Control (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests
in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree
obtained in the combination, measured at fair value, was
recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently measured at cost
less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair value of the sum
of the consideration paid for the combination (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree obtained in the combination,
a review of the measurement of the fair values of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, the consideration paid
for the combination (or equity securities issued) and the equity
interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition is
conducted. If the review indicates that the fair value of the sum of
the consideration paid for the combination (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the share of the
attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree obtained in the
combination, the difference is recognized in current profit or loss.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2013 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an enterprise or entity that is
controlled by the Company.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period as those of the Company. When
the accounting policies of a subsidiary are different from those of
the Company, the Company shall make adjustments to the financial
statements of the subsidiary based on its own accounting policies.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
on consolidation in full.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

6.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share
of the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the
excess shall be allocated against minority interests. A change in the
minority interests, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an

equity transaction.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized

on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which the
combination occurs. While preparing the comparative consolidated
financial statements, adjustments are made to related items in
the financial statements for the prior period as if the reporting
entity established through combination has been existing since the

ultimate controller begins to exercise control.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

8.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income
and presented as a separate component of equity in the balance
sheet. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the amount
is recognized on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item
in the cash flow statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial asset,
or part of a group of similar financial assets) when the following

conditions are met:

(1)  the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. Such classification is determined on initial
recognition. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair value.
In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit and loss
of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial assets of

other categories are included in the amount initially recognized.

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial asset held for trading is the financial asset that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial asset is acquired
for the purpose of selling it in a short term; the financial asset is
a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial asset is a derivative, except for
a derivative that is designated as an effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial assets are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. Dividend income or interest
income related to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
charged to profit or loss for the current period.

A financial asset is designated on initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following
conditions:

(1) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.

(2) agroup of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported on that basis to the
Group's key management personnel, according to formal
documentation regarding risk management or investment
strategy.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

(3)  a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)

from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited.

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Investments in equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured shall not be designated as financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

Financial assets on initial recognition classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified into financial
assets of other categories; financial assets of other categories
cannot be reclassified into financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss, either.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. The
premium/discount is amortized using effective interest method
and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in the fair
value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized as other
comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for impairment
losses and exchange differences resulted from monetary financial
assets, until the financial asset is derecognized or determined to be
impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss is transferred
to profit or loss for the current period. Dividends or interest income
relating to an available-for-sale financial asset are recognized in

profit or loss for the current period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.
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B I RHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. Such classification is determined on initial recognition.
For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, relevant
transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or loss for the
current period, and transaction costs relating to other financial

liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for
the purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability
is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price form an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability is designated on initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss only when it meets one of the following

conditions:

(1) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in the measurement or recognition of relevant
gains or losses that would otherwise arise from measuring

the financial instruments on different bases.

(2) agroup of financial instruments is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, and
information about the group is reported to the Group's key
management personnel, according to formal documentation

regarding risk management or investment strategy.

(3) a hybrid instrument that contains one or more embedded
derivatives, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows of the hybrid instrument;
or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative(s)

from the relevant hybrid instrument shall be prohibited.

(4)  a hybrid instrument that contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded and cannot be
separately measured on acquisition or at the subsequent

balance sheet date.

Financial liabilities on initial recognition classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss cannot be reclassified
into financial liabilities of other categories; financial liabilities of
other categories cannot be reclassified into financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss either.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are
measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined
according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

If there is an active market for a financial asset or financial liability,
the quoted price in the active market is used to establish the fair
value of the financial asset or financial liability. If no active market
exists for a financial instrument, its fair value is determined using
the Group's valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent market transactions between knowledgeable and willing
parties, reference to the current fair value of another instrument
that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow method and
option pricing models.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the
expected future cash flows of the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment on a financial asset
has incurred, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to the
present value of expected future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) and such reduction is taken to
profit or loss for the current period. The present value of expected
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. effective interest rate computed on
initial recognition) and includes the value of any related collateral.
If a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the Group uses the
current effective interest rate(s) stipulated in the contract as the

discount rate to calculate the present value of future cash flows.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, it is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. If no impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.

If, subsequent to the Group's recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the

impairment is reversed.
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58 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B I RHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. Judgments are required to determine the definition of
“significant” or “prolonged”. “Significant” is judged by the extent
of fair value below its cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length
of period where fair value falls below its cost. Impairment loss of
investment in available-for-sale equity investment is not reversed
through profit or loss, and any increase of fair value that occurs
after the impairment is recognized directly in other comprehensive
income. The impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity
investment is not reversed through profit or loss, and any increase
of fair value that occurs after the impairment is recognized directly

in other comprehensive income.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once an

impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed.

For a long-term equity investment accounted for using the cost
method according to the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term Equity Investments and which is not
quoted in an active market and for which the fair value cannot be
reliably measured, any impairment is accounted for in accordance

with the above principles.

Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for
as follows: (i) if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes
the financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities;
(i) if the Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the

transferred financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
10. Receivables

(1)

Receivables Which Are Individually Significant and
for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized
Separately

Receivables are individually significant and tested for
impairment individually if according to the Group’s judgment,
the balance of accounts receivables and other receivables due
from an individual customer accounts for more than RMB20
million in the total balance of receivables. When objective
evidence indicates that the receivable has been impaired, bad
debt provision is made based on the shortfall of the present
value of future cash flow as compared to its carrying amount,

and is charged to profit and loss for the current period.

Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group

For receivables which have not undergone individual
assessment, provision for bad debt is recognized by grouping
the receivables based on their credit risk features. Other than
receivables for which provision for bad debt is recognized
separately, bad debt provision is made according to the
actual loss ratio of the same or similar receivable groups or
receivable groups with similar credit risk features, with due
regard to the current situation. The Group determines the
grouping in terms of credit risks using age of the accounts
receivables and other receivables and uses aging analysis to

make provision for bad debts. The percentage are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
10. Receivables (Continued)

()

Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group (Continued)

If objective evidence shows a recovery in value of the
receivables, the original bad debt provision can be reversed

and carried through profit and loss in the current period.

Receivables Which Are Not Individually Significant
But Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized Separately

For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss

for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
11. Inventories
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, finished goods,

self made semi-finished goods and turnover materials etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method or specific identification method. Low value

consumables are amortized by using immediate write-off method.
The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in value
of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is
reversed. The reversal is limited to the amount originally provided
for the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates, and equity
investments where the Group does not have control, joint control
or significant influence over the investees and which are not quoted
in an active market and the fair values of which cannot be reliably

measured.

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment
acquired through a business combination, the initial investment
cost is determined as follows: for a business combination involving
entities under common control, the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment is the carrying value of the absorbing
party’s share of the owner’s equity of the party being absorbed;
for a business combination involving entities not under common
control, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is the cost of combination (For a business combination
not involving entities under common control achieved in stages that
involves multiple transactions, the initial investment cost is carried
at the aggregate of the carrying amount of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree before the acquisition date and
the new investment cost incurred on the acquisition date.). The
cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values of the assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity securities issued by
the acquirer. For a long-term equity investment acquired otherwise
than through a business combination, the initial investment cost is
determined as follows: for a long-term equity investment acquired
by paying cash, the initial investment cost is the actual purchase
price paid and those costs, taxes and other necessary expenditures
directly attributable to the acquisition of the long-term equity
investment; for a long-term equity investment acquired by the issue
of equity securities, the initial investment cost is the fair value of
the securities issued; for a long-term equity investment contributed
by the Group, the initial investment cost is the value stipulated
in the investment contract or agreement, except where the value

stipulated in the investment contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
For a long-term equity investment where the Group does not
have joint control or significant influence over the investee, the
investment is not quoted in an active market and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the Group uses the cost method. And
for a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain

benefits from its operating activities.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. Except for the cash dividend
or profit distribution declared but unpaid that is included in the
price or consideration actually paid upon acquisition of a long-
term equity investment, the Company recognizes its share of
cash dividends or profit distributions declared by the investee as
investment income in the current period, and considers whether the
long-term equity investment is impaired according to the policies

related to asset impairment.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists only when
the important financial and operational decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but can not

control or jointly control with other parties over those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is

adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates — ~ i 2 & F B 5k 1 &1 5 A 5
(Continued) (78)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. RERERE(E)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses made by the investee as investment income
or losses after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee's identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group’s share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group’s share of net losses of the investee is recognized to
the extent the carrying amount of the investment together with
any long-term interests that in substance form part of its net
investment in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group
has incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group
adjusts the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for
any changes in shareholders’ equity of the investee (other than net
profits or losses) and includes the corresponding adjustments in the
shareholders’ equity.

On disposal of a long-term equity investment, the difference
between the proceeds actually received and carrying amount is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. For a long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, the
amount originally included in the shareholders’ equity is transferred
to profit or loss for the current period on a pro-rata basis according
to the proportion disposed of.

For a long-term equity investment in a subsidiary, jointly controlled
enterprises or associate, refer to ltem 24 under Note Il for the test
for impairment and recognition of provision for impairment. For
other long-term equity investment where the investment is not
quoted in an active market and its fair value cannot be measured
reliably, refer to Item 9 under Note Il for the test for impairment
and recognition of provision for impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
13. Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:
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Project Expected useful life (Year)
EgE| BEtEASES (F)
Land use rights T fE AR 48.5-50 yearsF
Housing and buildings EEREEY 14.5-30 years*F

For an investment property that is subsequently measured using
the cost model, refer to Item 24 under Note Il for the test for

impairment and recognition of provision for impairment.
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II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
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(Continued) (78)
14. Fixed assets 14. B EEE
A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits BTEEEFTREEENSENZR
associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the AIEERANEE - BEKA AR A] 5
cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure WitERA FURR  HEFTEES
incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall AMEES H  FEZERKERN
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount SFABETEEEMRA  WRIEERWE
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be HESHEEEEE B N
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in STAEHELE -
profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.
Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased BETEELRBRAETYGRSS o B
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any EERTEEMNKABIEEEER A
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working e UkAFETEEEIETE
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising A AR AT AN EEFEER
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve ZEEEMNHEMEH - BEHARRA
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts TEHEEBIERNETEE  ERFE
of accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment PREEEENKAFFREIERE - I
of the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain EE RERSBNREFTTE  UREAQ
subsidiaries namely WEICHAI NORTH AMERICA INC., Shaanxi AR FTRRMLEILED
Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi‘an Fast Auto Wﬁii'ﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ/ IR E}”’E}fi
Drive Co., Ltd., for which double-declining balance method is BFEmARARMNALETFREE
used for depreciation, the straight line method is adopted for the BERARMEEREITERBER
depreciation of other fixed assets. MEBIRREZIIN EtEEEENE
HEBERE -
The estimated useful lives, net residual value rates and annual ZHBTEEMNETERSD  FE
depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows: BEREEFERT RWOT :
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
[tem (years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TEET (A TEEHFIE FFEX
HAE s (F) B2 (%) (%)
Land use rights T FT A RE Indefinite & EAMR 0 0
Houses and buildings FEREEY 12-35 3-5 2.71-7.92
Machinery and equipment SR G 4-12 3-5 7.91-23.75
Vehicles BT A 4-10 3-5 9.50-50.00
Electronic equipment BFRIE 3-12 3-5 7.91-47.50
Other equipment H % 3-10 3-5 9.50-40.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

14.

15.

16.

Fixed assets (Continued)
The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for

impairment related to a fixed asset, refer to Item 24 under Note II.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to a construction in progress, refer to Iltem 24

under Note II.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.
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II. Significant accounting policies and estimates —. ~ T % € 5} B 5K #1 & 51 14 5T
(Continued) (78)
16. Borrowing costs (Continued) 16. ERXEA (&)

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  expenditures for the asset are being incurred;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is

resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(Continued)

17. Intangible assets
An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets
and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the
Group.

The useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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ERBEVEENERSHOT

Useful life

T

Technology know-how =AM 3.5-20 years
3.5-20%F

Land use rights + Hh(F F #E 30-50 years
30-50%F

Computer software STE B 5-10 years
5-104F

License FrET i 10 years
104

Orders on hand EFiTE 1-25 years
1-25%F

Customer relationship BEPHAR 2-17 years
2-174F

Others H A 3-10 years
3-10%F

Trademark rights PR {50 e indefinite
THETE

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and
buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes

adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful

life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (i) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (i) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is

recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.

For the test for impairment and recognition of provision for
impairment related to an intangible asset, refer to Item 24 under
Note II.
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II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

18.

19.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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18.

RGHEH
REGREARAEOLEE -
BT

Amortization period

(years)

B (F)

Industrial mould fee TREES 1-5 yearsfF
Industrial equipment fee THisEEAE 5 yearsfE
Expenditure on improvement HABRTEERRZH the shorter of useful life

of fixed assets leased in

Provisions

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations, the Group recognizes an
obligation related to a contingency as a provision when all of the

following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;

(3) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

19.

20.

Provisions (Continued)

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
20. Revenue (Continued)

Revenue From the Rendering of Services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.

Interest Income
It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the

effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as

stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income
Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or

loss in the period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

21.

22.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount received or receivable. If a government grant is in
the form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at
fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured
at a nominal amount. A government grant related to income is
accounted for as follows: (a) if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses or losses to be incurred in subsequent periods, the
grant is recognized as deferred income, and recognized in profit or
loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognized; (b)
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already
incurred, it is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current
period. A government grant related to an asset shall be recognized
as deferred income, and evenly amortized to profit or loss for the
current period over the useful life of the related asset. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized

immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
22. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

M

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

)

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

22.

23.

Income tax (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance
sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a
lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of An Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the
period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of An Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the
period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
24. Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets
and long-term equity investments, which are accounted for using
the cost method and have no quoted market prices in active
markets, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, using

the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

24,

Impairment of assets (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

25.

Payroll

Payroll are all forms of consideration given and other relevant
expenditures incurred by the Group in exchange for service
rendered by employees. In the accounting period in which an
employee has rendered service to the Group, the payroll payable is
recognized as a liability. For payroll payable due in more than 1 year
after the balance sheet date, if the discounted value is significant, it is

presented at the present value.

The Group maintains both defined benefit plans and defined

contribution plans.

The employees of the Group participate in social insurance, such as
pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
etc., and defined contribution plan of housing funds, which is
managed by the local government, and the relevant expenditure
is recognized, when incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the

profit and loss for the current period.

When the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the end of the employment contracts or provides
compensation as an offer to encourage employees to accept
voluntary redundancy, a provisions recognized for the compensation
arising from termination of employment relationship with
employees, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss for the
current period, when both of the following conditions are satisfied:
(@) The Group has a formal plan for termination of employment
relationship, or has made an offer for voluntary redundancy, which
will be implemented immediately. (b) The Group cannot unilaterally

withdraw from the termination plan or the redundancy offer.

The same principle is applied to the early retirement plan, as it is for
the above-mentioned termination benefits. The Group recognizes
salaries, social insurance premiums, etc., to be paid for the early
retired employees, during the period from the date when the
employees stop rendering service to the normal retirement date, as
payroll payable through profit or loss for the current period, when
the above conditions for the recognition of termination benefit plan

are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

25.

26.

Payroll (Continued)

Defined benefit plans is a non-defined contribution plan. Defined
benefit plans generally defines the amount of pension benefit
entitled to the employee upon retirement, usually depending on one
or more factors such as age, terms of services and remuneration.
The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period, less the fair value of planned
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit cost method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high quality bonds that are denominated in the currency used to
pay for the pension, and that have terms to maturity approximating
the terms of the related pension liability. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged in other comprehensive income for the
period in which they are incurred. Past-service costs are recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

Profit appropriation and distribution
The annual cash dividend of the Company is recognized as a liability

after being approved in the general meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)
27. Debt restructuring
A debt restructuring is an event in which a debtor is in financial
difficulty and a creditor grants a concession to the debtor in

accordance with a mutual agreement or a court judgment.

As A Debtor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the carrying amount of the debt and the cash
actually paid is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-cash asset(s) to the
creditor in a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying
amount of the debt and the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred is recognized in profit or loss for the current period;
the difference between the fair value of the non-cash asset(s)
transferred and their carrying amount was recognized in profit or
loss for the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in
a debt restructuring, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other terms
of the debt is modified, the difference between the carrying amount
of the debt under restructuring and the sum of the fair value of the
debt subsequent to the modification of other terms of the debt and
the provisions recognized in respect of amounts payable, shall be
recoginzed in profit or loss for the current period. When a debt is
satisfied by a combination of the methods mentioned above, the
carrying amount of the debt is reduced by, and in the sequence of,
the cash payment, the fair value of the non-cash asset(s) transferred
and the fair value of the capital issued to the creditor, and then
accounted for in accordance with the requirements related to a
debt restructuring that involves the modification of other terms of a
debt.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

27.

28.

Debt restructuring (Continued)

As A Creditor

When a debt is settled by cash in a debt restructuring, the
difference between the gross carrying amount of the debt
receivable and the cash received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is satisfied by a transfer of non-
cash asset(s) in a debt restructuring, the difference between the
gross carrying amount of the debt receivable and the fair value
of the non-cash asset(s) received is recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. When a debt is converted into capital in a debt
restructuring, the difference between the gross carrying amount
of the debt and the fair value of the equity interest received is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. When other
terms of the debt is modified, the difference between the gross
carrying amount of the debt receivable under restructuring and the
fair value of the debt receivable subsequent to the modification of
other terms of the debt, shall be recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When a debt is satisfied by a combination of the
methods mentioned above, the gross carrying amount of the debt
is reduced by, and in the sequence of, the cash received, the fair
value of the non-cash asset(s) obtained and the fair value of the
equity interest received, and then accounted for in accordance with
the requirements related to a debt restructuring that involves the

modification of other terms of a debt.

If the creditor has provided for impairment loss on the debt
receivable, the above difference is used to reduce the impairment
provision and any excess is recognized in profit or loss for the

current period.

Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise
significant influence over another party, they are regarded as related
parties. Two or more parties are also regarded as related parties if

they are subject to control or joint control from the same party.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

29.

30.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

31.

32.

Put options in relation to minority interests

During the process of acquiring the majority stake of the
subsidiaries, the Group provided the minority shareholders the
right to dispose the equity interests held by them to the Group
(“Put Options”). The equity interests in such subsidiaries held by
the minority shareholders shall be recognized as minority interests
in the consolidated financial statement of the Group. At the same
time, for put options, the Group shall assume the obligations to
acquire in cash the equity interests in such subsidiaries held by the
minority interests. The present value of the amount payable at the
time of buying of the corresponding equity interests of such put
options shall be deducted from equity (other than minority interests)
and was recognized as the financial liabilities of the Group. Such
financial liabilities shall be re-measured at the present value of
future exercise in the subsequent period, with changes charged to

the current profit or loss.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments and estimates that will affect the reported
amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date. However, uncertainty about these estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(Continued)

32. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Judgments (Continued)
Confirmation of Functional Currency
Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appears material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once

the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties. The Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms
of such leasing contracts, the Group has retained all material risks
and returns of ownership of these properties and therefore they are

accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the asset group to
which goodwill and trademarks are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset group and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates — ~ i 2 & F B 5k 1 &1 5 A 5
(Continued) (78)
32. Significant accounting judgments and 32. EREFTHE MG (E

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet
date to material adjustment.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and directly
recognizes movements of their fair values in shareholders’ equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment loss that shall be recognized in the income statement.

Impairment of non-current assets other than non-financial assets
(other than goodwill and trademark with uncertain lifetime)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the net of its fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it
is indicated that such asset or asset group is impaired. The net of
the fair value less costs to sell is determined with reference to the
price in sales agreement or observable market price of similar assets
in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that
would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset or asset
group. When calculating the present value of expected future cash
flows from an asset or asset group, the management shall estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or asset group and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those future cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates
(Continued)

32.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.

Write-down of inventories to net realizable values

Write-down of inventories to their net realizable values is based on
the saleability of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable
values. Given the management'’s judgments and estimates required
for inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence, purpose
of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events and other
factors, the difference between the actual outcome and original
estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and provision
and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the estimated

revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. Given the management’s judgment and estimate
required for impairment of receivable, the difference between
the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the carrying
amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad debts of

receivable during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of provision

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters has
formed a present obligation and the discharge of which is probable
to give rise to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the

Group recognizes the best estimate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(Continued)

32. Significant accounting judgments and

estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Estimated useful lives of fixed assets
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The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at least
once at the end of the year. Estimated useful lives is determined
by the management based on historical experience of similar
assets and expected technological advancement. Corresponding
adjustment to depreciation expenses for future periods will be made
in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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III. Taxation = BiIH
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEBHERME

rates

Value-added tax (VAT)
HEEH

Business tax
BEM

City maintenance and construction tax
Yok T A R R R
Education surcharge

B B

Corporate income tax

RS

2. Tax benefits and official approval
Value-added tax

- Output VAT is calculated by applying 17% to the taxable
income for normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay
it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.
— RN AR BB 7 %at EHIAT - WIRNBR B B
FHEINEE IR RE 1R B RR AU E T -

- It is calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income.

R AR5 % AT BV R -

— Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes
paid.
REBRGMEOREBI A7 %35% 5

— It is levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

RERBMHRERN3 % -

— Itis levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit. For
oversea subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate
of the countries or regions in which the subsidiaries
operate.

SRR AT TSN 15%325% 5 o BINF AT
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2. BWEER#EX
B

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value-
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose
Military Vehicles (R ERFREREZIEERIEET B
40)) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is
exempted from value-added tax.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits and official approval (Continued)
Corporate Income Tax

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008 and became entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15% for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2010. The Company passed the review on high-tech enterprise and
is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

Subsidiaries such as Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co.,
Ltd. C#ESeE) 1) O4Dr) BELERR A R]), Weichai Power Yangzhou
Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. (LB HIGMNEEMBERE T A A),
Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. (/& MESER{TAR
A 7)), Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. (kMM A IESE B A
BRREERA), Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. (FRKMETwRBEREER A,
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. (RN AE NFEEAR ST
‘A a]) and Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission Co.,
Ltd (KRIMERAS IR E SR BBR A 7)) have also been recognized as
high-tech enterprises. These subsidiaries passed the review on high-
tech enterprise and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
and Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. were at the same time recognized as
high-tech enterprises. Such subsidiaries passed the review on high-
tech enterprise and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. was recognized as a high-tech
enterprise and is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 29 June 2012 to 28 June 2015.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits and official approval (Continued)
Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (CBARRAE b 78 B0 A B 2% B B B TR W BUR B A B ) )
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, as well as
the approval of relevant authorities, the following companies have

implemented preferential tax policy for the Western Development:

- Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. has received the approval of
Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (Bt3% k2= &
LK) No. (2012) 002 on 9 March 2012 and the company
has passed the examination of 2012 Taxation Filing, and it is
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy in
2013,

- Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. has received the approval
of Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (Bt3% ok 2= £ &
ALK No. (2012) 003 on 20 April 2012 and at the same time,
received the approval of taxation filing, and shall proceed
the implementation of preferential tax policy for the Western
Development during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2020;

- Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
and Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. have received the approval of
Shaan Fa Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter (PRE%DAEE £ T2
%) No. (2012) 004 on 24 April 2012 and the companies has
passed the examination of 2012 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy in
2013,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)
III. Taxation (Continued) = MIEEH)
2. Tax benefits and official approval (Continued) 2. BWEER#X(E)

Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

- Chongging lJialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. has received the tax deduction and exemption notice of
Jiang Jin Guo Shui Jian (T#BIFER) No. [2012] 181 on 31
July 2012, and it shall implement the preferential tax policy
for the Western Development commencing from the date of
obtaining the tax deduction and exemption notice, i.e. 31
July 2012.

3. Other descriptions 3.
Taxable profit derived from other regions by primary subsidiaries
incorporated overseas of the Company, calculated at applicable
local tax rate according to existing laws, interpretations and

practices of the countries in which the subsidiaries operate, are as
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follows:

Income tax rate (%)
FiS B (%)

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) LB N (BE)BERERBRAF
International Development Co., Ltd. 16.50

Weichai International Hong Kong HSEBER(BB)REREEER QA
Energy Group Co., Limited 16.50
WEICHAI NORTH AMERICA INC. LA E N A 40.27
WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 17.00
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - & ff i % 38 09 & OF % B
Financial Statements
1. Information about subsidiaries 1. FRAFER
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AABIBEFRAAWNIBERAT :

presented as follows:

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FREEE  Ef EARE EBHE iftex SeEE AERERE

Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment

BERUARES ARG TAT

(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) fimited liability ~ Shandong Zhang Quan Trading Industry 89,795,918.00  Sale of diesel engines accessories and working ~ 78076858-9
Spare Part Resources company IR FR EEES partslcomponents and dedicated diesel ol
Co, Ltd. EREELA SHERARES /SR
BB (8 BRERE ZRNNE
RAT
(2) Weichai Power (Weifang) Ol fimited liability ~ Shandong Zhang Quan Sale of oil products 10,000,000.00  Processing sale of lubricating oil, sale of basic 780785725
(o, Ltd. company IR FR BRHE oil and additives for lubricating o, anti-icing
i Eople: 2iiphit EREFAT fluid, cleaning agent, anti-cutting fluid and
ERAA addltives

DEREEERR  HERERAR
MUE‘J%EM REED

HIR A
(3) Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liability -~ Shandong Zhang Quan Logistic Industry 20,000,000.00  General transportation; storage; delivery; 78078234-8
Intensive Logistics company IR FR niE basic assembly of machine accessory and
Co., Ltd, EREMRAA powerplant; diesel engines and accessory
BEH () R REE packaging, logistic assets development,
R4 logistic consultation, international transport

agency and packaging, and lease and sale of
logistic appliances
LREE AR R BHEER
PHEREARE  KABREN
BRNRAERE  NRFHER
SERAREYRMRSEANAE -

HE
(4) Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liability ~ Shandong Ren Xingwu Manufacturing 460,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of grey iron, ductile iron ~ 78926896-X
Casting Co,, Ltd. company  LIE AR Industry casting; manufacture, sale, hot treatment and
BEH (8585 BEREFAR b cleansing of casting and stamping parts
ERAF RE RASHRE HE B
BELNE BERNAR B
(5) Weichai Power (Weifang) limited liability ~ Shandong Sun Shaojun Manufacturing 122,000,000.00  Reconstruction of automobile components 67452682-6
Reconstruction Co,, Ltd. company IR BOE Industry (engine, gear box, generator, starter, diverter)
Sl ERERRA REx MERPENBRE(EDE 2RE %3

BRAAH R Tl
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Type of Place of
subsidiary  registration

FAREE  Efe

Legal
representative

EARR

Nature of
business

RHHE

Registered

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

W & fF B B R B A 0T R

(%)
1. FREAFERE)
Organization

capital  Scope of business code

ifEs SEEE ASHRRE

(6) Shandong Synergy Oil
Co., Ltd.
WREHARERAR

(7 Weichai Power (Qingzhou)
Drive Control Technology
Co,, Ltd.
BEH0(EN) BEKIAE
RAT

(8) Baudouin (Weifang) Power
(o, Ltd. (Note 1)
BHR(E)8N
BB LA ()

9) Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang
Vehicle Co,, Ltd.
RAHEAEARAE

(10)  Shaanxi Automabile Datong
Special-Purpose Vehicle
Co,, Ltd.
RAXRERAE
ERRA

limited liablity ~ Shandong
company IR
ERERRA

limited liability ~ Shandong
company IR
ERERRA

limited liability ~ Shandong
company IR
G

limited liabity ~ Xinjiang
company 8
BERERRA

fimited fiabiity ~ Shanxi
company I
BERERRA

Zhang Quan
Fx

Dong Ping
&7

Zhang Quan
FR

Hao Xiaogian

il

Hao Xiaogian

il

Manufacturing
Industry
REx

Manufacturing
Industry
REx

Manufacturing
Industry

Manufacturing
Industry
REx

Manufacturing
Industry

15D3,000,000.00  Manufacture and sale of lubricant oil
$773,000,000.00

150,000,000.00  Design, manufacture and sale of hydraulic

USD4,080,000.00  Production, design, development, sale and
%714,080,000.00

194,700,000.00 Research and development, production, sale

132,650,000.00  Research and development of components for

68723855-9
(grease), wholesale of basic oil and
additive oil for lubricating oil, anti-
icing fluid, cleaning agent, cutting fluid,
additives and fuel oil
TEHEERA(R)  BEREEAR
TR BRE - BEE DA
A R

57394501-X
components, hydraulic system and related
transmission technology series product as
well as providing technical and after-sale
services, operating import of the equipment,
components and technology required by the
Company and the export business of the
Company's products

RER  REZGRABELARNZIE
RV HEREE - TRERMNE
RRH% - BERRRATRE
SRAARTNEDEBRALE
ERNLOER

59031928
maintenance of diesel engines and auxiliary
products; design, research and development,
transfer of technology, consultation of
technology and provision of technical services
of transportation facilities, engineering
machinery, new energy and products;
enterprise management, consultation services;
import and export of goods and technology

FARREEERMEE Rt
A% HERGE  LBEERE
TRER  FRRRERNR
B BiiEE - KAk
RiRE  LEER  HARE
ENREMELORH

57621310-5
and servicing of components of cargo truck,
specialty truck and automobile

58 EARERAETHAN
Ha - 4E - BENRE

57597361-2
new energy specialty truck and automobile;
sales of complete vehicle and components
(excluding passenger vehicles with less than
9 seats)

HHREREREEHAOME
HEREREBH(FRABNUT
RARE)



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

W & fF B B R B A T R

(%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRRIER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary ~ registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FREEE iR EAMCR ABHE iftex S2EE AEKERE
(1) Shaani Automobile Huainan ~ limited liability ~ Anhui Hao Xiaogian ~ Manufacturing 112,000,000.00  Research and development, production, 57574499-1
Special - Purpose Vehicle company R MEE Industry sale and servicing of new energy
(o, ltd BREAARA BiEx heavy-duty truck, specialty truck and
RAERERAE automobile components
BRAF HHRET  ERERTETHAN
e 4E - BERRE
(12)  Chongging Shaanxi fimited liability ~ Chongging Fang Hongwei  Manufacturing 135,000,000.00  Processing, sale, research and development: 58147467-6
Automobile Jiachuan company  EE Rl Industry automobile components; sale of
Motor Co., Ltd BREMLLE g% automobiles (excluding passenger vehicles
El e with less than 9 seats)
BRAR I8 % RETH:
HERERRN(FRNENTRAE)
(13)  Shaanxi Heavy Duty free zone Arab Wang Gang Trading of automobiles  USD272,500.00  Sales of various automobile products and N/ANER
Automobile Import and enterprise ~ [FHL1A T 825 E727250000  related automobile componers
Bxport Co, Ltd. ARRAE HEXRAEERNERTINAE
(Dubai Company)
REEYAE®LA
ERAFREAT
(14)  Shaanxi Wuhai Special fimited liability  Inner Mongolia ~ Yuan Hongming ~ Manufacturing 228,000,000.00  Research and development, production, 56691594-7
Vehicles Co, Ltd. company  NED Epn Industry sale and servicing of natural gas heavy-duty
RASEERE BREFARA HiEx trucks and special vehicles
ERAA AAREFNERERE £ -
HE R
(15 Weichai Power (Shanghai) fimited liability ~ Shanghai XuXinyu Manufacturing 500,000,000.00  Industrialization development, technical 69296887-1
Technology Development company  H§ B¥xE Industry development, technical transfer,
(o, ltd. BREFARA BiEx technical consultation, technical services,
EEBN (LB NRERE technical training, investment consultation,
BAF corporate management consultation of
transportation equipment, engineering
machinery, new energy,
hi-tech technology and product
SBEERE  TEEE - Mk
BRI RERESLRY
BRE  REE - B
RinRE - HivEd RERH
PEEERN
(16)  Weichai Power Yangzhou limited liability  Jiangsu Zhang Quan Manufacturing 300,000,000.00 Design, development, manufacture, saleand 699341895
Diesel Engine Co,, Ltd. company & B Industry after-sale services of engines and ancillary
(Note 4) BREFAT HEF products; import and export of engines
HEBNHNERE and ancilary products, sale of automobile,
BREMAAR (M) automobile accessories and lubricating ol

LHRREEERNRY FE BE B

& ERBERE: ZBRR
REERMELOEH &
RERRRERRNOHE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

W & fF B B R B A 0T R

(%)
1. FRAA1ER(E)

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  EfE EAMK MR ifEx S2EE ABKERE
(17)  Weichai Power (Chongging) limited liability ~ Chongging Lizhi Manufacturing 240,000,000.00  Industralization development and management, ~ 69394899-5
Western Development company  EE 38 Industry technical, investment and management
Co, Ltd. EREFAT g% consultation senvice of general operating
#EY (B EFERE items, transportation equipment and
(VNG hi-techs technology and products
-HELEE  REEERE
EHRRERNEXLRERER
i RE - ERFARE
(18)  Chongging Longjiang Light- limited liability ~ Chongging XuXinyu Manufacturing 300,000,000.00  Development, design and sale of light vehicles 563455471
duty-Automotive Co., Ltd. company  EE Rk Industry (excluding sale of passenger vehicle with
(Note 5) EREAAR g 9-seats or below), development, design,
ERldHgE production, sale of automobile accessories
ﬁﬁﬁ a(55) (exdudmgproductionofengines)
CHABNRE  Rifile
(T’S!)JMWW%:.
ERBIMRE R AR
HE(TSEDRLE)
(19 Weichai Power (Beijing) limited liability ~ Beijing Wang Yong Project Investment 300,000,000.00  Project investment, investment management, 563688056
International Resource company 3R 15 EER investment consultation; tecnical
Investment Co, Ltd. BREFLA development, technical transfer, technical
EEH (R ABLRR consultation, technical service; new energy
BERAT technical training; organize cultural-art
exchange (other than performance); sale
FARE REER REAW:
U UEE B U
BRI : iR sm
BEXLEMRRORLEN)  #E
(200 Weichai Power (Hong Kong) limited liability  Hong Kong, Xu Xinyu Senvice Industry USD57,840,000.00 Engaging in cooperation and trading business /A
International Development company China BHE hEE F of product and technology in relation to TR
Co,, Ltd. EREMAT HEEE 57,840,000.00  automobile core components (suich as
BN (EE)ARLRE engines) and automoble engineering;
RAA external investment and management

business

(ERE RN
RETRFANER  RITAIER
BA%H HIRARERER



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - & ff B % ) % 09 & OF 45 &

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRRIER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FRARE  Efk EARE B iftgs LeEE AENERE
(21)  Weichai Power Russia Trade &  limited liability ~ Russia Zhang Gengsheng  Import and export ~ USD1,500,000.00  Engaging in tracfing of automobile components,  NiA
Investment Co,, Ltd. company B FEA #H0 F71,500,00000  trading of automobile basic accessories, THE
BETAYREES EREFAT trading of transportation vehicles, wholesale
BREEAH and trading of other machinery and
equipment, transportation, storage and
access of goods, financial leasing, acquisition
and sale of privately owned real properties
RERETHENES  AERRLENRH
25 RERBIENES
EftEREngEE S S0
B4 RERER BREEEE.
EERHELANTEE
(22)  Shandong Heavy Industry fimited liability ~ India Xu Zichun Manufacturing 15D5,000,000.00  Machinery manufacturing NIA
India Private Limited company  EIE B1E Industry i1 BEE Wil
WRETHE EREMRA RER 5,000,000.00
ERRA
(23)  Weichai Power limited liability  Luxembourg Xu Xinyu Project investment EUR  Engaging in founding, developing, managing ~ NIA
(Luxembourg) Holding company  ERE BHT BERE 239,010,000.00  and controlling of any company or enterprise.  MER
Sarl. EREFAT BITT Investment acquisition and management of
BB (BRE)ERER 23901000000 patents or other intellectual property of any
) other nature or sources
SELR - BE CRRLHANA AL
% RENENEREHAEREALE
RS AEEEER
(24)  Linder Hydraulics GmbH & general Germany Joerg Ulrich Investment EUR25,000.00  Investment management NIA
Co.KG (GP) parinership /28 management Br REEE g
HERELEARLE(CR)  ERABLE REEE 2500000
(25)  Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. ~ limited Germany Sun Shaojun Investment EUR25,000.00  Investment management NIA
KG(LP) partnership & B)E management Br REER iyl
WEREARABLE(P)  ARABLX REER 25,000.00
(26)  Weichai International (Hong limited liability  Hong Kong, Xu Xinyu Import and export  USD1,290,000.00 Engaging in investment in conventional ~ NIA
Kong) Co,. Limited (Note 1) company China BHT #H0 7 energy and new projects; importand  TER
HEER () EREE BREALNE $EEE 1,290,00000  export trading
ERAA (1) HERRERIEREERE -
EH0ES
(27) Fast Auto Drive (Thailand) Co., limited liabiity ~ Thailand i Daka Manufacturing THB  Production and sale of transmission N/A
Ltd. (Note 1) company  RE EYN: Industry 383,000,000.00  assembly and components THE
FIRAEED(FR)ER  AREELT 2R Rk LEHEERBANRIEN

RE(E1)

383,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Type of Place of Legal Nature of
subsidiary ~ registration representative  business

FO9EE  Efs EARER EHng

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

M 6 OLB 55 R 1 B
i
1. FRAFERGE)

Registered Organization
capital  Scope of business code
ifes £e8E AERERE

Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control

FR-EHTLEARRRNTAR

(28)  Shandong Huadong limited liability ~ Shandong Xu Hong Manufacturing
Casting Co., Ltd. company IR BR Industry
WREGFEERAT ERERRA REx
(29)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor  limited liabiity  Shaanxi TanXuguang  Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. company  BEA Eli5 Industry
REZVABERLHA EREFAF HiEx
(30)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., fimited liability ~ Shaanxi Fang Hongwei  Manufacturing
Ltd. company  BRF LK Industry
REZEERERLA ERERRA REx

450,150,000.00  Manufacture and sale of machine accessories, ~ 66674302-X
diesel engines and ancillary products, farming
machines and engineering machines; import
and export of goods, import and export of
technology
BHEN  SRRREEER
BRER  TREANEE 825
SMELD - KiELO

2,706,330,000.00  Manufacture of automabile (except sedans), sale - 741272070
and export of automobile components and
engines; import of raw materials, machinery,
equipment, apparatus, instruments, spare
parts, components and technology which
are required by the production and research
of the Company (conducted with relevant
license), commence Sino-foreign joint
venture of the Company and cooperate to
develop "three categories of processing and
one category of compensation business
assembling, conversion and after-sale service
of automobie

EERE(MEERI) - RETHMR
EREORE  L0ER A0%
TE HRFEORNE BHAE B
6% Bkt TRHLEMHOED
$H(BEEE) REROEMIGEE
B AREE[ZR-B %K qER
oo GRRE

320,000,000.00  Research, production, manufacture, saleand ~ 74504313-6
servicing industry of automobile axle and
axle components, manufacture of raw
materials, machinery, equipments, apparatus,
instruments, spare parts and components
that are required for research, purchase and
sale of components

REERREBERMMNA L&
i HE BB LERM
FERIE  BRRE E56%
BaEl - TRkmEY



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Type of Place of
subsidiary

EROLE L3

registration

Legal
representative

EARR

Nature of
business

RHHE

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

M 6 OLB 55 R 1 G
i
1. FRAFERGE)

Registered Organization
capital  Scope of business code

ifEs S2EE ASHERE

(31)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting
(o, Ltd.
RAESEEERRAT

fimited fiabiity ~ Shaanxi
company  BEF
EREMRAA

limited liability ~ Tianjin
company K
ERELAT

(32)  Tianjin Tiangua
Automotive Co., Ltd.
RETREEHERAA

fimited fiability ~ Tianjin
ompany  KE
EREEAA

(33)  Tianjin Xinming
Automotive Commercial
Co., Ltd.
REFREHE
BRAF

Wang Xiaofeng
e

Hao Xiaogian

ik

Zhang Yueliang
Rz

Manufacturing
Industry

Manufacturing
Industry

Trading of automobile

NERE

435,360,000.00  Research, production, manufacture, senvicing  77698602-2
and processing of casting products;
commence “three categories of processing
and one category of compensation business”
of the Company
FEEROBE - £E 55 REA
NI%%: REACEHI=R-F)
Y
11,760,000.00  Manufacture of household customized vehicle  10426507-7
and trallers and tractors, sale of trailers and
tractors accessories, smal-scale farming
equipment, lubricating o, rubber product,
hardware for domestic use and automobile
(except sedans). Operating export of the
Company's product as well as import and
export of the mechanical equipment and
raw materials of components that are
required by the Company
REgxE GleEgE g2
BERM JEREE - EER
BBEn M IE MEHE
(T2EE) BERLFERN
HOXBARLXHEOBRSRE
SRHRBMHMELD2KS
1,000,000.00 Wholesale and retail of automobile (except 74139534-5
sedans), farming vehicle and its accessories,
steel product, rubber product and lubricating
oll; complete vehicle repairing, assembly
repairing, complete vehicle maintenance,
minor repairing, emergency repairing,
special item repairing, normal freight of
large and medium-sized truck
HE(T2)8E) RRERERK
q BBEL BEARESE:
REHEEEEER - BHER -
LEE S MY HE R
EEER EREE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - # ff Bf % ) % 09 & OF 4 &

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRARER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  EfE EAK BHE ifEx SEEE AEKERE
(34)  Shaanx Heavy Duty limited liability ~ Shaanxi Fang Hongwei  Import and export 15,000,000.00  Self-operated agency for import and 78696817-8
Automotive Import & company KA FiE EMA export of various types of goods and
Export Co, Ltd. EREFAT technology; bidding agency; logistic and
BAEHAEELD transportation business consultation;
ERRA information consultation of import and

export of automobile complete vehicle and
components, development, results transfer
and consultation sevice of environmental
and automabile scientific technology, mult-
language and multi-professional translation
services (such as English, German, French,
Russian and Spanish)

BERBREBRRRMMELD
RRERE  MREREHAN:
AEEBASHHELOEEEARRN
RAEHSRRE  ARERR
EEEYRES AR A
SRS ERNHRRE

(35 Shaanxi Automobile Yulin -~ limited liabiity ~ Shaanxi Hao Xiaogian Manufacturing 168,000,000.00 Research and development, sale and after-sale ~ 56714227-X
Eastern Special-Purpose company B il== Industry services of new energy heavy-duty truck,
Vehicle Co., Ltd. BREFLA g% specialty truck and automobile components
WA ERAE FERES ZRENETINE
BRAF B HE REERE
(36)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.  limited liabiity ~ Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 256,790,000.00  Design, development, manufacture and 730431187
REZTHER ompany KA b Industry sale senvices of automobile components
EREARR EREERA gz such as gear boxes, gears and forging

(except complete vehicle production and
customization of automobile); export of self-
manufactured product and technology of
the Company; import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipment, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company (excluding commodities limited
to companies designated by the State for
operation or prohibited from exporting);
processing of incoming materials
ABLEE B4 BESAETINAA
iRE B BERK
(RENEEEERYERNALEEE
ERREMLOEE : Ap%EE
FEORENH  ERES
BRRE TRARRHOELOZHB(E
FREADEENAR DL OOERR
) ERMIER



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated

Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

M 6 OLB 55 R 1 G
i
1. FRAFERGE)

Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Ef EAE B iftgs LeEE AENERE
(37)  Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. fimited liabiity ~ Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 30,000,000.00  Design, development, manufacture, sale 732645971
Ehithas company  BRF EYiy Industry service and import and export business of
BREAH BREFARA 3t automabile components such as
transmission, gears and forging
HEZRE EBR RNSAETRENR
iRE 5 RERBR
EHOEE
(38)  Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., limited liabiity ~ Shaanxi Tan Xuguang Manufacturing 134,700,000.00 Design, development, manufacture and sale 750249243
Ltd. company  BRF B Industry service of power shift transmission system
BRETEREED EREFLA Hig assembling and components product
BRAF RERBZERREINERY
RS HEHERR
(39)  Xi'an Fast Gear Sales Co., fimited liabiity ~ Shaanx Yan Jianbo Manufacturing 1,000,000.00  Sale of gear, automobile component, hardware 742811785
Ltd. company  E BEH Industry and electrical appliance, construction
BRitRERHE BEREFAR gk materials and automobile
BRAA BE - RERE - TERE BEMH A
BHHE
(40)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare limited liability ~ Shaanxi Li Dakai Import and export 3,000,000.00  Manufacture and sale of automobile 727355005
Parts Import & Export company  BRF LY\ #H0 components, casting, mechanical and
Co., Ltd. EREFAF electrical products, operating export of
REETRAESIH seff-manufactured product and technology
ENOERAT of the Company, import of raw materials,
apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required for production
TEHENETHN B REER K
ERMEREERRRANLOER &
ERENRENH  GREREARE
SRHREwNEOER
(41)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare Parts ~ limited liablity ~ The United Li Dakai Trading USD 100,000.00 Sa\e of automobile components TR
Import & Export Co,, Lid. company States EYN 25% F710000000 HESREZERH
(American Distribution Co) ~ ERETAR %E
REELEAERHE
EHOERAT

FENHLT
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - # ff Bf % ) % 09 & OF 4 &
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FATAERE)

Nature of
business

RHHE

Registered Organization
capital  Scope of business code

ifEs SEEE ASHERE

74591450-1

Type of Place of Legal
subsidiary  registration representative

EROLE L EARER

(42)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd.
HNEREREEAR

limited liabiity ~ Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing
company i S0 Industry
ERERRA iy

531,314,951.00  Design, manufacture and sale of various types
of automobile, engineering machinery,
motorcycle, machine tools transmission
system assembling, gear and axles, cold and
hot processing of machinery, assembling of
mechanical equipments, sale of automabile
(except sedans), motorcycle and accessories;
wholesale and retal of electrical appliance,
machinery, equipment, hardware, electrical
appliance, general merchandise and
metal materials. Operating export of self-
manufactured products and technology
of the Company; operating import of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company; processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and
one category of compensation businss”.
Machinery processing, assembling of
mechanical equipments and metal materials

Fit B WERENE IEEH B

fE  BREDZEN  ERRE B4
ROBNL ERRERE
RE(TREE) BREREMHE
EREAREN 12 R
BE SRIMHNTRE - BER0EE
EERRRMNLOER  BE50EE
EfENRENH  E28%
BHRE SEERRMNENER &
BEHNIAICR-BIK-
BHNI BHRBRR  2EMH

(43 Zhuzhou Wande Forging
Co., Ltd.
GRS

BREELT

fimited liability ~ Hunan
ompany  HE
ERERRA

(44)  Zhuzhou Euro Grace non-listing Hunan
Gear Automotive jointstock ~ #E
Transmission Co., Ltd. fimited

BB EDRR company
ERAAE FETROAR
1]

PanXiaodong  Manufacturing
ABR Industry

PanXiaodong  Manufacturing
ABR Industry

5,000,000.00 Design, manufacture and sale of forging,

78087176-2
various types of automobile, gear and
axles of machine tools
E Wmﬁ BROERREH
HENHES

150,000,000.00  Research and development, production, sale and  78801726-1

export of automobile machinery and auto
transmission, specialty actuators, automobile
electronic and electronically controlled
products and other automabile components

REBRREDERS HEEDE
EETERERRELAEEHH
BE £E BERMOERS
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A E#or)

IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - & ff B % ) % 09 & OF 45 &

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FARER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital - Scope of business code
FRAIER iR EARE EHiE ifex SEEE AEKERE
(45)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs fimited liability -~ Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 216,420,000.00 - Manufacture of spark plugs, automobile 73676822-3
(o, Ltd. company  EF ZEl Industry electrical appliance and components of
wNENENEE BREAARA £t S other vehicles and motorcycle, special
EREFAT ceramic products, fire proofing products

and manufacture and sale of environmental
protection products; sale of automobile
(except sedans) and motorcycle; sale of
electrical equipment, construction hardware,
apparatus, instruments and metal materials,
chemical raw materials allowed under policies;
development and sale of computer software.
Operating export of self-manufactured spark
plugs, automobile electrical appliance and
components of other vehicles and motorcycle,
special ceramic products, fire proofing
products and- environmental protection
products; operating import and export of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company; processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business”

AEE - REEERAMSAE  ERET
o BEREER  BAMHERNL
E REREERNAE  #E:RE(R
FEE)  BREHE
HERE BEMIE BRERR
BEAFOLEIA  ((IEHEE &
RRANAT  HE HEALE
BENHAEE  REEEREMAE
BRETHN  HEBEYR
AR SR  REREERN
EO%R BERCREEREY
REMH G8EE BRRE
SRUERRAORLOES LN
TAI=R-HI5H
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - # ff Bf % ) % 09 & OF 4 &

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRARER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FREEE  Ef EACK BHE ifgs fe8E AERERE
(46)  Torch Import & Export limited liability -~ Hunan Chen Guangyun  Import and export 30,000,000.00 Operating and acting as agent for the import 707249125
Co, Ltd. company BRE #h0 and export of various types of goods and
AEEHOBREAAT G technology (excluding commadites and

technology restricted by the State for
operation or prohibited from import and
export); processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business” of the
Company

Wﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁ EARRRANEL D55 (E

BELAGERZEL AL

Fﬁua&&fﬁ&%?\\) BERGLENER

MIAM=R—Hh 2%
(47)  Zhuzhou Torch Machinery fimited liability ~ Hunan Li Guiyang Manufacturing 142,262,500.00  Piston pin, internal combustion machine 18430573-X
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. company  #E 8k Industry component, automobile and motorcycle
iyl AE%W%L EREEAR ez component; production of moulds and non-
EREEAA standard equipment; processing and sale of

rubber products; import and export trading
allowed by the national laws and regulations
FEE ARBEHNE - AERERE
THN - IBA  FERERE:
ZHERNT  #E: AXEEER

AFHELOHES
(48)  Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting ~ limited liability ~ Hunan Chen Guangyun ~ Manufacturing 46,000,000.00  Production and sale of automobile, motorcycle ~ 73677107-8
Co,, Ltd. company  HE BrE Industry component, electrical appliance, machinery,
BN EEEA EREEARA HEZ instruments, decorative light and rubber
EREEAT product. Operating export of seff-

manufactured product and technology of
the Company; operating import of raw
materials, apparatus, instruments, machinery,
equipments, components and technology
that are required by the production of the
Company; processing of incoming materials
and "three categories of processing and one
category of compensation business”

HE ERETIN SEBHREN %
ik ZHEREE HE-GeAL%
BEERREMOLOEH  BEALR
TERROREME  BEER BRR
B ZRERRGMEDRE D8N

MIA=R—H 5%
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - & ff B % ) % 09 & OF 45 &

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FARER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FRARE  Efk EARE B iftgs LeEE AENERE
(49)  Xinjiang Machinery Equipment  limited liability ~ Xinjiang Deng Yuting Import and export 20,000,000.00  General operating items (except special 228580232
Import & Export Co, Ltd. company  #i# e #H0 approved items under national laws and
HERMZRELD EREFAT regulations); import and export of goods
ERAA and technology

~BELRE (AR ERARAERENAR
) ENERTOELNER

(50)  Shanghai He Da Auto limited liability ~ Shanghai Han Guohong ~ Manufacturing USD4,248,200.00 - Design and manufacture of decorative bars 607261207
Accessory Co, Lid. company L BEM Industry 7L of automobile, glass trough, tracking,
LERERERS ERERAF g% 424820000 doorframe and its accessories; sale of self
ERRA manufactured products of the Company,

provide consultation services on products and
technology

Rit AENEHRBE REE
BEE PERARGEELRAE
En RUERRTAARY

(51)  Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang ~ limited liability ~ Chongging LizZhi Manufacturing 495,000,000.00  Production and sale of automobile, 78156786-9
Viehicles Manufacturing company  EF % Industry automobile components, motorcycle
Co,, Ltd. (Note 2) EREFAT g components
EEMER/ITNERES BE HE:RE RERIM
B () ERETHE
(52)  Siciété International des société par  France Lin Zhishen Manufacturing EUR33,311,180.00  Production, sale, research and development of N/
Moteurs Baudouin action pine e Industry Br  various types of internal combustion engings, &
EEBHERNERAF simplifiée CeE 33311,180.00  processing of various types of general
with a single machinery; generally all financial, commercia,
shareholder industrial, moveable or immovable operations
8-k% directly or indirectly related to the above
Bk operation or other similar or relevant
ERAA operations, which are directly or indirectly

beneficial to the pursue of goal, expansion or
development of the Company
RERNEHRNLE  BENHE
SEREEANT B LHATH
ERIHEE HAREESE
EwElIEBEEEEERN
BRIMERHNAAMELNER 2
ARRAEENER BE IX BE

FrgELE
(53)  DIESEL MARIN MAROC fimited fiability ~ Morocco Bresulier Marc ~ Manufacturing MAD1,000,000.00 Production and trading of diesel engines NIA
company AT Industry B fEREEFME el

ERELLE b3 1,000,000.00
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated

W & fF B B R B A 0T R

Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FRAEER(E)
Type of Place of Legal Nature of Registered Organization
subsidiary  registration representative  business capital  Scope of business code
FAREE EARER ERHE iftex SEEE AEKERE
(54)  WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. limited liability ~ Singapore Zhang Gengsheng ~ Senvice Industry 5GD100.00  General agency for import and export NIA
L. company  FINE FEE it FMRE10000 EHOARE AR
ERERAF
(55)  WEICHAI NORTH AMERICA limited liability ~ United States ~~ TanXuguang ~ Import sale USD7,587,230.00  Import sale of consumables and automobile ~~ NIA
INC. (Note 3) company 58 b EOHE T components Mg
HERILERA(E) G 758723000 BBR - METHHEOHE
(56)  Linde Hydraulics GmbH partnership ~ Germany Jorg Ulrich Manufacturing EUR100,000.00  Production of hydraulic pumps, hydraulic NIA
&Co.KG aRt%  EH Steffen Appel  Industry BT motors, hydraulic valves, gears and others, a5 &
HEREABEEKG) Thorstenvan ~ 2i5% 100,000.00  well as other components
der Tuuk LERER - RESERERM
ERRECRECERN
Percentage of shareholding
BRIA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests
RRE RBA
BAERLE  ER%)  BE%) L% 363 HSERREE
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BARUIRESTARENTRT
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. 89,795,918.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HEBN(ED)ERERERAT &
(2)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Qil Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BEBH ) R ERAR =
(3)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. 10,400,000.00 52.00 - 52.00 Yes 24,317,115.15
HEBN (RS ) ROERERAT =
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Effective capital
contribution at the

end of period
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Percentage of shareholding

M 6 OLB 55 R 1 G
i

1. FRAERGA)

BREA

Direct (%) Indirect (%)

Whether
Percentage  statements
of voting are

rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RRE RBE
BAREHRLE  EE(%)  BE%)  EA(%) i3 83 SR RER
(@) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 460,150,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BEBH ) ERERAT =
(5)  Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. 122,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HEBH ) BREFRAF =
(6)  Shandong Synergy Oil Co., Ltd. USD1,530,000.00 46.00 5.00 51.00 Yes 43,951,125.61
IWREEdRERAR %711,530,000.00 3
(7)  Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control 150,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Technology Co., Ltd ;E'E
BEBN (BN EERTARRA
)  Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. (Note1) USD4,080,000.00 50.98 49.02 100.00 Yes -
BHZ(ED)PNERAA(E) %714,080,000.00 R
(9  Shaanxi Automobile Xinjiang Vehicle 123,380,000.00 - 63.37 63.37 Yes 59,635,881.54
Co., Ltd. I
BB REERAR
(100 Shaanxi Automobile Datong Special-Purpose 33,825,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 27,767,025.08
Vehicle Co., Ltd. I
RAXRERAEERAH
(1) Shannxi Automobile Huainan 65,601,095.00 - 58.66 58.66 Yes 41,273,034.19
Special-Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. 2

RAERERAEARAT
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated

Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
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Percentage of shareholding

FRRER (&)

W & fF B B R B A O
(%)
1.

BRLA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests
RRE RBA
BAEBRILE  EE(%)  BE%) L% HH% HYERREE
(12)  Chongging Shaanxi Automobile 20,655,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
Jiachuan Motor Co., Ltd <
BERASNAEERAT
(13)  Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile Import and UsD272,500.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
Export Co., Ltd. (Dubai Company) F71272,500.00 3
REENTEELNERLAEELR
(14)  Shaanxi Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. (Note 6) 88,000,000.00 - 38.60 62.72 Yes 108,369,333.76
RT5EEREERAA(56) &
(15)  Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Development 500,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. =
BXBN( LB RRERBRRA
(16)  Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. 340,000,000.00 - 85.00 85.00 Yes 89,064,842.75
(Note 4) =
REBHENFREERRERA (F4)
(17)  Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Development 240,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. =
HEBN(ER)ENERARAT
(18)  Chongging Longjiang Light-duty-Automotive 153,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. (Note 5) =
BERTEYTEERAF(G5)
(19)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resource 300,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Investment Co., Ltd. =

BEBN (AR ERERREERAA
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
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Percentage of shareholding

M 6 018 55 R 1 G
i
1. FRAFERGE)

BRLA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests
RRE RER
BAEREE  EH(%)  BE%)  WHHI(%) i DERRER
(20)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International USD57,840,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Development Co., Ltd. 37157,840,000.00 3
BEE N (BB ERERERAR
(21)  Weichai Power Russia Trade & Investment Co., Ltd. UsD750,200.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
BENEXREABRHEREELA %71750,200.00 3
(22)  Shandong Heavy Industry India Private Limited USD3,500,000.00 - 70.00 70.00 Yes 686,655.91
WRETHEBRAA %713,500,000.00 3
(23)  Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.ar.l. EUR100,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
BEBH(ERE)ERERAF B(7.100,000.00 3
(24)  Linder Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG (GP) EUR25,000.00 - 70.00 70.00 Yes (822,628.08)
MERBEREBLEGP) §17125,000.00 =
(25)  Linde Hydralics GmbH & Co. KG (LP) EUR25,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
HMERBERABEELP) B17.25,000.00 2
(26)  Weichai International (Hong Kong) Co., Limited USD 1,290,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
(Note 1) F711,290,000.00 3
HEER (BB REEERARGH)
(27)  Fast Auto Drive (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (Note 1) THB 383,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
FTRAEED(RE)ERAR () %££383,000,000.00 3
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - # ff Bf % ) % 09 & OF 4 &
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)

1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FATEER(E)

Percentage of shareholding

BRI A
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RRE RER
HARRLE  BER(%)  BEG%)  EH%) prE% DURRER

Subsidiaries acquired through business combination not involving entities under common control
FR-BHTLESHRENTAR
(28)  Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. 450,150,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -

REHEEBRLA 3
(29)  Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. 1,380,330,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 1,901,598,104.18
REERTEFRLA =
(30)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 310,592,000.00 3.06 94.00 97.06 Yes 27,456,731.67
REEESRERAA 3
(31)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. 435,360,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes (14,812.16)
RESSEEERAT =
(32)  Tianjin Tiangua Automotive Co., Ltd. 6,000,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes (30,089,266.61)
RETAHERER LA 3
(33)  Tianjin Xinming Automotive Commercial Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
REFHABHEERAT b3
(34)  Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automotive Import & Export 15,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
CO., Ltd. %
REERAEELOERAT
(35 Shaanxi Automobile Yulin Eastern Special-Purpose 85,680,000.00 - 51.00 51.00 Yes 55,712,809.42
Vehicle Co., Ltd. 3
RARHMEAERABERAH
(36)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 130,960,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 3,666,425,290.13
REETHERERETLT 3
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated W - & ff B % ) % 09 & OF 45 &
Financial Statements (Continued) (%)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued) 1. FREER(E)

Percentage of shareholding

BRILA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period ~ Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RRE RER
HARRLE  ER(%)  BEG%)  EH%) prE% LURRER

(37)  Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 29,265,000.00 2.55 95.00 97.55 Yes 48,083,239.64
BRI NERARELAT IS

(38)  Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. 134,700,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 6,659,061.71
ARETHAZEHAERLA IS

(39)  Xi'an Fast Gear Sales Co., Ltd. 1,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes 282,970.12
AREtHERHEARLA &

(40)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare Parts Import & Export 3,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. 3

REZTRAETHHELNER A

(41)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Spare Parts Import & Export UsD 100,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. (American Distribution Co.) %71100,000.00
REETHAESHHELNBRAAZENHAT

Yl

(42)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. 467,102,295.92 87.91 - 87.91 Yes 66,646,308.39
HNERERRELA ®
(43)  Zhuzhou Wande Forging Co., Ltd. 5,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
HNBERRERETAT b3
(44)  Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear Automotive Transmission 145,000,000.00 - 95.14 95.14 Yes 7,933,416.60
Co., Ltd. 3
EHEREESRAERAR
(45)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. 216,420,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
NN EAERERERAD A ®
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Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
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(%)

1. FRAERGA)

Percentage of shareholding

W & fF B B R B A O

BRLA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights consolidated ~ Minority interests
KRB RBE
BRERLE  ER%)  BE%) L% 3763 SR RER
(46)  Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd. 30,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
NEEHDEREALR &
(47)  Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 142,262,500.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
RN ERRREERERARR &
(48)  Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. 46,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
WA EREERERARR &
(49)  Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export 20,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Co., Ltd. 3
MERMRBELOERAT
(50)  Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd. USD3,186,150.00 75.00 - 75.00 Yes 38,618,596.58
LEmERERtBRAR 713,186,150.00 R
(51)  Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles 495,000,000.00 51.00 49.00 100.00 Yes -
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (Note 2) %
BETERITAEREERAA(H2)
(52)  Siciété International des Moteurs Baudouin EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
HERBHZY NER AT B17133,311,180.00 &
(53)  DIESEL MARIN MAROC MAD1,000,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
#HI1§1,000,000.00 R
(54)  WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 5GD100.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
IR 100.00 &
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IV. Consolidation Scope of Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
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W~ & fF B B R B A T

(%)

1. F2ARFERGE)

Percentage of shareholding

Effective capital
contribution at the

end of period

BRLA
Whether
Percentage  statements
of voting are

Direct (%) Indirect (%)

rights consolidated ~ Minority interests

RAE RAS
HAERLE  HE%)  BE%) A% gk PERRER
(55 WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMATIVE, INC. USD7,587,230.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
WEICHAI NORTH AMERICA INC. (Note 3) %717,587,230.00 3
B ERF (3)
(56)  Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG EUR270,957,500.00 - 70.00 70.00 Yes 486,599,892.51
MEREABLEKG) §171270,957,500.00 &

Note 1: These subsidiaries were newly established and were included as part of H1 ZERAR2013FEBBHFRIAAA
consolidation in 2013. GrenE

Note 2: The Company’s percentage of direct shareholding of this subsidiary 2 ARFIEHZFARMNERESRILG £
increased to 51%. This subsidiary has become a grade one subsidiary. FAES1% BEA—KTFAA -

Note 3: This subsidiary, originally named as WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMATIVE, 3 T RAIR2013FE F ALt
INC., was renamed to WEICHAI POWER NORTH AMERICA, INC. in 2013. % A & (WEICHAI POWER NORTH

AMERICA, INC.) * & & /& WEICHAI
POWER MAT AUTOMATIVE, INC.

Note 4: Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary FH4: RRABZFRARAEESHH(LEE)BE
of the Company increased capital to this subsidiary and the percentage of ERBMBRABIEEZ T AR - FKL
shareholding increased to 85%. Bl EFZE85%

Note 5: Chonggqing Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles Manufacturing Co., Ltd., a F#5: RRABZFRRIEEMRBEI/IIIAE
subsidiary of the Company gained 49% minority equity interests of this BUEERAFANTHBERESZ FAA
subsidiary for zero consideration and the percentage of shareholding DERERA9% 2 IRHIE - FERR L
increased to 100%. £100% °

Note 6: On 16 March 2012, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of 6 2012F3816H * ARABIZ FARPR

the Company, acquired 24.12% minority interest voting rights in Shaanxi
Wuhai New Energy Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. via a management and
control agency agreement, representing an aggregate percentage of
voting power of 62.72% with effective control over the company.

FREAAREFRARBAREEEMN
ERIBRIE THRAS §FERER
AEARAADEKRET24.12% B &K
RIE - AFTRAEL A R62.72% -
I -
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S5 e R WA o (A

201346 A30H (A R¥T)

Financial Statements (Continued)
1. Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in registered capital of the subsidiaries from January to

June 2013 are detailed as follows:

31 December

W & fF B B R B A O R

(%)

1. FRFAERE)
TRAFEMEAR201361-6 AE LS
{LRIFFBAT :

Increase in Decrease in

the current the current

2012 period period 30 June 2013

20128 2013%

12A318 LM i) 6A30R

Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. R REEERAT 35,360,000.00  400,000,000.00 - 435,360,000.00

Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automotive BREER BRI OERAF

Import & Export Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - 15,000,000.00
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang Vehicles ZEM &%)/ T/5EREERAF

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 80,000,000.00  415,000,000.00 - 495,000,000.00

Changes in paid-in capital of the subsidiaries from January to June

2013 are detailed as follows:

31 December

FRBIEWEAR201341-6 A3 L£ %
{LHFFBEAT -
Increase in Decrease in

the current the current

2012 period period 30 June 2013
2012F 2013%
12RA318 KB M AEE D 6A30H
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang ERMER)IAEREERAR

Vehicles Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 80,000,000.00  415,000,000.00 - 495,000,000.00
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel HEBNHMEREERRR ()

Engine Co., Ltd. (Note) 300,000,000.00  100,000,000.00 - 400,000,000.00
Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. RATREEFRAT 35,360,000.00  400,000,000.00 - 435,360,000.00
Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automotive BREETEEROFRAR

Import & Export Co., Ltd. 10,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 - 15,000,000.00
Société International des Moteurs FEEHZENER AT

Baudouin 273,463,242.42  12,080,400.00 - 285,543,642.42
Weichai Power (Luxembourg) RET N (ERE)ERERAF

Holding S.ar.l. 802,960.00 1,920,478,847.00 - 1,921,281,807.00
Note: As as 30 June 2013, changes in registered capital of the company is being 7 M2013F6H308 - ZARAFEMER

processed.

2. Change of scope of consolidation

Other than as described in Items 3 under Note IV, the scope of the

consolidated financial statements is in line with that in the previous

year.

BEEAEMIET -

2. EOEHERE

BRE T - 33N
REEEFFE—B -

B
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m~ﬁ@gﬁfﬁii§$ﬁ%%{a‘ﬁ$ﬁl§l

Entities newly consolidated and entities not 3. AXEEFMHMASHEED
to be consolidated in the current period FTENMNITBHASGE
HE
From January to June 2013, subsidiaries newly consolidated are as 2013F1-6 8 ' TIWASHSEERDF
follows: ANARWT :
Net losses
Time of inclusion from date of
as part of Net assets as at consolidation
Names of subsidiaries newly included as consolidation 30 June 2013  to end of period
part of consolidation NGB 20134 6A30H aptEE
FMASHEENFARERE 65 [ 1Y B BEE MR FER
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. (Note 1) 1 March 2013 25,238,215.39 391,936.71
B (A BHERAF (31) 2013%43A1H8
Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy (Note 2) 15 March 2013 7,966,000.00 -
Group Co., Ltd.
MBI (EB)REREEBRAF (#2) 2013%3A15H
Fast Auto Drive (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (Note 3) 24 June 2013 24,000,000.00 -
ETRAEEH(GER)ERAA (#3) 2013%F6A24H

Note 1: This company was newly established on 1 January 2013 and was
included as part of consolidation and the percentage of shareholding is
100%.

Note 2:  This company was established upon approval on 15 March 2013 and was
included as part of consolidation and the percentage of shareholding is
100%.

Note 3: This subsidiary was established and was included as part of consolidation
through Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company and
the percentage of shareholding is 100%.

The exchange rate for translating items of key 4.

statements for the foreign operating entities
of the Group

Average exchange rate
FHER

January to January to
June 2013 June 2012
2013%1-6 A 20124 1-6 4

usb e (WEYA 6.3129

EUR BT 8.1856 8.0168
HKD ke 0.8037 0.8130
Indian Rupee EEEL 0.1083 N/ATE A

Russian Ruble MEHER 0.1969 N/ATE

2

w3

CZEARN2013F1 A1 BFRK

Mo MmAGHBE - HRLAA
100% ©

ZATEIR2013F3 A 15 B & #E R
o MAEDIENEE - BRLEGIA
100% ©

ZFRARAARAZ FARREEL
HERAREEARBBINRLAHA
EOFEE - FHRLEPIR100% ©

FEBRIEEERTE
BREEWTEER

PINEEDZENN=RN 2012612 A31H

Exchange rate at period-end

HREZ

30 June 31 December
2013 2012

6.1787
8.0536 8.3176
0.7966 0.8108
0.1036 0.1139
0.1876

115



116  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBNROBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.
Statements

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
-RMB
-UsD
-PY
-HKD
-EUR

- Indian Rupee

Bank deposits
-RMB
-Usb
-JpY
-HKD
-ERR
- Indian Rupee

- Russian Ruble

Other cash and

cash equivalents

-RmB
-UsD
-EUR

Original
currency
R
Be
- AR% 2,006,759.79
%7 2,392.36
-A7x 2,116.00
— B 174,240.76
-Be 30,458.00
-HEEL 1,291,077.00
BIER
- AR% 11,923,898,085.92
% 22,038,092.18
-A1 5.00
% 12,359,540.73
-Br 91,068,521.52
-HEER 152,600,000.00
LAl 17,590,776.76
EthERES
-A\E# 1,993,045,334.81
%7 79.46
B 502.38

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

30 June 2013
2013%6A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

ENT

rate

EX

B i 2 B G (4
201346 308 (A E¥T)

RMB
equivalent

e ARY

2,006,759.79
14,781.67
132.46
138,800.19
245,296.55
133,755.58

2,539,526.24

11,923,898,085.92
136,166,760.15
0.31

9,845,610.15
733,429,444.91
15,809,360.00
3,300,029.72

12,822,449,291.16

1,993,045,334.81
490.96
4,045.97

1,993,049,871.74
14,818,038,689.14

T~ A BF B B ik 32 BEH H aE R

1. E¥ES
31 December 2012
2012512R318
(Audited)
(BEH)
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
R Ex PN
2,228,496.21 1.0000 2,228,496.21
4,313.86 6.2855 211477
2,023.29 0.0730 14770
121,875.70 0.8108 98,816.82
155.36 83176 1292.22
- 0.1139 -
2,355,867.72
12,892,858,074.20 1.0000  12,892,858,074.20
135,581,088.78 6.2855 852,194,933.53
220.27 0.0730 16.08
2,407,814.74 0.8108 1,952,256.19
38,565,580.25 83176 320,773,070.29
175,290,361.90 0.1139 19,965,572.22
22,879,098.01 0.2061 4,715,382.10
14,092,459,304.61
2,629,378,415.76 1.0000  2,629,378,415.76
441,078.53 6.2855 2,772,399.10
493.99 8.3176 4,108.81
2,632,154,923.67

16,726,970,09%.00



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

1.

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

The other cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to RMB1,993,049,871.74 (31 December 2012:
RMB2,627,818,742.78), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance

bills and letter of credit.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB835,610,554.31 (31 December 2012: RMB1,078,776,001.21),

which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for time deposits vary from three months to one year depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

Financial assets held for trading

TEemEE

Derivative financial assets

Derivative financial assets represent the call options of minority
interests obtained in the process of its investment in the 70%
interests in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG. Such options were

measured at the fair value on 30 June 2013.

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

PO 5 i % M R (48)
2013464308 (A E¥T)

1~ & OF B R R IH H RE R
(%)
1.

EBEE(HE)
REBEMEKESRARE
1,993,049,871.747L (2012F 12 A
318+ AR #2,627,818,742.78
TT) - BEARR A R IBER 1T
HER FEAIFHELMBEFNRE
4 o

MH2013F6 308 AEETF
MRBEINEEESAARE
835,610,554.317C (2012412 A 31
H: AR#1,078,776,001.217T) °

SRITA BIFE IR IR IR 1708 B3 732 5K R =&
BBMSBA - EMFEFRNEFRAE
BEAEVEATE KAKBENRS
FRME » WIRIBABAEHRTTFRA
EEFHEUA -

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&FEz)

267,379,520.00

137,050,693.51

TTEeRMAEREASEEREES
TO%MERBEEREERERBESP
FIRESHE D ERRRENE AL
o MR L2013 6 A30B AR
BEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A DR B ok EEIH H RERE

(74)
3. EREE

30 June 2013
201346 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Bank acceptance bills

Commercial acceptance bills

RITEHESE
PEERLESR

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

17,337,170,510.28
21,863,123.09

9,218,491,108.06
23,741,034.33

17,359,033,633.37

As at 30 June 2013, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged are

presented as follows:

9,242,232,142.39

MN2013FE6A30H  £EZ AN R
BEEFNEKRZEENT

Issuer Issuing date  Expiry date Amount  Issued by

HEE N HEHHS Z8A eHE ARA

Nanjing Iveco Motor Company Ltd. 2013.5.24  2013.11.24  45,000,000.00  China Citic Bank

MR KRB AR AR Corporation Limited.
S IRIT

Pang Da Automobile Trade Co., Ltd 2013.3.28 2013.9.28  10,000,000.00  China Minsheng Banking

ERAEEERNDBRAT Corp., Ltd.
RAERT

Nanjing Iveco Motor Company Ltd. 2013.3.29 2013.9.29  10,000,000.00  China Citic Bank

MR KRB B R AR Corporation Limited.
FEIRTT

Nanjing lveco Motor Company Ltd. 2013.3.29 2013.9.29  10,000,000.00  China Citic Bank

FARKERIBERR QA Corporation Limited.
hZIRTT

Nanjing Iveco Motor Company Ltd. 2013.3.29 2013.9.29 10,000,000.00  China Citic Bank

MARRERTEAR QA

Corporation Limited.

h{EERTT

85,000,000.00



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged

are presented as follows:

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

1~ & OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
3. E

FE(E)

M2012F12A318 » @B & AR
FEEERNERKEENT :

Issuer Issuing date  Expiry date Amount Issued by

HEEN HEHH ZH#A THE  AERA

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2012.9.17 2013.3.17  20,000,000.00  Industrial Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) FFIRTT

RRAEERAFRHBEALRR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2012.9.17 2013.3.17  20,000,000.00 Industrial Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) FZEIRTT

RRAEERAREAEBELQR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2012.7.17 2013.1.17  10,000,000.00  China Construction Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) ERIBIT

RRAEERAFREABEALRR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2012.7.17 2013.1.17  10,000,000.00  China Construction Bank
(Commercial Vehicle Company) BRIRTT

RRAEERAREABELQR

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 2012.7.17 2013.1.17  10,000,000.00  China Construction Bank

(Commercial Vehicle Company)

RESEERATNEBEAF

As at 30 June 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Group has not

transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

70,000,000.00

ERIRT

201346 A30H 2012412 A31
B AEEERLRAENEOMS
FEEBREURANTRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ I H 51 #
(%)

Statements (Continued)
3. Notes receivable (Continued)
The top 5 notes receivable outstanding as at 30 June 2013 that had

been endorsed to other parties are presented as follows:

3.

EWEE(E)

M2013F6 A30A KB EHRMITE
HMASIEMERERSES AN
HINT ¢

Issuer Issuing date Expiry date Amount
REQ HEBH EI#H &8

Pang Da Automobile Trade Co., Ltd 2013.3.28 2013.9.28 10,000,000.00

BEATEEERNARAR

Xinjiang Puzhao Technology Development 2013.5.7 2013.11.7 10,000,000.00
Co., Ltd

FEHERMBRERBR AR

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle 2013.3.1 2013.9.1 10,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.

FAKENAEHAERARAR

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle 2013.3.1 2013.9.1 10,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.

FAKRENAEAAERRAA

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle 2013.3.1 2013.9.1 10,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.

EARKERNAEERERRAR

50,000,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

3.

Notes receivable (Continued)
The top 5 notes receivable outstanding as at 31 December 2012

that had been endorsed to other parties are presented as follows:

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

1~ & OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

3.

EWEE(E)

M2012F 12831 A REEH MBS
BRI ERZIES BN
RIBMAT :

Issuer Issuing date Expiry date Amount
REMN HEHBH FHA &%

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology 2012.8.27 2013.2.21 20,000,000.00
Co., Ltd

hEERIRDBRA A

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 2012.8.27 2013.2.21 20,000,000.00
Technology Co., Ltd

P EREROBRATF

Zhengzhou Yutong Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. 2012.12.27 2013.6.26 13,444,365.00

FMNFRETIBRAF

Hebei Zhongkai Auto Sales Co., Ltd. 2012.9.28 2013.3.28 13,000,000.00

BRI TEESERAA

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 2012.7.26 2013.1.26 10,000,000.00

Technology Co., Ltd
R ERRHBRAF

As at 30 June 2013, notes receivable amounting to
RMB1,970,077,125.67 (31 December 2012: RMB294,400,473.38)
was pledged to banks for issuance of bank acceptance bills, and no
notes receivable was pledged for short-term loans. (31 December
2012: RMB92,280,926.01).

76,444,365.00

M2013F6H308 - AEERMNFAA
RITRALEZMEROEREERAA
K #1,970,077,125.67 7t (2012 4F
12A31H + AR#294,400,473.38
L) EBAREHERME RN E
W= (2012128318 « AR
92,280,926.017T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4.

Accounts receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, and
generally requires payment in advance or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one month, extending up to
six months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest
bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is
presented as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

i é‘fﬁ;ﬁa‘i%%ﬁi%igﬁ H iR

M

4. FEWERFX

AEEEEFHNE S EFIAGEAR
HRE A —REFFHEFEAMNRK
REREENRTNET - ERHAER
BIUER  TBZEFPANERZ6HE
H o BUIRRILFHE -

REAZBEH  BUERTOREDT

wmr

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

Within 3 months 318 B AR

3 months to 6 months 3R ZE6MEA
6 months to 1 year 6lEAZE14

1 to 2 years 1227

2 to 3 years 2ER3F
Over 3 years 3F LA L

4,274,118,242.15
1,156,599,436.60
552,914,459.05
277,350,596.27
188,303,152.62
487,376,028.06

Less: Provision for bad debt in respect
of accounts receivable

6,936,661,914.75

804,620,272.00

6,132,041,642.75

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable
are presented as follows:

31 December 2012
2012412 A831H

(Audited)
(REZ)

2,876,869,314.13

453,279,212.41
534,382,562.75
359,823,287.48
251,164,319.41
364,675,665.77

4,840,194,361.95

671,668,964.81

4,168,525,397.14

FENBR R R B ZESHIT ¢

30 June 2013
201346 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEXK)

671,668,964.81
153,018,063.81

(20,899,716.14)

832,959.52

Opening balance 1 FOH
Provision for the period/year NEFEHR
Increase in scope of consolidation A FrEsE G N
Decrease during the period/year: NER R

Reversal o]

Write-off i

Disposal of subsidiaries A=A /N
Adjustment of exchange differences M H R
Closing balance HlF KRB

804,620,272.00

31 December 2012
2012912 A831H

(Audited)
(&= %)

711,679,522.34
34,509,963.52
202,512.08

(44,343,652.97)
(10,794,080.00)
(19,585,300.16)

671,668,964.81




Notes to Financial Statements (Cont

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

inued)

Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (

Continued)

Interim Report 2013 e 123

PO 5 i 3 I G ()
2013464308 (A E¥T)

T ?@ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%iﬁ%igﬁ ElER::
4 BREN(E)

30 June 2013
20136 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(RBRER)
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
xdt]] iR
REHRE (%) BIRER EeB1(%)
Individually significant items BEHSEEAT
for which provision for bad debt BEMRERER
is recognized separately 687,780,416.59 316,614,982.67
Items for which provision for RIEAFIRERER
bad debt is recognized by group 5,895,271,053.27 396,804,102.81
Not individually significant items EHeBETENE
for which provision for bad debt BEHRRRER
is recognized separately 353,610,444.89 91,201,186.52
6,936,661,914.75 804,620,272.00
31 December 2012
2012%12A31H
(Audited)
(8EZ)
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%)
= dt] B
REHRTE (%) EIRER L B1(%)
Individually significant items BHESEEAW
for which provision for bad debt B IEFHRIZE &
is recognized separately 911,583,071.67 18.83 323,077,870.81 35.44
Items for which provision for RERFIRERERE
bad debt is recognized by group 3,716,373,644.35 76.79 267,913,983.54 7.21
Not individually significant items ~ BIE&FEH A EAMA
for which provision for bad debt BB TBFT IR S ER 4
is recognized separately 212,237,645.93 4.38 80,677,110.46 38.01
4,840,194,361.95 100.00 671,668,964.81 13.88
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % it 3 £ 2 EH H 5:

Statements (Continued) (74)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERR(E)
ltems for which provision for bad debt is recognized by group are RAAFTIREREBOT

presented as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%6A30A 20126128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8&R)
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for ~ Percentage
amount (%) bad debt (%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
47 it ] iR
REBR (%) BEERE W% FEBE (%) BREE %)
Within 1year 1 LR 5,523,864,845.78 93.69 252,607,924.45 AT 3,288,601,793.34 88.49 126,176,583.18 384
Tto2years  1E2% 203,405,745.82 345 30,586,936.11 15.04 268,350,030.16 7.3 34,021,313.10 1268
2to3years  223% 41,019,205.12 0.70 11,588,816.94 28.25 48,804,662.16 131 14,261,982.58 2922

3todyears  3Z4F 35,757,642.38 0.61 15,133,915.15 232 26,045,630.58 0.70 13,042,669.89 50.08
dtoSyears  425F 21,314,569.48 0.36 16,977,465.47 79.65 20,840,216.64 0.56 16,680,123.32 80.04
Over5years 5% E 69,909,044.69 (RE} 69,909,044.69 100.00 63,731,311.47 1.7 63,731,311.47 100.00

5,895,271,053.27 100.00 396,804,102.81 JER 3,716,373,644.35 100.00 267,913,983.54 1.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued)
From January to June 2013, the reversal or recovery of significant

accounts receivables are presented as follows:

Anhui Anyu Engineering
Machinery Sales Co., Ltd

ZHRF TR
HEBR AR

Datong City Yi Fu
Commercial and Trading
Co., Ltd

ARTHEREE
BEREMERAT

Qingdao CAIEC Special
Automobile Co., Ltd.

SR AFESE
BRAF]

Loudi City Yong Tong
Automobile Trading
Co., Ltd.

EREMERAE
ERAT

Dalian Shaanxi Automobile
Sales Co., Ltd

RERTTEHE
R AT

Reason for
reversal or

recovery

oW E RE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoREHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoREHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BaREHKE

Partial or

wholly recovery

HBaREHKE

Partial or
wholly recovery

BoREHKE

Basis for
recognition of
provision for

original bad debts

BERER
EHHOKE

Estimated
recoverable
amount

B AEKREE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

AAEREE

Estimated
recoverable
amount
EatAE k£ EE
Estimated
recoverable
amount

AFAERESE

Estimated
recoverable
amount

ARk EE

Accumulated
amount of
provision for bad
debts before

the reversal

or recovery
5[ 55 W B B
2t EstiR
BERERESHE

50,532,996.15

22,878,618.07

3,631,191.30

1,139,003.67

24,972,976.55

103,154,785.74

Amount reversed

or recovered

EE R E SR

10,387,195.65

3,569,172.01

3,418,050.00

1,139,003.67

687,240.00

19,200,661.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #t 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. EBWERI(E)

R20124E » ERERERRE R

In 2012, the reversal or recovery of significant accounts receivables

are presented as follows:

WEIERMT

Accumulated

amount of
Basis for provision for bad
Reason for recognition of debts before
reversal or provision for the reversal Amount reversed
recovery original bad debts or recovery or recovered
23] 5k Y [B] A/
T E RIE R ZitEatie
el sk e El R A HEEHRIE ERAEHEDE $ 0] 5k Y [o] & %8
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Partial or Estimated
Trading Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
PRERERESERRAA MoK A AT R SRR 41,447,542.08 6,524,888.75
Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Partial or Estimated 56,634,426.00 5,400,000.00
Sales Services Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
ILWPRm AR E S RS &8 53 sk 2 #P UL [l FRETAI @& 5
BRAA
Datong City Yi Fu Commercial Partial or Estimated
and Trading Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
AETEHEREAREE QR &y sk 2 E U E TEET ATl & 58 26,575,080.39 3,696,462.32
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Partial or Estimated
Sales Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
RERTTEHERR DA Mok A AT R SRR 27,947,821.55 2,974,845.00
Zhejiang Tong Yue Partial or Estimated
Industrial Co., Ltd wholly recovery  recoverable amount
HIREERXRARAA oz U E ARk E R 3,044,136.00 2,848,224.00

155,649,006.02

21,444,420.07

For the period from January to June 2013, no accounts receivable
was written off (2012: RMB10,794,080.00).

As at 30 June 2013, within the aforesaid balance of accounts

receivable, there was no amount due from shareholders that held

5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31

December 2012: Nil). Balance of accounts receivable with other

related parties are set out in Note VI.6.

2013F 1-6 A EZ W EWE R
(20124 : AR ¥ 10,794,080.00

JT) °

7201396 A30R8 @ EUWER R F &
FEARRES%(E5%) A EFRRME
BB R B R FKE (2012412 A
318 : ) o REMEEH B 77 1)
FEUBE SRERTE R TRE N - 6 ©
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial F - & ff B % it 3% 3 = EH H 5 5
Statements (Continued) (7)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. FEWBRFX (&)
As at 30 June 2013, the top 5 accounts receivable are presented as R2013F6H30H  [EURERFNEEEAT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

follows:

ABEWT :

Percentage of

total accounts Relationship

Amount receivable with the Group
11 FE 2 AR K BEAEE

&8 RR e HBEEM LB R

Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 453,994,835.14 Within 1 year 6.54 Non-related
(Commercial 1R parties
Vehicle Company) Edc)

REAEARAA]

B AE QA

Zoomlion Heavy Industry 409,129,156.80 Within 1 year Non-related
Science and Technology 1R parties
Co., Ltd e

hEERIRD AR AR

Beijing Foton Daimler 330,402,755.65 Within 1 year Non-related
Automotive Co., Ltd 1E R parties

IEREAEEHTE JERARE TS
BRAF]

Shanxi Dayun Automobile 152,902,402.00 Within 1 year Non-related
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1E R parties

a8 RS JERARE TS
BRAF]

Shaanxi Automobile Group 118,223,541.30 Within 2 years Related parties
Changsha Huantong 2R BES
Automobile Manufacturing
Co., Ltd

PREAEEERDIRB
ERERRAR

1,464,652,690.89
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ I H 51 #

Statements (Continued)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued)
As at 31 December 2012, the top 5 accounts receivable are

presented as follows:

(%)

4. BWERF ()

R2012F12A31H  EWERE %

RMAZWMT :

Percentage of

total accounts Relationship
Amount Age receivable with the Group
16 FE YR BR X EREE
k| AR HEEH) LI BA&
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd 177,880,036.81 Within 1 year 3.68 Non-related parties
(Commercial Vehicle 1F AR FERERE
Company)
REAEFRA A
(S E NG
Beijing Foton Daimler 170,529,974.09 Within 1 year 3.52  Non-related parties
Automotive Co., Ltd TFE A FERAE
I REEEESRE
BRAA
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto 150,749,459.02 Within 1 year 3.1 Non-related parties
Factory 1 AR FERER
—ARHEEAEERAF
Shaanxi Automobile Group 115,539,069.88 Within 1 year 2.39 Related parties
Changsha Huantong 1R Bal:cbay
Automobile Manufacturing
Co., Ltd
RS ELEERDIRB
HEEEERAT
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science 100,451,540.00 Within 1 year 2.08 Non-related parties
and Technology Co., Ltd TR JERERE
R ERRHBRAF
715,150,079.80 14.78
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & ff i % it 3% 1 %18 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4, FEWBERFR(E)
Accounts receivable denominated in foreign currencies are as LAONEZ R E UM BR SR T
follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356H30H 2012412 /316
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8%5%)
Original Exchange RMB Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent currency rate equivalent
JR# EXx e AR R B & naARE
Accounts receivable &l 87t
-UsD —ETT 54,036,056.45 6.1787  333,872,581.99  RPANUEKIKTS 6.2855  760,658,699.71
-EUR -Br 37,430,454.44 8.0536 301,449,907.88 7,172,677.75 83176 59,659,464.42
- HKD - 3,079.16 0.7966 2,452.86 115.98 0.8109 94.05
- GBP — g 115.98 9.4213 1,092.68 2,905.80 10.1611 29,526.08
- Indian Rupee -HEEX 2,821,256.00 0.1036 292,282.12 - 0.1139 -
635,618,317.53 820,347,784.26
5. Prepayments 5. FEMNRIE
An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows: ANFRENRES AT

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013F6H30H 2012%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&E%)
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8 HBl (%) ki LA (%)

Within 1 year TEAA 379,708,080.62 88.68 340,095,617.27 93.08
1 to 2 years 1826 36,045,716.24 8.42 18,367,678.98 5.03
2 to 3 years 2E3F 6,092,226.39 1.42 2,611,336.33 0.71
Over 3 years 3FNUE 6,355,229.55 1.48 4,322,437.92 1.18

428,201,252.80 100.00 365,397,070.50 100.00

As at 30 June 2013, there was no large-amount prepayments with R2013F6A30H » EREE—F N
an age of more than one year (31 December 2012: Nil). FROREEMNKIE (2012612 A31
H:m) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

5.

Prepayments (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

As at 30 June 2013, the top 5 amounts of prepayments are

(%)
BNREGE)

201356 H30H & BN RIBEFEA

5.

T~ & OF B R R IH H RE R

presented as follows: HHIOT
Reason for being
Balance Age  not yet settled
SCIVIC Engieering Corporation 35,246,440.00 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
M T 25 5 TRk AT A 9T B TFUA REHRR
Chongging Wuhan Iron and Steal Xinan Sales 22,281,118.83 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd — sales branch 1R BEHR
EERMAFMEEERAANALHEES A A
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading 16,106,841.92 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd TR REHRR
RAEEZ=-ETEEREARA
Changzhou Piaoma Painting System Engineering 14,290,000.00 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co. Ltd TFUA BREHNK
EMNTRESZ2ERRIEBRAF
Shanxi Gangzhou Trading Co., Ltd 11,651,113.48 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
PN E B R A A TEAA REHNT

99,575,514.23
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ & 0fM &KX FEIHH B
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Prepayments (Continued) 5. ENREGE)
As at 31 December 2012, top 5 notes receivable that were pledged MR2012F 128318 » ANRESEHE
are presented as follows: BIRABWT :
Reason for being
Balance Age  not yet settled
Chengdu Baosteel West Trade Co., Ltd 20,490,726.32 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
— Xi'an operation unit TR EEHRR
PERE PR A E 5B R D A AL &5
Chongging Wuhan Iron and Steal Xinan Sales 16,643,875.95 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd — sales branch 1A REHNHK
EERHNAMBEEERAFALHED QT
SCIVIC Engineering Corporation 16,527,030.00 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
M T2 S R AT 9T b TFUA BEHRNK
Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading 14,857,913.52 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
Co., Ltd TFUA BEHRNK
RAZEHE="ETZHAREETAF
Maanshan Iron & Steel Company Limited 14,132,269.70 Within 1 year  To settle per contract
— sales branch 1A REHNHK

BEILMERNBRARHE D]

82,651,815.49
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
5. Prepayments (Continued)

S5 ik 3%

BiFEE (%)

201346 308 (A E¥T)

(%
5.

As at 30 June 2013, within the aforesaid balance of prepayment,

there was no amount due from shareholders that held 5% (including

5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2012:

Nil). The balance of prepayments with other related parties of the

Group are set out in Note VI.6.

Prepayments denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

30 June 2013

201364308

(Unaudited)

(REER)
Original Exchange
currency rate
Prepayments BAHE

-EUR -Br 758,921.09
-UsD - X 145,825.54

RMB

equivalent

RaARMY

)
B RER)

T~ A DR B ok EEIH H RERE

M201346A308 © BRHREFE
FERRAS%(E5%) A ERRE
BB RER B A FKIE(2012912 4
318+ |) - AEFE R A6

TBNRIESRBERMESR 6

o

IASMEIRR B TR SRIE T

31 December 2012
20129128318

6,112,046.89
901,012.26

7,013,059.15

(Audited)

(85%)
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
R fE & TEARE
519,061.11 8.3176 4,317,342.69
233,012.19 6.2855 1,464,598.12
5,781,940.81




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
6. Dividends receivable
30 June 2013 (Unaudited)

Opening
balance

LERIR

Within 1 year

TEHURA

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye  [&i/ {00 010[e00)
Investment Co., Ltd.

LEEHaERE
BRAT

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

bR AER R
BRAF

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
Co., Ltd

LWEREEEERAR

Huarong Xiangjiang Bank
Corporation Limited

ERMITRT

Over 1 year

TEE

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto
Co., Ltda

BRPG BL AT A ST L
ARAE

3,040,000.00

70,540,000.00

6,400,000.00

6,615,000.00

960,000.00

13,975,000.00
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PO 5 i 3 M 5 ()
2013464308 (A E¥T)

(78)
6. FEWRF
201356 A308 (X

Increase Decrease Reason for

during during Closing

being not yet

collected

AEHRE

balance

HMARY

the period
AH

the period
- he

(67,500,000.00)

(6,400,000.00)

6,615,000.00 Declared

but unpaid
BEEREH
960,000.00 Declared
but unpaid

EEEREMN

3,040,000.00 Declared
but unpaid

EEEREMN

(73,900,000.00) 10,615,000.00

T~ A DR B Rk T IE H AR

REZ)

Whether
impaired

REREHE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
Dividends receivable (Continued)
31 December 2012 (Audited)

6.

S5 e R WA o (A

201346 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ & OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

6. EWEF (&)
2012912 A31H (&K E%)

Increase Decrease Reason for
Opening during during Closing being not yet Whether
balance the year the year balance collected impaired
FOH RELEM KERD FRE AYEBRE REFLRE
Within 1 year
TEHUA
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye 35,000,000.00  67,500,000.00 (35,000,000.00) 67,500,000.00 Declared but No
Investment Co., Ltd. unpaid &
LEEBAEREFR LA EEEREN
Over 1 year
T E
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.  3,040,000.00 - - 3,040,000.00 Declared but No
PREEET R A E R B IR A A unpaid S
EEEREN
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive 1,489,218.53 - (1,489,218.53) -
Transportation Co., Ltd.
RERESEDRERRA
39,529,218.53  67,500,000.00 (36,489,218.53) 70,540,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
7. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48

201346 H30H (A R#ET)

T GOFM B IR EEIHE G
(%)

7. EMERR
Hi KRR AW T -

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

2013%F6H30H 2012912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (L& ®|HZ)

429,607,106.34
39,544,823.09

301,770,340.66
136,126,515.72
13,950,501.64
28,591,512.25

1,089,166.53
23,624,385.99

Within 1 year 1F AR

1 to 2 years 1824

2 to 3 years 2E3F

Over 3 years 3FE

Less: Provision for bad debts s HoAh FEIR

in respect of other receivables

493,865,481.95 480,438,870.27

34,541,694.92 36,332,979.13

459,323,787.03 444,105,891.14

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

Hip U FIERERNESINT -

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

2013%6H30H 2012912 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RREX) (EE%)

Opening balance H S F 8 36,332,979.13 54,158,160.01
Charge during the period/year NEFEHR - 3,585,356.19
Increase in scope of consolidation A EE M - 133,176.32

Decrease during the year: ARERR A

Reversal &2 (o] (1,791,284.21) (17,914,469.59)
Write-off EE = (1,530,199.44)
Disposal of subsidiaries BEFAA = (2,099,044.36)
Closing balance B/ FRE 34,541,694.92 36,332,979.13




136 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SeB HIRHBERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
7. Other receivables (Continued)

Amount

Indidually significant ~ BBSEEA

items for which ERRREER

provision for bad debt

is recognized separately
ttems for which provision 44 it EEE R

for bad debtis

recognized by group 493,865,481.95
Notindividually significant BB EHTEA(R

items for which BEIRERER

provision for bad debt

is recognized separately

493,865,481.95

30 June 2013
2013%6A30A
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)

Proportion
(%)

Bl (%)

Provision for
bad debt

RRER

34,541,694.92

34,541,694.92

A5 R R M R (AR
2013%6 /308 (AR#T)
T~ A0 B Ak R H AR
(%)
H b FE WK (4])
31 December 2012
20124124318
(Audited)
(B%#)
Percentage Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) (%) bad debt (%)
itRb SR
(%) 2B whl(%) SEER (%)
480,438,870.27 100.00  36,332,979.13 7.56
480,438,870.27 100.00  36,332,979.13 7.56
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial F - & ff B % it 3% 3 = EH H 5 5

Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Other receivables (Continued) 7. HEWR(E)
ltems for which provision for bad debt is recognized by group are REAFTIREREBNT

presented as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%6A30A 20128124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE%H) (#&%)
Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) bad debt (%) (%) bad debt (%)
iRt h SR
€8 WH (%) SIRER (%) 28 Ll SEER (%)
Within 1 year 1ELLR 429,607,106.34 86.99  8,360,139.16 (B 301,770,340.66 62.82  5,083,118.04 1.68
1102 years 1228 39,544,823.09 8.01  3,401,765.71 G 136,126,515.72 2833 2,497,839.47 1.82
2103 years 153F 1,089,166.53 0.22 252,637.39 PRI 13,950,501.64 289 1,821,340.45 13.06

304 years IB4E 1,772,589.80 036 1,181,001.40 66.63 971,503.35 0.21 582,902.01 60.00
4105 years 4F5F 684,416.00 0.14 547,532.80 80.00 570,346.67 0.12 456,277.34 80.00
Qver 5 years SENE 21,167,380.19 4.28  20,798,618.46 CEVA 27,049,662.23 563  25891,501.82 95.72

493,865,481.95 100.00  34,541,694.92 RERS 480,438,870.27 100.00  36,332,979.13 7.56

From January to June 2013, there was no other receivables actually 20134 1-6 A A2 8H &) E At JE K -

written off.

As at 30 June 2013, within the aforesaid balance of other 20136 A30H EMEWR P » &
receivables, there was no amount due from shareholders that BAEARRAAS%(E55%) A FRA#E
held 5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares MBI R BRI AR FR (2012912 A
(31 December 2012: RMB94,067,880.00). The balance of other 31H : ARM%94,067,880.007T) °
receivables from related parties of the Group are presented in Note 7N 5= E B AR T WO E At FE UL FRERRE R,

VL6, IS - 6
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (74)

7. Other receivables (Continued) 7. HEWR(E)
As at 30 June 2013, the top 5 other receivables are presented as R2013F6H30H @ HithfEWHKESEE
follows: AABIT :

Percentage of

Amount

o

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive 93,159,362.00
Transmission Co., Ltd.

PREE TR AEEEEE
EREMERAR]

Export tax and tariff rebate 64,049,859.48
receivables of subsidiaries

FRAREWRE A
RIBERRK

Shaanxi Automobile Group
Co., Ltd.

pr7E T E &
EREMERAR

Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile
Co., Ltd.

PREgiE R TE
EREMEAR]

Zhuzhou Automobile

20,227,581.32

14,083,308.83

12,992,992.85
Gear Factory

PR B B R

204,513,104.48

R iR

Within 1 year
10K

Within 1 year
10K

Within 1 year
10K

Within 1 year
10K

Within 1 year
10K

total other
receivables
1 FE W BR X
HBEEM LB

18.86

Relationship to
the Group
BEAEE

R

Related parties
2yl

Non-related
parties

FEERME TS

Related parties
2yl

Related parties
2yl

Related parties
2yl




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7.

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the top 5 other receivables are presented

as follows:

Interim Report 2013 FRHEAZRE

S5 i R M (A

201366308 (A KE¥T)
T GO B R E B IH H R R

HEWR(E)
M2012F12A318 » HithERZSE
FBBRIRRWT ¢

Percentage of

total other Relationship to
Amount Age receivables the Group
16 FE M BR X LIRS
k=G| AR HEEH) LI RA1%
Weichai Group Holdings Limited 94,067,880.00 Within 1 year 19.57 Related parties
HEERERBR AT 1FE AR Balchay
Export value-added tax rebate 35,145,787.76 Within 1 year 7.31 Non-related parties
receivables of subsidiaries 1F AR FERERE
FAREMR I DR EETR K
Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile 14,418,103.27 Within 1 year 3.00 Related parties
Co., Ltd. TE AR ek
PREBERAEGRELRA
Zhuzhou Automobile Gear 12,040,086.20 Within 1 year 2.51 Related parties
Factory TR Bal:cbay
RO = R
Management Committee of 10,000,000.00 Within 1 year 2.08 Non-related parties
Shuangfu New District TR FERER
in Chongging
EETERNIRERZESY
165,671,857.23 34.47

139
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Statements (Continued)
7. Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables denominated in foreign currencies are as follow:

Original
currency
R
Other receivables HfEles
-Usb -%7 563,164.25
-EUR -B 2,196,807.74
-AUD -BT 3,000.00
- Indian Rupee Sl  1,987,532.00
— Russian Ruble -BENER 69,120.00
8. Inventories
Gross carrying
amount
S
Goods in transit fTEnA 84,489,271.22
Raw materials BiH 1,174,811,540.52
Finished goods EfA 6,078,931,517.79
OEM material ERANIIE 57,011,690.09
Self made semi-finished goods B2 &
and work in progress FER 1,026,958,735.97
Turnover material EE DR 41,244,460.23

8,463,447,221.82

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

30 June 2013
2013F6H30A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Exchange

rate

E=

30 June 2013
2013568308

(Unaudited)

(REEH)
Provision for
decline in value
HEER
(73,467,560.78)

(265,120,896.24)
(425,177.22)

(33,355,584.69)
(3,319,727.60)

(375,688,946.53)

S5 i AR I RE (A

201346 308 (A E¥T)

RMB
equivalent

faARE

3,479,622.95
17,692,210.81
17,118.30
205,908.32
12,966.91

21,407,827.29

Carrying
EN

REEE

84,489,271.22
1,101,343,979.74
5813,810,621.55
56,586,512.87

993,603,151.28
37,924,732.63

8,087,758,275.29

(%)

7. H YR (&)
BASMBIRR M A R T

31 December 2012

T~ A DR B ok EEIH H RERE

20124127318

(Audited)

(BE%)
Original Exchange RMB
currency rate equivalent
R Ex TaARE
297,095.01 6.2855 1,867,390.69
3,525,291.73 83176 29,321,966.49
- 6.5363 -
- 0.1139 -
- 0.2061 -
31,189,357.18

8. ®E
31 December 2012
20125124318
(Audited)

(B&%)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount decline in value amount
BHRE HKERE EHEE
54,189,694.05 - 54,189,694.05
1,113,910,192.87 (80,490,172.67) 1,033,420,020.20
5,534,027,098.19 (22881521169 5305,211,886.50
48,604,075.57 (42517122) 48,178,898.35
1,067,189,462.95 (31,153,381.79) 1,036,036,081.16
4327512493 (10,409,483.86) 32,865,636.07
7,861,195,648.56 (35129343223 7,509,902,21633
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial F - & ff B % it 3% 3 = EH H 5 5

Statements (Continued)
8. Inventories (Continued)

The changes in provision for decline in value are as follows:
January to June 2013 (Unaudited)

Raw materials

Finished goods

OEM materials

Self made semi-finished
goods and
work in progress

Turnover materials

R
Efm
ZHMIMA
BEERRR
ER

REmH

January to December 2012 (Audited)

Opening
balance

CEIES

80,490,172.67
228,815,211.69
425171.22

31,153,381.79
10,409,488.86

351,293,432.23

Charge
during
the period
R

3,000,587.63
89,764,823.63

5,861,391.21
165,406.10

98,792,208.57

(%)
8. FE(#&)
BEKELESDOT -

2013F 1-6 A (R&EF|%)

Decrease during the period
EHED
Adjustment

of exchange Closing

Reversal Write-off differences balance

&g L ERZRAE HRY

(690,747.14) (8,516,698.34) (815,754.04) 73,467,560.78
(2,781,586.07) (49,636,643.95) (1,040,909.06)  265,120,896.24
= = = 425,171.22

(397,845.70) (2,560,891.12) (700,451.49) 33,355,584.69
= (7,017,869.27) (237,298.09) 3,319,727.60

(3,870,178.91) (67,732,102.68) (2,794,412.68)  375,688,946.53

2012 1-12 B (R E%)

Decrease during the year
AERD

Opening Charge Disposal of Closing

balance during the year Reversal Write-off subsidiaries balance

E7H REGHE £[ B RETFAA EXH

Raw materials At} 71,436,643.13  28,369,829.80  (3,457,547.01)  (6,557,143.65)  (9,301,609.60)  80,490,172.67

Finished goods ERm 275,843,727.80  74,950,424.07  (14,942,403.13) (103,226,590.11)  (3,809,946.94) 228,815,211.69

OEM materials ZREMIHE 730,303.67 - (193,795.51) - (111,330.94) 425177.22
Self made semi-finished B &5
goods and REER

work in progress 15,877,500.88 15,971,083.28 (416,861.01) - (278,341.36)  31,153,381.79

Tumover materials g 8,273,486.62  2,596,923.39 (301,726.38) - (159,194.77)  10,409,488.86

372,161,662.10

121,888,260.54

(19,312,333.04) (109,783,733.76) ~ (13,660,423.61)  351,293,432.23
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

8.

Inventories (Continued)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on

the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed

within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when

the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in

prior years are not in effect in current year.

Provision for decline in value of this year was mainly due to sale.

Amounts reversed as a proportion to the closing balance of

inventories as at the end of period/year, by categories, are

follows:

as

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A DR B ok EEIH H RERE

(
8

Raw materials

Finished goods

OEM materials

Self made semi-finished goods and
work in progress

Turnover materials

AT
ERR
FEITHH
BRERRREER

R

H

)

FE(E)
AEBEBRABR TSR FENE
BAHREEBEEMR - B ARTRE
FEEBENYERETUXE  ERD
ARNEEREERHSEANEE -

AEGERBERBRIIERHEE
B o

HOeBEZBETEN, FRHE
LBl

January to
June 2013(%) 2012 (%)
2013F1-6 A (%) 20129 (%)
0.06 0.31
0.05 0.27
0.40
0.04
0.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % B 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)
9. Other current assets 9. HMIRBEE

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20136 A30H 2012912 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RREX) (REZ)

Prepaid expenses FHER 7,427,871.63 1,468,035.77

Deductible value-added tax AT I (B R 241,921,939.79 374,969,969.77
Principal amount of trusted Py NG (1)

fund management 27,677,250.00 27,677,250.00

Less: Provision for impairment of W RREIRERE R

trusted fund management (27,677,250.00) (27,677,250.00)

Available-for-sale financial assets AMEELRmEE (2) 350,000,000.00 70,000,000.00

Others Hith 9,326,550.67 41,553,591.67

608,676,362.09 487,991,597.21

(1) Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., Ltd, a (1) AEBZFRRIFFERMEE

subsidiary of the Group, has entrusted Jinxin Trust Investment HEHOARRAAN2003F %

Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin Trust”) to manage on trust fund in the e EATRERDER AT

amount of RMB27,677,250.00 in 2003. As Jinxin Trust came (&) EXBTAE A

under operating difficulty in 2004, the board of directors R ¥27,677,250.007C ° @K

of Xinjiang Machinery Equipment Import & Export Co., 2004 F @ HEsEAALE

Ltd. made a total of 100% provision for impairment of B o EERREELEODAR

the investment in 2004 and 2005. As at the approval date NREBEHN20044F - 2005

of this financial report, Jinxin Trust is still in the process of FHZIRERFFIRT100%

application of liquidation. KR EEE - B IR BHRE

HERLEH  @FEFEERS

WEBIEF o
(2)  The Company invested in principal guaranteed and income (2) NAFRERABRZHIEE

FiN
yielding investment product of RMB50,000,000.00 whereas = m A R ¥ 50,000,000.00

the subsidiaries of the Company invested in exchange-rate T RKRDNF ZF N A EE
linked investment products of RMB300,000,000.00, both of EHBNEEERARE

which are available-for-sale financial assets. 300,000,000.007t @ AR

ESMARE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B DR ERAF

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
10. Available-for-sale financial assets

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346308 (A E¥T)

I GO0 B S R
16 AHHESTHEE

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

20136 A30H 2012412 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) &)

Available-for-sale equity investments

At EERTA

204,000,000.00 269,200,000.00

Shanghai Stock Exchange

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

LEES  Note
Qe &
LAER

AER
hER

Rl

194,000,000.00

30 June 2013
2013F6A30R
(Unaudited)
(REBEH)
Accumulated fair

Cost value changes

BE AARERHEE

10,000,000.00

204,000,000.00

31 December 2012
20124128318
(Audited)
(&%)
Accumulated fair

Cost value changes Total

RE RAEEZHED At

194,000,000.00 75,200,000.00  269,200,000.00

(1) As at 30 June 2013, the Company held 40 million shares of Beigi Foton
Motor Co., Ltd. The stock was closed at RMB5.1 per share on 30 June
2013. As at the end of the period, fair value of RMB204,000,000.00 was
recognized.

(1) M2013%F6AH30H » ARAIFAILA
BHABERD AR A A MHARKZEL000
B8 2013F6 A0 Z B ER W B
BASAT/ K BRERAIAEEA

K #204,000,000.007C °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
11. Investments in associates
On 30 June 2013, the Group's investments in associates are

presented as follows:
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

1~ B OF B R 1 R IH H RE R

(%)

1. HHBELERE

R2013F6 8300 & AKEBEH#ED
ERENFABRAO TR

Legal
Registered address representative  Business Registered capital
it EARR % TEMEX
Associates
BEdL
(1) Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co.,  Xi‘an, Shaanxi Liang Zheng Chassis of passenger vehicles, passenger 114,953,718.00
Ltd. vehicles
REE AT ER R REAELT 2H RERR RE
BRAF
(2) Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Xi'an, Shaanxi Hao Xiaogian Distribution, warehousing and 20,000,000.00
Transportation transportation of goods
Co., Ltd.
REBESEDRERAE MREEELRS 32 SYkx - B EW
(3)  Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. ~ Xi'an, Shaanxi Fang Hongwei Engine and its components UsD2,400,000.00
AXRAHEDYERLT REEERD 75 AL BRI ATHN %712,400,000.00
(4)  CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special ~ Xi'an, Shaanxi Li Yinhui Special vehicles, trailers 50,000,000.00
Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PERAER(BER)ERAE  RAEARD FhE ERE  HE
BRATF
(5)  Shaanxi Longmen Shangi Hancheng, Shaanxi Lei Xiaoxia Sale, repair and after-sale service 30,000,000.00
Logistics Park Co., Ltd. for vehicles
REEMRIDREERAT REGENT B RERERIERERRE
(6)  Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye  Shanghai Nie Xinyong Industrial investment and 150,000,000.00
Investment Co., Ltd. investment management
FEBBAEREBRAT AT ik BERE REER
(7)  Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Laizhou, Shandong Yu Jianguo Vehicle brakes and other 37,930,000.00
Fitting Co., Ltd. automotive components
FMNBRAEEGERRR  ILRERMT TEE REFERRATARRNGS
(8)  Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Pulandian, Liaoning Yu Jianguo Hardware tools and automotive UsSD22,818,208.00
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. components
REBRFERHEEBRAR BEELLHED TiE TeTAMAESENS %7122,818,208.00
(9)  Shanzhong Finance Leasing  Beijing Dong Ping Finance lease business 920,000,000.00
Co., Ltd.
LWEREHERRDA IR BY BEREEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

B I RHBRAF

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

(%)

11. Investments in associates (Continued)

T~ & OF B R R IH H RE R

1. HBRECXRE(H)

Legal
Registered address representative  Business Registered capital
it EARE %% TEMEX
(10)  Bloom Thrive Limited British Virgin Islands Nie Xinyong Investment holding company UsD50,000.00
BRBRNRA RRERES BB RERBRAA %7150,000.00
(11)  Torque Turbine Engine Co.  United States Joe Parzick Industrial investment and investment USD6,225,000.00
management
xH EERE RAER 5£716,225,000.00
(12)  Xi'an FC Intelligence Xi'an, Shaanxi Hans HaeFeli Manufacture and sale of auto 500,000,000.00
Transmission Co., Ltd. transmission devices and other
intelligence transmission devices
AREREREPHERAT REEELRD BEEREEENLEHEYES

(13)  Shandong Heavy Industry

Group Finance Co., Ltd.

WRETEEHMBEERAA

(14)  Baoding Shangi Tianma
Automobile Co., Ltd.

RERARFAEERAA

(15)  KION Group AG (NoteT)
(Originally KION Holding
1 GmbH)
KION Group AG(#1)

(JRKION Holding 1 GmbH)
(16)  Guanya (Shanghai) Investment

Fund Partnership Enterprise

(Limited Partnership)
BE(LE)REREES
ARLE(BERAR)

Jinan, Shandong
WREEET BER

Baoding, Hebei Zhou Shucai

AILERED B Bt

Germany Gordon Riske

BE

Shanghai Xu Hua Dong

~

Ligm RER

MAEEMHEE

Shen Chuan Dong  Operation of business approved by China

Banking Regulatory Commission

BRPBEARTEEEERZEE
WHENER

Research and development, production,
sale and servicing of specialty
heavy-duty vehicles; research and
development, production and sale
of heavy-duty vehicles components;
export and import of specialty
heavy-duty truck and components

EUERENWE  £EHER
7% ERLRETRAMNHE -
EEREE BUERER
TEHHMEHOER

Forklift trucks

X#E

Investment in equity interests, investment
management and investment
consultation

RERE  REEELRAR

1,000,000,000.00

40,000,000.00

EUR98,900,000.00

7£98,900,000.00

920,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48D
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ & 0f & #HE FEIHH B

Statements (Continued) (%)
11. Investments in associates (Continued) 11. HBFELCERE (E)
Closing balance Closing balance Closing balance Revenue Net profit
of total assets of total liabilities of total net assets for the period for the period
BEAR BEEE FEELE EXUA EHE
VS | EVS | EVS 159 5
Associates
Betg
(1 Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co, Ltd. 681,076,298.44 621,179,007.05 59,897,29139 45,584,613.92 (30,417,754.61)
RERSFERAERAA
Q) Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co,, Lid. 84,678,374.94 55,850,264.09 28,828,11085 84,709,753.62 4,815,38093
REREAENRERAT
B Xi'an Cummics Engine Co,, Ltd. 293,629,834.75 253,067,408.17 40,562,426.58 192,355,349.78 5,083,646.49
EZRRHEHRARLT
) CIMC-SHAC (i'an) Special Veehicles Co,, Ltd. 337,470462.44 258,901,343.07 78,569,119.37 166,319,512.70 3,704,391.61
hERAER(EZ)EREARAT
() Shaanxi Longmen Shangi Logistics Park Co., Ltd. 29,642,497.12 1,885.00 29,640,612.12 - -
REEFRTIREERAA
(6) Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. 436,749,672.03 85,043,665.46 351,706,006.57 - (11,106,026.65)
LRERAXRERRAT
] Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Fitting Co,, Ltd. 76,467,987.64 69,932,113.59 6,535,874.05 41,220440.78 108,963.76
RNERAERHERAT
&) Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 184,621,179.90 43,848,803.97 140,772,375.93 35,988,654.38 5193947
NERFRANERRAT
9 Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd. 4,580,386,320.50 3,559,643,546.54 1,020,742,773.96 143,016,709.46 29,659,356.15
WERERERRAT
(10)  Bloom Thrive Limited 15,752,127.70 1,562 15,750,565.30 - (183.87)
RERERLT
(1) Torque Turbine Engine Co. 51,219,102.65 2389549493 27,313,607.72 58,098,577.13 (17,673,706.74)
(12} Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. 471,270,302.14 6,861,611.00 464,408,691.14 1,283,628.33 (16,498,188.17)
RZEREREDERLTA
(13)  Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. 3,634,285,164.84 2,602,980,914.36 1,031,304,250.48 45,747,960.44 19,026,438.16

LRETEBHKERLA
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

11. Investments in associates (Continued)

FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B HRGR E EIH H RERE
(78)

1. HBHELXRE(E)

Closing balance Closing balance Closing balance Revenue Net profit
of total assets of total liabilities of total net assets for the period for the period
BEEE BEEE FEELE 300 BHE
LV | EVS | VS | 159 LS|
(14)  Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd. 40,022,897.44 40,488,971.24 (466,073.80) 3,794,439.89 (5,082,669.24)
RERAREAERRAT
(15 KION Group AG (Note1) 67,044,571,095.85  45,088,135,061.83  21,956,436,034.02  18,289,904,640.00 44,406,880.00
(originally KION Holding 1 GmbH)
KION Group AG(7E1) (JRKION Holding 1 GmbH)
(16)  Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Fund Partnership 80,083,307.07 - 80,083,307.07 - (83,307.07)

Enterprise (Limited Partnership)

BE(LE)BERAZLABLR(BRA)

Note 1:The Company exercised a call option over KION Holding 1 GmbH on 26
June 2013 and increased its shareholding in KION Holding 1 GmbH to
30% after the listing of KION Holding 1 GmbH. KION Holding 1 GmbH
commenced trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on 28 June 2013

and was renamed as KION Group AG.

12. Long-term equity investments

1 AARN201356 26 BTTEEKION
Holding 1 GmbH & R 8 Bt - £ X
B E AR I8 ZE30% © KION
Holding 1 GmbH# 201346 A 28H
HBEEZH R RESFRSGMEE &
H AKION Group AG

12. REBRERE

Unlisted investment
Equity method — associates
Cost method

FLMRE
REEE-—BEDE
A%

Less: Provision for impairment of long-

term equity investments

B REBRERERE S

30 June 2013
201356 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RRBER)

7,582,556,033.99
213,958,056.11

7,796,514,090.10

123,640,629.56

7,672,873,460.54

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

4,886,226,306.07
188,958,256.11

5,075,184,562.18

123,640,629.56

4,951,543,932.62
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Unaudited)

Increase Provision for

(decrease) Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening during Closing  of ownership of voting ~ Provision for madein  dividend for
cost balance the period halance equity power impairment  current period the period
AHiR
REHALE EEES ABE(H) BRE BRILH RABLH HEER AEER  AHRSAA
Equity method Bt
VTSN GG REE O O 4661813742 254860529 (10,14845110) 1528780184
Shaand Tonghui Automotie ~ BEBE SENTHARAR
Transportation Co, Ltd. 8,800,000.00 9,967,246.86 207061380 12,037,860.66
Xan Cummics Engine Co, Ltd.  BERRHFEBHRARAT 47,836,776.00 751483108 1,272,161.62 8786,992.70
CIMC-SHAC (xan) Special hERRER(ER)ERE
Vehicles Co, Ltd. BRA 1250000000 18,045,780.28 115564385 19.201,424.13
Baoding Shangi Tianma RERSASREERLA

Automobile Co, Ltd.
Shaanxi Longmen Shangf
Logistics Park Co, Ltd.
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye
Investment Co, Ltd.
Thuzhou Auto Trading Market
Laizhou Luyuan Automotive
fitting Co, Ltd.
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd.
Torque Turbine Engine Co.
Xian FC Intelligence Transmission
Co, Ltc. (Note 1)
Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co, Ltd.

KION Group AG (Note 3) orginally KION Group AG(5£3)(BKION

KION Holding 1 GmbH)

Shaanxi Fuping Shang Logistics
Park Co, Ltd.

Bloom Thrive Limited

Guanya (Shanghai) Investment
Fund Partnership Enterprise:
(Limited Partreship)

REEFRIRERRLT

LREBEERARRLT

A ER AT
RNEERERRLT

RERERHSERRLT

Torque Turbine Engine Co.

BREREREDERAT(N

LEREREERAT

Holding 1 GmbH)
REEFRANRERRLT

Shandong Heawy Industry Growp  IURE T £ RS ARAR)
Finance Co, Ltd.
Equity method total BHEEAT

149827629

9,000,000.00

45,853,683.25
284,499.56

8,624,443.00

60,886,962.46
8,191,170.00

255,000,000.00

360,000,000.00

6,405,672,368.00

5,250,006.30

39,600,000.00

200,000,000.00

1515,616,322.28

1,498.276.26

8,892,183.63

6102231273
284,499.56

238472499

56,033, 254.77
8,171,150.00

193,611,351.67

399,027,921.74

3,884,319,200.00

2,34953.12
5,243,141.66

202,424,654.78

4,886,226,306.07

(1,336924.94) 161,351.32
8,892,183.63

5742129080 11844360353
- 284,499.56
(344783 238127716

(420,406.08)
(3,846,060.00)

55,612,848.69
4,325,090.00
50.235,92403  243,847,215.70
6,941,600.99  405,969,522.73

2,552,007,183.00  6,436,326,383.00

(2.349523.12) =

(91826.15) 515131551

39,616,66141  39,616,661.41

3805,287.64  206,229942.42

2,69,329,727.92  7,582,556,033.99

(284,499.50)

(284,499.56)

6,615,000.00

6,615,000.00




150 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%eB HIRHERA T

BB R 2 B G (4
201346308 (A E¥T)

FI ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%i%ﬁa H sk
(ll‘ )
12. REBRERE(E)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Unaudited) (Continued)

Increase

Provision for

(decrease) Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Investment Opening during Closing  of ownership of voting  Provision for madein  dividend for
cost balance the period balance equity power impairment  current period the period
AR
RERALE L AR BAY RILH AR HEER AEER  AHRSAA
Cost method L3
Foton Heavy-duty RRENBARNERLE
Machinery Co., Ltd. 38,630,876.88  38,630876.88 38,630,876.88 (1,408,500.00)
Xinjie Investment and [ERRERREREFLA
Guarantee (#2)
(o, Ltd. (Note 2) 5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank ~ EBHETHA
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 960,000.00
China National Machinery —~ RE#HZEEFRH
and Equipment Hainan BRAA
Corp, Ltd. 879,605.00 879,605.00 879,605.00 (879,605.00)
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, k&% RAERLF
Ltd. 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00 1,680,000.00
Fastern Life Insurance Co., ~ RAAZRBARLF
Ltd. 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 (60,000,000.00)
New Century Fnance Leasing STt 24 BREARAT)
(o, Ltd. 61,068,025.00  61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 (61,068,025.00)
YIAMEN FENGTAIBUS & COACH - EFEREIE Stk B RE
INTERNATIONAL CO,, LTD BRAR 24,999,800.00 - 2499980000 24,999,800.00
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto B BB REEH
Connecting Rod Co,, Ltd. ERAH 1.563,949.23 1,563,949.23 1,563,949.23
Cost method total AAEAH 213,958,056.11 188,958,256.11 24,999,800.00  213,958,056.11 (123,356,130.00) 960,000.00
Total At 172957437839 5,075,184562.18  2,721,329,527.92  7,796,514,090.10 (123,640,629.56) 1,575,000.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Continued)

Note 1: According to the articles of association, investor from another investee
has four out of seven board seats at the Board of Xi'an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co., Ltd. and holds over half of the voting rights, as such the
Group has no control over that investee.

Note 2: The Group has no board seats in Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co.,
Ltd., as such the Group has no significant influence over that investee.

Note 3: As a shareholder of KION Holding 1 GmbH, Weichai Power (Luxembourg)
Holding S.a r.l.("Weichai Lux”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Superlift Holding S.a r.l. (“Superlift”) and KION
Management Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. KG (“MPP”) entered into an
Agreement of Shareholders (“Shareholder’s Agreement”) on 29 May
2013. This Shareholder’s Agreement came into effect at the time when
KION Holding 1 GmbH became a company limited by shares and changed
its name to KION Group AG (“KION Group”) (i.e. the effective date was
earlier than the listing date of KION Group on 28 June 2013). It superceded
an old shareholders agreement entered into by and between the aforesaid
three contracting parties and KION Holding 1 GmbH on 31 August 2012.

Note 4: In the Shareholder’s Agreement, Weichai Lux and Superlift reached a
series of agreements (“Bundled Arrangement”) in relation to the voting
mechanism on general meetings of KION Group in their capacity as
shareholders of KION Group. The Bundled Arrangement primarily includes
the following:

(a) Within the effective period of the Shareholder’s Agreement or
within five years of the listing of KION Group, whichever is longer
and which period is referred to as the “Bundled Period”, both
parties shall, before the holding of each general meeting, convene
a preliminary meeting to negotiate upon the resolutions to be
put forward on a general meeting and inform each other on their
voting intention towards such resolutions;
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

B B A B R
i

12.

RKRERE(R)

2013F6 A30H (&)

H1: REERE I REZFEATEES
EEHARANESTHARTI
BEEFEUMNAVESREMN  ZHEB¥
HHERRE  AEBYZWREEN
B I o

H2: AREEGERREAEREREEIAF
BESGRML AREHZREEE
EBEATE -

3 {E /& KION Holding 1 GmbH #) %
ROAKEE s HEBEE2E T AB ML
BH(ERE)ZERARRA ([ #
4 & #* ® | ) - Superlift Holding
Sarl ([ Superlift ] ) %1 KION
Management Beteiligungs GmbH
& Co. KG([MPP )% 2013%5H 29
BEAI T —h(REBZE) ([ REH
) o EHREBHEIEKION Holding
1 GmbHE®E & —FKH R QA
[ B B & AKION Group AG ([ 8l
SE])RBEKBIEKRB BHERELGH
SEH T AR2013F6A/288) -
W HLAR A = = {8 25 49 77 H [F B KION
Holding 1 GmbH#2012F 8 A31H
BEENERRmE -

A4 EREHBEFR O BEEREN
Superliftt EMEFERIEHEED
BREEIHEENRERNEG EHE
EWHEXRT R B ([HHFL
B FEBRE:

(a) R ENA R ARG
SEETZAROAFRA
RENHEAE  ZHEER
[HREME])  &HEES—
BRAEGERMNBHALS
o BRRAREMRARETE
[ERZ:VIEIDES SR A BN

BEER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Continued)
Note 4: (Continued)

(b)

During the Bundled Period, in respect of the following matters
that would be voted upon on a general meeting, only when
Weichai Lux and Superlift have agreed unanimously on their
preliminary meeting to vote in favour of the matters concerned,
could they vote in favour of such matters on the general meeting
(the parties should vote against the resolutions of which they have
not unanimously agreed on their preliminary meeting to vote in
favour):

- Amendment of Articles of Association;
- Delisting of KION Group;

- Increase or decrease of registered capital of KION
Group (including any resolutions relating to additional
authorization or increase of capital and approval of
the Management Committee of the Company to issue
convertible bonds, profit-sharing bonds and profit-sharing
right);

- Repurchase or redemption of shares of KION Group or
equity instrument convertible into shares of KION Group;

- Reorganization of KION Group, such as merger, demerger,
divestiture or change of KION Group’s legal form;

- Company agreements involved for so long as KION Group is
covered by the German Stock Companies Act;

- Resolutions required to be passed on a general meeting in
respect of disposal of assets owned or substantially owned
by KION Group, except the disposal of STILL Co,. Ltd.
and its subsidiaries in accordance with the German Stock
Companies Act;

- Liquidation of KION Group;
- Appointment of auditors other than Ernst & Young, Deloitte

& Touche, KPMG and Pricewaterhouse Coopers;

- Change of applicable accounting standards, save as
mandatorily required under the law.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Continued)
Note 4: (Continued)

() During Bundled Period, in respect of the following matters that
would be voted upon on a general meeting (“bundled matters”),
both parties agreed to vote, on the general meeting, in line with
the voting decision made on the preliminary meeting by the party
which at the time hold more shares of KION Group:

- Profit distribution scheme (including distribution of
dividends);

- Dismissal of members of Management Committee and
Supervisory Committee;

- Matters submitted by the Management Committee to
a general meeting for approval in accordance with the
German Stock Companies Act section 119 (2);

- Matters submitted by Management Committee to a general
meeting for approval in accordance with Sentence 3 of
the German Stock Companies Act section 111 (4), which
matters have already been rejected by the Supervisory
Committee;

- The appointment of members of the Supervisory
Committee.

The Bundled Arrangement reached by and between Weichai Lux and
Superlift continues to be effective during Bundled Period. In case of early
termination of the Shareholder’s Agreement within five years after the
listing of KION Group, either Weichai Lux or Superlift may terminate the
Bundled Arrangement before the expiry of the Bundled Period under
the following circumstances: (a) voting right of either party on General
Meeting is less than 5%, or (b) the Group and its related parties own(s)
or control(s), directly or indirectly, over 50% voting right on General
Meeting of KION Group. Besides, the Shareholder’'s Agreement may be
terminated under the following circumstances: (x) either Weichai Lux or
Superlift ceases to be a shareholder of KION Group; (y) either Weichai
Lux or Superlift goes bankrupt, becomes insolvent, undergoes bankruptcy
proceedings and its holding of KION Group’s share or other assets
becomes foreclosed by creditors or it commits serious breach of contract;
or (z) aggregate voting right held by Weichai Lux and Superlift is less than
50% plus 1, or voting right held by either Weichai Lux or Superlift is less
than 15%.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f i % it & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. REIRERE (&)
31 December 2012 (Audited) 201212 A31B (& &%)
Increase Provision for
(decrease) Percentage  Percentage impairment Cash
Investrment Opening during Closing ~ of ownership of voting Provision for madein  dividend for the
cost balance the year balance equity power impairment current year current year

RERALE g REG) EXg #RD mRELA BEEE AEREEER AEREUA

Equity method Bt
Weichai Power Westoort New Frergy ST B8 1R AT (33)

Engine Co, Ltd. (Note 3) - 5586792576 (55,867925.76) - - - - - 113515164
Shaani Eurosar Auto Co, Lt RERSSNERHARAA 1661813742 3966590993 (1420969699 2543625294 B B - - -
Shaans Tonghui Automotive REBERENRERAA

Transportation Co, Ltd. 880000000 1330652613 (3359279.7)  9967,4686 44,00 44,00 - - 148921853
Xi'an Cummics Engine Co, Ltd. ERRHFEHEERLT 4783677600 1383831158 (632348050) 751483108 25.00 2500 - - -
CIMC-SHAC (Xian) Special Vehicles hERAER(ER)ERERRAT

(o, td. 1250000000  16960,192.29  1,085587.99  18,045,780.28 25.00 2500 - - -
Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobie RERAATAEARAA

(o, Ltd. 1498,276.26 - 149827626 149827626 2000 2000
Shaanki Longmen Shangi logistis Park B EFIRSRERRAR

(o, td. 900000000 8,892,646.00 (46237)  8892,18363 3000 3000 - - -
Shangha Xinan Chuangye Investment LB EEEEARAT)

(o, td. 4585368325 14503426735 (84011.95462) 6102231273 BERE] RERE] - - 67,500,000.00
Thuzhou Auto Trading Market wiRERST S 284,499.56 284,499.56 - 284,499.56 - - 284,499.56) - -
Laizhou Luyuan Automotive Fiting FNERAEARAA

(o, td. 862444300  1438560.12 94616487 2,38472499 25.00 25.00 - - -
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery RERFRRZEARLT

Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. 6088696246 319829793 2405027554 5603325477 4140 4140 - - -
Torque Turbine Engine Co. Torque Turbine Engine Co. 819117000 8191,170.00 (20,02000)  8171,150.00 2090 2090 - - -
Xian FC Inteligence Transmission BREREREIERAAH)

Co,, Ltd. (Note 1) 196,350,000.00  139,14876322  54,462,588.45  193,611,351.67 51.00 4300 - - -
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Lt LEREREARAR 360,000,000.00 383,773,191.07 1525473067  399,027921.74 3013 3013 - - 397512000
KION Holding 1 GmbH KION Holding 1 GmbH 3,884,319,200.00 - 3,884,319,20000 3,884,319,200.00 25.00 2500
Shaans Fuping Shangj Logistcs Park REETRAMRESRAA

(o, Ltd. 336000000 510592637 (275640325 234952312 40.00 40.00 - - -
Bloom Thrive Limited ARBRAT 5,250,006.30 - 5314166 524314166 3300 33.00 - - -
Shandong Heawy Industry Group Finance 11X E T £BETSARAT

(o, td. 200,000,000.00 - 20242465478 20242465478 2000 2000 - - -
Shaansi-Wuhai New Power Special Vehices [R5 2 EBNERRAT (3)

Co, Ltd. (Note 3) - 3059693895 (30,596,938.95) - - - - - -

Equity method total BHEAH 489937315425 894,107,847.56 399211845851 4,886,226,306.07 (284,499.56) - 7409949017




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
12. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
31 December 2012 (Audited) (Continued)

Increase

(decrease)
Investment Opening during
cost balance the year

REAAEE g REG)

Interim Report 2013 FRHEAZRE

RS ik R B 5 (48D

2013664308 (A E¥T)

T A0 B R R B IH H RERE
(%)

12. RERERE(E)
201212 A31 B (& F%) (&)

Provision for
Percentage Percentage impairment Cash
Closing ~ of ownership of voting Provision for madein  dividend for the
balance equity power impairment current year current year

EXg wReR mRELA BEEE AERAEER AEREUA

Cost method L3
Foton Heavy-duty Machinery Co,, Ltd BRESEEHRABRAA 3863087688 38,630876.88 - 3863087688 6.14 6.14 (140850000 (1,408,500.00) -
Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co, Lt~ FRREERERALA (:2)

(Note 2) 5,135,800.00 - 513580000 5,135800.00 2500 2500 - - -
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank Corporation ~ EBEIT R

Limited 20,000,000.00  20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00 6.05 6.05 - - 1,080,000.00
China National Machinery and Equipment R A B ERRHARAT

Hainan Corp, Ltd 879,605.00 879,605.00 - 879,605.00 0.66 0.66 (879,605.00) - -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co,, Ltd. EHEERAERAR 1680,000.00 1,680,000 - 1,680,000.00 245 245 - - -
Eastern Life Insurance Co,, Ltd. RAABRRERLR 60,000,000.00  60,000,000.00 - 60,000,000.00 750 750 (60,000,000.00) - -
New Century Finance Leasing Co, Ltd FtEeRREARAA 61,008,025.00  61,068,025.00 - 61,008,025.00 12 1122 (61,068,025.00) - -
Yangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto

Connecting Rod Co,, Ltd ANEBRTEERERAT 1563949.3  1,563949.3 - 1563949.3 15.00 15.00 - - -
Cost method total AAEAH 188,958.256.11  183822456.11 513580000  188,958,256.11 123,356,130.00) (1,408500.00  1,080,000.00
Total At 5088,331,410.36 1,077,930.303.67 3,997,254,25851 5,075,184,562.18 (123,640,629.56) (140850000 75,179.490.17

Note 1: According to the articles of association, investor from another investee
has four out of seven board seats at the Board of Xi‘an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co., Ltd. and holds over half of the voting rights, as such
the Group has no control over that investee.

Note 2:  The Group has no board seats in Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co.,
Ltd., as such the Group has no significant influence over that investee.

Note 3:  The Group has disposed the investment in this company in 2012.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

PR R M (A
201346 H30H (A RHET)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % it & £ % EH H 5: &
Statements (Continued) (#)
13. Investment property 13. REMEHE
Subsequent measure under the cost model:
January to June 2013 (Unaudited)

RAKABRETHRESS
2013F 1-6 A (RET|H%)

Opening Increase during

Decrease during
balance the period the period  Closing balance
ERIE 2550 42 fn TER D HARH
Gross carrying amount  BERE
Houses and buildings EENEEY 381,975,205.74 381,975,205.74
Land use rights 1 3 {5 F 4 7,529,088.83 7,529,088.83
389,504,294.57 389,504,294.57
Less: Accumulated o RETIEA
depreciation ZETE
and amortization
Houses and buildings BEEKEEY 58,629,982.19 7,810,575.84 66,440,558.03
Land use rights + 3 {6 F 4 879,541.52 142,814.94 1,022,356.46
59,509,523.71 7,953,390.78 67,462,914.49
Net carrying amount IREFE
Houses and buildings EENEEY 323,345,223.55 315,534,647.71
Land use rights + b A A 6,649,547.31 6,506,732.37
329,994,770.86 322,041,380.08
Less: Provision for B OREER
impairment
Houses and buildings EELEEY
Land use rights T A

Carrying amount

fREEE
Houses and buildings EEREEY 323,345,223.55
Land use rights 1 3 {5 R AE 6,649,547.31

315,534,647.71

6,506,732.37
329,994,770.86

322,041,380.08



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

13. Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent measure under the cost model: (Continued)

2012 (Audited)
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13. REMHEME(E)
WA AERETRESE - (B)
2012F (&£ 5EH%)

Increase during Decrease during

Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
FNH ARELIN RERD FRE
Gross carrying amount EERE
Houses and buildings FERREY 281,697,733.10 100,277,472.64 - 381,975,205.74
Land use rights THE A 7,606,588.83 - (77,500.00) 7,529,088.83
289,304,321.93 100,277,472.64 (77,500.00) 389,504,294.57
Less: Accumulated A RIEMNZR
depreciation g £
and amortization
Houses and buildings BB REEY) 38,188,057.52 20,441,924.67 - 58,629,982.19
Land use rights L e A 787,927.29 156,286.13 (64,671.90) 879,541.52
38,975,984.81 20,598,210.80 (64,671.90) 59,509,523.71
Net carrying amount REFE
Houses and buildings BB REEY) 243,509,675.58 323,345,223.55
Land use rights T A 6,818,661.54 6,649,547.31
250,328,337.12 329,994,770.86
Less: Provision for A OREEE
impairment
Houses and buildings FEREEY - - - -
Land use rights + i A - - - -
Carrying amount REEE
Houses and buildings EENEEY 243,509,675.58 323,345,223.55
Land use rights T A 6,818,661.54

250,328,337.12

6,649,547.31

329,994,770.86
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #t 38 3= % IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (7)
13. Investment property (Continued) 13. REMHEME (&)

From January to June 2013, the amount of depreciation or
amortization was RMB7,953,390.78 (2012: RMB14,592,348.78).
There was no accumulated depreciation transferred to investment
property from fixed assets (2012: RMB6,005,862.02). As at 30 June
2013, investment properties pledged to secure for the Group's
bank loans had an aggregate carrying amount of RMB7,937,921.09
(31 December 2012: RMB9,466,377,98).

As at 30 June 2013, investment properties for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB192,192,602.38 (31 December 2012: RMB196,896,641.75),
among which investment properties for which the Group was in the
process of applying for real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB184,254,681.29 (31 December 2012: RMB188,824,609.25).

2013F1-6 At IRMITES M IE ST
A ANR%7,953,390.787T (20124 -
ANER#14,592,348.787T) » AHI &
HETEEBAREERENRG
E (20124 - AK¥6,005,862.02
JL) ° FA2013F 6 A308 » AEEK
HAREBSIRITERNIEE M B E
REBEEF AKE7,937,921.09
L (2012F 12 A31H : AR®
9,466,377.987C) °

M2013F 6308 » REEHKRES
EHEENNEEEEREEHBES
ANE#192,192,602.38 75 (2012 F
128318 + AR#196,896,641.75
L) B AKEEAERBEME
BHREMNEMERAEEAARK
184,254,681.297C (201212 A 31
A : AR%188,824,609.25JT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2R B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % it 3% 3 2 EH H 5 5

Statements (Continued) (78)
14. Fixed assets 14. BEEE
January to June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ)

Increase during the period

AEEm
Opening Increase during Decrease during  Effect of changes
balance the period the period  in exchange rates Closing balance
B8 REEm REED EXZERE BAY
Gross carrying amount BERE

Land, Houses and 1 BER
buildings BEY 5,111,705,083.12 841,267,525.07 (14,650,673.61) (6,355,416.03)  5,931,966,518.55
Machinery and equipment ~ #222% 10,717,767,484.66 589,328,897.35 (120,366,241.78) (13,747,225.31)  11,172,982,914.92
Electronic equipment TR 507,182,340.22 119,463,319.38 (1,296,224.49) (190,109.22) 625,159,325.89
Vehicles BHIA 327,933,010.49 13,524,940.31 (7,835,970.72) (63,902.74) 333,558,077.34
Other equipment LR 1,337,731,588.14 179,132,953.68 (11,880,312.67) (5,263,500.75)  1,499,720,728.40
18,002,319,506.63  1,742,717,635.79 (156,029,423.27) (25,620,154.05)  19,563,387,565.10

Less: Accumulated B RiHE
depreciation

Land, Houses and T BER
buildings e %) 802,170,803.18 141,537,325.42 (193,517.32) (29,296.43) 943,485,314.85
Machinery and equipment 82} 4,434,783,739.06 549,646,368.68 (46,312,413.56) (761,846.33)  4,937,355,847.85
Electronic equipment EFk 313,606,323.63 69,651,231.07 (8,235,759.39) (93,344.05) 374,928,451.26
Vehicles BRIA 215,660,556.07 17,299,154.42 (5,930,357.94) (22,996.50) 227,006,356.05
Other equipment AR 674,275,041.55 80,835,439.79 (2,481,176.98) (339,880.35)  752,289,424.01

6,440,496,463.49 858,969,519.38 (63,153,225.19) (1,247,363.66)  7,235,065,394.02

Net carrying amount REFE

Land, Houses and T FER

buildings e8] 4,309,534,279.94 4,988,481,203.70
Machinery and equipment ~ H£2:% 6,282,983,745.60 6,235,627,067.07
Electronic equipment BN 193,576,016.59 250,230,874.63
Vehicles BHIA 112,272,454.42 106,551,721.29
Other equipment £ 663,456,546.59 747,431,304.39

11,561,823,043.14 12,328,322,171.08
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R M ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % it 3 £ 2 EH H 5:

Statements (Continued) (7#8)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BEEE(E)
January to June 2013 (Unaudited) (Continued) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ) ()

Increase during the period

THE M
Opening Increase during Decrease during  Effect of changes
balance the period the period in exchange rates Closing balance
RIE REEM 8- EXZERE A
Less: Provision for A OREEE
impairment

Land, Houses and T FER
buildings BEN 2,524,547.15 - 2,524,547.15
Machinery and equipment 223k (& 31,436,575.16 41,673.35 31,478,248.51
Electronic equipment TR - - -
Vehicles BRIA 989,030.26 - 989,030.26
Other equipment Ak 383,460.37 - 383,460.37
35,333,612.94 41,673.35 35,375,286.29

Carrying amount BEEE

Land, Houses and T BFER
buildings BEY 4,307,009,732.79 4,985,956,656.55
Machinery and equipment 2% 3% (& 6,251,547,170.44 6,204,148,818.56
Electronic equipment BTk 193,576,016.59 250,230,874.63
Vehicles BHIA 111,283,424.16 105,562,691.03
Other equipment HEthk 663,073,086.22 747,047,844.02

11,526,489,430.20 12,292,946,884.79
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A B#oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ & fF M % #i & £ EIH H 3¢

Statements (Continued) B(H)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BEEE (&)
2012 (Audited) 2012 (RER)
Decrease during
Opening balance Increase during the year the year Closing balance
ENY REEM RERD EXY
Gross carrying amount BERE
Land, Houses and buildings 1 EEREEY  4,611,643502.53 717,722,125.48 (217,660,544.89)  5,111,705,083.12
Machinery and equipment KERE 8,683,324,523.35 2,408,975,067.60  (374,532,106.29) 10,717,767 ,484.66
Electronic equipment STHE 369,386,556.47 153,679,989.00 (15,884,205.25) 507,182,340.22
Vehicles EHTE 313,613,125.54 30,304,003.33 (15,984,118.38) 327,933,010.49
Other equipment ERE 1,044,660,446.10 315,334,825.67 (22,263,683.63)  1,337,731,588.14
15,022,628,153.99 3,626,016,011.08 (646,324,658.44)  18,002,319,506.63
Increase during the year
REEM
Charge during  Increase in scope of
the year consolidation
REHR AFEEEM
Less: Accumulated depreciation @ 25t E
Land, Houses and buildings 1 EREZEY 630,457,750.72 206,123,026.92 1,952,969.20 (36,362,943.66) 802,170,803.18
Machinery and equipment B 3,698,832,208.09 983,209,725.59 715,880.13 (247,974,074.75)  4,434,783,739.06
Electronic equipment EFR 249,607,474.01 76,700,634.86 80,028.64 (12,781,813.88) 313,606,323.63
Vehicles BHTA 190,460,914.69 34,891,309.61 187,470.16 (9,879,13839)  215,660,556.07
Other equipment Athikle 564,868,278.79  120,388,022.97 - (10,981,260.21)  674,275,04155
5334,226,62630  1,421,312,719.95 2,936,348.13 (317,979,230.89)  6,440,496,463.49
Net carrying amount REFE
Land, Houses and buildings it EEREEY 3,981,185751.81 4,309,534,279.94
Machinery and equipment RS E 4,984,492,315.26 6,282,983,745.60
Electronic equipment BTH%E 119,779,082 .46 193,576,016.59
Vehicles EHTE 123,152,210.85 112,272,454.42
Other equipment EivkE 479,792,167.31 663,456,546.59

9,688,401,527.69 11,561,823,043.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)

2012 (Audited) (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48

201346 A30H (A R¥T)

T SO R R A H R
(74)

14. BIEEE ()

20124 (&%) (&)

Increase during Decrease during

Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
ENY REEM RERD EXY

Less: Provision for impairment o OREEE
Land, Houses and buildings it FEREEY 2,538,369.04 - (13,821.89) 2,524,547.15
Machinery and equipment WERE 31,436,575.16 - - 31,436,575.16
Electronic equipment BTk - - - -
Vehicles EHTA 989,030.26 - - 989,030.26
Other equipment Bt 383,460.37 - - 383,460.37
35,347,434.83 - (13,821.89) 35,333,612.94

Carrying amount REEE
Land, Houses and buildings i FEREEY 3,978,647,382.77 4,307,009,732.79
Machinery and equipment RSB 4,953,055,740.10 6,251,547,170.44
Electronic equipment ETHE 119,779,082 46 193,576,016.59
Vehicles BEHIA 122,163,180.59 111,283,424.16
Other equipment Bt 479,408,706.94 663,073,086.22
9,653,054,092.86

From January—June 2013, the amount of depreciation of fixed
assets was RMB858,969,519.38 (2012: RMB1,421,312,719.95).

From January—June 2013, the amount of gross carrying amount

of fixed assets transferred from construction in progress was

RMB1,607,008,514.23 (2012: RMB2,495,591,129.46).

From January-June 2013, the addition to the gross carrying
amount of fixed assets was RMB1,742,717,635.79 (2012:
RMB3,626,016,011.08), of which there was no addition to the

gross carrying amount of fixed assets from merger with subsidiaries

(2012: 776,853,744.20).

11,526,489,430.20

2013F1-6 AR EEENESTER
A R # 858,969,519.38 jr ( 2012
F 0 AR % 1,421,312,719.95
JL) °2013F1-6 AmAEEIRES
ANEBEEERENSTEAARK
1,607,008,514.2370(20124F : AR
#2,495,591,129.467T) °

2013F1-6 HEIEEEFNIBLREAR
AR ®1,742,717,635.79 76 (2012
F: ARK#¥3,626,016,011.087T) °
HPEEREHTFARMNIEETEEE
(20124 + AR#776,853,744.20

JT) e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (48)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BEEE(E)

As at 30 June 2013, no houses and buildings and machinery and
equipment had been pledged to secure for the Group’s bank loans
(31 December 2012: RMB873,160.10).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group did not have material idle fixed assets

nor fixed assets under finance lease (31 December 2012: nil).

R2013F6 308 + REEEETA
REGIRITEREEE REEY MK
2R (2012F12A8318 « AR
873,160.107T) °

M2013F6F308 @ AEBZES KK
E -ERERAABRTEEQ012F12

A31H &) -

As at 30 June 2013, fixed assets leased out under operating lease MR2013F6A30H @ K& MHHHETE

were as follows: BEWNT
Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for Carrying

amount depreciation impairment amount

R E R E Ritir e BB RREEE

Electronic equipment e 4,041,738.37 (3,026,469.44) 1,015,268.93
Machinery and equipment 2R 30,797,246.90  (13,976,019.61) 16,821,227.29
Transportation equipment BRRE 81,649.72 (79,200.23) 2,449.49

As at 31 December 2012, fixed assets leased out under operating

M2012F12831H @ KEMHATEE

lease were as follows: TEEWOT :
Gross carrying Accumulated Provision for
amount depreciation impairment  Carrying amount
RERE REHE REEE REEE
Electronic equipment BYEE 4,041,73837  (2,873,209.40) - 1,168,528.97
Machinery and equipment MeeR R & 31,201,580.09  (13,036,248.93) - 18,165,331.16
Transportation equipment BHRE 81,649.72 (79,200.23) - 2,449.49

As at 30 June 2013, houses and buildings for which the
Group had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying
amount of RMB1,157,611,102.55 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,266,878,351.23), among which houses and buildings for
which the Group was in the process of applying for real estate
certificates had a carrying amount of RMB1,143,598,756.92 (31
December 2012: RMB940,413,667.79).

MR20134F 6 A30H » "EBH kK
BEEHMEFNEEZEYWER
BEEAARKI1157,611,102.55
JL(2012F 12 A31H « ARK
1,266,878,351.2370) ° /- K&
ErTERBEEHEZNEEZEYR
mEEAAR1,143,598,756.92
JL(2012F 12 A31H « ARK
940,413,667.797C) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
15. Construction in progress
January-June 2013 (Unaudited)

Expansion of production line HEANEES
of Weichai Power WiER
Renovation for the casting project EEENEREE

of Weichai Power WE
Project T of Weichal Power HEHNTEE

REfHEL_H

Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhonggj

Overhaul of technological ETRREAE
measures of FAST

Logistics Park of Weichai Power EEBhi

FAST transmission technology renovation 585 HE B
project

Project for combining three EtRERNS
workshops for FAST gear ZHHER

Thuzhou gear technology VU EL HEUE]
renovation project

Sparkplug technology renovation project K EERHER

Huadong technology renovation B NEYR
project of Weichai Power HER

150,000 - tonne casting project in SRHER1SEH
Jinding new factory area BHIER

Test production center project of research M543/ % 518
and development of Weichal Power RILER

Construction of Yulin new factoryarea Bt IBERE

Project of new heavy-duty truck in Xinjiang 3738

Others it

Sub-tota It

Add: Prepaid project equipment monies 111 : B TR &
Prepaid land premium B THR

Total ait

Less: Provision for impairment of B ERIERE
construction in progress B

Total A

Opening
balance

098

1,326,883,809.91

752,160,402.32
170,787,713.12
67,900,178.87
6,373,867.54
66,717,119.96
387,185,943.49
41,802,588.71
94,906,835.43
28,479,968.91
129,246,782.90
295,889,807.72
306,837,329.13

277,888,534.33

370,828,069.39

168,042,798.19

4,491,931,749.92

576,287,158.40
110,618,777.61

5,178,837,685.93

3,738,267.94

5,175,099,417.99

Increase during
the period

AEm
23,394,099.31

259,045,143.73
51,092,084.84
99,330,464.03
14,243,053.92
19,515,612.34
251,171,598.39
1,905,128.21
112,750.97
7,604,859.90
18,720,804.44
10,034,164.54
33,186,451.32

15,285,279.711

316,034,539.19

1,120,676,034.84

(1,607,008,514.23)

BB i 2 I G ()
201346308 (A E¥T)

FI ({a\@gﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
15 TEIRE
2013F 1-6 A (R&EF/H%)

Transferred to
fixed assets
during

the period
AHEA
BEEE

(365,507,371.38)

Other
decrease

Source
of funding

Closing
balance

BRE
975,575,236.03

internal fund
BEES
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
L) -6
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
BEES
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
L) -6
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
BEEE
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
L) -6
internal fund
HEEE
internal fund
L) -6
Internal funds
and bank
borrowings
BEELH
BITER
Internal funds
and bank
borrowings
BEESA
BTER
internal fund

RRES

(9,195,301.81)

(84,528,651.24) (4793,607.17)  921,883,287.64

(101,487,822.12) 120,391,975.84

(22230519.70)  (13425,888.57)  131,574,234.63

(8,098,619.35) 12,518,302.11

(23,077.20) 86,209,655.10

(274,221,506.47) (6,816,638.34)  357,319,397.07

(36,750,452.03) 6,957,264.89

(21.27840)  (38.275517.27) 56,722,7190.73

(1,948,002.90) (523,990.00) 33,612,835.91

(13513337373)  (12,084319.78) JLERERS]

(109,401.71) 305,814,570.55

(67,957,486.34) 272,066,294.11

(73,000,000.00)  220,173,814.04

(282,502,32479)  (16,873,732.57) 71,452,012.03

(226,488,626.87)  (86,896350.32)  170,692,360.19

(261,885,345.83)  3,743,713,924.70

462,810,421.87
35,141,166.58

4,241,665,513.15
3,738,267.94

4,237,927,245.21
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & ff B % it 3% = 2 H H 518

Statements (Continued) (78)
15. Construction in progress (Continued) 15. EEITRE(E)
2012 (Audited) 2012F (& EZ)

Transferred to

Increase fixed assets
Opening during during Closing ~ Source
balance the year theyear  Other decrease balance of funding
) LR IN
ENZ TER EfdE EEs EXY ASWE
Bxpansion of producton line BEBALES 150785048847 16456802960  (365,534,708.16) - 132688380991 interal fund
of Weichai Power YigE AE4%
Renovation for the casting project EHHNEYIER  520969,572.5  325844,00129  (94,653,171.49) - 752,160,402.32 internal fund
of Weichai Power P AE4%
Project T of Weichai Power BEBNTER 243,539,247.06  23,708515.07  (96,460,049.21) - 170,787,713.12  internal fund
BEA%
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi Zhongqi~~ BRERHEM S 145,662,184.81 3,410,610.67 (48,390,488.42)  (32,782,128.19) 67,900,178.87 internal fund
AEES
Overhaul of technological measures of FAST ETHBRERE  172,104,966.60 7,550,631.10  (173,281,730.16) - 6,373,867.54 internal fund
AEA%
Logistics Park of Weichai Power EEGNNRE 16,012,779.69  53,704,340.27 (3,000,000.00) - 66717,119.96 internal fund
BE4%
Weichai Power FTEERYER 182,980,350.10  535,680,294.40  (327,695,240.12) (3,779,460.89)  387,185943.49 internal fund
AEES
FAST transmission technology FTRERHA 140,122,034.87  304,101,862.01  (402,421,308.17) - 41,802,588.71 internal fund
renovation project “HEER AEA%
Zhuzhou gear technology renovation project #iMESHRAEE  71,479,623.47  57,04,140.12 (16,031,021.97)  (17,595,906.19)  94,906,835.43 internal fund
BE4%
Sparkplug technology renovation project K EERHUER 22,085,562.78  10,188,223.34 (3,689,603.45) (104,213.76) 2847996891 internal fund
AEES
Huadong technology renovation project of  #448h HE &N 122,216,205.84 43,455,906.88 (36,425,329.82) - 129,246,782.90 internal fund
Weichai Power YIEE AEA%
150,000 - tonne casting project in SRMBRISEE 24694812050  49,117,370.99 (175,683.77) - 29588980772 internal fund
Jinding new factory area BiEER BEA%
Test production center project of research BB HFEHE  271,159,175.34  202,211,08490  (166,532,931.11) - 300837329.13 internal fund
and development of Weichai Power RLER AE4%
Construction of Yulin new factory area BTERRR 177,452,235.14  145,829,266.98 (31,837,739.08)  (13,555,228.71)  277,838,53433  Internal funds
and bank
borrowings
BEEEH
R8T
Project of new heavy-duty truck in Xinjiang ~ HEERFE 107,919,400.00  476,427,039.12 (95335,360.73)  (118,183,009.00)  370,828,069.39  Internal funds
Fij 3! and bank
borrowings
BEAER
FIER
Others 2 256,426,028.62  592,284,178.77  (634,126,763.80)  (46,540,645.40)  168,042,798.19 internal fund
AEES
Sub-total et 4,224,927,976.01  2,995,135,495.51  (2,495,591,129.46)  (232,540,592.14)  4,491,931,749.92
Add: Prepaid project equipment monies il : N THE3%IEF  765,158,335.37 576,287,158.40
Prepaid land premium BN 117,297,538.00 110,618.777.61
Total At 5,107,383,849.38 5,178,837,685.93
Less: Provision for impairment of B ERIERE 3,738,267.94 - - - 3,738,267.94
construction in progress Efg

Total A 5,103,645,581.44 5,175,099,417.99
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V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % it & £ 2 EH H 51 &
statements (Continued) (7)
15. Construction in progress (Continued) 15. EBEITRE(E)

As at 30 June 2013, the construction in progress that had been MR2013F6H30H » RAEBEEHRAR
BRERTERNERZ T RKREERL
T AR%92,593,707.7170 (20124
12HA31H : AR #¥72,534,551.35

JT) °

pledged by the Group to obtain bank loans amounted to an
aggregate carrying value of RMB92,593,707.71 (31 December
2012: RMB72,534,551.35).

In the period, the Group has capitalized borrowings for construction
in progress of RMB4,416,274.98 (2012: RMB18,311,603.85).

AEAREBERTREREFELRL
SRR ANRA,416,274.987T(2012
£ AR#18,311,603.857T) °

16. Materials used in construction 16. TRRYE
January - June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (R EZ)

Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
balance the period the period balance
BAH A0 rHED BRY
Special equipment BH#E 5,956,097.69 (5,954,297.69) 1,800.00
Others Hith = = -

5,956,097.69

(5,954,297.69) 1,800.00

2012 (Audited) 20125 (R EZ)
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
balance the year the year balance
FEE AREE KERD FRY
Special equipment ERFE 10,275,638.26 10,494,335.20 (20,769,973.46) -
Others Hit - 1,904,940.00 (1,904,940.00) -
10,275,638.26 12,399,275.20 (22,674,913.46) -
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V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial - & ffM % #HFE T EHIEH B
statements (Continued) B

17. Intangible assets

January - June 2013 (Unaudited)

Gross carrying amount BERE
Technology know-how EERI
Trademark rights ARRAE
Licence it
Land use rights TR
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship RPAR
Software i
Others it

Less: Accumulated amortization  J, : E 5 5
Technology know-how EERM
Trademark rights AR
Licence it
Land use rights TR
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship ZPME
Software ak
Others i

Net carrying amount REFE
Technology know-how EERI
Trademark rights ARRAE
Licence B
Land use rights TR
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship RPHE
Software o
Others Hith

Less: Provision for impairment 5, : LE &

Carrying amount REEE
Technology know-how EER
Trademark rights AR
Licence i
Land use rights TR A
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship XEBR
Software a4
Others )

Opening
balance

LRI

382,722,683.60
226,177,400.00
60,658,342.84
1,164,678,562.45
310,082,107.59
412,196,858.59
100,099,459.14
9,080,032.80

2,665,695,447.01

343,611,641.55
15,557,616.00
58,379.00
102,206,807.63

44,003,893.97

505,438,338.15

39,111,042.05
210,619,784.00
60,599,963.84
1,062,471,754.82
310,082,107.59
412,196,858.59
56,095,565.17
9,080,032.80

2,160,257,108.86

39,111,042.05
210,619,784.00
60,599,963.84
1,062,471,754.82
310,082,107.59
412,196,858.59
56,095,565.17
9,080,032.80

2,160,257,108.86

Increase
during
the period
REEmM

316,974.06
26,000.00

202,140,793.11

10,141,141.53
932,503.54

213,557,412.24

5,030,941.70
1,836.67
2,984,562.44
13,698,129.41
18,785,952.00
26,374,003.20
3,978,452.40
2,463,865.60

13,317,743.42

17. B EE
2013F1-6 B (K&

Effect of
changes in
exchange rates

EXZ2EE

Decrease
during
the period
TEED

(4,659.82) (587,032.52)

(1,874,439.60)

(9,539,026.72)
(12,380,081.07)

(714,063.65)

(4,659.82) (25,094,643.56)

(59,587.89)

(59,587.89)

=)

Closing
balance

BRY

382,447,965.32
226,203,400.00
58,783,903.24
1,366,819,355.56
300,543,080.87
399,816,777.52
110,240,600.67
9,298,472.69

2,854,153,555.87

348,582,995.36
15,559,452.67
3,042,941.44
115,904,937.04
18,785,952.00
26,374,003.20
47,982,346.37
2,463,865.60

578,696,493.68

33,864,969.96
210,643,947.33
55,740,961.80
1,250,914,418.52
281,757,128.87
373,442,774.32
62,258,254.30
6,834,607.09

2,275,457,062.19

33,864,969.96
210,643,947.33
55,740,961.80
1,250,914,418.52
281,757,128.87
373,442,774.32
62,258,254.30
6,834,607.09

2,275,457,062.19
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial 1. 7 ff B % & F 2 IH H 51 &
statements (Continued)

17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. B EE (&)

2012 (Audited) 2012F (B&EZ)

Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
balance the year the year balance
FUH RENN RERD FARY

Gross carrying amount BERE

Technology know-how EERM 394,976,187.52 5,860,533.61 (18,114,037.53)  382,722,683.60
Trademark rights P IZ {5 A 226,145,000.00 32,400.00 - 226,177,400.00
Licence R 14,604,332.00 60,570,010.84 (14,516,000.00) 60,658,342.84
Land use rights TR A 921,508,219.53 254,534,563.00 (11,364,220.08) 1,164,678,562.45
Order on hand EFETE - 310,082,107.59 - 310,082,107.59
Customer relationship BEFPAE - 412,196,858.59 - 412,196,858.59
Software s 85,301,778.95 17,432,193.01 (2,634,512.82) 100,099,459.14
Other Hit - 9,080,032.80 - 9,080,032.80

1,642,535,518.00

1,069,788,699.44

(46,628,770.43)

2,665,695,447.01

Less: Accumulated amortization 5 : 2 &H# 34

1,155,490,455.27

Less: Provision for impairment

A OREAER

Technology know-how 5 R 338,651,658.59 12,904,654.82 (7,944,671.86)  343,611,641.55
Trademark rights PR 15,555,996.00 1,620.00 - 15,557,616.00
Licence R 13,838,571.38 10,008.00 (13,790,200.38) 58,379.00
Land use rights T R 83,707,298.94 20,785,202.86 (2,285,694.17)  102,206,807.63
Order on hand HFTE - _ _ _
Customer relationship BPR#E% - - - -
Software gL 35,291,537.82 9,530,481.80 (818,125.65) 44,003,893.97
Other Hi - - - _

487,045,062.73 43,231,967.48 (24,838,692.06)  505,438,338.15

Net carrying amount BREFE

Technology know-how 2B BT 56,324,528.93 39,111,042.05
Trademark rights P (g 210,589,004.00 210,619,784.00
Licence R Rt 765,760.62 60,599,963.84
Land use rights T3 (6 A 837,800,920.59 1,062,471,754.82
Order on hand EFTE - 310,082,107.59
Customer relationship BERE - 412,196,858.59
Software i 50,010,241.13 56,095,565.17
Other Hith - 9,080,032.80

2,160,257,108.86

1,155,490,455.27

Carrying amount RHEEE
Technology know-how BRI 56,324,528.93 39,111,042.05
Trademark rights TR 210,589,004.00 210,619,784.00
Licence R 765,760.62 60,599,963.84
Land use rights T AR 837,800,920.59 1,062,471,754.82
Order on hand EFiTE - 310,082,107.59
Customer relationship BERBIE - 412,196,858.59
Software e 50,010,241.13 56,095,565.17
Other Hhh - 9,080,032.80

2,160,257,108.86
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V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)
From January-June 2013, amortization of intangible assets
amounted to RMB73,317,743.42 (2012: RMB43,231,967.48).

As at 30 June 2013, land use rights pledged for securing the
bank loans obtained by the Group had total carrying amount of
RMB204,600,000.00 (31 December 2012: RMB40,923,286.59).

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.
The management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group
has both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks
continuously. As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is
considered by the management of the Group as indefinite because
the trademarks are expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be amortised until their
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are

disclosed in note V.18.
Expenditure on development projects are as follows:

January - June 2013 (Unaudited)

Increase

Opening during

balance the period

LEEIR A

HX complete vehicle HXEEE )i b5

external flow field A R E(IER

analysis and optimization

project 3,457,277.33
Improvement project on ER=MEIER

driver's cabin 3,360,000.00 2,830,188.69
Hydraulics project BERIBR 423,790,203.95  25,436,179.01
Others Hip 1,084,963.00

431,692,444.28

Decrease

28,266,367.70

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

RS i 25 B 5 (48
201346 H30H (A R#ET)
T GO B ERE EEIHE R
(%E)
7. BEEE (&)

2013F1-6 AREFEELHHESBAA
R#73,317,743.427T (201245 © A
R#43,231,967.487C) °

MR2013F6A308 + AEEEAH
RESRTERN L EAEERE
8 & #£ 5 A R % 204,600,000.00
JL(2012F 12 A31H « ARK
40,923,286.597T) °

BT FRARRERAEE X -
AEBEEERR  AKEEER
BRENTHEEZSHE - Rt %E
BIRH A KA RAREELRSRA
RER B AEBERERART
BIREAKARERFER - BRIFZF

*

Hi

L

Fﬁ*ﬁm71§}zﬁﬁzﬁﬁ%&wuﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ B
AN g T - Bk - BEEeE
FREBERAPRETNFHERERET

FER o RERRFERMER
18% 5 -

FZEIHE M

2013%F1-6 A (KK EX)

Effect of

during changes in Closing

the period exchange rates balance

AHED

ERFEER MRE

3,457,277.33

= 6,190,188.69

(20,464,000.00) (13,813,206.58) 414,949,176.38

= 1,084,963.00

(20,464,000.00) (13,813,206.58) 425,681,605.40

169



170 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #SeB HIRHBERA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

FPHS ik R M 5 (48
201346 H30H (A RET)
FI ?@gﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%i%ﬁ H sk R

17. Intangible assets (Continued) 17. B &E (&)
Expenditure on development projects are as follows: (Continued) MEEAZHOT - (8)
2012 (Audited) 2012 (B&E%)
Decrease during the year
RERD
Charged to
Increase profit or loss Intangible
Opening during in the current assets Closing
balance the year period recognized balance
EE AEEM  HAEHER BRAEVEE FRE
HX complete vehicle external HXEE k5
flow field analysis and S REIEER
optimization project 2,461,900.00 995,377.33 - - 3,457,277.33
Improvement project on B EyuEEE
driver's cabin - 3,360,000.00 - - 3,360,000.00
Hydraulics project RETE B - 423,790,203.95 - - 423,790,203.95
Others Hi 532,332.00 1,834,409.48 - (1,281,778.48)  1,084,963.00
2,994,232.00 429,979,990.76 - (1,281,778.48) 431,692,444.28
18. Goodwiill 18. W&

January - June 2013 (Unaudited)

Opening

balance

Hg

Merger with TAGC BHENE 537,908,504.02
Merger with Linde Hydraulics A& itz R E

GmbH & Co. KG BRLE 905,206,283.29

1,443,114,787.31

2013F 1-6 A (R&ET|%)

Increase Decrease Among which:

Provision for

during during

Closing

the period the period balance impairment

Hef:
HEEE

M THHED BRE

537,908,504.02

(51,010,094.81)  854,196,188.48

(51,010,094.81) 1,392,104,692.50
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i~ G OF B HE FEIHH B

statements (Continued) (%)
18. Goodwill (Continued) 18. & ()
2012 (Audited) 2012 (R EZR)
Increase Decrease Among which:
Opening during during Closing Provision for
balance the year the year balance impairment
He:
FMEH ARELEM RERD FRY BB
Merger with TAGC B HHEAE 538,016,278.33 - (107,774.31) 537,908,504.02 -
Merger with Linde B BER E
Hydraulics GmbH BBLE
& Co. KG - 905,206,283.29 - 905,206,283.29 -
538,016,278.33  905,206,283.29 (107,774.31)  1,443,114,787 .31 -
Closing balance as at 30 June 2013 represented goodwill arising 2013F6 A30HHAR AR B & OF A
from merger with TAGC and merger with Linde Hydraulics GmbH NEFMEBREABCEMEENDE
& Co. KG. Goodwill is tested for impairment based on asset groups 2 o REE DA A M E A ME R B
formed by the merger with assets from TAGC and Linde Hydraulics ERCEEERREREEAMEAE
GmbH & Co. KG. As at 30 June 2013, the management considered TEERERNS - B201346 A30
there was no risk of impairment of goodwill. A EEERAMEERERR -
The goodwill and trademarks acquired through business TEAHBRSHNEELRBZELESE
combination have been allocated to the following asset groups for ETHNEEALGEITRERR
impairment tests;
. Cash-generating unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel e HREELBNUA: HENHE
engines and related parts Seom e R AR Z B 1
. Cash-generating unit B: major automobile components other o MEEABAMB: B REAHK
than automotive and diesel engines SN EE BT
. Cash-generating unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps, o WMEEABMC: £ERER -
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other BEHE O RERM - BH &k

components E T E
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
18. Goodwill (Continued)
Cash-generating unit A, B and C
The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit A, B and C has
been determined based on the present value of the expected future
cash flows of the asset group, which was determined based on
cash flow projection in accordance to the 5-year financial budget
approved by the management. The discount rate used for the cash
flow projection was the pre-tax rate that better reflected the current
time value of money and specific risks related to the assets. The
growth rate of cash flows beyond the 5-year period was the long-
term average growth rate in the industries or regions in which the

enterprises operate.

The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the

asset groups as follows:

Carrying amount of goodwill

HENRESH

30 June 2013
2013%6H30AH
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Cash-generating unit A REELEMA =
Cash-generating unit B HEELENB 537,908,504.02
Cash-generating unit C ReEEBAC 854,196,188.48
Total At 1,392,104,692.50

The other major assumption of the value in use calculation is related
to the projection of cash inflows and outflows (including advance of
turnover and gross profit). These projections are determined based
on past performance and the management’s expectation of market

development of the unit.

- 116,446,947.33 116,422,784.00
537,908,504.02 94,197,000.00 94,197,000.00
905,206,283.29 - -

1,443,114,787.31 210,643,947.33 210,619,784.00

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T S0P R I H RER
(#8)
18. BHE (&)

ReEEEMA  B&C

WEELBMNA BRCHAIWDE S
RBREEEANESARARRSREN
RERTE @ HEFARRBSRERE
EREMANSFHNTHEERE
RHFSREBAREE - BeRE
EAMBONREAREREZNE
W s R B (B AN & E R RS B0 B A A
K SFLEMNRESTRENEERER
BEEMETESENR BTG

HENFENRESEIREEEMR
RBERIT ¢

Carrying amount of trademark

HAENRESH

31 December 2012 SN LE RS 31 December 2012
20129124318 PINEEIDZENN=AN 2012612 H31H
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(&=E=%) (REER) (&%)

FEREBEFEEZEMEIERKRER
ERA RO ZER(BEAERHE
BREN)ER ZFEATDIREZ
BUzZBRrXRRIEREEMSER
ZTEHmEEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - £ B % it % 3 ZEH H 5 5

statements (Continued) (78)
19. Long-term prepaid expenses 19. RESHER
January - June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ)

Increase Amortization

Opening during during Other Closing
balance the period the period decrease balance
HAH Ny A HirH 2 Ry
Industrial mould fee THEEAE 73,108,748.15  11,288,148.26  (15,769,351.75) 68,627,544.66
Industrial equipment fee ~ TizRE % 39,422,501.14  10,068,664.68  (8,269,209.47) 41,221,956.35
Expenditure on MAREEEE
improvement BEXH
of fixed assets leased in 56,591,822.19 3,111,691.00 (12,797,724.43) 46,905,788.76
169,123,071.48  24,468,503.94  (36,836,285.65) 156,755,289.77
2012 (Audited) 2012F (R EZ)
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
balance the year the year decrease balance
ENY REEM REHH Hitg ERY
Industrial mould fee THRELS 76,410,022.96 34,793,941.12  (32,783,989.09) (5,311,226.84)  73,108,748.15
Industrial equipment fee INREE 46,353,197.29 15,324,511.74  (19,389,725.24)  (2,865,482.65)  39,422,501.14
Expenditure on improvement 8 A& E & E
of fixed assets leased in MRS H 37,811,599.14 39,739,653.37  (20,959,430.32) - 56,591,822.19

160,574,819.39  89,858,106.23  (73,133,144.65)  (8,176,709.49)  169,123,071.48
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

20. Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as
follows:

Deferred tax assets

FPHS ik R M 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B R E B IH H RERE
(78)

20. BEFEBHEE AE
ERBELHEHEENS M -

BELEFRBHEE
Impairment of assets BERE
Accruals TEIRIE B
Offset of profits generated from AEBRNDBRZHEEN
intra-group transactions of the Group ~ FI| ;B K §4
Deductible losses AT EE
Deductible goodwills arising from hESHRRATENEE
business combination (before tax)
Others Hh

Deferred tax liabilities

BELEFRBHEas
Adjustment in fair value upon TrEAHIABEAE
business combination
Fair value change in available-for-sale ~ £ FI&EE QAL BEE S
financial assets
Amortization of trademark rights T R BB
(including tax value)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 201212 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

193,351,616.54 162,423,673.47

395,816,045.00 392,653,867.33
75,233,324.71 63,029,230.83
7,918,760.05 19,796,977.84
37,518,756.34 44,607,275.34

17,090,545.43 17,608,783.07

726,929,048.07 700,119,807.88

132,737,117.68

140,540,534.84

39,728,578.05 11,280,000.60

16,333,800.00 16,333,800.00

188,799,495.73 168,154,335.44




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
20. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued)

Deductible temporary differences and deductible losses in respect of

unrecognized items of deferred tax assets are as follows:

Interim Report 2013 FAsksE 175

PO 5 i % M R (48)
2013464308 (A E¥T)

T~ A DR B Rk T IE H AR
(%)
20 EEFIEBEE B E
(%)
HRHERRIE AT P8 BUA B M A HE S
HEIRAENGANT -

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Deductible temporary differences ARSI E R
Deductible losses A EE

213,406,324.55 192,690,896.01
1,280,082,698.61 927,813,214.73

1,493,489,023.16 1,120,504,110.74

Deductible losses in respect of unrecognized deferred tax assets will

fall due in the following years:

REEREIEFTISHEER P ENEER
AT S E2IH -

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

2013 20134
2014 20144
2015 20154
2016 20164
2017 20174
2018 20184
With no due date D ERHA R

13,188,215.19 14,906,795.48
5,432,051.60 7,637,559.46
74,707,853.59 82,098,950.82
180,283,408.97 210,738,536.75
497,065,693.10 537,897,774.85
171,527,388.71 -
337,878,087.45 74,533,597.37

1,280,082,698.61 927,813,214.73
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 3R M R ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i - & 0f B % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51
statements (Continued) (%)
20. Deferred tax assets/liabilities (Continued) 200 EEFFBHEE 86
(4&)

Temporary differences corresponding to items of assets or liabilities

SIEERUEEZENEEXARERY

from which such temporary differences arose are as follows:

Impairment of assets

Accruals

Offset of profits generated from intra-
group transactions of the Group

Deductible losses

Deductible goodwills arising from
business combination (before tax)

Other deductible temporary differences

Adjustment in fair value upon
business combination

Adjustment in fair value of
financial assets

Amortization of trademark rights

(including tax value)

BERME
BiRIEA
REB AR 5 E A 1O F B 85

AIEHER
EEAABATENEE

HrEmMERtEER
TCEAHARBERE

TRMEERAEERE

AR I B E R

EOEBEZENT

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

1,198,542,418.57
2,832,512,589.11

501,555,497.95
52,791,733.64

278,329,053.00
125,540,938.66

965,857,975.68

145,963,648.36

108,892,000.00

6,209,985,854.97

31 December 2012
20124F12A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

1,028,651,347.69
2,625,170,031.56

420,194,872.22
131,979,852.27

330,914,505.52
128,100,301.75

1,021,568,170.87

75,200,000.00

108,892,000.00

5,870,671,081.88
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - §0fM B HFEFZEHIHE 3B
statements (Continued) #H
21. Provision for impairment of assets 21. EERBEERE
January - June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (RKEEZ)

Decrease during the period

)0
Effect of
Opening Provision changes in Closing
balance for the period Reversal Write-off Other  exchange rates balance
0% AHR Em B Hf  EXERSE BRY
Provision for bad debt FEER 708,001,943.94  153,018,063.81 (22,691,000.35) 832,959.52  839,161,966.92
Provision for decline FELEEE
in value of inventories 351,293,432.23 98,792,208.57 (3870,17891)  (67,732,102.68) (2,794,412.68)  375,688,946.53
Provision for impairment of & I ERE
long-term equity WEEE
investment 123,640,629.56 123,640,629.56
Provision forimpairment of ~ EfREVE &
other current assets WEER 21,677,250.00 21,677,250.00
Provision for impairment of ~ ElTFZEIfE
fived assets Eff 35,333,612.94 41,673.35 35,375,286.29
Provision for impairmentof ~ ERIEHE
construction in progress EE 3,738,267.94 - - - 3,738,267.94
1,49,685,136.61  251,851,945.73  (26,561,179.26)  (67,732,102.68) (1,961,453.16)  1,405,282,347.24
2012 (Audited) 2012F (R EZ)
Increase during the year Decrease during the year
REEN TERY
Opening Provision  Increase of scope Disposal of Closing
balance fortheyear  of consolidation Reversal Write-off subsidiaries balance
Eng AEHR  AREEEN 2 [e) k= RETRT EXY
Provision for bad debt RHER 765,837,682.35 38,095,319.71 33568840  (62,258,122.56)  (12,324279.44)  (21,684,34452)  708,001,943.94
Provision for decline FERERR
in value of inventories 372,161,662.10  121,888,260.54 - (1931233304) (109783,73376)  (13,66042361) 35129343223
Provision forimpairment of ~ EHRERE
long-term equity EEE
investment 122,232,129.56 1,408,500.00 - - - - 123,640,629.56
Provision for impairment of ~ E-f R B A&
other current assets HEER 27,677,250.00 - 357,357.01 (357,357.01) - - 27,677,25000
Provision for impairmentof ~ EFEEHE
fixed assets Ef 35,347,434.83 - - - (13,821.89) - 353336129
Provision for impairmentof ~ ERIEH/E
construction in progress EfE 3,738,267.94 - - - - - 3,738,267.94

1326,994426.78  161,392,080.25 69304541 (81.927,81261)  (122,121,835.09)  (35,344,768.13)  1,249,685,136.61
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

22. Short-term loans

B DR HBRA A

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A DR B ok EEIH H RERE

(%)
22. WHIER

30 June 2013
201346 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Mortgage loans IR E R
Pledge loans ERER
Credit loans ERER

127,000,000.00

1,323,500,846.69

1,450,500,846.69

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

120,000,000.00
81,882,068.00
2,540,209,566.05

2,742,091,634.05

As at 30 June 2013, the annual interest rate for the above loans
was 2.20%-7.80% (31 December 2012: 2.36%-8.53%).

As at 30 June 2013, the aggregate carrying amount of various
assets that had been used by the Group to secure bank loans was
RMB305,131,628.80 (31 December 2012: RMB123,797,376.02).
There was no carrying amount of various assets that had
been pledged to obtain bank loans. (31 December 2012:
RMB92,280,926.01).

As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no short-term loans which was

due but yet to be repaid.

MH2013F6H308 © iR EF
R 52.20%-7.80% (2012412 A31
H :2.36%-8.53%)

201346 A30H - AEEANK
ARERTERNZTHEEENERE
& B % 5 A R % 305,131,628.80
gL (2012F 12 A31H + AR
123,797,376.02 ) + AR E 7
BRERTERNSEEENRE
BE(2012F12A31H : AR¥
92,280,926.017T) °

MN20135FE6A30H @ A&EEED 5 H
KRIEBOGEIER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # ~ & ff ¥ % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 &

statements (Continued) (%8)

22. Short-term loans (Continued) 22. BHERR(E)
The short-term loans denominated in foreign currencies are set out LASNEIZ REV A BRE R AT ¢
as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%6H30A 2012412A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEK) (gER)
Original RMB Original RMB
currency Exchange rate equivalent currency Exchange rate equivalent

R% EX RaARY R B RaARE

Short-term loans % {2
- HKD - B = - 93,000,000.00 0.8108 75,404,400.00
-EUR -t 30,000,000.00 241,608,000.00 49,930,000.00 83176 415,297,768.00
-UsD - 7,000,000.00 43,250,900.00 113,180,000.00 6.2855 711,392,890.00

284,858,900.00 1,202,095,058.00

23. Notes payable 23. ENEE

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%6H30H 2012912 A831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Bank acceptance bill RITHRAESR 6,215,309,690.49 5,244,310,106.70
Commercial acceptance bills EEZ 4,038,315.26 -
Total &5t 6,219,348,005.75 5,244,310,106.70
As at 30 June 2013, the amount of notes payable falling due in the 20136 A308 R ARK12ME
next 12 months was RMB6,219,348,005.75 (31 December 2012: ARIBMNENERSERARYE
RMBS5,244,310,106.70). 6,219,348,005.75 5t (2012 4 12 A
31 H : AR % 5,244,310,106.70
JT) °
As at 30 June 2013, within the aforesaid balance of notes payable, MN2013F6 A30H » KEF&#ET
there was no amount due to shareholders that held 5% (including mENBAERQAS%(E5%) A E
5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2012: FRRERMD O R B ENRE
nil). Please refer to Note VI. 6 for the balance of notes payable (20124 12A318 : &) - R&EEHE
between the Group and other related parties. Hh BAEE 5 PR IR e RE R MRS

6 °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 3R M R ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i - & 0f B % $it 3 £ B 0H H 51
statements (Continued) (74)
24. Accounts payable 24. BEAIIRX
Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled FERIRRTE S - WABEE3-4EA
within three to four months. NEE °

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

20136 A30H 2012912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) &)

Accounts payable JFE - IR X 15,312,081,937.48 9,962,420,973.54

As at 30 June 2013, the aging analysis of accounts payable based M2013%6H308 © EMIRAEREE

SERHNEREOTOT

on the invoice date is presented as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

201346 H30H 2012412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fEE%)

13,485,693,344.79
987,756,019.42
433,387,273.04
405,245,300.23

Within 3 months 3R A

3 to 6 months 3%61EA

6 months to 1 year 6B AZE14
Over 1 year 1A E
Total a5t

15,312,081,937.48

As at 30 June 2013, there was no material accounts payable which

aged over one year (31 December 2012: nil).

As at 30 June 2013, within the aforesaid balance of accounts
payable, there was no amount due to shareholders that held
5% (including 5%) or more of the Company’s voting shares (31
December 2012: RMB283,674.76). Please refer to Note VI. 6 for the
balance of accounts payable between the Group and other related

parties.

9,181,115,720.64
315,893,898.34
154,647,071.71
310,764,282.85

9,962,420,973.54

R2013F6 A30H » EERE —F LA
R REENAFIE(2012F12 A31

H:4)o

MR2013F6 308  RERF EEN
FAERRAES%(E5%) A ERRE
RO HREEMMSEE(2012F12A8
318 : AR¥283,674.767T) » R"&E
(5 £ L fth A g 5 FE AT OR RRREE RN X

N6
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % M 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - £ B % it % 3 ZEH H 55

statements (Continued) (%)

24. Accounts payable (Continued) 24, FESIIRFR(E)
Accounts payable denominated in foreign currencies are set out as ASNE R R BRI IRRGAT
follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356 830H 2012128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B5%)
Original RMB Original RMB
currency  Exchange rate equivalent currency  Exchange rate equivalent
R# E= HEARY R i & TEARK
Accounts payable &1k 2k
- UsD —E7 5,515,689.52 6.1787  34,079,790.84 7,790,199.71 6.2855  48,965,300.28
-EUR —BT 21,101,314.27 8.0536 169,941,544.60 5,224,142.04 83176  43,452,323.83
—Indian Rupee el 2,445,903.00 0.1036 253,395.55 0.1139 -
34
204,274,730.99 92,417,624.11
25. Advances from customers 25. AW A
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356 A30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (f&F%)
Advances from customers TEU FRTE 1,209,496,523.23 872,835,717.97
As at 30 June 2013, there was no material advances from MR2013F6A308 » EEREK —F U
customers which aged over one year (31 December 2012: nil). FHRFBEIEWFKIE(20125F 12 A 31
A:&)-
As at 30 June 2013, advances from customers did not include R201346 8308 » KERFP 4T
amounts payable to shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) BB EARRRS% (E5%) A £
or more of the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2012: FORBERR 7 89 AR 3R BB 7 1) TE WL FR B
nil). Please refer to Note VI.6 for the balance of advances from (2012512 A831H  |&) - KEBHHA
customers between the Group and other related parties. E BB 7 TEUCGRIB EREE R MRS

6 °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013%F6 A30H (AR ¥oT)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % i 3 £ 2 EH H 5: &
statements (Continued) (%)

25. Advances from customers (Continued)

Advances from customers denominated in foreign currencies are set

25. FEWFRIE (48)
PASNESIZ R B FE MR GRIE AN R -
out as follows:

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013F6H30H 2012F12431H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&5k)
Original RMB Original RMB
currency  Exchange rate equivalent currency Exchange rate equivalent
R % nEARY [RE& fE e ARE
Advances from  FEUFIE
customers
-Usb %7 9,416,520.73 (BT R IR EIAER 24,831,286.22 6.2855 156,077,049.54
-EUR —Bt 1,263,967.57 8.0536  10,179,489.22 2,643,018.09 83176  21,983,567.27
68,361,345.85 178,060,616.81
26. Payroll payable 26. FEATH T % M
January - June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ)

Salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies

Staff welfare

Social security

Incl: Basic pension insurance
Medical insurance
Contribution to pension fund
Unemployment insurance
Working injury insurance
Maternity insurance
Supplementary medical insurance

Housing funds

Union running costs

Employee education costs

Severance benefit

Others

1% %% 24
Fa
BIGNE
HERBRE
Ho o EARERR
BERRE
FeHE
KERRE
IGREE
EERRE
HRBERR
FRAKES
IgKE
BI#FLE
BERTER
it

Opening
balance

A

675,844,433.09
15,464,868.59
46,948,217.91
10,914,447.58
1,568,670.24
30,361,815.14
608,189.21
303,774.87
497,495.92
2,693,824.95
10,213,486.62
110,431,294.54
107,711,505.89
60,071,645.28
37,305.10

1,026,722,757.02

Increase
during
the period
R

1,645,756,795.30
111,840,252.88
297,724,493.63
175,086,028.54
56,747,601.83
25,845,271.67
13,740,986.05
6,760,220.88
6,093,555.86
13,450,828.80
94,034,875.21
23,119,062.97
22,356,069.61
1,524,582.25
1,082,851.36

2,197,438,983.21

Decrease
during
the period
EHHD

(1,743,274,247.47)
(105,001,872.41)
(286,131,226.11)
(AREYDEYIL)]

(55,601,999.53)
(23,349,841.25)
(13,003,815.49)
(6,623,476.65)
(6,212,287.41)
(9,487,553.49)
(91,229,057.95)
(13,945,159.66)
(8,033,418.76)
(4,825,362.05)
(1,086,691.71)

(2,253,527,036.12)

Closing balance

MR

578,326,980.92
22,303,249.06
58,541,485.43
14,148,223.83
2,714,272.54
32,857,245.56
1,345,359.77
440,519.10
378,764.37
6,657,100.26
13,019,303.88
119,605,197.85
122,034,156.74
56,770,865.48
33,464.75

970,634,704.11
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December 2012: nil).

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i~ HOFM B RE FEIHH B
statements (Continued) (%)
26. Payroll payable (Continued) 26. EASH T 5B (&)
2012 (Audited) 2012 (R EZR)
Increase Decrease
Opening during during
balance the year the year Closing balance
¥ RELM RERD ERY
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T& . #%4%  2EAHAES
and subsidies 801,262,84538  2,057,550,322.26  (2,182,968,734.55)  675,844,433.09
Staff welfare BIGHE 15,045,946.99 180,496,114.19 (180,077,192.59) 15,464,868.59
Social security HeRRE 36,131,257.54  487,122,45150  (476,305,491.13) 46,948,217.91
Incl: Basic pension insurance Heb o BABZRR 12,901,176.13  231,165464.04  (233,152,192.59) 10,914,447.58
Medical insurance BERRE 2,582,181.64 85,823,677.11 (86,837,188.51) 1,568,670.24
Contribution to pension fund FoHE 16,595,283.61 83,729,910.47 (69,963,378.94) 30,361,815.14
Unemployment insurance KERKRE 844,939.36 30,481,024.45 (30,717,774.60) 608,189.21
Working injury insurance IERRE 391,072.69 13,412,283.52 (13,499,581.34) 303,774.87
Maternity insurance ERERBE 326,854.34 13,622,931.66 (13,452,290.08) 497,495.92
Supplementary medical insurance BREERR 2,489,749.77 28,887,160.25 (28,683,085.07) 2,693,824.95
Housing funds FELES 6,105,008.62 169,863,654.33  (165,755,176.33) 10,213,486.62
Union running costs TeKS 95,199,846.81 35,552,538.59 (20,321,090.86) 110,431,294.54
Employee education costs BI#EKE 114,814,609.49 34,936,566.41 (42,039,670.01)  107,711,505.89
Severance benefit BHREF 65,831,800.38 4,257,272.91 (10,017,428.01) 60,071,645.28
Others Hip 84,788.08 3,509,448.21 (3,556,931.19) 37,305.10
1,134,476,103.29  2,973,288,368.40  (3,081,041,714.67)  1,026,722,757.02
As at 30 June 2013, the Group had no payroll payable in arrears (31 M2013F 6830 » AEBEEENHE

IR B FE AT B TEFEN (2012412 A

31H

D) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
27. Taxes payable

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346308 (A E¥T)

T~ GO B Ak EEIH H AR

(78)
27. EXBE

30 June 2013
2013¥6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Value-added tax EER
Corporate income tax EFRERH
Individual income tax (EPNGIEEY
Property tax BER
Stamp duty ENTERR
Land use tax T AR
City construction tax R
Business tax L
Other taxes E 318

58,241,423.13
138,001,412.48
30,910,330.02
12,304,523.96
9,309,997.84
5,084,071.47
8,384,271.25
1,990,685.35
18,736,555.53

282,963,271.03

28. Interests payable

28. EFRIE

30 June 2013
2013¥6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

TEREF S

Interests on medium-term notes

Interests on borrowings BRFE

NotesV.34
Mita 34

134,666,666.76
29,460,311.12

164,126,977.88

29. Dividends payable

29. BN RA

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Dividends payable to minority &I F A 7 BUAR B AL F
shareholders of subsidiaries

Ordinary share dividends payable & f< & 3 i% I& 7

NotesV.42
WiEs - 42

6,174,128.69

459,841,216.97

466,015,345.66

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

(Audited)
(T %)

98,990,711.71
55,481,312.50
5,882,581.00
13,318,434.83
13,232,940.62
4,939,765.39
11,263,574.88
4,282,292.64
31,989,110.06

239,380,723.63

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

(Audited)
(=)

54,408,333.33
7,272,293.10

61,680,626.43

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

(Audited)
(REZ)

33,103,222.12

33,103,222.12




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
30. Other payables

Interim Report 2013 FRHEAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
2013464304 (A E¥T)

T~ S0 R 2 IE H RER
(748)
30. HiESR

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%F6H30H 2012912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)

Sales discount

Guarantees and deposits

Payables for purchase of construction
and fixed assets

Repair and maintenance expenses

Land facility fee and land premiums

Others

HEITE
REZ MRS

FERT TR B E B ERBE R

BIRMEEE
THREE R LR
Hit

1,159,830,294.54 645,664,882.61
824,278,674.71 557,978,359.27

449,129,262.05 476,662,796.81
155,541,799.45 171,511,123.42

37,916,056.29 40,209,495.92
653,299,857.73 643,737,716.55

3,279,995,944.77 2,535,764,374.58

As at 30 June 2013, other payables did not include amounts

payable to shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more of

the Company’s voting shares (31 December 2012: nil). Please refer

to Note VI.6 for the balance of other payables between the Group

and other related parties.

As at 30 June 2013, other payables in significant amount aging

over 1 year are set out as follows:

720136 A308 © ARFFEF
ERERMNFARDAS% (E5%) M
TRORIE AR 19 B BR TR B8 L 9 EL A JRE 1 3K
(2012%F12A31H  #&) - AL ERE
o B E 7 H o FE AT AR AR RE R R

N6 e

MN2013FE6H30H @ R —FLA
REEEAM BT

Reason for not
Amount  being repaid

8 REEBERE

Estimated payables for purchase of

construction and fixed assets

ENTREREEEEEL &

167,239,465.57  Not yet received
invoice and
longer period for
construction
BERUE - 1HA

Among the aforesaid other payables in significant amount aging

over 1 year, an amount of RMB11,072,441.37 was repaid or

carried forward after the balance sheet date.

LA EWREREBB1IFRHREEMERMK
HEEAERHEEEENEEAA
R#11,072,441.377C °

185
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W % B 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & f B % i & £ 2 EH H 5: &

statements (Continued) (74)
30. Other payables (Continued) 30. HttFE(T R (&)
As at 31 December 2012, other payables in significant amount 20128128318 @ R —FMNU L
aging over 1 year are set out as follows: B RFEEAMERNRAT
Reason for not
Amount  being repaid
¢HE XREERE
Estimated payables for purchase of ENIEREEETEEE M 295,530,463.47  Not yet received
construction and fixed assets invoice and
longer period for
construction
BEARNE - IER
Other payables denominated in foreign currencies are set out as AN IR R E At JEAT R TS
follows:
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20136 H30H 2012412 R31H1
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (==7)
Original RMB Original RMB
currency  Exchange rate equivalent currency Exchange rate equivalent
R E % neEARY [RH& & % fEARE
Other payables b Ef 7k
-UsD % 12,579,380.76 CRVEYRR P OALR VI 15,517,408.09 6.2855  97,534,668.55
-EUR — BT 971,177.97 8.0536 7,821,478.90 928,531.93 8.3176 7,723,157.18
—Indian Rupee ~ —E1E 539,836.00 0.1036 55,927.01 - 0.1139 -
Lk
—Russian Ruble  — &5 3,000.00 0.1876 562.80 - 0.2061 -
B

85,602,188.61 105,257,825.73
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

31. Non-current liabilities due within one year

(%)

T~ A DR B Rk IE H AR

3. —FRIHHFERBEE

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

2013%6A30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEEX) (& ®|HZ)
Long-term borrowings due within —F AN RBAER
one year 261,073,360.00 340,000,000.00
Other non-current liabilities due within ~ —FE R B BN A IS A &
one year - 12,604,906.92
261,073,360.00 352,604,906.92
Include: Hrp
Credit loans 1EH1E# 220,000,000.00 340,000,000.00
Guaranteed loans FERIE 41,073,360.00 -

As at 30 June 2013, breakdown of the long-term borrowings due

within one year is as follows:

M2013F6H30H  —FREHNE

HERAANT

Outstanding

Loan Annual amount
drawdown Loan interest (RMB
date due date Currency rate (%) equivalent)
R
&M &M HERE
HI®\A Elp:cf= BE FFE(%) ARM
The Export-lmport Bank of  # [ R 17
China (Shaanxi Branch) BREE 1T 2011/9/28 2013/8/9 RMBAR¥ 100,000,000.00
The Export-lmport Bank of  # 0 $R 17
China (Shaanxi Branch) BRFEE 1T 2012/1/12 2013/9/12 RMBAR¥ 100,000,000.00
China Development Bank  BIZX B %R 1T
(Hong Kong Branch) BEDT 2012/12/24 2013/12/24 EURELTT 805,360.00
China Development Bank  BIZX B %R 1T
(Hong Kong Branch) BAEDT 2013/6/24 2014/6/24 EUREX T 40,268,000.00
China Merchants Bank BrERT
(Zhuzhou branch) Mz 1T 2010/12/31 2013/12/31 RMBARY 20,000,000.00

261,073,360.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)
31. Non-current liabilities due within one year

(Continued)

S5 e R WA o (A

201346 A30H (A R¥T)

As at 31 December 2012, breakdown of the long-term borrowings

(&)

T~ & OF B R R IH H RE R
(%)
3. —FREBNFERBAE

MN20124%12 8318 - —ERFEHH

due within one year was as follows: REIERBAMET -
Outstanding
Loan Annual amount
drawdown Loan interest (RMB
date due date Currency rate (%) equivalent)
&%
&R EE BENA
et B B iy FME(%) AR
The Export-Import Bank of 3 ! 1 #R17
China (Shaanxi Branch) REE AT 2011/9/28 2013/8/9 RMBA R 4.76 100,000,000.00
The Export-Import Bank of 3 ! [ #7717
China (Shaanxi Branch) REE AT 2012/1/12 2013/9/12 RMBA R 4.76 100,000,000.00
Bank of China HEIERTT
(Qi Shan branch) L8 57 17 2010/1/27 2013/1/26 RMBA R 5.27  40,000,000.00
China Minsheng Bank RERTARHT
(Xi'an branch) 2010/5/19 2013/5/18 RMBA R 5.27  50,000,000.00
SPD Bank (Xi'an branch) HERITAR ST 2010/6/10 2013/6/10 RMBAR® 5.76  30,000,000.00
China Merchants Bank BERTHRMZAT
(Zhuzhou branch) 2010/12/31 2013/12/31 RMBAR® 5.27  20,000,000.00

340,000,000.00
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

32.

33.
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RS i 25 B 5 (48

201346 H30H (A R#ET)

T GO B ERE EEIHE R
(%)

32. HttRBAE

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20136 H30H 20129128311
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)

883,144,544.83 768,532,527.52
81,911,225.18 84,327,691.48

965,055,770.01 852,860,219.00

33. REIER

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013 6H30H 2012912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (')

Other current liabilities

Expected after-sales expenses B =B
Others HAh
Long-term borrowings

Guaranteed loans EIRIE R
Credit loans EREX

8,518,563,439.99 6,344,249,958.75
100,000,000.00 -

8,618,563,439.99 6,344,249,958.75

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&E=%)

Long-term borrowings: REIER
Due within 3 years 34 A 5 BA 1,785,889,200.00 1,736,062,489.69
Due with 3 to 5 years (inclusive) 3RSFERNINH(E3FEMEE) = -
Over 5 years S5 E 6,832,674,239.99 4,608,187,469.06

8,618,563,439.99 6,344,249,958.75

As at 30 June 2013, long-term borrowings include an amount
of EUR1,038,000,000.00 (equivalent to RMB8,359,636,799.99),
among which long-term borrowings due within one year amounted
to EUR5,100,000.00 (equivalent to RMB41,073,360.00) which
was provided by the Company to Weichai Power (Hong Kong)
International Development Co., Ltd. as a guarantee for its special
borrowings for overseas acquisition from the bank, the amount of
which will be used to invest in KION Group AG and Linde Hydraulics
GmbH & Co. KG.

201346 A308 + KAEF1,038,000,000.00
BT - #15 AR#8,359,636,799.99 T © HA—
FRE e R EE5K5,100,000.00807C © TE A
[R#41,073,360.007T * AHEADFHEHERS
L h(BA)BRREERERQRMBITEARER
SMNBRE B TEE R - FARIEEKION Group AGHIAR
ERBEBEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W R B 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % i 3 £ 2 EH H 5: &

statements (Continued) (7)
33. Long-term borrowings (Continued) 33. RHIER (&)
As at 30 June 2013, top 5 long-term borrowings are presented as MN2013FE6A30H ' £HATAZHE
follows: BERAT
Outstanding
Loan drawdown Loan due Annual interest amount
date date Currency rate (%)  (RMB equivalent)
B
fas fa HEfE
B A H#A BiE EF=(%) AR%
China Development Bank BAZRAERT 2012112127 2020112/27 EURE 28180  4,416,594,239.99
Industrial and Commercial ETIERTEN) 2012/12/29 2015/12/19 EURETE 15840  1,485,889,200.00
Bank of China (Asia)
China Development Bank BREEET 2013/6/24 2021/6/23 EURE 3.0410  2,416,080,000.00
The Export-Import Bank of China  H Bl H 03317 2012/11/16 2014/11/15 RMBA % 47600  200,000,000.00
(Shaanxi branch) BRES A1
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance 11158 & T B #% 20137317 2016/3/6 RMBAK¥ 5.5350 50,000,000.00
Co, Ltd. BRA
8,568,563,439.99
As at 31 December 2012, top 5 long-term borrowings are 20124128310 - £EAIAEN
presented as follows: EHfEZMT :
Outstanding
Loan drawdown Loan due Annual interest amount
date date Currency rate (%) (RMB equivalent)
fEsR
&R &R HEfE
@A Eli= BiE FHIE(%) ARE
China Development Bank BRFEEHT 2012112127 2020112127 EUREI T 28180  4,608,187,469.06
Industrial and Commercial mETERT(TM)
Bank of China (Asia) 201212129 2015/12/19 EUREN L 1.5840  1,536,062,489.69
The Export-Import Bank of China  F1 8 i Q8717
(Shaanxi branch) BREL A1 2012/1116 2014/1115 RMBA R 4.7600 200,000,000.00
6,344,249,958.75
As at 30 June 2013, the Group had long-term borrowings M2013F 6 A30H8 » &% E S
denominated in foreign currencies of RMB8,318,563,440.00 (31 BKETHRBERSERARE
December 2012: RMB6,144,249,958.75). 8,318,563,440.007T (20124 12 A

31 H :© AR ¥ 6,144,249,958.75

JC) °
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PO 5 i % M R (48)
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & 0f B % it & £ HIH H 1 &
statements (Continued) (%)
34. Bonds payable 34. EfHES

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

20136 A30H 2012412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&=Z)

FHRE

Medium-term note

3,492,692,501.06

2,691,489,273.21

The Company registered at the National Association of Financial
Market Institutional Investors in August 2009 for issuing medium-
term notes in a registered amount of 2.7 billion to be issued in
two tranches. The handling fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an
aggregate amount of RMB1.3 billion, was issued on 24 August
2009. Its maturity period was 5 years, with a coupon rate of 4.95%.
Interest was payable every 12 months. The second tranche of
RMB1.4 billion was issued on 28 July 2011 with a maturity period
of 5 years. The coupon rate was 5.65% with interest payable every

12 months.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
registered at the National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors in February 2013 for issuing medium-term
notes in a registered amount of 1.4 billion to be issued in two
tranches. The handling fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an
aggregate amount of RMBO0.4 billion, was issued on 21 March
2013. Its maturity period was 3 years, with a coupon rate of 5.18%.
Interest was payable every 12 months. The second tranche of
RMBO.4 billion was issued on 21 May 2013 with a maturity period
of 3 years. The coupon rate was 5.03% with interest payable every

12 months.

RQEIR2009F 8 BEF BEITRAITH R
SEmeaMETHRHER  FMeEAR
278 FREEXRTHZ= DMRE
17 © B8—IRH2009F8 A24H %17 » &%
BAREI3EIT  BFHRASF BE
MERB495% - HEBERI2EA - B
TIRFA2011FT7 A28 T @BAAR
W14 - BHFHARASTF  ZEEMEAR
5.65% ' [MESEER12{EA -

ARGz FRBIRAERN TEFR A A
R2013F2AEFRBERTEAMTERI A
mEdMETRREER e A 14
B FEBXRTH Z=Z HMKE
17 B—IRMN2013F3 8218 %17 &8
RABET EHFHERAIF  REMNEAR
5.18% * MBS EA12M@A - FZ XK
20135 A21 B &7 @ R4ET - &
HFHIRR3E FEEMER503% © [T8
AR B12ME A -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & ff B % i 3 £ 2 EH H 5: &

statements (Continued) (7)
34. Bonds payable (Continued) 34. EfER(E)
As at 30 June 2013, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows: M2013F6A308 @ EMEH#EE
RIOR

Interest
Qutstanding payable at Accrued Interest Interest

balance at period- EEN paid in payable at

Facevalue  Issuingdate  Bond period period-end beginning  current period  current period period-end

A RTRH Ll HARE  BUEANE  AHEHAE  KHOANE  HRE6AR

TR COCIaEE 3 S 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 Syears 5§ 139977833333 32,958,333.33  39,550,000.04 72,508,333.37
Medumermnote  EZE RN 2009-8-24 Syears 5 1,295,15592256  21,450,000.00  32,175,000.04 53,625,000.04
Medumtemnote ~ FEEE 400,000,000.00 2013-3-21 Syears 5 398,894,891.00 - 5180,000.00 5,180,000.00
Medium-ermnote R HZH# 400,000,000.00 2013-5-21 Syears5E 39886335417 - 3353383 3,353,333.35

Total ait 3,500,000,000.00 3492,692,501.06 5440833333  80,258,333.43 134,666,666.76

As at 31 December 2012, balance of bonds payable are listed as R2012F12A310  ENESBE
follows: HREAR

Qutstanding Interest Accrued Interest Interest

balance at paid in interest in paid in payable at

Face value Issuingdate ~ Bond period year-end current year current year current year year-end

ff GOk EXHR RBE  EOEAHE  AEEHME  AFEMAE  EXEMME

Medium-termnote R HEE 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 Syears 5% 139891928969 32,95833333  79,100,000.00  (79,100,000.000 3295833333
Medium-ermnote R HZH 1,300,000,000.00 2009-8-24 Syears5E 19256998352 2145000000  64,350,000.00  (64,350,000.00)  21,450,000.00

Total At 2,700,000,000.00 269148927321 5440833333 143450,000.00 (143450,000.00)  54,408,33333

35. Long-term payables 35. REIENR

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&E=)

Government grants for B (&1 B BT X
national debt projects 5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - & f B % it % 3 = H H 5 5

statements (Continued) (#)
36. Special payables 36. EIEHER
30 June 2013 (Unaudited) 20136 A308 (REFEZR)
Increase Decrease
At period- during during
beginning the period the period At period-end
B AHE M XERD HRY
Interest subsidy for liquid fund LU BERTNRE
granted by provinial finance BESEHES
office 23,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
Special funds of national debt- ~ EEHBEES
establishment of key industry BHEZREN
revitalization and technological RMSEEEE B2
renovation projects 20,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
43,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 53,000,000.00
31 December 2012 (Audited) 2012612 A318 (& &E%)
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
FNE AREHM KERD FRY
Interest subsidy for liquid fund LU RERNNTEE
granted by provinial finance BEREREE
office 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
Special funds of national debt - BEZHRES -
establishment of key industry BEEFREMN
revitalization and technological BTECEEE B
renovation projects - 20,000,000.00 - 20,000,000.00

23,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 - 43,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial i+ & 0f B % $it 3 1 20 H 51
statements (Continued) (&)

37. Other non-current liabilities 37. HuERBEE

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

2013%F6H30H 2012412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (BEZ)

Defined benefit plans R E Xt El 710,797,689.17 757,944,296.30
Put options in relation to B/ 25 % 5 R R AR B A 1 EA R

minority interests 606,421,160.75 622,325,082.99

Deferred income B RE W 447,924,081.79 326,498,982.94

Others Eh 11,855,000.00 38,189,881.60

1,776,997,931.71 1,744,958,243.83

Description of other non-current liabilities:

B 3EmEamEanig -

Details of the defined benefit plans are set out in Note X. 6. EXwTE AEERMET 60

%

Put options in relation to minority interests represent the rights

HAOBRRERERANHEMERELRSE
EEREEBIONMNERESBEERER
BREPHFLOEREGEMBFIENZTA
F20% MR L ERRNEBNER - RiR
AEEGTBEARRITREE M
CHEMNRBERERS(BRIBREER 2N
FHRBERAAEEeMARE - 201356
HA30BUEAREEEE -

granted to the minority shareholders to dispose of the 20%
interests in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG to the Group during
the acquisition of 70% interests by the Company in Linde Hydraulics
GmbH & Co. KG. Pursuant to the accounting policy of the Group,
the present value of the amount required to be paid at the time of
exercise in the future deducted from equity (other than minority
interests) was recognized as financial liabilities of the Group. On 30
June 2013, it was measured by its fair value.

Deferred income are detailed as follows: I FE U %

Ik
m
i

an

-

2

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Land-related government grant EA + 4 ¥R B8 H BT 4 BN
Technological renovation and financial &M HEIEE 4
special funds

361,425,585.41 293,847,119.48

84,980,570.33 31,553,863.39
B A E# 8

Public rental housing grants from

the government 1,517,926.05 698,000.07
Other government grants related to H b B2 & = R R A BAT B
assets 400,000.00

447,924,081.79

326,498,982.94
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - & f B % it % 3 = H H 5 5

statements (Continued) ()
38. Share capital 38. R
January-June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ)
At period-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current period At period-end
LRI AR () RE Ry
Transferred from
No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
bt 4] MEdEE -] it R& ]
(%) (%)
i, Restricted shares - ARERHKRA
State-owned legal person shares ARENER 447,869,513.00 447,869,513.00
Other domestic shares AlbmEnk 142,224,000.00 142,224,000.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned A BRHES
legal person shares EARR 85,392,000.00 g 85,392,000.00
Domestic natural person shares BREAA
R 56,832,000.00 56,832,000.00
Overseas shares Bk 94,128,000.00 b 94,128,000.00
Incl: Overseas legal person shares H e BINEA
Bk 94,128,000.00 b 94,128,000.00
Overseas natural person shares BHEREA
i = =
684,221,513.00 684,221,513.00
i, Nonestricted shares . EREKRRH
RMB ordinary Shares ARBLER 829,328,126.00 829,328,126.00
Domestic lsted foreign shares B TR ER = -
Overseas lsted foreign shares Eh TSN E TR 485,760,000.00 485,760,000.00

1,315,088,126.00 1,315,088,126.00

il Total no. of shares = kheg 1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00




196 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 5B HIRB AR D T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial # - & 0f i % e 3% £ HIH H 1 #

. ==3
statements (Continued) (%)
38. Share capital (Continued) 38. RA(%&)
2012 (Audited) 2012F (& EZ)
At year-beginning Increase(decrease) of shares in current year At year-end
&2k REE(R)RE FRY
Transferred from
No. of shares Percentage capital reserve Others Sub-total No. of shares Percentage
k& ] NESEE ifh gt e | idi]
(%) (%)
i Restricted shares - ARERERS

State-owned legal person shares BEEAER 373,224,594.00 2240 74,644,919.00 - 74,644,919.00 447.869,513.00 2240
Other domestic shares ERERR 118,520,000.00 m 23,704,000.00 - 23,704,000.00 142,224,000.00 mm

Incl: Domestic non-state-owned A BREEEEA
legal person shares R 71,160,000.00 427 14,232,000.00 - 14,232,000.00 85,392,000.00 421
Domestic natural person shares BRERABR 47,360,000.00 284 9,472,000.00 - 9,472,000.00 56,832,000.00 284
Overseas shares BoMEIR 78,440,000.00 an 15,688,000.00 - 15,688,000.00 94,128,000.00 4an

Including; Overseas legal person AR ENEARR

shares 78,440,000.00 4n 15,688,000.00 - 15,688,000.00 94,128,000.00 47

Overseas natural person FhaRAFR
shares - - - - - - -
570,184,594.00 3422 114,036,919.00 - 114,036,919.00 684,221,513.00 3422

i, Nonrestricted shares . BREEHRR

RMB ordinary Shares ARBLER 691,106,772.00 4148 138,221,354.00 - 138,221,354.00 829,328,126.00 41.48
Domestic lsted foreign shares RRETONER - - - - - - -
Overseas listed foreign shares B ETHNER 404,800,000.00 2430 80,960,000.00 - 80,960,000.00 485,760,000.00 2430
1,095,906,772.00 65.78 219,181,354.00 - 219,181,354.00 1,315,088,126.00 65.78

I
==

i Total no. of shares % 1,666,091,366.00 100.00 333,218,273.00 - 333,218,273.00 1,999,309,639.00 100.00
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial F - & f B % it % 3 = H H 5 5

statements (Continued) (#)
39. Capital reserve 39. EX N
January-June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013F1-6 A (REEZ)
Increase Decrease
At period- during during
beginning the period the period At period-end
IR A EIE N2 LIPS
Share premium R E 1,219,789,901.43 - 1,219,789,901.43
Other capital reserves HtERDR (377,413,919.38) 30,020,075.15 (65,200,000.00)  (412,593,844.23)
Indl: Hep:
Changes in fair value of AftHELR
available-for-sale financial assets BENBREES (65,200,000.00)
Income tax consequences B AFTA B S
concerning items recognized JE B 8 A)
in owners' equity ikeaiZ - 9,780,000.00
Changes in other interests in il NG|
associates Hit R 28 13,491,716.22
Acquisition of minority interests WBE D B R E 6,748,358.93

842,375,982.05 30,020,075.15 (65,200,000.00)  807,196,057.20




198  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B DR HBRA A

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
39. Capital reserve (Continued)

40.

(%)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A OF B ok EIH H RERR

39. EXRAKE(E)

2012 (Audited) 20125 (R EZR)
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
EE AREEN KERD FRE
Share premium BAEE 1,219,789,901.43 - - 1,219,789,901.43
Other capital reserves HtERDR 301,046,503.11 35,730,230.63 (714,190,653.12)  (377,413,919.38)
Indl: Hp
Changes in fair value of AftHELR
available-for-sale financial assets BEAREEED 35,730,230.63 -
Income tax consequences B AFTAEEE
concerning items recognized JE B 1EA)
in owners' equity FEtiy g - (5,252,557.66)
Changes in other interests in BENAEMEREEY
associates - (40,559,590.11)
Acquisition of minority interests e D B R R E - (40,475,891.80)
Recognition of put options in relation D&% R iz HHE
to minority interests 0 4 HRi - (622,325,082.99)
Disposal of subsidiary REFRA - (5,577,530.56)
1,520,836,404.54 35,730,230.63 (714,190,653.12) 842,375,982.05
Special reserve 40. BEFE

January-June 2013 (Unaudited)

Safety funds

ZEHEE

Opening
balance

CERIE

23,089,542.52

2013F 1-6 A (RE&ET|%)

Increase

during

the period
R

22,393,440.07

Decrease
during
the period
XHHD

(13,542,953.07)

Closing
balance

HARH

31,940,029.52
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V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
40. Special reserve (Continued)

41.
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T~ G DR B ok T IE H AR

(%)

40. EEHE (FE)

2012 (Audited) 2012F (B&EZ)
Increase Decrease
Opening during during Closing
balance the year the year balance
FMH REE RERD FERY
Safety funds REEEE - 73,824,875.50 (50,735,332.98) 23,089,542.52
Surplus reserve 41. BB

January-June 2013 (Unaudited)

2013 1-6 A (RE&ET|%)

Increase Decrease
At period- during during
beginning the period the period At period-end
iRIE RE N RHHD HRE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE 2,300,128,466.82 - 2,300,128,466.82
2012 (Audited) 20125 (R E%)
Increase Decrease
At year- during during
beginning the year the year At year-end
F0H AEEN AERD FRY
Statutory surplus reserve FERBAE 1,935,774,543.04 364,353,923.78 - 2,300,128,466.82

According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of

association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve

at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the

statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s

registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed.

BREABVEMAQNREZERMNBET + &
NARFFEN10% RIUEE &A%
NHES - ATBBLAERFEALRA
M EARS0% A LA - A AER

HY o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to key items of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)
42. Retained earnings

FPHS ik R M 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B R E B IH H RERE
(78)

42. KD B R E

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Unallocated profit at current period-
beginning/current year-beginning
Net profit attributable to shareholders

of the parent
Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves
Note V. 41
Ordinary share cash dividends
payable
Ordinary share dividends payable
Others

AT, REEY)
R BB
5B B 1 B IR IR A% R E

B RIS RTE
BiEER - 41
& £ 38 3R & AR A

FEAT E BRI A
Hity

19,737,619,540.81 17,813,666,654.13

2,084,967,415.03 2,990,996,934.91

364,353,923.78

459,841,216.97 366,540,100.50

= 333,218,273.00
= 2,931,750.95

Unallocated profit at

period-end/year-end

IR FRARDBFE

21,362,745,738.87 19,737,619,540.81

On 24 June 2013, the profit distribution scheme 2012 was

reviewed and approved on the 2012 annual general meeting of the

Company. Based on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the

total share capital of the Company, all shareholders were entitled to
cash dividend of RMB2.30 (including tax) for every 10 shares held. As

at the date of approval for issuance of these financial statements,

distribution of such dividends had been completed.

M2013F 6 8248 » A2Q7 2012
FHRREBFREEFRBBH2012F
EFBOREFE  AEAQFHERAR
1,999,309,639 AEE - WE2ER
RIRIORIRER AT ARK2.30
TT(EH) - BUERT BRI ERD
H - ZERMEEHTE -
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T - £ f}f i % i % £ 200 H 5 R

Statements (Continued) (%8)

43. Revenue and cost of sales 43, EERAR KK
The revenue is listed as follows: EEWASIRAT :
Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the WABIEAREBEBEEKBIETEL
course of the Group’s ordinary activities. The Group’s turnover, MEEBEBRHEMKA - REFEHFE
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents EERPELENLSEERFANNGE
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns, T BmENN - MRERBHNEED
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental EHESEYHNEZZHEULKREER
income received and receivable from investment properties. WEDWRERNES WAL -

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-68 2012%1-6 1
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&=

Revenue from principal operations FEEBIA 29,813,363,870.79 25,726,945,253.85
Other revenue EEBBA 1,108,255,163.16 1,332,730,366.02

30,921,619,033.95 27,059,675,619.87

Cost of sales is listed as follows: EEKARTIRAOT

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6A 2012%1-6 4
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (&%)

Cost of sales for principal operations FEEBK AR RN IR ETREERY  20,638,053,845.37
Other cost of sales H b ZE SR AR 1,017,895,314.31 1,232,124,315.41

24,639,987,069.30 21,870,178,160.78

Information related to principal operations is listed by sector as FEEBHNSTEEELOT -
follows:

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 8 2012%1-6 3
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B=&%)
Revenue Revenue Cost
0N A WA AR
Manufacturing of RBERRBERER
transportation equipment PR RN E IR R VAR 25,540,142,195.95  20,458,261,502.77
Others Hip 132,677,563.93 129,080,276.21 186,803,057.90 179,792,342.60

PR ETRIER VRS WP PN VET R 25,726,945,253.85  20,638,053,845.37
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
43. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

Information related to principal operations is listed by regions as

follows:
Domestic A
Overseas TR

Information related to principal operations is listed by product type as

follows:

Complete vehicles and key

components
Non-automobile engines
Other automobile components
Others

BERBRTHM

FAEREYH
H TR
Hith

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A OF B ok EIH H RERR

(%)

43. EXRW AR KA (&)
THEBHAHEELMT -

January-June 2013

2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

REEE

KA

27,434,549,908.98
2,378,813,961.81

29,813,363,870.79

KA
21,452,057,848.29
2,170,033,906.70

23,622,091,754.99

January-June 2012
201241-6 A
(Audited)
(BER)
Revenue Cost
L'ON AR
24,389,530,987.78  19,482,068,385.00

1,337,414,266.07

1,155,985,460.37

25,726,945,253.85

20,638,053,845.37

TEXBONDEMEENT ¢

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(REER)

REEE

ON

23,375,559,155.13
2,110,443,082.22
3,936,632,350.60
390,729,282.84

29,813,363,870.79

18,603,127,682.87
1,657,755,129.46
3,043,047,799.04
318,161,143.62

23,622,091,754.99

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 8

(Audited)

(FER)
Revenue Cost
WA AR
20,793,947,013.67 16,569,207,942.64
1,832,994,095.81 1,424,480,783.29
2,773,827,076.08 2,339,405,297.24
326,177,068.29 304,959,822.20
25,726,945,253.85  20,638,053,845.37
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % it 3% 3 2 1EH H 5 5
Statements (Continued) (#)

43. EEWARRERA(E)
2013F1-6 AR ABRFHMEZERA
N

43. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)
From January to June 2013, revenue from the top 5 customers is

presented as follows:

Proportion of
revenue

(%)

& E WA LB
(%)

Relationship
Amount with the Group

=8 EASERE

IR ERE N TEFRAR 10.83 Non-related

Beijing Foton Daimler Automotive Co., Ltd

3,349,655,861.41
parties
JERARE T

LT E R BERE) B IR AR

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
— R ESAEBRAT

Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto Factory

EAKGRAERRERRAR

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd.

RESEARAREHAEANR
Dongfeng Motor Co., Ltd (Commercial Vehicle Company)

820,595,494.69

704,660,784.04

674,604,055.80

630,645,652.37

6,180,161,848.31

Related parties
7))
Non-related
parties
SERAHE

Non-related

parties
FERATE
Non-related

parties

FERARE 7T
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % it & £ % EH H 5: &
Statements (Continued) (7)

43. EEWARRKRA(E)
2012F1-6 AR ABRFAMEZERA

43. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

From January - June 2012, revenue from the top 5 customers is

presented as follows:

bAEEAERNDERAT
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
TEERRNBRAF

Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co., Ltd

BIERILA B TEAR AR

Baotou Northern Benz Heavy Truck Company Limited

BEARAEEERNBRAF]

Pang Da Automobile Trade Co., Ltd

—UEREETERRAR
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto Factory

Revenue is listed as follows:

o

2,570,469,892.69

891,180,391.95

646,205,731.63

634,149,760.42

617,652,130.16

5,359,657,906.85

Revenue from principal operations FEEBRA
Sales of goods and others HERm R EM
Other revenue Hth 2B UA
Sales of materials HEME

Sales of power HEBN

Lease income HAEWA

Provision of non-industrial labour
Others

REHIFTRET
Hit

mF

Proportion of

revenue
(%)
(3-F 3 ON: 47
(%)

9.50

Relationship
with the Group

SRR EEAF

Related parties
2):
Non-related
parties

JF A Bt
Non-related
parties
SERARE 7
Non-related
parties

JF A Bt
Non-related
parties

FERARE 5

EEWATIRT

January-June 2013
2013%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

29,813,363,870.79

848,606,774.34
15,896,641.61
28,636,276.75

215,115,470.46

1,108,255,163.16

30,921,619,033.95

January-June 2012
2012%F1-6 A
(Audited)
(B&ER)

25,726,945,253.85

924,890,065.99
23,704,776.29
40,249,331.14
320,512.82
343,565,679.78

1,332,730,366.02

27,059,675,619.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff I % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (48)
44. Taxes and surcharges 44, EXEFH S KM

45,

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

2013%1-6 8 20124 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RREX) (REZ)

Business tax B 4,890,729.00 7,064,688.02
City construction tax WER 74,900,726.18 57,024,936.09
Educational surtax HE BN 52,244,505.71 42,363,751.34
Others Hih 9,278,925.93 7,251,098.64

141,314,886.82

Please refer to Note Ill. Taxes for the standard of calculation of

taxes.

Distribution and selling expenses

113,704,474.09

SRES BHES - BUE

45. $HEEH

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

20134 1-68 2012%1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (BE=%)

After-sales and product return fee —BRREmMmREEA 672,622,252.13 597,440,258.23
Freight and packaging fee BEBERPRE 339,762,302.99 362,517,594.09
Staff costs 8 T A 164,898,321.00 90,170,811.61
Marketing fee TISHEER 142,301,968.00 85,905,602.26
Fixed assets depreciation BEEEENE 53,319,003.20 4,437,371.37
Travel fee ERE 34,187,104.38 32,799,814.86
Lease fee HESE 18,617,274.76 6,870,016.14
Office expenses N 11,308,695.06 15,671,501.73
Others Hih 98,443,613.34 88,600,976.52

1,535,460,534.86

1,284,413,946.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

46. General and administrative expenses

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A OF B ok EIH H RERR

(#8)
46. EBER

January-June 2013

2013 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

Staff costs

Fixed assets depreciation

Experiment expenses and
development expenses

Office expenses

External support fee

Taxes

Travel fee

Fuels and materials expenses

Lease fee

Repair fee

Transportation fee

Promotion fee

Vehicle usage fee

Heating expense

Others

8 TRA
BEEEFE

N
SNER S ¥ B
e

EIRE
KRR R R B
HE®E

754,427,464.13
227,244,587.36

154,176,151.41
130,385,831.55
117,626,327.98
61,245,158.65
45,526,972.63
35,860,874.50
30,417,405.99
21,910,566.85
15,404,936.32
15,020,677.88
11,789,561.74
5,475,708.94
122,858,911.29

1,749,371,137.22

January-June 2012

20129 1-6 A
(Audited)
(fe&%Z)

525,680,813.56
106,070,041.41

237,311,111.25
118,484,778.90
90,396,152.30
51,405,832.80
22,785,471.11
13,100,683.12
20,797,421.95
18,848,145.97
14,173,913.31
17,694,673.87
10,488,712.27
9,900,949.31
137,605,130.50

1,394,743,831.63
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
47. Finance expenses

48.
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
2013464308 (A E¥T)

i~2§%%ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁﬁ%
ﬁ.%ﬁﬁﬁ

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

Interest expenses
Less: Interest income

Amount of interests capitalized
Exchange gains or losses

Handling fees and others

MBS

R AE A
MBERNMLEH

FEELHEM

Amounted of borrowing costs capitalized has been included in

construction in progress.

Interest expenses:
Interests on bank loans, overdrafts and
other borrowings wholly repayable

within 5 years

MEBXH :

SERNARREERITER
BEXREMERNF L

Other interests H A #yH8
Impairment loss of assets
Loss from bad debt ZRIBX

Loss due to decline in value of inventories 17 & (& 18 &

Impairment loss of fixed assets

BEE&EERERK

2013 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REE&HFER)

241,731,580.92

166,943,761.39
4,416,274.98

(12,672,299.22)
6,150,742.67

63,849,988.00

201291-6 A
(Audited)
&)

162,279,026.57

164,226,080.70
(4,555,857.83)
6,974,503.76

471,591.80

EREREALBECFAEET

T

January-June 2013

20135 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

156,743,551.98
84,988,028.94

241,731,580.92

48. EERERX

January-June 2013

2013F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REE&HFER)

130,327,063.46
94,922,029.66
41,673.35

225,290,766.47

January-June 2012

201241-6 A
(Audited)
(&%)

75,033,909.87
87,245,116.70

162,279,026.57

January-June 2012

201241-6 A
(Audited)
(&%)

68,947,105.45
2,908,192.48

71,855,297.93
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
49. Income from change of fair value

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A OF B ok EIH H RERR

(%)

49. A REEEZH KE

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-68 2012%1-6 4
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Financial assets held for trading R EE

(REER) (EEZ)

136,886,215.86 -

136,886,215.86 -

Incl: Derivative financial Heh TS/ T A (1)
instruments
Other non-current liabilities HinIEm®ad
Incl: Put options in relation to Hep - BRI ERE  (2)
minority interests EalopaaR=g: k4

(1)

)

Gain on change of fair value, during the Period, of the call
options in relation to minority interests arising from the
acquisition of 70% interest in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co.
KG.

Loss on change of fair value, during the Period, of the put
options in relation to minority interests arising from the
acquisition of 70% interest in Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co.
KG.

(3,.911,708.95) -

(3,.911,708.95) -

132,974,506.91 -

(M

(2)

FEBREEFTIO%NERE
ERLFEEDERETRIEK
REDABRNE ARERAH
ARBEEPELHWE

REHIREEF70% M EIRE
EREEEDBRETRIBK
REm AR L EHERAH
RREBEEEPELNIEK -
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T~ G DR B ok T IE H AR

Statements (Continued) (%)

50. Investment income 50. R&E W=
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 8 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)

Long-term equity investment under KA EZENRBARERE

the cost method 960,000.00 1,080,000.00

Long-term equity investment under B EZENRIRERE
the equity method

Incl: investment loss from investments — H /A : B &P E R EIE %

in associates
Investment loss from disposal of BETRAREANKRERX
subsidiaries

Investment income from disposal of REBEDEEANKRENRZE
associates

BRELTAHLESREES
HRRENERE K

Investment income gained during the
period in which the Company held
listed available-for-sale financial assets

Others i

5,694,427.50

5,694,427.50

1,010,476.88

6,400,000.00
(2,244,900.00)

11,820,004.38

25,027,666.32

25,027,666.32

44,178,946.58

4,800,000.00

75,086,612.90

The top 5 investees with highest aggregate profit in long-term

equity investment income under the equity method are presented as

follows:

EmEZENRARERE RS
EREEEESNAAREESEMN
™

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 A

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.
KION Group AG

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. IWRETSEEMBERR
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd. BRFEEE ) SEYRER A
Xi‘an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd. FLREPAHESHEERA

LWEREHEERR AR
KION Group AG

13,556,600.99
11,101,720.00

A 3,805,287.63
Gl 2,070,613.80
A 1,272,161.62

31,806,384.04
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

50. Investment income (Continued)

51.

FEHS ik R M 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B R E B IH H RERE
(78)

50. & W= (&)

January-June 2012
2012%1-6 4

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd.
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

LBEBBARKREBRAQR
ST FTRERE B R A A

23,873,814.64
12,052,229.59

LEREHERR AR 9,140,940.39
FERAER(ALT)EREFRAR 1,349,505.60
RNEBREWMEERR QA 37,751.14

46,454,241.36

As at 30 June 2013, the Group was not subject to significant

restrictions in remitting its investment income.

Non-operating income

M2013F65308 » AEEHREW
HIER I EE KR

Government grants
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Incl: Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on disposal of intangible
assets
Profit from debt restructuring
Others

I #44 Bh
FRBEERENE

B : BEREZETIZ

BIEEERE

BEREANS
L

N

41,860,028.87
1,702,861.79
1,702,861.79

3,167,844.91
10,786,664.09

57,517,399.66

51. ERMEA
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-68 2012%1-6 1
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&E=%)

64,656,803.02
14,833,881.71
12,738,168.66

1,912,519.00
3,615,868.42
42,833,980.26

125,940,533.41
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
51. Non-operating income (Continued)

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

Interim Report 2013 FRHEAZRE

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
2013464308 (A E¥T)

1~ & OF B R 1 R IH H RE R

(%)
51,

LRI (R)

FTAEHEEN BT/ T

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

2013 1-6 A 20129%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) &)

Income of financial subsidies
Others

S AR B
Hith

40,126,564.81
1,733,464.06

41,860,028.87

During the period, the Company confirmed that it received
government subsidy in total of RMB41,860,028.87, including:

M

During the period, the Company recognized an
amortization of an aggregate income of RMB8,110,378.30
from Ministry of Science and Technology in relation to the
funding of projects including high-pressure common-rail

projects and new energy construction machinery projects;

Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
obtained grants for interest subsidy and other government
grants in an aggregate amount of RMB4,887,620.00 from

the Department of Finance of Shaanxi Province;

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company, obtained provincial funding for special projects
of energy saving in 2012, funding for special projects of
strategic and newly-developed industries in 2012, provincial
funding for special projects of technological innovation
under the operation and budget of state-owned capital 2012
and other government grants in an aggregate amount of
RMB22,368,821.90;

64,268,476.52
388,326.50

64,656,803.02

AHAAR A B HER BT B A G A
R #41,860,028.877C + HA :

(M

(2)

(3)

AR R A R S R R B R R
NS BELENITE B R
R II2MMIE B S 18 B B
A A AR #8,110,378.30

JC

ARBZFRBALELHA
EREPHARQAREREA
MHREENE B AR
fib FEB T Bt AR
4,887,620.007T :

RARZFRAIKRAERR
BHRARIREF212FE 4K
i EEIEE S ~ 2012 F BB
MFEEXFREFEE S
Q0N FEELELABEEERKLE
BEABAFEEES AR
fib & TE T Bh H A AR
22,368,821.907T :

211
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
51. Non-operating income (Continued)

52.

4)

5)

(6)

Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Development Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained guiding fund for
special projects of transformation and upgrade of industry
and information industry in 2012 and other government
grants in an aggregate amount of RMB3,100,000.00 from
the Department of Finance of Jiangsu Province and Jiangsu

Economic and Information Technology Commission;

Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Company, obtained funding in the amount of
RMB2,350,649.50 for special projects of key technological
transformation in 2012 from Qingpu Bureau of Finance,

Shanghai;

During the period, subsidiaries of the Company obtained
financial grants including funding for their various
special projects or other government grants totalling
RMB1,042,559.17.

Non-operating expenses

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

T~ A OF B ok EIH H RERR

(%)

51. EEMKA(E)

(4)

(5)

(6)

ARBZFRARIMEE N (L
)R ERABR A FRELI&H
EUHE IHRACENEELR
(ERESHM2012FEETE
MEREXERARFIESE
B & DA I H At S TE IR A B 3
s AR%3,100,000.007T :

KRRz FRALEEMENR
BERGEBERARBRSLEEST
EHREMEBEK2012 F
EEHFRNFEEESARE
2,350,649.507T :

AR QA2 & FRAWE &
RERES SV R E A
ERBNHEBBRAGARYE
1,042,559.177¢ °

52. ¥ H

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

Loss on disposal of non-current assets ~ IEREEER BB %
Incl: Loss on disposal of fixed assets B B TEEREEEX
Loss on disposal of other non- B we B EmEE
current assets l=ES
Loss from debt restructuring B EMRIBR
Donation expenditure HHNE Y
Others EAh

2013 1-6 A 20129 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&%Z)
7,038,956.17 9,101,848.85
6,990,768.07 8594,716.52
48,188.10 507,132.33
786,000.00 758,042.22
3,871,738.23 3,984,916.30
3,451,818.40 3,391,561.22

15,148,512.80

17,236,368.59
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff i % it 3% 1 %18 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (78)
53. Income tax expenses 53. IS HEH
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%F1-6A 2012%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (BEZ)
Current tax expenses EHFEHE R 459,804,018.09 329,366,921.82
Deferred tax expenses BEEFTSHER 4,242,493.63 89,889,521.62
464,046,511.72 419,256,443.44
The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is e B RAEN EAEmE R RN
listed as follows: T

January-June 2013 January-June 2012

2013%1-6 8 2012%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&= %)
Total profit T Easa 2,753,508,049.43 2,508,099,094.55
Tax at statutory tax rate BEEMEGTENTRIE Note
s 691,682,698.78 624,698,609.04
Effect of different tax rates applicable & A & & FE LT R F)
to parent and some subsidiaries AR IR w% (283,740,576.27) (254,309,384.83)
Adjustments to current income tax of ¥ LA B 2 8 &= HAFR 1§ 5%
previous periods EOEEES (461,397.39) (1,763,777.41)
Profits and losses attributable to FERBECENER
associates (2,432,828.71) (3,754,149.95)
Income not subject to tax AN RIUWA (1,200,000.00) (990,000.00)
Expenses not deductible for tax A ENNEA 12,434,401.93 17,555,821.41
Tax incentives on eligible HEAKENZEmE
expenditures ERTRER (26,408,191.36) (23,239,274.86)
Utilization of deductible losses TR AR FE /Y A]
from prior years HIEE (18,399,676.45) (865,019.82)
Unrecognized deductible losses REERH AT K 1B 88,547,106.86 60,352,856.17
Effect of unrecognized deductible SR ERR 8 AT 0 R 1
temporary difference ERNTE 4,024,974.33 1,570,763.69
Income tax expense at the Group’s  EAREBEEHERERFH
effective tax rate HIFF5 1 & H 464,046,511.72 419,256,443.44
Note: The income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated taxable [ZERE N lFfrH%RFEEEP B3R A EUS 8 1
income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from STREMBL TS ﬁ&i@ﬁﬁﬂfuﬂm ° JR
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate EAH‘rﬁlﬁEEﬂgfﬂfRFﬁ BB TR AR B AR
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in SEECEMTEER E’Jﬁmﬁ@ %
which the Group operates. NEFIEH - RBEAB R E -
No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group had AR AEERIBANESE L EERT

no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year. FE - BORIEHBBRSHORE -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i+ & 0f B % $it 3 1 B0 H 51

Statements (Continued) (7)

54. Earnings per share (EPS) 54. SR W=
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current EXGRKEEBREBRAAAI LR
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by RE AR R B S HSFE AE - R AT RSN
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares. LA I EGETE -
The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows: EARAGRKmHERBTENT

January-June 2013 January-June 2012

2013%1-6 A 2012%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BE=Z)
Earnings Wz
Net profit of the current period EERAAREBR
attributable to ordinary shareholders % R A & HRSF R E
of the Company 2,084,967,415.03 1,897,252,608.20
Shares fi% 5
Weighted average number of R AV EATEINE B
the ordinary shares outstanding of DN#E 15 8
the Company 1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00
EPS (RMB/share) TR (T ) 1.04 0.95
The Company holds no potential shares that are dilutive. ARG EBEMLEER -
Note: With the approval by the Company’s annual general meeting 2011 on o AEARQRI2012F6 A29HEM20114F
29 June 2012, the first general meeting of A Shares shareholders in BREBAFRE  2012FF— RAKAK
2012 and the first general meeting of H Shares shareholders in 2012, the RRKE  202FF—AHBRBRRG#
Company proposed to distribute 2 bonus shares for every 10 shares held FHRAB - L2011 F12A31BAE
by shareholders and a cash dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every AEHMLBIK A 1,666,091,366 4% A &
10 shares based on the total share capital of 1,666,091,366 shares on o FI0OBRIREAR2ME - KRB S
the record date namely 31 December 2011, without transfer from capital AFMARE1.00T(ER) - TEHER
reserve. Upon completion of the bonus issue, the total share capital of the BEEEER - KREXREARDALE
Company was 1,999,309,639 shares. P AN % A1,999,309,639/% °
In order to maintain the comparability of accounting indicators in the RTRFEGHIEEOMEBAT LM
previous and future periods, earnings per share for January - June 2012 RAERNRBENTE2012F1-6

has been recalculated based on the adjusted number of shares. AR SR -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff I % it 3% 1 B IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)

55. Other comprehensive income 55. Ht4RE W&

January-June 2013

2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Gains/(losses) from changes in AEHEERmEE
fair value of available-for-sale AREBEEEHEED
financial assets Was/(BK) (65,200,000.00)
Less: Income tax effects arising from W AIHEEEREEAAEE
changes in fair value of SHELENAMEHREE
available-for-sale financial assets (9,780,000.00)

(55,420,000.00)

Share of investee’s other comprehensive 1% BB i AR E M KIZ E B AL

January-June 2012

201291-6 A
(Audited)
&)

54,465,346.41

8,256,336.60

46,209,009.81

income under equity method HiaahmErmeE 13,813,749.44 (42,010,385.84)
Exchange differences on foreign currency 35948 ‘& SNEE 3 & = 58
translation of foreign operations (30,551,253.16) (5,951,614.80)
(72,157,503.72) (1,752,990.83)
56. Notes to items in cash flow statement 56. REREXREETRE
Other cash received relating to operating activities WHMEMELSE T EEN
Re
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 8 201241-6 8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZK) (&%)
Government grants T B 41,860,028.87 64,656,803.02
After-sales compensation claim =BEER 207,807,410.26 222,156,360.44
Interest income FEUA 173,600,598.63 164,526,576.28
Others HAh 35,795,920.01 42,725,301.48

459,063,957.77

494,065,041.22
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

B DR B BRA A

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

56. Notes to items in cash flow statement

(Continued)

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

After-sales and product return fee
Freight and packaging fee
Marketing fee

External support fee

Travel fee

Office expenses

Others

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Land-related government grants

Capital compensation for minority
shareholders of subsidiaries

Acquisition of net cash paid by

subsidiaries and other business units

S8+ Hb 4 R # BUAT #6 BY)

FRRALVBBRREAHHE

RETFRAMEMEREN

AR FE

FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B R B IH H RERE
(78)

56. RERBREABZE(E)

XN EMEZSEEDERDY

Be

January-June 2013

20135 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RE&EX)

573,979,558.78
355,167,239.31
146,314,369.78
117,626,327.98

79,714,077.01
141,694,526.61

85,538,449.39

1,500,034,548.86

January-June 2012

2012 1-6 A
(Audited)
(fE®|HZ)

696,333,631.75
346,271,267.27
111,093,614.24
44,380,390.90
55,585,285.97
134,156,280.63
50,250,602.43

1,438,071,073.19

WRIE R ERSARENER

57

January-June 2013

2013 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

84,967,612.88

32,810,504.19

117,778,117.07

January-June 2012

2012%1-6 A
(Audited)
(=)

2,829,775.59

2,829,775.59
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
56. Notes to items in cash flow statement
(Continued)
Other cash received relating to financing activities
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RS ik R B 5 (48D

201346 H30H (A R#T)

T GOF B R EEIHE G
(%)

56. R REBREABZE(E)

WRIEMEEE AR A RANE

A
=

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 A 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Interest penalty on delayed contribution % 5 iE 8 1 & F B &1 &
of capital of shareholders

Borrowings from third parties WEIE =SB

459,500.00 -
= 19,507,377.78

459,500.00 19,507,377.78

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

XNEMEZEETESEBNER
&

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6A 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBERZ) (B&ER)

Repayment of interests and borrowings  {&18 58 = J5 & 5 A1 7 &

from third parties

2,919,746.36
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
57. Supplement to cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48

201346 H30H (A RET)

T GO B R B IH H RERE
(78)

57. R RBREARER
(1) ReRERFBAEH

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

20135 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RE&EX)

Net profit
Add: Provision for impairment of

assets

Depreciation of fixed assets
and investment properties

Amortization of intangible
assets

Amortization of long-term
prepaid expenses

Loss/(gain) from disposal and
retirement of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets

Finance expenses

Investment income

Income from change of
fair value

Decrease/(increase) in
deferred tax assets

Increase/(decrease) in
deferred tax liabilities

Decrease/ (increase) in
inventories

(Increase) in operating
receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating
payables

Increase/(decrease) in special
reserve

Others

R
m: BERERE

2,289,461,537.71

225,290,766.47
BE&EIKEN

B ETE 866,922,910.16
B EERH
73,317,743.42
REFEEREH
36,836,285.65
B B MR EE B E L E
MEAEMEMRAEE
mE K (M)
5,336,094.38
HBER 266,493,250.98
=& W (11,820,004.38)
AR EEZHRGE
(132,974,506.91)
RIEFTS A ER
(35 m) (26,809,240.13)
RIEFTS T A &R
O ) 31,051,733.76

FERrRED(E)
(669,983,675.91)
YR B w5 00)
(10,127,101,144.70)
KEMENEAMN
#m,/ (Rd)
BHERENE N ORD)

7,289,958,273.73

8,850,487.00

HAtb 609,859,310.45

Net cash flow from operating

activities

RETBHELEMASREFSE
734,689,821.68

2012 1-6 A
(Audited)
(fE®|HZ)

2,088,842,651.11

71,855,297.93

651,608,181.11

21,195,909.57

37,709,002.51

(6,239,165.19)
168,010,795.10
(75,086,612.90)

93,849,650.13

(1,227,831.48)

1,816,074,328.71

(5,355,357,843.41)

(636,104,002.84)

20,202,910.66

(1,104,666,728.99)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued) (%)

57. Supplement to cash flow statement
(Continued)

2013464304 (A E¥T)

T~ GO B Rk T IE H AR

57. RERBRBAER (F)

(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of (2) BMEBXBEETFRIMEM

subsidiaries and other business units

January-June 2013

20135 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEER)

Consideration for acquisition
of subsidiaries and other B
business units

Cash and cash equivalents paid for U5 F /2 &)} E fif 4 % B8 i1 57 +f
acquisition of subsidiaries and MRS MIBELEEY

other business units

B G F AR R EAM S B

BEMNBESMECEEY

Less: Amount of cash and cash
equivalents in subsidiaries and
other business units acquired

BISF AR R HAM & E BTN
B e F

Net cash paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other business
units

Net assets in subsidiaries and

other business units acquired BE
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Current liabilities B aE

FRBAR

Non-current liabilities

EXREBEUER

January-June 2012

2012 1-6 A
(Audited)
(L ®|HZ)

2,829,775.59

(2,829,775.59)

52,699,246.58
109,320,064.26
94,425,444.04
(151,046,261.72)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
57. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)
Information related to acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and other business units (Continued)
Disposal of subsidiaries and other business units

()

S5 ik 2 W R (A1)

201346308 (A E¥T)

i ﬁﬁgﬁﬁ;ﬁa‘%%ﬁi@iglﬁ H iR

Consideration of disposal of
subsidiaries and other business
units

BEFARREMEREMN
B

Cash and cash equivalent received B2 & F /A 7 & E & ¥ B A7k 3)

from disposal of subsidiaries and

other business units
Prepayment received from
subsidiaries to be disposed
Less: Cash and cash equivalent
held by subsidiaries and
other business units
on disposal
Net cash received on disposal of
subsidiaries and other
business units
Net assets of subsidiaries and
other business units on disposal

MRS MRS EEY

FESFRE T RAFAMKEIR
B2 B AR
B BET AR MEMEREL
FHENREMASEEY

BEFRARAREMEREN
R R S F R

BREFARREMEREMN

Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mENAE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash Re
Incl: Cash at bank HE BEFRS
Bank deposits on demand ATRERF AR Y
RITIF K
Other cash equivalents ATRERE AR Y
on demand HmEakEe

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of period/year

B/ FRReRALSEWHE

Cash and cash equivalents atend Hf /S REHEE L HE
of period/year

Less: Balance of restricted cash B EAXIRGINEEES
and cash equivalents #REE

Closing balance of cash and B/ EFRReRREEBYHRE

cash equivalents at end of
period/year

57. BeRBRExEE ()

(2)

MEXEEFARREM

BXREMES(E)
EETRAREMEREN

=8

January-June 2013
2013%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

(3)
30 June 2013
201346 H30H

(Unaudited)
(REER)

2,539,526.24

12,822,449,291.16

12,824,988,817.40

14,818,038,689.14

1,993,049,871.74

12,824,988,817.40

January-June 2012
20124 1-6 A
(Audited)
(REZ)

235,220,500.00

235,220,500.00

189,000,000.00

80,778,069.26

343,442,430.74

321,388,075.78

414,405,402.08
75,938,388.29
(133,823,468.59)
(35,132,246.00)

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H
(Audited)
(=)

2,355,867.72
14,092,459,304.61

4,336,180.89

14,099,151,353.22

16,726,970,096.00

2,627,818,742.78

14,099,151,353.22
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
The related parties defined in these financial statements included the
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under the

information disclosure requirements of SFC.

1. Parent 1. BT
Proportion of  Proportion of
ownership voting
Registered Legal Nature of Registered interestin power in
Type of enterprise address representative  business capital - the Company  the Company
AN HARR
i 3ot e EARE EBHE SMER BREA RRELH
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited ~ Wholly state-owned Weifang City, Tan Xuguang  External investment 1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
HEEREEERAR BEABE Shandong Province Eih financial quarantee
WREAST investment advisory
planning and organization/

coordination and management of
production operating activities of
corporates under the Group
HMREREERREHARE
BR/HEEREENELE

TEREEY
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate parent of KRB EEG AR AILRELEE
the Company. BRAF
2. Subsidiaries 2. ¥4AH
Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note IV. FRAEEFRMFEM -
3. Associates 3. BEiX

Details of associates are set out in Note V.12.

BEbXFREMERL 12
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

4.

Group

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

Related party relationships

7N ~ Bl B O B AR S S AR 5 ()

BAEEBLEEARIH
HibBAM S B

Referred to as

B BR L]
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Parent Weichai Group Holdings
HREREEARA A (SN SRR R

Weichai Deutz Diesel Engine Co., Ltd.

D HESB ORI IR A F)
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR ML E RO BRAF

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
HRBRBRMNARRA A

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.

HBNEERERMHAERAA

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery (Weifang)
Generator Equipment Co., Ltd

HRBEROED ) EERBERRAF

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Works

BEREREIER

Chutian Engineering Machinery Company Limited

IR RTREEMER A A

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.

i TR AR B IR A A

Shandong Shantui Machinery Co., Ltd.

IR LM B R A R

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance
Co., Ltd.

IWRETEEMBERAQA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.

LWEREHERRAF

Common control by parent
[ — & & 42 i
Common control by parent
A — & 2 &) 42 i
Common control by parent
A — & & 42 i

Common control by parent
R— AR
Common control by parent

A—8 AR

Common control by parent
[ — & & 42 i

Same ultimate parent

[ —RER QT

Same ultimate parent

[ —RER QT

Same ultimate parent

[ —RER QT

Same ultimate parent

[ —RER QT

Same ultimate parent

Al —&& & RE

Weichai Deutz

B ROR

Weichai Import and Export

HESE N

Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery

HE G B

Yangzhou Yaxing

BTG E

Heavy-duty Generator

ERHE

Chongging Weichai

B AL

Chutian Engineering

W HEHE R

Shantui Engineering

W T2

Shandong Shantui

TN ::

Heavy Industry Finance
Company

BT RAA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing

IWEREEE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE
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201346 A30H (A B¥T)

Related party relationships
B S EE

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAB S BR ()

Referred to as

&

Chongging Jiangjin Region Chongwei

Casting Co., Ltd
BEEMIEREHBZEERAA

Fujian Longgong Machinery Company Limited

BEL(EZ)EWMAERAR]

Shanghai Longgong Machinery Company Limited

EL(LE)#REERRAT
Beiqi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
EARBAERMDBRAF

FOTON Lovol Heavy Industries Co., Ltd.

BHEAEREELIRN AR AR

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group Co., Ltd.

BRPgAEZEREEFR AR

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.

R AEEEBREERT

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission

Co., Ltd.

BRAE T AEESEEER AT

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading

Co., Ltd.
BERE—EIZEARET AR

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and Trading Services

Co.,Ltd.
PRAER—ETERFERAT

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.

REENERSEERETDA

Same ultimate parent

Al —&&E QT

Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
A—FAREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEASR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management
personnel as subsidiaries
HFRAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS

Chongwei Casting
B

Longgong (Fujian)
BEI(ER)
Longgong (Shanghai)
BEI(LE)

Beigi Foton
ibAtEH

FOTON Lovol
BHAERX

Shaanxi Automotive
BRI AR

Shaanxi Automotive
Pk

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

POXE B

Huazhen Sancan

EHR-E

Huazhen Services
ERRK

Tongli Special Purpose
BHEAR

223
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

Related party relationships
R Bt 75 BA 1R

7N ~ Bl B O B AR S S AR 5 ()

BAEEBLEEARIH
HibBAB S BR ()

Referred to as

ok

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

RAEREHHMAR AR

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BHELNIREREREMEAFR

Xi'an Lande New Energy Automotive Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

P BRI T R P BB R A A

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components
Co. Ltd.

PREZEF AEZHHERA A

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.

PR BT EREMHFR AR

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator
Co. Ltd.

PREREIEZ AEMRERETAR]

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong
Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.

PREAEEEASEREAEERAA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

PREAESEERDRBAESEGRA R

Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special Purpose
Vehicles Co., Ltd.

PREEAEEEIELERAEFRAA

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS

Lantong Transmission
EREHH

Baoji Vehicle

HHEER

Lande New Energy

BIBFaER

Shaanxi Wanfang
DYiE-—]

Fangyuan Automobile
B

Tongchuang Huaheng
FAlE=

Xunyang Baotong
A5 E B

Changsha Huantong
ROIRB

Yan'an Special Purpose
ELZHEBE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)
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Related party relationships
A B 75 BA 1R

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAB S BR ()

Referred to as

ok

Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd

PREGRFEERW A G AR DA

Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile Corporation

BB AERDER AT

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
prraiEiRHEBR AT

Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission System

Co., Ltd

RARAEBEDEGROHERAF

Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding

Automobile Co., Ltd.

pemm B EBERMETEABERR AT
Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile Co., Ltd.

BRI AEBREEAT]

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

MR U3 5 R

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

ST FRERE B R A A

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRIRFA—FAREEAS
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HARAIRRA—HREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRNRAIRFA—FAREEAS
Associate of parent
NG LN

Dongming Automobile

REEEW

Tongjia Automobile
BRAE

Deyin Leasing
EREE

Dongfeng Axle
REHERE

Wenzhou Yunding

TS

Tongjia Automobile
BHRAE

Zhuzhou Gear Factory
N1

Westport New Energy
B FELR

225
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINEIER
related parties 2
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB RMEERS

parties

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

Westport New Energy
B FTRE IR

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

POEEE

Tongli Special Purpose
BHER

Shaanxi Wanfang

BREETS
CIMC-SHAC

PERRIER

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

ML E
Huazhen Sancan
EEHEE

Xi‘an Cummics
Fa% R AR T
Weichai Deutz
S R

Weichai Import and Export

HESEN O

Lantong Transmission
EREDW
Tongchuang Huaheng
REIET

Fangyuan Automobile
JTEAE

Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

Xunyang Baotong
ABER

Yan'an Special Purpose
ELERE

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(RBER)
Amount Percentage
L L i
(%)

1,685,834,849.05 39.07

1,058,773,598.37 24.53

360,068,229.35 8.34

261,855,503.27 6.07

157,215,833.96 3.64

135,433,687.14 3.14

154,695,965.47

85,823,249.18

80,764,935.84

78,249,724.08

62,166,962.35

44,859,171.01

46,799,219.21

25,538,490.88

24,061,330.72

14,388,915.38

BRBERER D (TEH)

January-June 2012
20124 1-6 A
(Audited)

(&%)

Amount  Percentage

o =]l

(%)

655,934,845.43 25.31
637,926,137.51 24.63
232,344,149.20 8.97
252,838,995.86 9.76
214,360,021.36 8.28
121,534,396.72 4.69
148,899,517.35 5.75
48,941,779.34 1.89
36,837,064.22 1.42
61,446,378.76 2.37
33,343,465.75 1.29
38,812,284.41 1.50
26,411,319.49 1.02
23,793,394.53 0.92
21,975,600.47 0.85
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VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ Bi i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (48)

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BEIEaNEBERS

parties (Continued)

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

(Continued)

Changsha Huantong
AR\

Dongming Automobile
R

Huazhen Services
EZRT

Lande New Energy
BT RE IR

Eurostar

BLET 4

Baoji Vehicle

BHHH

Weichai Group Holdings
e SR Y

Chongging Weichai
Tongjia Automobile
BHEA

Heavy-duty Generator
Dalian Hongyuan
REBR

Dongfeng Axle
REER

Zhongkelian Industry and Trading
BEBIE

Luyuan Automotive Fitting
BIRAE

January-June 2013
20134 1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(RBER)
Amount Percentage
&8 )
(%)

14,296,370.23 0.33

13,504,079.00 0.31

4,464,507.50 0.10

2,163,852.82

2,129,993.30

2,404,445.45

991,250.36

109,195.11

47,963.61

17,941.00

4,316,659,263.64 100.00

(%)
BRI ERERm(TEH)
(&)

January-June 2012
20124 1-6 A
(Audited)
(&&=
Amount  Percentage
T L 1
(%)
15,292,140.75 0.59
313,172.18 0.01
134,187.17 0.01
154,577.25 0.01
8,069,791.12 0.31
5,582,089.21 0.22
2,077,860.00 0.08
2,032,755.77 0.08
1,114,394.58 0.04
2,590,170,318.43 100.00
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its

5.

related parties (Continued)

(1)

B DR BRAE

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Receiving services from related parties

Weichai Group Holdings
HESHE X

KION Group

EZESE

Chongging Weichai

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
DZSETY

Deyin Leasing

fRIREE

Shaanxi Automotive

P

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HELS B

January-June 2013

2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

5.

(REFER)

Amount Percentage

=8

68,780,322.91

66,673,679.00

20,154,014.49

17,308,597.41

15,707,547.17

437,439.88

94,724.78

187,887,164.37

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

FAEEMEBBINEER
Z (%)
(1) BEImNEBERS
(#8)
January-June 2012
20124 1-6 A
(Audited)
(RE®)
Amount  Percentage
Al TR xAt]l
(%) (%)

98,086,814.67

44,910,204.57

16,567,170.39

1,254,793.43

60.99

27.93

10.30

0.78

160,818,983.06

100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) P i 2= B G (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (4)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEBFHBBEIFNEER
related parties (Continued) 2 (18)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB ITERMNEBRS
parties (Continued) (%)
Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax) [ ER R (T E/)
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 B 2012%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BEZ)
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
&8 Lt 1 Gk el
(%) (%)
Westport New Energy
P REIR 820,222,423.69 310,548,507.89 6.81
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BROEEE 590,434,078.44 585,761,655.77 12.84
KION Group
lFEE 538,796,037.00 - -
Beigi Foton
b fEH 287,063,331.90 . 2,570,469,892.69 56.35
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E 198,001,147.59 . 280,779,542.34 6.15
Shaanxi Wanfang
BREaE T 156,428,662.84 ' 111,229,556.78 2.44
Longgong (Shanghai)
BEI(LEE) 143,182,521.36 . 123,275,904.79 2.70
Huazhen Sancan
ER-E 104,883,867.04 . 185,041,610.77 4.06
Longgong (Fujian)
EI(ER) 134,929,772.65 . 85,569,221.28 1.88
Weichai Import and Export
ML O 112,368,620.03 . 68,907,451.90 1.51
Tongli Special Purpose
BHIEA 95,628,303.98 . 39,404,572.76 0.86
Shantui Engineering
LT A2 82,470,246.15 . 57,454,588.03 1.26
Changsha Huantong
RDIRB 55,303,673.11 . - -
Heavy-duty Generator
EWEE 38,983,798.99 . - -

Weichai Deutz
LB RCOR 31,934,643.00 . 38,856,674.14 0.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax)

Chongwei Casting
Yangzhou Yaxing
BINEE

Baoji Vehicle
B

Chutian Engineering
LR R

Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

Xi'an Cummics

P RN

Eurostar

BRATHF

Chongging Weichai
Shandong Shantui
IR ¥
Tongchuang Huaheng
FglE=

Weichai Group Holdings
AR IR

Fangyuan Automobile
HEAE

Lantong Transmission
EREDH
CIMC-SHAC
PERIER
Shaanxi Automotive
B E

FOTON Lovol
BREA

Dongfeng Axle
REER

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()

5. AKEEERBELINEER
& (&)

(1)

January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)
Amount

o]

24,490,028.59

24,252,904.00

21,972,632.99

10,550,324.95

4,992,408.81

1,077,029.98

1,050,415.02

686,237.64

500,435.90

290,102.84

317,725.91

176,548.42

2,043.90

3,480,989,966.72

Percentage
At
(%)

0.70
0.70
0.63
0.30
0.14
0.03
0.03
0.02
0.01
0.01

0.01

100.00

A IEmMEBERS
(%)
[RS8 7 i & B (T &)

January-June 2012
20124 1-6 A
(Audited)
€ <29

Amount  Percentage
TR it
(%)
25,493,804.86 0.57
32,878,769.25 0.72
4,254,510.52 0.09
27,457,966.79 0.60
8,280,457.35 0.18
1,359,419.56 0.03
1,935,775.71 0.04
520,811.45 -
549,230.77 0.01
14,838.85 -
714,637.20 0.02
809,000.76 0.02
334,476.72 0.01
149,161.01 -
69,912.05 -
36,024.00 -
4,562,157,975.99 100.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its 5.
related parties (Continued)

5.

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)

Rendering services to related parties

January-June 2013
2013%1-6A
(Unaudited)
(REBERK)

Amount Percentage

=8

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

HESEE 9,781,439.62
Weichai Deutz

HE S E HOR ER LWL PE
Heavy-duty Generator

BREE 2,035,737.17
Weichai Import and Export

ML O 1,040,994.96
Westport New Energy

B R 373,071.00
Chongging Weichai

BEEHR 97,522.73
Shaanxi Automotive

PO

16,464,245.71

During the period, the prices for the Group's sale of goods
and rendering of services to related parties as well as
purchase of goods and receiving services from related parties

were determined with reference to market rates.

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

PO 5 i 3 I G ()
2013464308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

FAEEHEBABITNEER

& (&)

(1) BBITBEmNEBTRS
(%)
[l BB 77 1R &5

January-June 2012

2012%1-6 4

(Audited)

(RR&EZ)
Amount  Percentage
i) TH =]l
(%) (%)
11,880,784.37 23.64
24,230,139.22 48.21
825,510.00 1.64
1,959,918.73 3.90
11,363,392.19 22.61
50,259,744.51 100.00
ARAEERBYTHEERD

an o~ REEHER  RKEEM
MEREB2ETHERRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)
(2) Leasing with related parties
Leasing of assets to related parties

S5 ik 2 W R (A

201346 308 (A E¥T)

o~ ~ B T B AR e A2 5 ()
5. AEBRBABINEER

& (&)

(2) BEHHEE

B BE B 7 i &

30 June 2013
2013%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

Xi'an FC

AR

Xi‘an Cummics
% A AT
Heavy-duty Generator
BREE

Westport New Energy
B R

Huazhen Sancan
EH=E

Shaanxi Automotive
PR E

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
HESREK

4,700,760.00

4,382,862.63

4,080,981.84

2,250,000.00

2,089,850.22

1,811,226.30

243,664.20

19,559,345.19

Leasing of assets from related parties

30 June 2012

201246 H30H

(Audited)
(&= z)

5,020,880.40

4,080,981.84

3,502,549.98

1,827,545.82

2,250,000.00

16,681,958.04

B AHEE

30 June 2013
20135 6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

Weichai Group Holdings
S 1 AR

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
PROEEE

Chongging Weichai

Shaanxi Automotive

oatEE]

20,529,099.52

5,987,961.78

1,999,998.00

1,136,564.17

29,653,623.47

During the period, the prices for the Group’s leasing with
related parties were determined with reference to market
rates.

30 June 2012

201246 A30H

(Audited)
(=)

21,420,000.00

6,177,730.43

1,999,998.00

7,411,569.54

37,009,297.97

AEAREEEBAB T AEER
BR2EMSEBRAE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 % M 5 ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ Bi i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (48)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) B L EEE:ZE
Nature of transaction January-June 2013 January-June 2012
XEEH 2013%1-6H 20124 1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (BEZ)
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
| L i Gk e 451
(%) (%)
Sale of fixed Weichai Heavy-duty
assets Machinery
HEBEEE  HREHR 4,738,542.02 - -
Heavy Generator
BHRESE 3,301.46 . - -
4,741,843.48 - -
(4)  On 21 March 2013, the Group entered into the Financial (4) AEFBRLNFRETIE@MI KA
Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy Industry Group RAR(IEIHBHEAA]) R
Finance Co., Ltd. (“Heavy Industry Finance Company”). 2013F 3821 HEF(E R
Pursuant to the Financial Service Agreement, the finance Bipam)  REWEARNDS BB
company provided deposit, credit, accounting and clearing NAFRE RIERF QAR
services, as well as other financial services to the Company TR -5 HLELEMSR
and its controlling subsidiaries. RFGE -
Cash and cash equivalents deposited with related parties FHEBH T EEES

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%F6H30H 20129 12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (REZ)
Percentage of Percentage of
total cash total cash
and cash and cash
Amount equivalents Amount equivalents
HEBE HEKE
ot SR B ok SR
(%) (%)

Heavy Industry Finance Company
ETHBRA 767,855,413.84 1,139,636,834.71 6.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O AR e H AR 5 ()

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (&)
(4) (Continued) 4) (&)
Short term loans FRAE

Heavy Industry Finance Company

ETHBHAR

Long term loans

Heavy Industry Finance Company
ETHBLRA

30 June 2013
2013%6H30R
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

Percentage of

total cash
and cash
equivalents
HE%E
X SHEN LB
(%)

Amount

140,000,000.00

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REERK)
Percentage of
total cash
and cash

Amount

equivalents

HE%E
X AR e
(%)

100,000,000.00

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above

related party transactions also constitute connected

transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined

under Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange.

31 December 2012

2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)
Percentage of
total cash
and cash
Amount equivalents
hEEE
T8 SR
(%)
50,000,000.00 0.30
REEHX

31 December 2012
201212 A31H

(Audited)
(EEZ)
Percentage of
total cash
and cash
Amount equivalents
mE®E
! SR L)
(%)

BREBERRETRSZI
P Ll BEEE D5 X 5 R B A
BB AT EHARRIE14AFT
EECHABIHRIFEBE R
5 o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAEES FEUWFE(S RIBREE

30 June 2013
2013%6H30H

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&%)

Accounts receivable
FE W BR X
Changsha Huantong
RARAE

Beigi Foton

lpRric):

Eurostar

B AT 4

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

HEREH
Chutian Engineering

I0F:%:

Weichai Import and Export

HESEL N

Baoji Vehicle
FHE
Yangzhou Shengda
N Bk E

Huazhen Sancan
EH-E

Yan'an Special
EZHERAE
Heavy-duty Generator
EREE

Longgong (Shanghai)
EI(L®E)
Tonghui Transportation
BEDR
Yangzhou Yaxing
BT E

Weichai Deutz

S BEOR

Gross carrying

amount

AR E R

118,223,541.30

45,486,927.11

40,563,304.32

36,150,838.80

28,564,580.00

24,042,984.94

18,012,196.83

17,430,000.00

17,362,524.00

12,634,345.00

10,508,807.19

8,236,585.50

7,909,712.87

6,446,949.07

5,502,250.11

Provision for
bad debt
BIRERE

(12,544,105.22)

(2,243,570.10)

(14,783,544.28)

(443,122.06)

(1,428,229.00)

(1,117,648.34)

(900,766.71)

(871,500.00)

(525,440.36)

(411,829.28)

(180,880.32)

(178,230.45)

(6,057.32)

Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
AR R BIRER

115,539,069.88

75,416,492.52

39,326,593.43

70,531,691.46

13,083,872.74

8,661,578.86

449,639.20

9,819,045.83

1,607,751.57

885,792.98

5,559,386.34

2,371,394.00

(5,776,953.49)

(3,770,824.62)

(1,966,329.67)

(3,526,584.57)

(259,455.81)

(433,078.94)

(22,481.96)

(490,952.29)

(80,387.58)

(44,289.65)

(277,969.32)

(118,569.70)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

B DR BRAF

Longgong (Fujian)
EI(E®)

Xi'an FC

AR

Shantui Engineering
TR

Tongli Special Purpose
BHEMR

Shandong Shantui

I B
CIMC-SHAC
RERAER
Westport New Energy
BRI

FOTON Lovol
BEERX

Lantong Transmission

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

Po%EES
Tongchuang Huaheng
RAIET

BB i 2 B G (49
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()

6. B

30 June 2013
2013%F6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

Gross carrying
amount

AREERE

4,963,643.85

4,740,356.62

3,617,606.45

3,431,587.95

1,604,320.00

921,600.00

829,850.00

641,782.91

26,803.19

417,853,098.01

Provision for
bad debt

(248,182.19)

(501.26)

(109,109.16)

(80,216.00)

(46,080.00)

(41,492.50)

(32,089.15)

(1,340.16)

(36,193,933.86)

Bt 75 FE W Y R BR
(%)

31 December 2012
201212 A31H

(Audited)

(EZ)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
RmEERE ERER
1,384,281.39 (69,214.07)
2,405,884.39 (120,294.22)
9,935,114.84 (496,755.74)
1,396,810.00 (69,840.50)
30,600.00 (1,530.00)
33,638.87 (1,681.94)
26,803.19 (1,340.16)

72,279,374.06

219,949.70

(3,613,968.70)

(10,997.49)

430,964,765.25

(21,153,500.42)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB A EWEN KBS
(Continued) (&)

30 June 2013
201346 H30H

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&%)

Other receivables

H o FE WK

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEEE)

Shaanxi Automotive
IaES

Tongjia Automobile

BRAE

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

IR e

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
B

Weichai Group Holdings

HE S IR

Xi'an FC

ik 35

Beiqi Foton

it

Gross carrying

amount

RE EREE

93,159,362.00

20,227,581.32

14,083,308.83

12,992,992.85

7,151,288.44

147,614,533.44

Provision for
bad debt
BERERE

(649,649.65)

(796.23)

(650,445.88)

Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
SRR EERAER
6,022,268.10 (301,113.41)

14,418,103.27

12,040,086.20

3,551,723.32

94,067,880.00

1,756,614.78

300,000.00

(720,905.16)

(602,004.31)

(177,586.17)

(4,703,394.00)

(87,830.74)

(15,000.00)

132,156,675.67

(6,607,833.79)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()

6. BEETEWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (g&E=)

Notes receivable

AL ES

Deyin Leasing
BIREE

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
LR EH

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings
BRI R A

Changsha Huantong
RYIRA

FOTON Lovol
BHERX

Weichai Deutz
HESBAHOR

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Beigi Foton

i3 rEH

Yan'an Special Purpose
EZERE

Shantui Engineering
LT A2

Tongli Special Purpose
BIHEM

Chutian Engineering
g

Huazhen Sancan
HER-DE

Tonghui Transportation
BER

412,345,460.00 _

167,093,846.17 11,435,120.98

88,000,000.00 -

32,000,000.00 300,000.00

21,100,000.00 -

14,919,300.00 -

9,000,000.00
3,870,000.00 30,000.00
7,500,000.00 3,628,000.00
1,050,000.00
100,000.00 3,000,000.00
5,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
996,000.00

756,978,606.17 25,389,120.98
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 7~ ~ B i 5 Bl & e H 32 55 (4)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB A EWEN KBS

(Continued)

(%)

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

201356 H30H 20124128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (g&E=)
Prepayments
SEENET S|
Huazhen Sancan
EHoE 16,106,841.92 14,974,237.77
Baoji Vehicle
BHER 9,155,828.08 864,305.19
Weichai Import and Export
HESeHE O 4,486,354.07 -
Yangzhou Yaxing
BMELE 2,380,500.00 -
Tongjia Automobile
BRIUE 2,179,971.29 3,422,400.00
Shaanxi Wanfang
BRAET 1,022,629.53 1,034,629.53
Beigi Foton
BIaY/]:E 895,914.00 676,800.00
Shaanxi Automotive
BT g 242,129.00 -
Shangdong Shantui
(TSI :; 13,490.00 -
Zhuzhou Gear Factory
TR B8 R 2,193,075.68
Weichai Group Holdings
SR IR 13,448.62

36,483,657.89

Interests receivable

FE Wi R 2

Heavy Industry Finance Company

ETHBAA

598,213.70

23,178,896.79

7,418,831.76
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()

6. BEETEWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20136 H30H 201212 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Dividends receivable

& LT B R

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWEBEREHRE

Eurostar

BRET

Xinlian Chuangye

Ee el

6,615,000.00 -

3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00

67,500,000.00

9,655,000.00 70,540,000.00

Notes payable
ENREE

Westport New Energy
B IEER

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEEE

Tongli Special Purpose
BOEA

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREGE T

Fangyuan Automobile
FEARE

Tongli Special Purpose
BOEA

701,285,000.00 -

105,700,800.00 -

11,098,953.13 -

800,000.00 -

48,000.00 -

2,000,000.00

818,932,753.13 2,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB A EWEN KBS
(Continued) (&)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

2013%6H30H 2012912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFEZ) (L #|HZ)

Accounts payable
ENLEN

Westport New Energy
B EER

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEE B

Tongli Special Purpose
BIHEM
CIMC-SHAC
PERIER
Shaanxi Wanfang
pREEE 5
Tongchuang Huaheng
FElZET

Lantong Transmission
EREHH

Weichai Import and Export
S O
Fangyuan Automobile
FERE

Xi'an Cummics
702 AR T
Huazhen Sancan
EH-E

Tonghui Transportation
BEYR

Weichai Deutz
HESBROR
Changsha Huantong
RYRB

356,330,596.58

284,313,195.36

122,082,405.98

100,466,570.45

65,306,019.37

35,411,102.53

34,072,785.61

26,887,654.55

24,467,199.33

16,453,551.13

15,087,075.12

8,278,064.73

8,209,447.99

7,699,764.99

79,357,450.81

131,490,261.11

92,031,644.37

61,928,607.72

63,439,559.57

16,840,778.69

19,991,190.38

6,407,531.39

18,284,752.16

5,418,152.28

23,631,030.85

13,573,373.25

244,944.00

2,721,794.53
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()

6. BEETEWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013%F6H30H 2012912 A831H

Wenzhou Yunding
AMETR

Weichai Group Holdings
SR Iy

KION Group

E e

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
LR E

Baoji Vehicle

BHEH

Zhuzhou Gear Factory
R B R

Eurostar

LT

Yan'an Special Purpose
EZERE
Dongming Automobile
R
Heavy-duty Generator
ERBE

Tongjia Automobile
BRE

Xunyang Baotong
ABER

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)
7,606,719.62 577,780.11
5,617,518.69 283,674.76
5,601,519.68 -
1,022,647.97 157,179.67
834,431.50 864,305.19
597,534.16 -
93,076.93 1,156,744.39
57,868.63 467,016.63
6,954,939.45

6,719,884.14

2,654,506.12

2,019,672.83

1,126,496,750.90 557,216,774.40
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

6. BELTEWENREKRE

(%)

30 June 2013

31 December 2012

2013%F6H30H 2012912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&EZ)
Prepayments
L E |
Beigi Foton
Biati=:E 65,478,613.82 -
Heavy-duty Generator
BHESE 8,133,970.55 -
Shaanxi Wanfang
BRPEEE 75 5,095,221.00 1,870,591.00
Tongli Special Purpose
BHER 1,107,827.00 1,077,848.00
Wenzhou Yunding
RMETA 125,378.90 78,574.90
Changsha Huantong
RARBE 2,201.60 2,201.60
Dongfeng Axle
REER 41,683.25
79,943,212.87 3,070,898.75

Other payables

H At FEAF 5K

Shaanxi Automotive

BrTE 34,014,233.57 40,494,848.01
Tonghui Transportation

BEYR 14,580,259.20 212,515.19
Longmen Logistics Park

EFIRE 3,000,000.00 -
Shaanxi Wanfang

pBREaE S 1,130,000.00 490,000.00
Yan'an Special Purpose

ELHERE 760,000.00 960,000.00

Changsha Huantong
RARB

240,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 308 (A E¥T)

7N ~ Bl B O T A Je H AR 5 ()
6. BAME T MEWE N RIHERE

(%)

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREEX)

CIMC-SHAC

MERTER

Tongli Special Purpose
BIHEM

Huazhen Sancan

HERZDE

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
POEE B

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
LB

Wenzhou Yunding

EINETA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWERMEMES

Fuping Logistics Park
EFnE

Shandong Heavy Industry
IWRET

200,000.00

188,000.00

120,000.00

81,023.00

75,564.61

20,000.00

54,409,080.38

Dividend payables
FE A BR F
Shaanxi Automobile

BT E

4,691,489.37

Amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest bearing
and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for amounts of
trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of trading, while

amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms of repayment.

R U5 K% A< R e

31 December 2012
20124F12A31H
(Audited)
(g&E=)

200,000.00

824,000.00

180,000.00

158,782.24

27,257.24

60,000.00

1,640,687.08

220,000.00

8,150.28

45,476,240.04

RS FLE.

B B BRERNERNE
WEBEFMRE  FEFERERE

B e



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII.Contingencies

1.

Exposure to Confirmation Risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of not
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2013, open
position of outstanding acceptance bill was RMB1,892,510,000.00
(31 December 2012: RMB785,341,000.00).

Finance lease business

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation agreement with each of Shanzhong
Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. and CBD Leasing Co., Ltd. (“finance
lease companies”). It is agreed by and between the two parties
that the finance lease companies shall provide finance lease service
to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors. Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall provide joint liability guarantee in
respect of the leasee’s failure to pay the instalment payments and
interests under the finance lease. As at 30 June 2013, risk exposure
of joint liabilities was RMB965,820,000.00 (31 December 2012:
RMB586,408,600.00).
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

£ 5
1.

CER

REE KO R

RRABZFRBEIRASR ABEFRAD
AIEZHE  RHERIT=ZFFRI =
FatEmz  KHEERRITEANK
R30% M RFE  BERTHTH
—EEAREE - RERRITEALE
o oRAFAAEARAAALHED
RHUESHRSHHERE S 2 M ERR
BREFEEMT - HE2013F6H30H ¢
HARB BN AL EZHOBRARE
1,892,510,000.00 7t (20124 12 A
318 : AR%785,341,000.007T) °

AEHEEK

RARZFRARRAEE AEFRA
AoRELEMEREERAT
ReMBEEARAFA(IBERER
AIDE S EE  ERHNTHMENR
ERNRARAER ABEHBRAFINE
IR ERERY - BRAER
AEBEERARARMERENAMEF K
X MHRERE S BAREFIER
HETREEMT - HE2013F6 430
A AJeEETEERERBRW AR
A K #965,820,000.00 7T (2012 F
12A318 : AR#586,408,600.00

JL) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIII. Commitments

IX.

PO 5 i 3 M R (48)
201346 308 (A E¥T)

I\~ ARk IH

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201356 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (R&ER)

Capital commitments B ARG
Contracted, but not provided for BRLBEREE
Authorized by the Board,

but not contracted ERESEHAEBRELD

1,962,590,858.25 1,653,477,555.23

14,450,400.00

1,962,590,858.25 1,667,927,955.23

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
On 24 June 2013, the profit distribution scheme 2012 was reviewed and

approved on the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company. Based
on the 1,999,309,639 shares, representing the total share capital of the
Company, all shareholders were entitled to cash dividend of RMB2.30
(including tax) for every 10 shares held. As at the date of approval for
issuance of these financial statements, distribution of such dividends had

been completed.

On 29 August 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant
to the authorisation granted by the General Meeting, considered and
approved the distribution of a cash dividend of RMB1 (including tax) for
every 10 shares held by its shareholders based on the total share capital

of 1,999,309,639 shares, without transfer from capital reserve.

L-EEAEFXHAREIE
201346 A248 + AAF2012FKREAE
FREEHBE20NFEFNEIBRA R -
LA AN A R) 48 B 48 1,999,309,639 i A &
B AEERERIORKERSAIAR
230 (EH) o BIEARM G HREBAER
HE - ZERFEEMTE -

MR2013F8A29H » AR AIEEZGRE
BEAGHEE FREBARFARK
1,999,309,639 AEH  MEBRRES
TOREERSAMARBIT(ER) - T
EATEREIGARA -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events
1.

Leases

For investment properties and operating lease-out of fixed assets,

refer to Notes V.14 and 15.

As the lessee

Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed

with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:
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PO 5 i 3 M 5 ()
2013464308 (A E¥T)

1 Hfl T B I
1. HE
BREUEHMERKERTLETEE
2R MER - 145115 °

EAEEA
BAKEHE  BIBEEDEARITH
MEER - TAREHENRERAE
NEENT -

Minimum lease payments

BREHEENRE
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
2013¥6H30H 201212 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Within 1 year (including 1 year)
1-2 years (including 2 years)
2-3 years (including 3 years)

Over 3 years

1FAR(ETE)
1E22F(F29)
2FEIF(F3IF)
3ELA L

38,229,362.41
28,308,716.09
22,678,432.38
90,005,464.11

32,644,515.15
18,678,600.93
15,646,247.24
76,256,293.68

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

January - June 2013 (Unaudited)

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Other current assets
Available-for-sale

financial assets

TREE
TEEREAE
ERPEE
AREEEREE

At period-
beginning

BaY

137,050,693.51
70,000,000.00

269,200,000.00

476,250,693.51

Profit and loss
from changes
in fair value
in the current
period
FEAREE
2BHiER

136,886,215.86

2.

Accumulated

T AR
RADAEE

179,221,974.99

143,225,657.00

UanEBEFENEEM

=R

20135 1-6 A (k

fair value
charged
to equity

(65,200,000.00)

136,886,215.86

(65,200,000.00)

Impairment
recognized

in the current

period

R

i E

E Y

At period-end

LI

267,379,520.00
350,000,000.00

204,000,000.00

821,379,520.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Continued)

January - June 2013 (Unaudited) (Continued)

BB R 2 B G (4
201346308 (A E¥T)

T ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ(%ﬁ)
EEFENEEM
BE(E)

20135 1-6 A (RRE

Profit and loss

B2 R

%) (%)

from changes Accumulated Impairment
in fair value fair value recognized
At period- in the current charged in the current
beginning period to equity period At period-end
FHAAEE SRR THHE
LR 2HEE R OAEE Wi E HRE
Finandial liabilities tRERE
Put options in relation to HOBRRER
minority interests izl ok il 622,325,082.99 (3,911,708.95) - 606,421,160.75
2012 (Audited) 2012 (& EZ)
Profit and loss
from changes Accumulated Impairment
in fair value fair value recognized
At year- in the current charged in the current
beginning year to equity year At year-end
FERAEE STAERR REERR
E9H 29iEs AL ERE B ERY
Financial assets SRERE
Derivative financial assets TESREAE - - - - 137,050,693.51
Other current assets HtRBEE - - - - 70,000,000.00
Available-for-sale LS REAE
financial assets 234,011,928.12 - 36,800,000.00 - 269,200,000.00
234,011,928.12 - 36,800,000.00 - 476,250,693.51




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2.

Interim Report 2013 FRHEAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A B¥T)

+~ﬁ@i§$ (#)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 2. ’/}J"T‘JEE“I‘EE’JEEN
(Continued) BE(E)
2012 (Audited) (Continued) 2012F (&%) (58)
Profit and loss
from changes Accumulated Impairment
in fair value fair value recognized
At year- in the current charged in the current
beginning year to equity year At year-end
FERSBEE STAERH REFRN
FE 9Bn  ZHAREE HE FRY
Finandial liabilities SHAR
Put options in relation to HOHRRER
minority interests yiclaliohe:a0 - - - - 622,325,082.99
Segment reporting 3. oWHRSE
Operating segments o
The Group organizes and manages its operating business in TN 2 B 4R A R TR AR I TS Y 1 A

accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@)  manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

("Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

(“Non-major automobile components”);

(d)  provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services”).

Ko P 60 22 ma AN AR 7% 0

FATE

B AREHTECESHE—EE
BEE  RHEARTARLBEES

R R

B =R B A9 2= G AN AR TS ©

A2

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

2 30 BUS A R  EL A AR = 0 &

BEE DA HAE SRR

B N SH B S AR R T AL

1 (5

Ol

EEMBEAERIEREE
BT BiEsmE)(

HEEE

[TER

REERM])

SERBEEMAETHRM
(TIEEBREZTEML)

e ¢
%l e

HEHARB (&

H O AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

3.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with the
Group’s total profits, except that interest income, finance expenses,
dividend income, gains from changes in fair value of financial
instruments as well as head office expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

oAt 2 (4)

3.

o EbER S ()

Z<<< M\ /‘\4 ( zm: )

=

EREHREEERMFEEEAR
REH  HEXRBETHNRERRD
FETER - DEEE  UREND
MIBREMETHE - ZHEFERY
MERBETHBRNEER BIE
EHSWA - MIEER - RAWA
EMTARARBEEHREIARLET
BRZIN ZEFEASENERR

GO

DHEETBEALAABEAELE
& H

P AZHESNESEMHRE -
PTET AR - WA - BEFE - 7T
ﬁi\HjE%mEﬁE RHRERE B

2 ELEREREEMEMAD BN
BB ﬁ% EIEF\L%QE#]E$
&

DHABIBETELA R E
RFEH - BEMBHABEALEM
ADEWAINEE REERNELR

BIEmAEESR—FRE -

DERENEBEE  2RAE=T7E
IR SR A RERHIE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

3. Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)
January-June 2013 (Unaudited)

Segment revenue: ABRA -

Sale to external customers NEPEE
Inter-seqment sale AHEHE
Total =Hl
Adjustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-seqment sale BEATRHEE
Revenue WA

Segment resuits pEEE
Adjustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-segment results BEOUMES
Interest income FEWA
Dividend income and unallocated income TR &M A ok A

Corporate and other unallocated expenses (MR E AP B

Finance expenses

AR

Profit before tax

Diesel engines

31

11,972,364,971.31

2,594,759,838.62

14,567,124,815.99

2,198,084,985.11
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PO S I 5 ()
2013464304 (A E¥T)

+ o 3t B E (4
3. ZHEbEmE (&)

reEDE(E)

2013%F 1-6 A (FK48F#)

Automobiles
and other major Non-major

automobile automobile Import & export

components components services
REREM ¥IZ

IRNERRH nERAM £ O RS

17,296,054,743.43 1,613,983,726.96
= 58,925,998.45

39,215,586.19
19,716,980.61

17,296,054,743.43 1,672,909,725.41 58,932,566.80

30,921,619,033.95
2,673,402,817.68

33,595,021,851.63

(2,673,402,817.68)

30,921,619,033.95

493,016,069.75 63,819,224.03 (12,921,846.98)

1

(
(2

27

2,741,998,431.91

32,990,718.66
66,943,761.39
57,517,399.66
15,148,512.80)
30,793,749.39)

53,508,049.43
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + s HAEEREIE ()
3. Segment reporting (Continued) 3. 7EbHE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) reEDEUE)
30 June 2013 (Unaudited) 2013%F6 A30H (REFH)
Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components services
REREM B
£l IZREENH REZHE dulnl e
Segment assets HHEE 27,486,553907.26  26,047,811,733.78  11,129,707,419.13 731197499996 71,976,048,060.13
Adjustment: HE:
Elimination of inter-seqment receivables 57 S fE A58 (9,718,376,788.77)
Corporate and other unallocated assets P EREMAPEEE 15,623,450,976.15
Total assets BEE 77,881,122,247.51
Seqment liabltes pEEt 1545530677598 1500647189493 882986501392 1,104482630.00  40,486,126,314.84
Adjustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-segment payables BADDEEEZE (9,918,911,315.68)
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies £ L EMASEEE 14,149,631,055.94
Total liabiltes Ak 44,716,846,055.10
January-June 2013 (Unaudited) 20134 1-6 A (K#&#FE#%)
Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components services
REREM 1z
91 ITRESHH REZHE # 0 R
Other segment information: B apas
Share of profit and loss from: EETHARNBRER -
Gain(loss) from associates Hﬁ’%ﬁ%lﬁ(ﬁn/ (8 %) 7,910,723.39 (9,634,844.79) 11,101,720.00 (3,683,171.10) 5,694,427.50
Reversallloss) of provision for impairment & HESME /(5%
of inventories (3,676,325.83) (82,005,919.86) (9,239,783.97) (94,922,029.66)
Impairment reversalfoss) of accounts — FEUERZ T £ kR ER A0
receivable and other receivables HEER/(8X) (63,434,691.78) (65,253,937.96) (1,486,331.73) (152,101.99) (130,327,063.46)
Depreciation and amortization TERES (383949,107.86)  (482476,324.87)  (124,395,045.76) (10,452,619.93)  (1,001,273,098.42)
Gainf(loss) from disposal of fixed assets ~ EFZEREFIG/(B%) (484,208.87) (4,484,295.94) (319,401.47) - (5,287,906.28)
Gain from disposal of intangible assets ~ EFAERENG = = - - =
Investment in associates REERINRE 569,398,767.85 53430385177 6,436,326,383.00 452703137 7,582,556,033.99

Capital expenditure E1ER (1,083,637,578.70) (665,886,388.32) (57,352,065.99) (10,845,793.85)  (1,817,721,826.86)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48D
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A B#or)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + - ﬁi M EEEIE ()
3. Segment reporting (Continued) DEPERE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) rEnE(E)
January-June 2012 (Audited) 2012%F 1-6 A (#&F#)
Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components Services Total
AEREM FEE
Kal TERETHR xSt L OR Bt
Seqment revenue: AHYA -
Sale to external customers NEEFHE 946872412194 16,981,084,602.87 534,360,726.16 75,506,16890  27,059,675,619.87
Inter-segment sale PHEHE 2,81,431,861.5 156,262.01 39,194,948.82 - 230078307239
Total At 11,750,155,983.50 16,981,240,864.88 573,555,674.98 7550616890  29,380,458,692.26
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inter-seqment sale BEAUmEE (2,320,783,072.39)
Revenue WA 27,059,675,619.87
Segment restlts PifEE 1,762,308,354.85 853,183,207.72 40,771,076.49 (8,226,161.36) 2,648,036,477.70
Adjustment: FE:
Elimination of inter-seqment results BENYREE (323,256,569.06)
Interest income FIEWA 162,279,026.57
Dividend income and unallocated income REBAREBYE 201,027,146.30
Corporate and other unallocated expenses (A E REHADEF X (17,236,368.59)
Finance expenses BB A (162,750,61837)

Profit before tax TAlFE 2,508,099,094.55




254  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B DR B BRA A

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

3. Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)
31 December 2012 (Audited)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

T~ Al T 0 ()
3. oS (&)

W AKX N\ 37 )
rE D E(E)

20124F 1231 H (&8 &F %)

Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components services Total
RERES g
i IENETHN RS ROk ait
Segment assets HHEE 19,919,255,14462  21,002,990,818.11 8,835,477,491.68 6,395,999,165.88  56,153,722,626.29
Adjustment: FE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables BEDUEERGE (7,597,274,404.97)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMAAREE 17,763914,629.37
Total assets BEE 66,320,362,850.69
Segment liabilties AHak 10500,167,195.06 1141925270359 824837387244 3540508752 30,203,198,858.61
Adjustment: FE .
Elimination of inter-segment payables BHIDEEAZE (7,623,734,586.90)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities PERHUANTEE 12,341,662,801.48

Total liabilities

ek

34921,127,073.19




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

3. Segment reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)
January-June 2012 (Audited)
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
2013464304 (A E¥T)

+ o oAt B (4)
3. 2BHSE(H)

REDE (&)

M=

20124E1-6 7 (48 #)

Automobiles
and other major Non-major
automobile automobile Import & export
Diesel engines components components Services Total
REREM FEE
il IERETHK RETHH ENORE Bt
Other segment information: EtpsEs:
Share of profit and loss from: BT RANEREE:
Gainfloss) of associates Bergls/ (BE) 40496,514.43 (15,538,73191) - £9,883.80 25,027 ,666.32
Loss impairment of inventories FERERL 2,909,736.53 (5,185,467.51) (632,461.50) - (2,908,192.48)
Impairment reversal{loss) of account receivables FEAER 3} £ fh FE Ut
and other receivables ER0HEER/(BX) (36,534,995.39) (29,494,445.81) (3,366,037.01) 448,372.76 (68,947,105.45)
Depreciation and amortization mERES (278,858,364.34) (405,889,686.09) (15,730,653.34) (12,970,737.55) (713,449,441.32)
Gaind(oss) from disposal of fived assets ECEERENR/(BR) 1,529,170.51 231931931 294,962.32 - 414345214
Gain from disposal of intangible assets EREERENE 1912,519.00 - - - 1912,519.00
Investment in associates REERFNEE 783,756,862.96 222,965,650.34 - 4707121114 1,053,793,724 44
Capital expenditure BARY (1,036,671,421.94)  (1,549,162,954.14) (35,652,658.55) (10,540,384.52)  (2,632,027,419.15)
Group information SEER
Information about products and services E dn M1 15 8
Revenue from external transactions HHINZH WA

January-June 2013

January-June 2012

20135 1-6 8 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& EZ)

Diesel engines e e 1

Automobiles and other major
automobile components

Non-major automobile components

Import & export services

MEREMETETETEHME

FEZRETEM
O RK

11,972,364,977.37 9,468,724,121.94
17,296,054,743.43
1,613,983,726.96
39,215,586.19

16,981,084,602.87
534,360,726.16
75,506,168.90

30,921,619,033.95 27,059,675,619.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W 75 i 3R B R (D)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + ﬁ fib B BE I (4H)
3. Segment reporting (Continued) DEEE (&)
Geographic information HWIRE S
Revenue from external transactions N ZIRA

January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6 A 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (&%)

Mainland China BB K R LIPSy 0| 26,942,035,581.75
Other countries and regions E B R At [@ 1,213,417,458.90 117,640,038.12

30,921,619,033.95 27,059,675,619.87

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas HINE ZINARBRNE TR & o

where customers are located.

Total non-current assets FERE)EEAEE

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Mainland China R K e (el ephl N GER 19,269,480,687.65
Other countries and regions HAh BIR b [ 9,359,044,641.75 6,917,880,832.49

28,737,162,334.90 26,187,361,520.14

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets #mé)ﬁéF SEN R EEME R
are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets. BIECREEMELEMSHEE -
Information about major customers FERPER

Revenue of RMB3,349,655,861.41 (January-June 2012: & WA A R ® 3,349,655,861.41 7T
RMB2,570,469,892.69) was derived from sales by Diesel engines (20125 1-6 A : ARM2,570,469,892.69
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components TO)RERE RS BT E R A MEE
segment to a single customer, including sales to all entities which AETRESHEE —ERETF(BED

are known to be under common control by that customer. AZEZE PG TEFTE R R o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivative
instruments, comprise borrowings, bonds payable, cash and cash
equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets, etc. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise funds for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts receivable and notes receivable,
accounts payable and notes payable, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are

credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as

at the balance sheet date are presented as follows:

30 June 2013 (Unaudited)

Financial assets
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PO S I 5 ()
2013464304 (A E¥T)

T~ oAt B H (4)

4.

SRIARHERER

AEEMIESBIA  BITETA
5 BIERER - EBAES  HEE
o TREESHEES ELER
TANTEAMER AR EEMNES
e AEBALESBERCEHER
EAMEMSBMEENERE - LnE
B 0 S B A - AT O R S B A

S

AEENERMTAZHNTIEZARE
ERRE - RBEARETIZER

SRMIENEE
BEABERANSESRITANKER
BEWNT :

2013F6 308 (K& F#)
CREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit
or loss
UAAEETE
BH#EHHA
EHBEN
SREE
Cash and cash equivalents SWEe -
Financial assets held for trading RHEEBEE 267,379,520.00
Notes receivable EBERE =
Accounts receivable FEN R X =
Dividend receivables JEM AR =
Interest receivables JENTFI
Other current assets EREaE
Other receivables H A FE R

Available-for-sale financial assets

- equity instruments

AHHEeRERERETA

Total

267,379,520.00

Loans and

receivables

EXNEURE

14,818,038,689.14
17,359,033,633.37
6,132,041,642.75
10,615,000.00
761,994.52

395,273,927.55

38,715,764,887.33

Available-for-sale

financial assets

AHHESREE

350,000,000.00

204,000,000.00

554,000,000.00

&t

14,818,038,689.14
267,379,520.00
17,359,033,633.37
6,132,041,642.75
10,615,000.00
761,994.52
350,000,000.00
395,273,927.55

204,000,000.00

39,537,144,407.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 308 (A E¥T)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + - HAh RS IE (4)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) 4., SRTARHERER(E)
Financial instruments by category (Continued) ST ESFEE)

30 June 2013 (Unaudlited) (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Short-term loans

Long-term borrowings

Accounts payable

Notes payable

Other payables

Bonds payable

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

Interests payable

Dividends payable

Other non-current liabilities

1 HIfE R
RHIMER
JRE 1< R 3R
ENRE

H b & 5K
R EH
—FRE
FRBEE
FEASHIE

JE A AL
Hi3ERBBE

Financial liabilities

at fair value

through profit

or loss
UAREBEFE
BEZBFA
EHEEN
tRaE

606,421,160.75

606,421,160.75

2013F6 A30H (KRis#E%)(#&)

TRAE

Other financial

liabilities

Httemas

1,450,500,846.69
8,618,563,439.99
15,312,081,937.48
6,219,348,005.75
3,279,995,944.77
3,492,692,501.06

261,073,360.00
164,126,977.88
466,015,345.66

39,264,398,359.28

A
A a

1,450,500,846.69
8,618,563,439.99
15,312,081,937.48
6,219,348,005.75
3,279,995,944.77
3,492,692,501.06

261,073,360.00
164,126,977.88
466,015,345.66
606,421,160.75

39,870,819,520.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R B 5 (48D
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A B#or)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + ﬁf&ig%lﬁ (%)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) cRIERHEER(E)
Financial instruments by category (Continued) ST ESFE(E)
31 December 2012 (Audited) 2012F 12 H31 H (4 &%)
Financial assets CREE

Financial assets

at fair value
through profit Loansand  Available-for-sale
or loss receivables financial assets Total
DRnBEAE
BEZHFA
ZHERN
THAEE IFAERTE THENEeREE it
Cash and cash equivalents EEEe - 16,726,970,096.00 - 16,726,970,096.00
Financial assets held for trading RHOESREE 137,050,693.51 - - 137,050,693.51
Notes receivable eSS - 9,242,232,142.39 - 9242,232,142.39
Accounts receivable JEM R - 4,168,525397.14 - 4,168,525397.14
Dividend receivables B U B - 70,540,000.00 - 70,540,000.00
Interest receivables FEWA B - 7,418,831.76 - 7,418,831.76
Other receivables H YR - 408,960,103.38 - 408,960,103.38
Other current assets Hi=EEE - - 70,000,000.00 70,000,000.00
Available-for-sale financial assets TREESHEERETA
- equity instruments - - 269,200,000.00 269,200,000.00

Total At 137,050,693.51  30,624,646,570.67 339,200,000.00  31,100,897,264.18
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (A B#or)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + o Hfh I ()
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) 4., SWMIARHRERK(E)

Financial instruments by category (Continued)
31 December 2012 (Audited) (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit

or loss
BET=
LIETN
Bar
TRBE

AR A
HHEH

ﬁww

'*é.‘-
=]

EMTEIEE)

2012412 H31H(

TRAE

Other financial

liabilities

HtemAaE

wEEZ)(E)

Total

AN

At

Short-term loans

Long-term borrowings

Accounts payable

Notes payable

Other payables

Bonds payable

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

Interests payable

Dividends payable

Other non-current liabilities

8 Hi 5K
RHEMER

JE& 1 1R 3K
BN RIE

H fth &S 5K
e B
—FREH
FnBaE
FERTFIE

F& AT B
HiERB AR

622,325,082.99

2,742,091,634.05
6,344,249,958.75
9,962,420,973.54
5,244,310,106.70
2,535,764,374.58
2,691,489,273.21

352,604,906.92
61,680,626.43
33,103,222.12

2,742,091,634.05
6,344,249,958.75
9,962,420,973.54
5,244,310,106.70
2,535,764,374.58
2,691,489,273.21

352,604,906.92
61,680,626.43
33,103,222.12
622,325,082.99

622,325,082.99

29,967,715,076.30

30,590,040,159.29




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss on one party of a financial
instrument due to the failure of another party to meet its

obligations.

The Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. For
transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Department of Credit Control

in the Group.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in Note VII.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms, and
generally requires payment in advance or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period is generally one month, extending up
to six months for major customers. Customers with good trading
record could be granted a longer credit period. Since the Group
trades only with recognized and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk
within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s accounts
receivable are widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.
The Group’s maximum possible credit risk equals to the carrying
amounts of accounts receivable in the consolidated balance sheet.
As at 30 June 2013, the Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk as 21.10% (31 December 2012: 14.78%) of the Group's

accounts receivable were receivables due from the top 5 customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and other receivables are
disclosed in Notes V.4 and 7.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise may encounter deficiency

of funds in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Group maintains balance between continuity and flexibility of

capital through bank loans and debts to manage its liquidity risk.

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30H (A R¥T)

b B (A

4.

SRITARHERER(E)
ERAREE(E)
AEFEREFENE SBEIUEAR
SRE  B—RERFEPLEMNRK
EMERANRFAET - EREEE
BIUER  ZEEPFPANUERZGHE
A RSBHRITNEPAIESLER
ROEER - AR AN EEEHELRR
WEEERONEZFTETRS
NEFERY - EREREPRRE
B/XBEF  WIBREMITEETT
EE o o ARAEENEBRRE PR
Bie i BN AR ERFIAITE A
H it fE AL BRI FEERERER
Bt - EHEEBBRPERER
B AR E(EE 2 AN S AT AL EER A) &
AEEEE - R2013F6A308 @ &
SEOEBERPEEERAIARE
FHFIER21.10% (2012512 A31
H:14.78%)  AEBEWAKRERE
RNEAEFRER -

7R 52 B [A] FE UK BR FORN E b R U IR E A
MERARBBONELEE 28K
R 4FT7HF o

B A
mEBER  RECEEBTESRA
BEERENEBEEEIESERNME

B e

REFBBHNARITERREBE B
B EERE M TE - A
BEARBERR -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)

4.

Liquidity risk (Continued)
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PO S I 5 ()
2013464304 (A E¥T)

+ ﬁ%ﬁ%%lﬁ(%)

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity

and flexibility of funding through the use of bank borrowings,

bonds and other interest-bearing borrowings. As at 30 June 2013,
66.85% (31 December 2012: 63.03%) of the Group’s borrowings

would mature in less than one year.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial assets

and financial liabilities based on the undiscounted contractual cash

flows:

30 June 2013 (Unaudited)
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents fEEe
Finandial assets held for trading RPMEBEE
Notes receivable EHEE
Accounts receivable EYER
Dividend receivables FEYR A
Interest receivables E4FIE

Other receivables HipRYE
Other current assets HhRBEE

Less than

3 months

8,399,638,801.96
10,483,967,078.92
6,936,061,914.77
10,615,000.00
761,994.52
429,815,623.47
50,000,000.00

26,311,460,413.64

3months to

1 year

MMANLEIE

6,418,399,887.18
267,379,520.00
6,875,066,554.45

300,000,000.00

13,860,845,961.63

SRIARERER(E)
B [ f (,,\)
REEKEIZ RRITIER - BF

ME M S ﬁ%ﬂi? EEE FERIA
RERENSEHETETHENTE -
M201346A308 © A% E66.85%
(2012412 A318 : 63.03%) W&
BETRIERDE -

TEREBRETEREEMSBAGBERK
FRMARRKRSREMEN D HERR
i

2013F6 308 (RiEF#)
CREE

1-5 years Qver 5 years

(B SEME &

14,818,038,689.14
267,379,520.00
17,359,033,633.37
6,936,061,914.77
10,615,000.00
761,994.52
429,815,623.47
350,000,000.00

40,172,306,375.27
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R M ()
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 A30H (A E¥T)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + s HAEEREIE ()
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) 4. cRMIBERHEER(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEN R ()
30 June 2013 (Unaudited) 20136 H30H (FKAE#HFz)
Financial liabilities cREE
Less than 3 months to
3 months 1 year 15 years Over 5 years Total
SRR MEANLEE 1ENEESE SENL At
Short-term loans (including interes) REBER(ZE) 20,046,371.38  1,193,442,892.46 - - 1,483,489,263.84
Long-term borrowings (induding interest) ~ EH(E2(45) - - 179242246868 685989550098 8,652,317,969.66
Accounts payable ERER 15,312,081,937.48 - - - 15312,081,937.48
Notes payable ES 2,366,564873.99  3,852,783,131.76 - - 6,19,348,005.75
Other payables H AT 3,279,995,944.77 - - - 321999594477
Bonds payable (including interest) ERER(2E) 143,450,000.00 4084000000 4,237,160,000.00 4,421,450,000.00
Non-current liabilities due within —ERIIENERS
one year (including interest) EIHEY 204,694,794.52 61,841,392.14 - 266,536,186.66
Dividends payable FERRF 466,015,345.66 - - 466,015,345.66
Other non-current liabilties EftFRDRE - - 606,421,160.75 606,421,160.75

22,062,849,267.80 5,148,907,416.36 6,636,003,629.43 6,859,895,500.98  40,707,655,814.57
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FRHS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 201346 H30H (A B#oT)
X. Other Significant Events (Continued) + - HAb B EEIE (4)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued) 4., WMIBARHRERK(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) e E ke (&)
31 December 2012 (Audited) 2012F 12431 H (4 &%)
Financial assets TRMEE
Less than 3 months to
3 months 1 year 15 years Over 5 years Total
SR3EA EANLELE 16 EF5E SEN L Bt
Cash and cash equivalents EMEe 10,042,562,871.74 6,684,407,218.26 - - 16,726,970,096.00
Financial assets held for trading RHUEREE - 137,050,693.51 - - 137,050,693.51
Notes receivable [ ES: 3,152,181467.76 6,090,050,674.63 - - 9,242,232,142.39
Accounts receivable U 289197330470 1,948220,967.24 - - 4840,194361.94
Dividend receivables TEU A 70,540,000.00 - - - 70,540,000.00
Interest receivables EH & 7,418,831.76 - - - 7,418,831.76
Other receivables Hi U 190,920,849.00 254372,233.48 - - 445,293,082 48
Other current assets ErEEE 20,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 - - 70,000,000.00
16,375,597,420.96 15,164,101,787.12 - - 31539,699,208.08
31 December 2012 (Audited) 2012912831 H (##F1z)
Financial liabilities =
Less than 3 months to
3 months 1 year 15 years Over 5 years Total
SR3ER EANLE R 15 FF5E SENE At
Short-term loans (inclucing interes) SRR 830569,96830  1,898,088,058,51 - - 27786502681
Long-term borrowings (including interest) REER(5E) - - 1.737.369,510.12 4,609,610,578.35 6,346,980,088.47
Accounts payable IR 9,150,996,582.83 811,424,390.71 - - 996242097354
Notes payable ENER 1,852,688 534.71 3,391,621,571.99 - - 5,244.310,106.70
Other payables ERERR 12384863035 2,411915744.3 - - 253576437458
Bonds payable (including interest) EftES(2E) - 146,110,000.00 3,006,970,000.00 - 3,153,080,000.00
Non-current liabilities due within —ERIBNETE
one year (including interes?) &8R(58) - 369,700,454.87 - - 369,700,454.87
Dividends payable R - 33,103,221 - - 33,103,22.12
Other non-current liabiltes EREaE - - 622,325,082.99 - 622,325,082.99
12,008,103,716.19 9,061,963,442.43 5,366,664,593.11 4,609,610,578.35 31,046,342,330.08
As at 30 June 2013, other secured obligations in respect of the 201366 A30H + AEEHINESE

Group’s commitments to external parties are detailed in Note VII. HEMREFETMNSEFRLMZEL -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices.
It mainly includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other price

risk, such as equity investment price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates primarily relates to the Group’s financial

instruments with a floating interest rate.

The table below is a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk. It reflects
the effects on the net profit (through the impact on floating interest
rate of financial assets and liabilities) and shareholders' equity,
when there are reasonable and potential changes in interest rates,

under the presumption that other variables remain unchanged.

FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
201366308 (A E¥T)
+ o Hofth O IE (4])

4. TRTARHRERR(E)

% = B2

MRk RESRIANAREEA

ol R R @ 7 2 B TR B AR B if B

ERBHRR - MI5EREZEBIEFR
[ELRE - HNE R B A0 E (B S RS

@F*Iﬂhéﬁﬁﬂh°

Tl E 2 B

FEREE  RESHRIANAAEE
sl R SRR & 7 2 B T 5 ) R 2 B i B
EREHRR - AEBEBRA TS
EBEHMRARF EHRNEELUFEF
KBNS IEARM -

TERABMERBOGEMEDIN - KRB
THEEMESIENER T - FEE
ERIE - ATREME B - BEIFNE
CERUIPNEEREEMBEN
FEINBREGEETNTE -

Shareholders’

Benchmark Net profit equity
increase/ increase/ increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)*
HAER FFE RERER
#hn, G #hn, R G *
January - June 2013 20134 1-6 A
RMB AR 5 (228,659.00) -
RMB AR (5) 228,659.00 -
EUR BT 5 (3,655,535.00) -
EUR BT (5) 3,655,535.00 -
January — June 2012 20124 1-6 A
RMB AR 5 (660,390.00) -
RMB ARHE (5) 660,390.00 -

* Excluding retaired earnings.

* TEERFWRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Currency risk SNE B B
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows SNERPE - RIEEBMIANAREBE

of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 8 R 2K IR & R = [ M E & R & 8y 2%
AR EN Y R B o 7N 5 (B T BR B SNEE
PEABREIEZEAEENLEETH(E

W s LA [ 78 7N &= (98] 50 iR AR 2 5 /9 1

the Group) and its net investments in overseas subsidiaries. MEER) RERBEINTREHFR

ERM -

exchange rates. The Group'’s exposure to currency risk mainly relates
to its operating activities (when revenue and expenses are settled in
a foreign currency that is different from the functional currency of

The table below is a sensitivity analysis of exchange rate risk. It TR AINER ﬁE’\J@(’E‘Z’IV}E’\Tﬁ Bk
TEEMBETEHBRET - AT
FRYSNEERZESTE  AIgEREE)
equity, when there are reasonable and potential changes in B BEEFMBE(EREBEEEEMN
exchange rate, under the presumption that other variables remain EETEENALBEE L) NKRE

BEELNTE -

reflects the effects on the net profit (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and monetary liabilities) and shareholders’

unchanged.

Exchange rate Net profit Equity

increase/ increase/ increase/

(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)*

= B RERRER

#m, CRA) wmCR4) S CRD)*

January - June 2013 20135 1-6 A

If RMB weakens against USD ARBHETRE 5% 11,885,011.60 6,447,306.90

If RMB strengthens against USD A R#B%H ETHE 5% (11,885,011.60) (6,447,306.90)

If RMB weakens against EUR AREHETERE 5%  (337,704,133.54) 93,454,910.84

If RMB strengthens against EUR A R ¥ BT AHE 5% 337,704,133.54 (93,454,910.84)

If RMB weakens against HKD ARBHBYRE 5% 84,749.42 6,869,579.34

If RMB strengthens against HKD A R¥ %8 A A 5% (84,749.42) (6,869,579.34)
January — June 2012 20124 1-6 B

If RMB weakens against USD ARBHETRE 5% 23,719,272.01 5,679,596.78

If RMB strengthens against USD AREBEHETHE 5% (23,719,272.01) (5,679,596.78)

If RMB weakens against EUR ARBHETEE 5% 3,641,877.91 2,988,546.56

If RMB strengthens against EUR AREHETTHE 5% (3,641,877.91) (2,988,546.56)

If RMB weakens against HKD ARBHBEEZE 5% (3,044,536.93) 8,250,723.08

If RMB strengthens against HKD AR EBHE 5% 3,044,536.93 (8,250,723.08)

* Excluding retained earnings.

* TRIEBTERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Market Risk (Continued)

Equity investment price risk

Equity investment price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of share
indices and the value of individual securities. The Group was
exposed to equity investment price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity investments
(Note V.10) as at 30 June 2013. The Group held listed equity
investments that are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and are

valued at quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The market share indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day to the balance sheet
date, and their respective highest and lowest closing points during

the period/year were as follows:

30 June

2013
2013%
6H30H

Shanghai — A Share Index 8 —ARRIEE

1,979

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346308 (A E¥T)

+ ﬁ%i%%ﬁ (%)

SRIARERER(E)

mi Rk (4E)

Hm TAKEERER

Em TAREEERER  REERNE

BAH R BEEKREEBKERE

REAFEENE MR ENRERE - 7

20136 A30H ' AKBERENE

Eﬂiﬁ%ﬂfﬁﬂj%%iﬁélﬂ&ﬁ(ﬁfﬁ
CI0)MERER T EREMEL

E’Jﬁi‘ TAKREBRRARZT - K&

ERBENLEmEa T ARER LGFE

AREGMET  WEEEBERBIN

MiZHRETE -

NTEFRGHN  EREOIEER
BEXRANR S ANERENTIERE
B URBEA/ FEANEEAMN
ReRBREHMEEWERNT

January -
June 2013 2012
le[pls78 31 December Highest/
Lowest 2012 Lowest
20135 1-6 8 20124 20124
BEBE 12A318 &E/RIE
2,434/1,950 2,376 2,578/2,052
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X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)

4.

Market Risk (Continued)

Equity investment price risk (Continued)

+ ﬁ1&i£$

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s net

profit and equity to every 5% change in the fair values of the equity

investments, with all other variables held constant (based on their

carrying amounts at the balance sheet date). For the purpose of this

sensitivity analysis, for the available-for-sale equity investments, the

effect is deemed to be on the changes in fair values of available-for-

sale equity investments and no account is given to factors such as

impairment which might affect the income statement.

Carrying value

(%E)

I‘D%ﬂﬁ“ ( f'éi)
m TAREERER (&)

TERHRAT - EMBEEMEERTT
g AEENFNENRRER S
RETARENAABENES%H
EH(AEERERANEEEER
EHE) SR - RAGRMED M
FoOHRAHEERRTARE &

FEREAHAHLERETARE
RABEEZPHOFE  MTZEARE

RS
1%

MERARESRHEE -

of equity Increase in Increase in
investments net profit equity*
EBRITARE 3 FH RERERE
FREEE & 3 0 *
January - June 2013 20135 1-6 A
Equity investments EmTHERE
Shanghai — Available-for-sale bR EER
equity investments TEEE 204,000,000.00 - 8,670,000.00

2012

Equity investments

Shanghai — Available-for-sale
equity investments

20124

X THEKLE
EE-—mHEEERER
THEEE

269,200,000.00

- 11,441,000.00

* Excluding retained earnings.

* TERELRFRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Fair value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. The following methods and assumptions

were used to estimate the fair values.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable,
accounts receivable, other receivables, notes payable, accounts
payable, other payables and short-term loans etc. approximate
their carrying amounts due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. The fair values of long-term borrowings and bonds
payable approximate their carrying amount due to the similarity
between the contracted interest rate, and coupon rate and market

interest rate.

The fair values of listed financial instruments are determined based

on the quoted market prices.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for fair value measurement:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities available on the
measurement date; Level 2: fair values measured by making
necessary adjustments to quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities
from active markets available on the measurement date or quoted
prices of identical or similar assets or liabilities from non-active
markets; Level 3: fair values measured based on inputs used by
market participants in the valuation of assets or liabilities when
there is no available comparable market prices of identical or similar

assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)
4. Financial instruments and their risks (Continued)
Fair value (Continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value:
30 June 2013 (Unaudited)
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
2013464304 (A E¥T)

+ o Hifth B IH (4])

4. SRITARHERER(E)
AREE(E)
UARBEAENSHIA
201346 H30H (KiEHFEE)

Total

A
=N

Level 3
E=-EBIK

Level 2
FZEBIR

Level 1
E—EBR
Financial assets held for trading 54 & &R =
Other current assets HithREAE =
Avaliable-for-sale financial assets A[ftIHESREE AU
Put options in relation to B R R ER
minority interests TR &

12 December 2012 (Audited)

267,379,520.00
350,000,000.00

606,421,160.75

267,379,520.00
350,000,000.00
204,000,000.00

606,421,160.75

20124F 12431 H (88 #%)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—ER E_EIX FZEBX a&t

Financial assets held for trading 2 514 & F&E - - 137,050,693.51  137,050,693.51

Other current assets HineEE - - 70,000,000.00  70,000,000.00

Available-for-sale financial assets At &S REE 269,200,000.00 - - 269,200,000.00
Put options in relation to HAOHR R

minority interests Gl ke - - 622,325,082.99 622,325,082.99

Available-for-sale financial assets are detailed in Note V.10.

5. Other financial information

At EeREEFRMER 10

5. HttBKER

30 June 2013
2013F6A30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Group
%8

Company

AL

RBEEFE
BAERRDAR

Net current assets 17,590,537,470.38

47,299,829,560.90

12,139,841,723.99

Total assets less current liabilities 27,273,231,757.10

31 December 2012
20124127318
(Audited)
(B&#)
Group
&8

Company

NG

15,236,358,674.02
42,396,587,588.73

12,109,227,708.00
25,894,627,585.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Other Significant Events (Continued)

6.

Defined benefit plans

Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG (GP), Linde Hydraulics GmbH
& Co. KG (LP) and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, all being
subsidiaries of the Group, provide defined benefit plans for their
staffs and staffs of their subsidiaries as well as their family members

who are economically dependent on their income.

As at the balance sheet date, the management of the Group
recognized defined benefit plans liability based on the present
value of defined benefit obligation calculated by the independent
actuaries, less fair value of the planned assets. The major

assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate 3.50%
Expected return on assets of the defined benefit plans 5.30%
Expected growth rate of compensation 2.75%
Expected growth rate of pension 1.75%

The Group newly established Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG (GP)
in 2012 and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG (LP), and completed
its acquisition of Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG on 27 December
2012. Profit or loss in relation to the defined benefit plans in the
current period is RMB17,080,809.67.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements

1.

Accounts receivable

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
except for new customers, where payment in advance or cash
on delivery is normally required. The credit period of accounts
receivable is generally one month, extending up to six months for

major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is

presented as follows:
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PO 5 i % M R (48)
201346 A308 (A E¥T)

T B AR EEME R E i

T

1. FEWBER
AEBRESHNE S ERAEER
SHE  B-—REXFESENZR
HEE BN R RET - SRR
B1ER  ZEEFANERZGHE
A - BRI i S -

|

BIEFER A - EURERRER ST
™

30 June 2013 31 December 2012

20136 A30H 2012912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Within 1 year 1FE AR
1-2 years 18226
2-3 years 2% 3%F
Over 3 years 3FME

1,419,050,428.69

3,518,650.03

Less: Provision for bad debt for

accounts receivable

o EMRFUR R

1,422,569,078.72

77,696,829.86

1,344,872,248.86

Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are

presented as follows:

395,193,563.49

3,518,650.03

398,712,213.52

23,155,234.63

375,556,978.89

FENER R R B ESHIT ¢

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZK)

23,155,234.63
54,541,595.23

Opening balance FH
Provision for the period EREHR
Decrease during the period ANERR A
Reversal L4
Closing balance FRE

77,696,829.86

31 December 2012
2012912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

32,468,493.06

(9,313,258.43)

23,155,234.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6HA308 (AR T)

|

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial {— B/ 5] 3 5 0 % #i3R JH H 5E
Statements (Continued) B(E)
1.  Accounts receivable (Continued) 1. EBWERER(E)

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

Gross carrying Provision for

amount Proportion bad debt Percentage
&8 t 4l BIREHE  FHRHHA
(%) (%)

Individually significant BIHGEEAT
items for which BIEETREIRER
provision for bad debt is
recognized separately

ltems for which provision %44 FHIRIEBREHE
for bad debt is

recognized by group 1,422,569,078.72 77,696,829.86
Not individually significant %8184 58 8 1 5 A {2
items for which BIFEIZ R AR

provision for bad debt is

recognized separately

1,422,569,078.72 77,696,829.86
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

201396 H30H (A E#T)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— £/ &) 3= % B % #3236 H

Statements (Continued) ()
1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

1. BEWRRF ()

HL_Ll

31 December 2012
2012%12H31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)
Gross carrying Provision for

amount  Proportion bad debt Percentage
k| Lt I EERAEE  FTRLO
(%) (%)
Individually significant items ~— I8 4 88 A
for which provision for bad BRI
debt is recognized separately - -
Items for which provision for & #H & G BR &M
bad debt is recognized
by group 398,712,213.52 100.00 23,155,234.63 5.81
Not individually significant BIESREETEANE
items for which provision BIAHIE R AR
for bad debt is recognized
separately - -
398,712,213.52 100.00 23,155,234.63
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) BAHS R R Mk (4
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6HA308 (AR T)

|

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial {— B/ 5] 3 5 0 % #i3R JH H 5E

Statements (Continued) B(E)
1. Accounts receivable (Continued) 1. EWERM(E)
As at 30 June 2013, there was no individually significant accounts MR2013F6A30R  EEHESGHEKX
receivable for which provision for bad debt was recognized W EE TH AT IR IR AR YEE A FE W R RIS R
separately (31 December 2012: Nil). (20124F12H318 : £&) o
Provision for bad debt is recognized by group as follows: REATHREREBNOT ¢
30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBEXK)
Gross carrying Provision for
amount Proportion bad debt Percentage
| t 4l RERER  FHREESH
(%) (%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 1,419,050,428.69 99.75 74,178,179.83
1-2 years 1224 = = =
2-3 years 2E3F = =
3-4 years 3E4F = =
4-5 years 4Z54F = =
Over 5 years 5F LA E 3,518,650.03 . 3,518,650.03

1,422,569,078.72 77,696,829.86
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial

Statements (Continued)

1.

Accounts receivable (Continued)
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RS i 25 B 5 (48
201396 H30H (A E#T)
T B AR EEME R E i

B ()
1. BEWRRF ()

31 December 2012
2012F12A31H

(Audited)
(REZ)
Gross carrying Provision for

amount  Proportion bad debt Percentage
k| Lt I EERAEE  FTRLO
(%) (%)
Within 1 year 1FEAR 395,193,563.49 99.12 19,636,584.60 4.97
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E44F - - - _
4-5 years 454 - - - -
Over 5 years 54 LA 3,518,650.03 0.88 3,518,650.03 100.00

398,712,213.52

100.00 23,155,234.63

As at 30 June 2013, there was no accounts receivable from

shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more of the voting

shares of the Company (31 December 2012: Nil).

MR2013F6A30R + REEFHEFE
FEWRIZFAEARNRES%(E5%) A LR
RIERR D IR BALERF (20124
128318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (AR ¥oT)
Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— #:/A 5 £E % #HKIHEH 5
Statements (Continued) B(E)
Accounts receivable (Continued) FEURBRZR (&)
As at 30 June 2013, the top 5 accounts receivable are presented as K2013F6H30H @ [EUWERR S A
follows: ALMT
Percentage of Relationship
total accounts with
Amount Age receivable the Group
1 & AR X HAKE
&8 IR BRI B 2REA
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor 433,928,249.97 Within 1 year 30.50 Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. TR FAA]
PR ERTEFR DA
Beijing Foton Daimler 182,080,142.45 Within 1 year 12.80 Non-related Party
Automotive Co., Ltd. 15 AR FERAE
IR EHBEYAEFRA A
Shanxi Dayun Automobile 152,902,402.00 Within 1 year 10.75 Non-related Party
Manufacturing Co., Ltd TR JERERE
P RE R ERERRAF
Dongfeng Liuzhou Motor 78,152,622.22 Within 1 year 5.49 Related Party
Co., Ltd. TR BAE 77
REMMTEERA A
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science 76,228,650.00 Within 1 year 5.36 Non-related Party
and Technology Co., Ltd TR FERERE
HREERRG AR A A
923,292,066.64 64.90
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— f:/A &) F B0 % §FHH &
Statements (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)
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RS i 25 B 5 (48
201396 H30H (A E#T)

|

B ()
1. BEWRRF ()

As at 31 December 2012, the top 5 accounts receivable are 2012912 A318 © EWERZR &
presented as follows: AIEBAT :
Percentage of Relationship
total accounts with
Amount Age receivable the Group
15 FE K BR =X BEAREE
&% BR#R BEHE B RES
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto 116,537,895.37 Within 1 year 29.23 Non-related Party
Factory TR FERERE
— R EETERRAR
Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co., Ltd 63,640,572.49 Within 1 year 15.96 Non-related Party
BMFREERNERRAT TFEUR JERARE
Beijing Foton Daimler 50,018,137.26 Within 1 year 12.54 Non-related Party
Automotive Co., Ltd TFE A FERARE
IR EHEESAEFRAA]
Chongging Beifang Benchi 30,446,819.67 Within 1 year 7.64 Related Party
Truck Co., Ltd. T AR Bal:chay
EEFIHFREERAA
Hangzhou Yaman Engine 18,748,360.00 Within 1 year 4.70 Non-related Party
Co., Ltd TFEURA FERARE TS
MINGE = BB AR QA
279,391,784.79 70.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial

Statements (Continued)
2. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
201346 A30A (A E#T)

T BE O ] BB R I H

()
2. HEWR

|

Hip UK BRER DT AN T

30 June 2013
20136 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Within 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years

3 years

1F AR
1226
2E3F
3FEP L

1,456,311,261.97
113,994,512.60
65,057,932.48
24,643,999.28

Less: Provision for bad debt for other

receivables

B IR AR R

1,660,007,706.33

71,234,452.10

Closing balance

FRE

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

1,105,080,877.47
64,037,019.32
10,846,244.30
18,261,506.60

1,198,225,647.69

42,059,021.46

1,588,773,254.23

1,156,166,626.23

30June 2013 31 December 2012
2013568308 2012512318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (f5%)
Gross Provision for Gross Provision for
carryingamount  Proportion GEDO (e canyingamount  Proportion baddebt  Percentage
&8 bl SRERE  HERA % il SRR RN
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Indvidually significant EEER - - - - - -
Items for which provision for bad debt %484 sHESEREfR
is recognized by group 1,660,007,706.33 100.00 71,234452.10 [PERS 1,198,225,647.69 100.00 42,059,021.46 351
Not individually significant BETEL - - - - - - - -
1,660,007,706.33 100.00 71,234,452.10 LB 1,198,225,647.69 100.00 42,059,021.46 351

M2013F6H30H EEBELHES
A B A AT IR R B A9 EL At JB IR 3R
(20124128318 : #&) -

As at 30 June 2013, there was no individually significant other
receivables for which provision for bad debt was recognized
separately (31 December 2012: Nil).



Interim Report 2013 FAsks 281

PO 5 i % M R (48)
201346 A308 (A E¥T)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— £/ &) F % B % # % 5 H 5
Statements (Continued) B(H)
2. Other receivables (Continued) 2. HiEWR(E)
Provision for bad debt is recognized by group as follow: REAFTIREREBNOT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

|

30June 2013 31 December 2012
201356830R 20128127318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (&57)
Gross Provision for Gross Provision for
carrying amount  Proportion WERGEEEEENE  camyingamount —— Proportion baddebt  Percentage
&8 1] REERE  HELA % il SRR HRU
(%) (%) (%) (%)
Within 1 year 1EMR 1,456,311,261.97 81.13 14,615,862.34 IS 1,105,080,877.47 2.3 12,029,643.55 1.09
12 years 1225 113,994512.60 6.87 17,099,176.89 15.00 64,037,01932 534 9,605,552.90 1500
2-3 years 123% 65,057,932.48 392 19,517,379.74 30.00 10,846,244.30 091 32538739 3000
34 years 3Z4F 8,676,995.44 052 4,338,497.72 50.00 2,167,631.64 018 1,0833815.82 50.00
45 years 4E5F 1,517,342.15 0.09 121387372 80.00 38,695.30 0.00 30,956.24 80.00
Over 5 years SENE 14,449,661.69 0.87 14,449,661.69 100.00 16,055,179.66 134 16,055,179.66 100.00
Total Bt 1,660,007,706.33 100.00 71,234452.10 1,198,225,647.69 100.00 42,059,021.46

M2013F6H30H @ EtENRZEEE
AMAZWET :

As at 30 June 2013, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

follows:

Percentage of Relationship
total accounts with
Amount Age receivable the Group
i FE W BR X BRAEE
] BRiR HEHEE B B &
Weichai Power (Weifang) 1,232,712,914.97 Within 1 year 74.26 Related Party
Casting Co., Ltd. TR B
B ) (D) SR
BRAT
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang 297,150,000.00 Within 3 years 17.90 Related Party
Vehicles Manufacturing 3FUA B2lchay
Co., Ltd.
EEMRE/II/ABRE
ERAF
Weichai Power (Chongging) 60,808,968.39 1-3 years 3.66 Related Party
Western Development 1-34 AR
Co., Ltd.
LB N (EE)ABERE
ABRAA
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery 10,823,892.02 2-3 years 0.65 Related Party
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 2-3%F Bl
TR IR KB e B35
BEREERAF
Hangzhou Hongyuan Machinery 9,203,387.08 Over 5 years 0.55 Non-related Party
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 5L E Bl )
TR IR AR A 7]
1,610,699,162.46 97.02
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20136 H30H (AR ¥oT)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— £:/A &) F B0 # @3 H H &
Statements (Continued) B (HE)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2.
As at 31 December 2012, the top 5 other receivables are presented

as follows:

HaEWRR(E)
M2012F12A318 - HithERZSE
FBRIAAWT ¢

Percentage of Relationship
total accounts with
Amount Age receivable the Group
1 FE W AR X BRAEE
&8 BR#R BEHEEBH 2REA
Weichai Power (Weifang) 858,305,631.80 Within 1 year 71.63 Related Party
Casting Co., Ltd. TR Bal:cbay
HESRE) ) (D) R
BRAA
Chongging Jialing Chuanjiang 115,800,000.00 Within 2 years 9.66 Related Party
Vehicles Manufacturing 2F R Bal:cbay
Co., Ltd.
EEMREINTAERE
BRAA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited 94,067,880.00 Within 1 year 7.85 Related Party
SRR BB R A A 15 AR oyl
Weichai Power (Chongqing) 56,370,000.00 1-2 years 4.70 Related Party
Western Development 1-24F Balchay
Co., Ltd.
HSeE) N (EE )R
BRAA
Weichai Power (Weifang) 15,222,143.71 Within 1 year 1.27 Related Party
Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. TR Balcbay
HESCE) ) (D) SRR
BRAA
1,139,765,655.51 95.11

As at 30 June 2013, there was no other receivables from
shareholders that held 5% (including 5%) or more in the voting
shares of the Company (31 December 2012: RMB94,067,880.00).

20136 A308 « AERF#HEFE
EWHAERRAS%(E5%) A LR
SRIERR D B IR R B AL A FRIE (20124
12A31H : AK%94,067,880.00

JT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 H30H (A R¥oT)
XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— f:/A &) F B0 % §FHH &
Statements (Continued) B(E)
3. Investment in associates 3. HBELERSE
Registered Legal Nature of Registered
Type of enterprise address representative business capital
hEER o i 3t EARE EBHE EMER
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Shanghai Nie Xinyong Project 150,000,000.00
Co., Ltd. £&m =B investment
FEEHRAIRKRERARAA EE®RE
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Shanghai Xu Hua Dong Investment 400,000,000.00
Fund Partnership Enterprise iayoni RER consultation
(Limited Partnership) &
BE(EE)RBEREEGEREE
(BR&A&R)
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Jinan Shen Chuan Dong Business 1,000,000,000.00

Finance Co., Ltd. pides] FA{ER approved by
WRETHEEGFHER AT China Banking
Regulatory
Commission
IREEEHE TS
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.  Beijing Dong Ping Finance leasing 920,000,000.00
IWEREHERR AR Sl 5T MEHE

Closing balance  Closing balance  Closing balance Revenue Net profit

of total assets  of total liabilities  of total net assets  in current period in current period

EEARNRY SEAESORE TFEEAGORE EXYOARE  FARLHY

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye LBEHAIERERRAR

Investment Co., Ltd. 436,749,672.03 85,043,665.46 351,706,006.57 - (11,106,026.65)
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment BL(LE)REREES

Fund Partnership Enterprise AELCE(ERARE)

(Limited Partnership) 80,083,307.07 - 80,083,307.07 - 83,307.07
Shandong Heavy Industry Group 1L RE T EEEKAB AT

Finance Co., Ltd. 3,634,285,164.84  2,602,980914.36  1,031,304,250.48 45,747,960.44 19,026,438.16
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. |IEHEREBRAH 4,580,386,320.50  3,559,643,546.54  1,020,742,773.96 143,016,709.46 29,659,356.15
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30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6HA308 (AR T)

XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)
4. Long-term equity investments

T BE O ] BB R I H

B (H)
RKRERE

4.

JEETREXAE
Non-listing investment equity method 3F 1% & e zs %

Non-listing investment cost method

B REIBOE R ERE R

Less: Provision for impairment of

long-term equity investment

30 June 2013

6,555,804,981.76

544,170,768.29

7,099,975,750.05

133,186,712.10

6,966,789,037.95

|

31 December 2012

20136 A30H 2012412 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

6,299,750,997.76
461,952,115.46

6,761,703,113.22

133,186,712.10

6,628,516,401.12

MN2013FE6 A30H » RAE K B
RERRMINT

As at 30 June 2013, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

under cost method was as follows:

Increase/ Provision for
impairment Cash
dividendin

current period

reduction

Investment Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof ~ Percentage of Provision for in current

shareholding  votingrights ~ impairment period

REitR
AEER

cost balance period balance

RERAEE B8 RHER Bx8 BREH R HEER KEREAA

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

5098%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

5098%

Weichai Power (Wefang) Spare Part Resources Co, Ltd, 48171 (%5 B R4 BER AT
Weicha Power (Wefang) Oi o, Ltd. 497 (85 BRERAT
Weicha Power (Wefang) Casting Co, Lid. #587(55)20ERLT
Baudoui (Wefang) Power Co, Ltd. BHE(#5)80ERAT

10141023834 101,410.238.34 °
10,706,159.11  10,706,159.1 =
460,150,000.00  40,150,000.00

13,066,352.00 -

101,41023834
10,706,159.11
460,150,000.00
13,066,352.00

- 102,057,205
66484946

13,066,352.00

Thuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co, L1d.

Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co, Ltd.

Thuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co,, Ltd.

TorchImport & Export Co, Lid.

WEICHAINORTH AMERICA

Weichai Power (Wefang) Reconstructon Co,, Ltd.

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) nternational
Development Co, Lid.

Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology
Development Co, Lid.

HRHEAEALERRRERD
HRE KB EARRIEAT
AR ERAERARAT
NERRDERERLT
253

B () EREDE
BRN(ER ERERARDT

B8 AERERLT

201,901,925.83
130,898,993.14
38,363,18085
33,973,054.98
214108
122,000,000.00

378,750,138.28

500,000,000.00

201,901,925.83
130,898,993.14
38,363,18085
33,973,054.98
214108
122,000,000.00

378,750,138.28

500,000,000.00

201,901,925.83
130,898,993.14
38,363,18085
33,973,054.98
214108
122,000,000.00

378,750,138.28

500,000,000.00

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

§,284,890.82
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XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)

T BE O ] BB R I H

B (H)

4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4., RHEBRERE(E)
Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof  Percentageof  Provision for incurrent ~ dividendin
Investment cost balance period balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment period  current period
KEiR
RERALE Hag KEER HRY REREA RRELH HEER HEER  AERELA
Weicha Power (Chongqing) Wester Development 54891 (B8 ) RHREAR AT
(o, ltd. 240,000,000.00 240,000,000 240,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00%
WeichaiPower (Befjng) Intemnatonal EREN(LR ERERRERT
Resource Investment Co,, Ltd. 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% -
Xinjiang Equipment Imports and Exports Co, Ltd. FEREELOERAR - - - - - (12,118,687.10)
Weichai Power (Gingzhou) Drve Contol Technology 448715 ) @B RAT
(o, ltd. 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00%
Thuzhou Gear Co, L IHESRERREAR S3IBA 530374321 5323347821 8191% 8191%
Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory o, L1 LERERERRAR 3016346971 316346971 3916346971 T5.00% T5.00%
WeichaiPower (Wefang) ntensve Logisies Co, Ltd. #4813 B2 R A 1040000000 10,400000.00 10,400,000.00 5200% 5200%
Shaami Heavy-duty Motor o, Lt. HEEYAEERAT 1482,116,00085 1482,116,00085 - 1,482,116,00085 51.00% 51.00%
ShaanxiFast Gear Co, Ltd. RELTRESERAT 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59 51.00% 51.00%
Shaanxi Hande Ave Co,, Ltd. REZESEERLA 1450735803 14)507,358.03 14,507,358.03 3.06% 3.06%
Shandong Syergy O Co, L. LEERERERLE 9691800 942691800 94269180 46.00% 46.00%
B FastGear Co, L1, BELTRERERDY 1098648327 1098648327 1098648327 255% 255%
Chongging ilng Chuanjiang Vehices Manufactuing ~ EEFERE T 5ERERRAT
(o, Ltd. 280,000,000.00  45,000,00000  235,000,000.00 280,000,000.00 51.00% 51.00%
WEICHAI SNGAPORE PTE. LTD WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 6.29 6.29 = 6.29 100% 100%

Dallan Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co,, Ltd.
Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co,, Ltd.

REEFRRIERRAT
HXER(ER) L REEERDT

24,943,50000
1987,632.00

24,943,50000

7,987,632.00

1731%
100%

24,943,50000
7,987,632.00

1731%
100%

Thuzhou GearShare o, Lt. fHERRAERAA 168000000 1,680,000.00 - 168000000 245% 245% -
Eastern Life Insurance Co,, Ltd. BEAERRERAR 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 - 60,000,00000 750% 750% (60,000,000.00)
New Century Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd. FtieRRgEaRLA 61,08,025.00 61,068,050 - 61,068025.00 1.2% 11.22%  (61,068,025.00)
Foton Heanp-uty Machinery Co, Lt ERENBARNERLA 3000000000 30,000,000.00 - 3000000000 466% 466% -
Cost method toal AEERT 6,555,804981.76 6,299,750997.76 25605398400 6,555,804,981.76 (133,186,712.10) 116,346,139.40

As at 30 June 2013, breakdown of long-term equity investments

under equity method was as follows:

MR2013F6A30H @ AR E
LEBRMEINT

Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Investment Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof ~ Percentageof  Provision for incurrent  dividendin
cost balance period balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment period  current period
LY hp
REAAER EDES KERE BRY BRER  RRERA HEER HEER  AEREAA
Equity method {3533
Guanya (Shanghl) hvestment Fund Partnerhp Enfeprise. 25 18 RgiR B 244802 (BB
(Limited Parttership) 19,800,000.00 - 1981666141 19,816,66141 -
Shengha Xlian Chuzngpe estment Co, L. HEARHEREERAT BREBB GL0NANTT AT 1IBM3E053 -
Shandong Heaw ndusty Group FrenceCo, Ld UFETETHEERAT 000000000 2024265478 3805876 2062299241 -
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd. EREREERDT 180,000,00000  198505,147.91 117541303 199,680,560.94 6,615,000.00
Equity method tofal ERizas 4565368325 46195211546 8221865283  544170,768.29 6,615,00000
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XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial +— £:/A &) F B0 # @3 H H &

Statements (Continued) B(E)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4., RHEBRERE(E)
As at 31 December 2012, breakdown of long-term equity MR2012F 128318 » KA K BAR%
investments under cost method was as follows: EIRERMANT
Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment (ash
Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof  Percentage of  Provision for incurent — dividendin
Investment cost balance period balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment period  current period

LE
RERsLE gng AE%R BRE BBUR RREL AERE  MERE  AERRA

Weicha Power (Weflang)Spare Pat Resources Co, Lid. 514817 10141023834 10141023834 - 10141023834 100.00% 100.00% - - 80680
Weicha Power (Wefang) O Co, Lt. L5 1070615911 10,706,159.11 - 1070615911 10000% 10000% - - 1638632
Weichai Power (Wefang) Casting Co, Lid. 8 (45)80ERAT 460,150,000.00  460,150,000.00 - 46015000000 100.00% 100.00% - - 16343431837
Thuzhou Torch Sprkplugs o, L. j 19019583 18598405824 1591786759 201901958 10000% 10000% - - 1598404%
Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co, Lid. 130,898,993.14  130,898,993.14 - 13089899314 100.00% 100.00% - - -
ZhuzhouTorch Auto Lightng Co, L KA ERERARREAAA 1836319085 38363,16085 - B3B8 10000% 10000% - - -
Thuzhou Torch Auto Seling Co, Lt HRAE T ERE AL - 1591786759 (1591786759) - NA NA - - -
TEE T

Torch Import & Byport Co, Ltd NEEENEREALT BIBSA8 3391305498 - BIB0% 100.00% 100.00% - - -
WEICHAI POWER MAT AUTOMATIVE, INC. BEIEDA W48 B5IRBE UITN0 AL 10000% 10000% - - -
Weichai Power (Weffang) Reconstruction Co, Ltd. BN (55 BEEAT 122,000,00000  122,000,000.00 - 122,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - 313414016
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) Internatonal Development Co, 548171 (5% | B2 B AR AT

ltd. 37875013828 18152278400 19720135428 318750,138.28 10000% 100.00% - - -
WelchaiPower (Shangha) Technology Development 90 LBIMRERERAA

(o, 1t 50000000000 500,000,000.00 - 5000000000 10000% 10000% - - -
Weicha Power (Chongging) Wester Development #5828 FHRRERA

(o, ltd. 24000000000 24000000000 - 24000000000 10000% 10000% - - -
Weichai Power (Befing) International ’

Resource vestment o, Lt 30000000000 300,000,000.00 - 30000000000 10000% 100.00% - - -
Xinjiang Equipment Imports and Exports Co,, Ltd - - - - - - (118687.10) - -

Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control Technology

(o, Ltd. 150,000,000.00 100,000,000 50,000,000.00  150,000,000.00 100.00% 100.00% - - -

Thuzhou Torch Property Development Co,, Ltd. - 135930167 (13,592,301.67) - 0.00% 0.00% - - -
Thuzhou Gear Co, L1d. S3BUTBA 533N - 5347 87.91% 87.91% - - 22119200
Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co, Lid. 3916346971 3916346971 - 3916346971 75.00% 75.00% - - 4a791%
Dongfeng Off-road Ve Co, Ltd. - TSAISTI83T (T54157283) - 0.00% 000% - - -
Mudanang Futong Automotive Air Conditoner Co, Ltd - 9588208738 (95,882,087.38) - 000% 000% - - -
Weichai Power (Wefang) ntensive Logistcs Co,, Ltd. 10400,00000 10,400,000.00 - 10400,000.00 52.00% 52.00% - - -
Shaani Heavy-duty Motor Co, Ltd. 1,482,116,00085 1,482,116,000.85 - 1482,116,00085 51.00% 51.00% - - 56,100,000.00
Shaani Fast Gear Co, Lid. 1,082,558,680.59  1,082,558,680.59 - 1,082,558,680.59 51.00% 51.00% - - 190,183,118.40
Shaani Hande Ave Co, Ld. NEEEERERAT 1450735803 1450735803 - 1450735803 306% 306% - - ST %74
Shandong Syergy O Co, L LEEERRERLT 94601800 94269180 - 9mR90 1500% 1500% - - -
Baoj FastGear Co, Lt BEEIRERARLA 10964827 109648327 - 10986482 255% 255% - - -
Chongging Jlng Chuanjing Vehickes Manufactung ~~ BRTIEIE T B HiEER AT

(o, ltd. 45,000,000.00 - 4500000000 45,000,00000 2000% 2000% - - -
WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 629 - 629 629 100% 100% - - -
Dallan Hongyuan Machinery Manufacturing Co, Ltd. AR RHEERRLE 249850000 - 49350000 2494350000 1731% 1731% - - -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, Lid. KHERRAERAA 168000000 1,680,00000 - 168000000 245% 145% - - -
Eastern Life Insurance Co, Lid. FRABRRERAA 60,000,000.00 60,000,000 - 60,000,00000 750% 750%  (60,000,000.00) - -
N Centry FianceLeasing o, Ld e aREERAT 6106802500 610680500 - 608050 12% 12% (6106802500 - -
Foton Heawy-duy Mechiney o, Lt FREERROERAT 000000000 3000000000 - 00000 465% 465% - - -

Cost method toal AEERH 69975099776 6,123,083 25461 176,667,743.15 6,299,75099776 (133,186,712.10) - ST
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Statements (Continued) B(H)

4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4.
As at 31 December 2012, the breakdown of long-term equity

investments under equity method was as follows:

REKRERE (&)
R20126F12 8318 @ BRARHR
ERERMMT :

Increase/ Provision for
reduction impairment Cash
Opening in current Closing ~ Percentageof ~ Percentageof  Provision for incurrent  dividend in
Investment cost balance Jear balance  shareholding  votingrights  impairment year  current year
REHR
RENALE E% KERR #RY BRER RRERA HERR HEERE AEREMA
Equty method Eai
WeichaiPower Westport New Energy ngine Co, td.  4E 4B N15RAT - SEETONSTE  (358679576) - - - - - 1315164
Shangh Yinlian Chuangye Investment Co, Lid. HEERHERELRAA (585368305 1450426736 (B401I95459) 6102231277 £k B3 - - 6750000000
Shandong Heay ndusty Group Finance Co, Lid WREIEBABERAA 200,000,000.00 - WDAAGLTS 004465478 000 00 - - -
Shanzhong Finance Leasig Co, Ltd LERERERRAT 19000000000 19089282658 761232133 19850514791 1957 1957 - - 198756000
Equty method ot ERiad (585368325 9179501970 015709576 46195211546 - - T0ET B
5. Revenue and cost of sales 5. EEWAREAE
Revenue Cost of sales
=E L ON EE %N
January-June 2013 January-June 2012 January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013F1-6 A 2012%1-6 4 2013%1-6 2012%1-6
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (m&7) (REER) (&&%)
Principal operations TEEB
Sale of goods and others R HE L E 11,788,847,397.94 9,062,850,695.28 8,297,953,497.71 6,098,149,172.28
1t
Other operations B %% 593,401,276.45 762,001,590.07 543,873,877.18 722,637,013.38
12,382,248,674.39 9,824,852,285.35 8,841,827,374.89 6,820,786,185.66
Information on principal operations by sectors was as follows: FEEBNAITESEENOT ¢
Revenue Cost of sales
£V ON EERE
January-June 2013 January-June 2012 January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013F1-6 A 2012F1-6 2013F1-6 A 2012F1-6
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (B %) (REER) (&&EZ)
Manufacturing of RBEHLE
transportation equipment ~ ZliE % 11,788,847,397.94 9,062,850,695.28 8,297,953,497.71 6,098,149,172.28
11,788,847,397.94 9,062,850,695.28 8,297,953,497.71 6,098,149,172.28
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XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial
Statements (Continued)
5. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January-June 2013 is

FEHS ik R M 5 (48

201346 HA30H (A B#¥T)

T B A E EEB B WRFEEE
T2 (7)

5. ZEEWARKA(E)
2013F1-6 AR ABRFHMEZERA

presented as follows:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor

Co., Ltd.

Beijing Foton Daimler IR ERE RS
Automotive Co., Ltd BRAA

Weichai Power Westport LT REIRE)
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd. AR A @

Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto — AN E S RE
Factory BERAF

Saic-iveco Hongyan Commercial bk @ MAI A A E

Vehicle Co., Ltd.

PR R =N /NIl 2,576,164,241.30

BRAE

Amount

ot

2,558,100,256.41

777,888,774.36

471,147,043.68

438,141,673.89

6,821,441,989.64

Revenue from the top 5 customers from January-June 2012 is

presented as follows:

mF

Proportion of

revenue

(- L ON:41)

(%)

20.81

20.66

6.28

3.81

3.54

Relationship
with the Group
SR = @R R

Subsidiary
FRA]
Non-related party
JERARE
Related party
RaEs 7
Non-related party
JERARE

Non-related party
JERARE

20125 1-6 AR AR EPHEE WA

mF

Proportion of

Relationship with

Amount revenue the Group
SHE  EEEWRALA HEAKERHFR
(%)
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor PTG ER AEAR AR 2,332,932,268.99 23.75 Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. /NG
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. AR EAERN 1,729,021,500.85 17.60 Related party
BRAT ol
Faw Jiefang Qingdao Auto — AN E S RE 604,525,260.22 6.15 Non-related party
Factory BRAA JERAEE T
Baotou Northern Benz Heavy G 3EJtLF E AR E 386,688,747.01 3.94 Non-related party
Truck Company Limited BRAT JERAEE T
Shandong Lingong Construction |11 5 ff T T2 # 285,306,639.32 2.90 Non-related party
Machinery Co., Ltd. ERAT SEREHSE 5
5,338,474,416.39 54.34
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Statements (Continued) B(H)
6. Investment income 6. BEWR
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%1-6A4 2012%1-6 1
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&FE%)
Long-term equity investments under X A ERZ B B R EIRERE
the cost method 116,346,139.40 295,725,971.65
Long-term equity investments under  ## z5EZ E ) R ERERE
the equity method 7,910,723.39 40,496,514.43
Incl: Income from investment in B BEPERE N2
associates 7,910,723.39 40,496,514.43
Investment income from disposal of & F R A EAKREKZE
subsidiaries 124,945,110.95

Investment income from disposal of & H M RHEAREREEL
other long-term equity investments 9 & U 25
Investment income during the period 57 A # 1 & 4 51 & &= HARH

in which the Company held REMTE W=
available-for-sale financial assets 6,400,000.00 4,800,000.00
130,656,862.79 465,967,597.03
Items of long-term equity investments income under the cost A EZENRBRER & W B
method are presented as follows: wm
January-June 2013
2013%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. #4528) H (48 ) EmER AR A7) 102,057,224.55
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. VESEEN (Mt ) BRIE A R 8,284,890.82
Shandong Synergy Oil Co., Ltd. R EBOE M@ AR A A 5,339,174.57
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HELCE) ) (S ) AR A A 664,849.46

116,346,139.40

January-June 2012

2012 1-6 A

(Audited)

(fe &%)

Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd. #4581 G4 ) EmEREBR A A 99,834,026.80
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. VELEEN (ML ) BRIE A A) 31,341,240.16
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. VEYEEN (LY ) B AER AT 163,434,318.37
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. HELEE) ) (S ) AR AR 1,116,386.32

295,725,971.65
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XI. Notes to Key Items of the Parent Financial {— B/ 5] 3 5 0 % #i3R JH H 5E

Statements (Continued) B(E)
6. Investment income (Continued) 6. REWz (&)
ltems of long-term equity investments income under the equity B EZENRRERE K m B
method are presented as follows: (I
January-June 2013
20135 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LEREHERRA A 7,790,413.03
Shangdong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. IWRETSEEMBARDF 3,805,287.63
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment fund Partnership Bh(EE)REREES
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) SEBMAE(BAREE) 16,661.41
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. FEEMAEREABRAT
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine HESETE L IRB N B R A A
Co., Ltd. (3,701,638.68)
7,910,723.39
January-June 2012
2012%1-6 A
(Audited)
(BEZ)
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Co., Ltd. LEEBAXREABRAT 23,873,814.64
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. LEREHEBRAA 4,570,470.20
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine HAETTBI L IRB N BR QA
Co., Ltd 12,052,229.59
40,496,514.43
As at 30 June 2013, the remittance of the Company’s investment M2013F6A308 » KAk E kS

income was subject to no significant restriction. FEESmERREH -
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Statements (Continued) B(H)
7. Supplement to cash flow statement 7. BERERBRTER
January-June 2013 January-June 2012
2013%F1-6 8 20124 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (REZ)
Net profit S 1,871,288,953.11 2,014,440,458.31
Add: Provision for impairment of assets il : 2RI & E R E £ 83,717,025.87 23,116,341.33
Change in special reserve EHIEFEEE 4,056,501.34 -

Depreciation of fixed assets and

investment properties

Bl &EENMCENR
HEFTE

263,742,699.26

Amortization of intangible assets A B 3,672,786.14
(Gain)/loss on disposal of REEREEE -
fixed assets, intangible assets and mIAEMN
other long-term assets Hin REIEER
(W), 18k 519,034.50
Finance expenses B %55 A 75,191,838.86
Investment income & W (130,656,862.79)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax FEIEFTIS R E EM
assets A () 23,486,195.32
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax FEEFSEREBEDN
liabilities 2,/ O ) =
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERRD,(3Em) (101,602,693.46)
(Increase)/decrease in operating et eI TE B Y
receivables (34n) E (5,133,217,731.90)
(Decrease)/increase in operating Lt TEE B
payables R A>), /& hn 3,559,681,221.84
Net cash flow from operating KE TR E AR
activities REMEFH 519,878,968.09

168,200,983.06
3,625,651.30

112,659.82
75,386,454.92
(465,967,597.03)

64,448,337.19

979,968,338.85

(2,415,819,444.72)

(1,899,614,120.62)

(1,452,101,937.59)
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Statements (Continued) B(E)

8. Cash and cash equivalents 8. HERALEZEEY

p=(l

30 June 2013 31 December 2012
201346 H30H 2012912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (REZ)
Cash He
Incl: Cash on hand Hod : EFHR 4 264,516.39 135,837.78
Bank deposit on demand AT BERE AR AT BRITIF K 8,383,972,505.05 9,456,946,623.80
Closing balance of cash and B ERAEeRAS
cash equivalents ZEMRTE 8,384,237,021.44 9,457,082,461.58
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
20134 6H30H 2012912 A31H
Closing balance of cash and H/ FREEECHE
cash equivalents 9,598,537,632.93 11,172,638,035.07
Less: Balance of restricted cash and &, : F B BIR BN EKE 45
cash equivalents 1,214,300,611.49 1,715,555,573.49

Closing balance of cash and cash B ERBLNES

equivalents LEMHE 8,384,237,021.44 9,457,082,461.58
XII. Comparative Amounts T2 iR SR
Some comparative amounts have been restated to conform to the ETHBREEELBER  UFERFE

presentation requirements for the current year. ZHERK o



Interim Report 2013 FAsRsE 293

Supplemental Information on ﬁ]f a’%$ =

Financial Statements 1 7t &kt
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6 H30H (AR T)

1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 1~ JEARH PR A5 W AN SR

Amount from

January - June 2013

20135 1-6 HE& 4
(Unaudited)

(REER)
Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets, including  JEABEEREEH » BEOCTRE
the offset portion of impairment provision for such assets EEMEERTHEED (6,570,517.50)
Government grants charged in profit or loss for SAEHBRNBAME (HEFEL
the current period, except for those closely related to the BEBEZYERE  FEBRRBE
ordinary operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount BT BB TFTREETHITE
or quantity according to certain standard based on state FEZ X HBUT # BIBRSN)
policies 41,860,028.87
Profit and loss from debt restructuring EEHER 2,381,844.91
Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from BRERFIESEEEFHEBOE R
financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading EHREEBII  HEXRSES
and investment income received from disposal of financial MEE RHHEETMBEELEN
assets held for trading, financial liabilities held for trading N BEEHEZ  URBEER
and available-for-sale financial assets, other than effective ShemEE RHUEEMAR
hedging business relating to ordinary operating business M EeRMEEREHNRE
of the Company Ug 25 132,974,506.91
Reversal of impairment provision of BE B 1T RE ORI B Y PR W SR TE RVE
receivables tested individually ZE{H 8 o] 20,899,716.14
Non-operating income and expenses other than B bl =38 7 SN B ZESMIRA
the above items Mt 3,463,107.46
195,008,686.79
Tax effect FIiSHiwEH (50,009,130.55)
Effect on minority interests VHBRHRERTEH (22,384,834.97)

122,614,721.27

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance ~ A& E Y IFLEMIBLRIE B 0V EREKB(AR &

with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information 1T&EHFHRREEREREBEME N EE 19— LK
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 - & #E @ ) (FE & 2 %5(2008]435 ) 84 & 8

XN
)
°

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No.43).
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Supplemental Information on T 5 s R
Financial Statements (Continued) i 70 & R (48)
30 June 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2013F6HA308 (AR T)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - F%& &K BT RIS
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

January - June 2013

20135 1-6 A

Weighted
average RONA
hn¥EFg
FEERER

(%)

Net profit attributable to the
Company’s ordinary shareholders

Net profit attributable to the
Company's ordinary shareholders
after extraordinary profit and loss

FENRAREBERRRS
eZAINE

MR FHIRERBEN
N EE BRI IR %R B

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Basic EPS

EXxgRYE
(RMB)
(AR®T)

Fully Diluted
Earnings
Per Share

mEsR RS
(RMB)
(AR®TT)
N/A

TEA

N/A
TER

January - June 2012 201251-6 A
(Audited)
(REZ)
Fully Diluted
Weighted Earnings
average RONA Basic EPS Per Share
nFEE Y
FEEWRER BEXSR WK mESRKE
(%) (RMB) (RMB)
(AR®T) (AR®T)
Net profit attributable to the BN QR TR R N/A
Company's ordinary shareholders F A E 7.96 0.95 TiE A
Net profit attributable to the HBRIFLCEMBREFTBERN
Company’s ordinary shareholders DA E AR IR R Y B N/A
after extraordinary profit and loss 7.52 0.90 TEA
The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are dilutive. RAmEMRBEEEE SRR -
The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules No.9 7N 5 B ¥ )5 & f U 25 & F1 3 AR W 2 9 1) R 41k BB R

Bl RAETEFNRAREERERHRS
BIZEOSk — FEEWBRMEBRINENTE LT
T)(2010FEE] VIR E

for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public —
Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings per Share
(Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.



Other Information

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2013, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Number of

Interim Report 2013 AR HEAZRE

At R

o N B R I A SR R Ry
i) RE 2
MN_ZE—=FA=+tH % =SHEEAE
REERAQRAREBEEZE(ERRESFSRE
BRI FHREAEGG ) EXVE) KRS - 18
AR RESFT  HERBEESFRATKHE
32 EARRAFENE LML EE - 2R
BEMAREFHITELFRFHOZETA([FE
FADREEMEARAQA REBHZATHEZE &
RAE(WA)WT

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company
HERRRE

EEpnR L4} FrisARE B FrisHREE BITRFEDNL

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 16,512,000 (Note 1) - 0.83%

Eibs EaBEAA (FitzE1)

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%

"I E EaBEBA (FitzE1)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%

BIE ESBERA (FitzE1)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 3,840,000 (Note 1) - 0.19%

RR EaSBEBA GEa

Yeung Sai Hong (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation 63,168,000 (Note 2) - 3.16%

B (FEE3) mXEEERA (F¥7E2)

Julius G. Kiss (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation 41,280,000 (Note 2) - 2.06%

Julius G. Kiss(ZLFIHTG. & Hr) (Fit:t4) mXEEERA (F¥7E2)

Zhang Zhenhua (Note 5) Interest held by spouse 25,300 - 0.001%

FIRE (NEE5) VIR 5o
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Other Information (Continued)

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. These were previously foreign shares of the Company. The foreign shares were ordinary
shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-denominated par value of RMB1.00 each,
which were subscribed for and paid up in a currency other than Renminbi. These shares
became “A" shares of the Company upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

3. Yeung Sai Hong, a non-executive Director, was directly and indirectly interested in the
issued share capital of Peterson Holdings Company Limited (“Peterson”), which in turn
held 63,168,000 “A" shares in the Company.

4. Julius G. Kiss, a non-executive Director, was indirectly interested in the entire issued share
capital of IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. (“IVM"), which in turn held
41,280,000 “A" shares in the Company.

5. Zhang Zhenhua, an independent non-executive Director, was deemed to be interested
in 25,300 “A" shares in the Company which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Wu
Miaodi.

6. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.

HoAty EOR (A1)

3 MR R By M HE B B Ay
Y RE 2 (7))

BEE

1. ZEBRNZARARRANER - NERAA QA Z
TEOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T UARBRBRBRIARISHE - ZER
MRARBAABREFRINESFRSA ETERKBAR
Al Z AR »

2. ZERMDZARBARRINER - IVEBRRBARE]
TEOEEER  UARKIIE SREBAR®E1.00
T UARBUIINEERERER - ZEBHR
ARFABREFRNNEZRZH ETRRBAREZA
B

3. FRTEEHENEERHEEABENERAER
RE(MBEFH D) BBITRAES - MBHFE
63,168,000k AR B AR -

4. SEMITE FEJulius G. Kiss(LFEG. 58 ) MEHEH
B FIVMEME AL RN ER AR (TIVM]) 2
BETRA - MIVMAIHFE 41,280,000 & 2 AJA
&R ©

5. W EBITEERIRERR A7 25,300 AR AA
IR P A ED  MZERNBEZTHERL
TEHEA -

6. ERMINMARERREBETR -



Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

Interim Report 2013 FsRE 297

HoAth B (4

> ﬁ

TP 7S 2 ) AH B 325 1 Je oy ) i

Approximate
percentage

interest in the

Class and entire issued

number of share capital

securities of associated

interested corporations

Name of associated Nature of or deemed as at the Latest

Name of Director corporation interest to be interested Practicable Date

RERERATEH

BERAHRE IEMEE B2 A

BREEREEN BITRAH

EEME HEEEER ERME BEERREE EEESNEIL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 365,250 ordinary shares 0.37%
(BHEE) BaERA & AR

Interest held by spouse 3,000 ordinary shares 0.003%

AT A R

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 365,250 shares in
KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION Group
AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2013, none of the Directors, the chief

executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to

Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to

the Model Code.

B AR

Mi3t © JE #1 77 B = Gordon Riske & KION Group AG #J
365,250 i 15 1 & Em&ﬁ/\ WHERNEEZET
Benita Riske X + & # #5 & #93,000 /R KION Group
AGHRI A A o

B EXPEEEN RZZE—=F"A=+H"
HMmEE - Ei%ﬁﬂl/\%iﬁ%%ﬁ"zﬁ AR E
I REEB B RS - BEROESTEARE

&5 NS R D) 5352 1648 7€ 7B R 80 =z 1R DI By

MFENECMANERIORE » RIRIBELEST
QIZAMSRRARINERIORE -
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Other Information (Continued)

B DR HBRA A

HoAts

FOR(

i

. . . 2 Y N
Details of Changes in Share Capital and B A% 8 Al 32 52 5% 0 F5 A5 U0
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(I) Changes in share capital () BAZSHHER
Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2013) BRAZEFHBERAKR(BRE_ZT—=FN
A=+A)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
LY L] KREHEE (+-) LY il
Transfer
Percentage  New shares of surplus Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued ~ Bonus issue to capital Others Sub-total o of shares (%)
#E HBl (%) RTHR #R o DEEER At Nt 88 $AI(%)
I Restricted crculating shares BRERERR 684,221,513 34.22% - - - - - E821513 34.22%
1. State-owned shares BFER - - - - - - - - -
2. State-owned legal person shares Ery NG 447,869,513 22.40% - - - - - 47869513 22.40%
3. Shares held by other domestic entities ERERR 142,224,000 7.11% - - - - - 142,224,000 7.11%
including; Shares held by domestic 9 BRFREEARR 85,392,000 427% - - - - - 85,392,000 427%
non-state-owned legal persons
Shares held by domestic natural persons BREAASER 56,832,000 284% - - - - - 56,832,000 284%
4. Shares held by foreign entites MERR 94,128,000 471% - - - - - 94,128,000 471%
including: Shares held by overseas H BINEAER 94.128,000 471% - - - - - 94128,000 4.71%
legal persons
Shares held by overseas B BRAER - - - - - - - - -
natural persons
I Non-restricted circulating shares ERERERR 1,315,088,126 65.78% - - - - - 1315088126 65.78%
1. RMB ordinary shares NREERR 829,328,126 41.48% - - - - - 829,328,126 41.48%
2. Domestic isted foreign shares M ENER - - - - - - - - -
3. Overseas listed foreign shares Bo ETENERR 485,760,000 2430% - - - - - 485,760,000 24.30%
4. Others H - - - - - - - - -
Il Total number of shares L 1,999,309,639 100% - - - - - 1999,309,639 100%



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and

Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2013)

The number of shareholders is
156,212 among which 155,927 are

Total number of Shareholders

Interim Report 2013 FREAZRE

B2 0 AR 2
S

() FERRERER(R=F—=
F£XA=1+8)

-

IRERAAE 156,212 » ERARKE

155,927F » HIZAXEE285F -

shareholders of “A" shares and 285

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

AT 108 IR FF IR B R

Approximate Total Number of Number of
percentage of number of restricted  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BREQEAL BRERE ERASREN
L BR#E (%) BRAYH Rie8E Re8E
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.22% 484,199,234 - N/A
BEMAEEREABRAT SMERE TEA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 336,476,400 336,476,400 -
BEEREEERLT BEEEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 74,156,352 74,156,352 -
ERTRE R BEEA
Fujian Longyan Construction Machinery (Group) Domestic non-state-owned legal person 3.26% 65,100,240 57,792,000 -
Company Limited
RREETIER(SE)ERLE BRFEREEA
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 3.16% 63,168,000 63,168,000 -
BHERERAR BINEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H Overseas legal person 2.06% 41,280,000 30,960,000 -
B HIVME B4 0 AERAR BINEA
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.97% 39,379,153 - -
RTEEREREERAF BRFEBREEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.49% 29,740,000 27,600,000 -
Limited
WREPFAELERAERAT BRFEEAZEA
Boshi Value Growth Fund Others 1.13% 22,645,545 - -
BREEERESREES Efth
Zhuzhou State-owned Assets Investment Holding State-owned legal person 1.00% 19,993,049 19,993,049 19,100,000

Group Co., Ltd
TR EERERRERER AT

EHEA

299
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(Continued)

(I

Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2013) (Continued)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Name of shareholder

IRIREE

HoAty EOR (A1)

i

==

(7

(1)

)%@ﬂigﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘%%

FERRBRBER(R=ZF—=
FXA=1H)&)
Al 102 S R & R IR B RIB R

Number of the
non-restricted
shares held Types of shares

FRERERHROBE ROESE

HKSCC Nominees Limited
BERRREEREABRAF

Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd

ARYTRIFIREEEAR QA

Boshi Value Growth Fund
BREEERBEFEEES

China Minsheng Banking Corp — fREE X B 1001 n REFIREE S
B RARIT —RERFI00IEE D PELRELS

Bank of China— 5 7 E/#F 100X SRR IEHEE AR EES
FERIT— S A EFRFI00R SA R IEEESRERES

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H
B FIVM BT 3B s th 4 A PR A )

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China— Bli@/FF 10058 HF LR EES
FETRET - BURFRE100EHEAREES

China Construction Bank — 1B BEE REHELFREES
FRERRIT - ERNEEERANESREES

Fujian Longyan Construction Machinery (Group) Company Limited
RS TR (RE)BRAA

PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited —{E 4% — & @R E 5
HREIARMERBERMNERRR —ER - TRRBER

Notes:

1.

Among the aforesaid shareholders, Boshi Value Growth Fund shared the same fund
manager as that of China Construction Bank — 8 B{EIE R FSFEFIRE LS.

Save as mentioned in the above, it is not certain whether there is any connected
relationship among the top ten holders of non-restricted and circulating shares or
between them and the top ten shareholders of the Company, or whether there is any
acting in concert relationship among or between these persons.

484,199,234 Overseas listed foreign shares

GEE

B ETINE

39,379,153 RMB ordinary shares
AREEEBAR

22,645,545 RMB ordinary shares
AR AL

12,437,073 RMB ordinary shares
AR LB

11,154,655 RMB ordinary shares
AREEEBAR

10,320,000 RMB ordinary shares
AR @A

9,676,024 RMB ordinary shares
AR BT

7,548,207 RMB ordinary shares
AR LB

7,308,240 RMB ordinary shares
AR LB

7,073,384 RMB ordinary shares
AR @A

A LS  BREEERESREREDEZE
RET-EHEEERARESREERS /A&
SEBA

B L ERsN - AR RKRERN0E BRI AR
R ARAT0A MBS RBEBRRRMAT105
RAREBFEEBER b RAMETTER —&
TEIA ©
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Other Information (Continued) HoAt &R (48])

Details of Changes in Share Capital and % 7 % 8 A 3 2 B o0 R B O

Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(Continued)

Substantial Shareholders FERR

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant AR G 1R1EE A M B G G0 £ 336 1EFEMN T
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock 2% 5. & 52 i (& 35 1A & 78 B 32 T 0 SR A9 A1) 25)
Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2013, the following persons (other thanthe 28R~ RZZE—=ZFNA=+H  THAL(E
directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the % + SR EIE A B REFBKRIN) EARRQ ARG K
short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: HEROPHEE TR RER(WE)

Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital Percentage
comprising comprising of total
Long/Short Number of only Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position Ashares A'shares H shares H shares capital
AR {EHIR HERTRA
R LU He/ %8 AR#E BARDY HREA BARDY LG
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
EREREEERAT EaAA 78
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
WRETSERRAR (FE1) BXEEERE e
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 2.23% - - 16.83%
of Shandong Province ("Shandong SASAC") (Note 1) X EEERE e
WREEEAEEEERZRE(IWREEAZ ) ()
Brandes Investment Partners, LP Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 18.99% 3.93%
REEE 18
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 62,668,076 12.90% 3.13%
REEE e
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 4,470,638 0.92% 0.22%
ERHEAA e
Custodian - Corporation/approved  Long - - 39,303,373 8.09% 1.97%
lending agent
REA- 28/ REREREA e
43,774,011 9.01% 2.19%
Beneficial owner Short - - 1,968,200 041% 0.10%
EREAA *E
Schroder Investment Management Limited Investment manager Long - - 38,851,199 7.99% 1.94%
REEE 78
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. (Note 2) (Fi5£2) Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 27,669,400 6.84% 166%
the substantial shareholders
ARFEFEIEE RS e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portifolio (Note 2) (¥f32) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 142%
bectis:s 78
Barclays PLC Person having a security interest in Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
shares
HROHEREERHA e
Interest of corporation controlled by Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%
the substantial shareholder
KRR ARSI EEE R #e
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
the substantial shareholder
RRR I e
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings
(Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

1. State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province
(“Shandong SASAC") held the entire capital of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd.,
which in turn held the entire capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Weifang Diesel Engine Works).

2. The number of H shares reported above held by the relevant substantial shareholder does
not take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 as
there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in
percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2013.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

HoAty EOR (A1)

%ﬁ%@ﬂig%ﬁﬁ%%%
i<}

TERF (M)

BiEE

1. WREBEEEEEEERZE e (LWREEZ)H
ELURETEEERARANZHRA - MURET
SEERARDFEMEZERERGR AR (FIHEAH
Ty SR B 2 8RR o

2. P22 HEEEERRGA ZHREE T E R
ARBRZFT-ZFN\A+LAMARIKETE
Ut Ty AR IR 5 R B A D) - i BRRR 2 R
BOLWESS - BHARERES

B EXEEEN  RZTE—=ZFRA=+HEAR

A EESEMERRB S EITRAPOEAEMD
HEAEEIAR
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Other Information (Continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers
The aggregate sales during the Period attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales during the Period.

The aggregate purchase during the Period attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases during the

Period.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Period did a director, a supervisor,
an associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital,

have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises six
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Liu Zheng, an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr.
Liu has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for
the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit Committee
discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results and
internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the requirements
of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has reviewed the

reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE IN APPENDIX 14 OF THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”), and that
the directors of the Company did not attend each of the Company’s annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting during the Period due to
other essential business engagements, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 29 August 2013.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2013 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichai.com in due course.

HoAty EOR (A1)

3 R S

RABR - ARFAERETRTESRHRME
FHEA - BBERTLREFARATOEER
BEENREEFENETENEER @
B AR S I S U SRR R -

el I

TR R I
READTEE 2 DHARLHADAEEH
A0 0 AR TRARE TR A RS E AR

EMRRFFRE -

b v B B R
EFEOR T\ A AR REASE
EEMA G BEE -

T A o W 52 BT S 7R o ] A o
A v 30 A

KRR ZE—=FEFHREBRERTE TSN
I% 5 & FE A BB B R AT A www.hknews.hk &

AR AR IEwww.weichai.com



%&%‘éiﬂnﬂ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁl

WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.

i HE
£ B
g =
EC
PR 75 & 45
ETEH
@ 4t

Address

Tel

Fax

P.C.

Service hotline
E-mail
Website

DILEREASS SR E XA BESRAT1975RA
: +86-536-8197777 (##)

. +86-536-8231074

: 261061

: 800 860 3066

. weichai@weichai.com

. http://www.weichai.com

: Section A, 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
1 +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

: +86-536-8231074

1 261061

: 800 860 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

: http://www.weichai.com



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Summary
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Auditors’ Review Report
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Company Balance Sheet
	Company Income Statement
	Company Statement of Changes in Equity
	Company Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Supplemental Information on Financial Statements
	Other Information
	Back Cover




